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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EI$ECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 192

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(df ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:¢

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-13163

ACXIOM CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

DELAWARE 71-0581897
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporati (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
or organization
601 EAST THIRD STREET, LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72201
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

(501) 342-1000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area rode

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefct: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:

Common Stock, $.10 Par Value
(Title of Class)

Preferred Stock Purchase Rights
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a elbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%edbéturities Act.
Yes No[

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Exchange Act.
Yes[ NoXl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sewtit3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4@8ring th
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period e registrant was required to file such repodsy (2) has been subject to such filing requirgséor the past ¢

days.
Yes[XI Noll



Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéitérs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulatio-K is not contained herein, and will not be contdint® the best
registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or imfeation statements incorporated by reference inhlRaf this Form 10-K or any amendment to thisrifol0-K. [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&sge the definitions
“large accelerated filer, “accelerated filer” argirialler reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exege Act.

Large accelerated fildX] Accelerated file]
Non-accelerated fileE] Smaller reporting compa
O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Exchange Act
Yes[] NadXx]

The aggregate market value of the voting stock hgldon-affiliates of the registrant, based upandiosing sale price of the registrant's Commorc&t$.10 par value
per share, as of the last business day of thetragis most recently completed second fiscal quas reported on the NASDAQ National Market wazraximately
$1,215,153,594. (For purposes of determinatiomefabove stated amount only, all directors, exeeuwfficers and 10% or more shareholders of thistregt are
presumed to be affiliates.)

The number of shares of Common Stock, $.10 paevadu share, outstanding as of May 28, 2008, wa1P68.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENC

Portions of Acxiom’s Proxy Statement for the 2008al Meeting of Shareholders (“2008 Proxy Stateiji@me incorporated by reference into Part Illtlis Form 10-
K.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

On May 14, 2008, Acxiom Corporation (“Acxiom” orgliCompany”)announced it would restate its audited consoliditethcial statements for each of the years e
March 31, 2007 and 2006, and the Company’s unalifiitancial statements for each of the quarteriyools ended December 31, 2007, September 30, 206@,30,
2007, March 31, 2007, December 31, 2006, SepteBhez006 and June 30, 2006, and the Company’stedlénancial data for the years ended March 3052hd
2004 (collectively, the “Relevant Periods”). Thetegement is necessary to correct an error in tmegany’s accounting for accrued revenue and teecben error in
classification of additions to deferred costs andhsh flow statement.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year enedch 31, 2008 includes the Company’s consolidéitezhcial statements as of and for the year endattM31,
2008, the Company’s restated consolidated finastééments for each of the years ended March@7, @nd 2006, and the Company'’s restated amountisdmther
Relevant Periods. The Company has not amendedaesdndt intend to amend its Annual Reports on FIOrK or Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the Rete
Periods to reflect the restatement, and the firmstatements and related financial informationtaimed in such reports should no longer be relahu

Historically, and for all the Relevant Periods, @empany has recorded accrued revenue for certiirmation services contracts based on a calcukggohate of
relative value of performance that had occurrechiawt not yet been recognized as revenue. On Mag0D8, the Company determined that the calculdtiahhad been
used for several years did not adequately supperat¢crual of revenue in accordance with the Sgesiand Exchange CommissierBtaff Accounting Bulletin No. 10
Therefore, the Company concluded that the caladileséimates for the Relevant Periods cannot bedrelpon, and the Company is unable to objectivagbypsrt
recording accrued revenue for these informationises transactions. Accordingly, the Company isatéxgy in this Annual Report on Form 10-K its coliated
financial statements for the Relevant Periods nooree the recorded accrued revenue amounts andirémorelated income tax effect. During the cowfsihe
Company'’s review of the accounting treatment faraed revenue described above, the Company aleontieed that it needed to reclassify additionsdfeded costs
as an operating cash flow activity instead of are@ting activity, which it had done in prior perifidancial statements. This reclassification impdatach of the
Relevant Periods. Accordingly, the Company is tesgan this Annual Report on Form 10-K its condalied financial statements for the Relevant Petiodeflect the
reclassification of additions to deferred costam®perating cash flow activity.

The restatement is more fully described in notéolthe Company’s consolidated financial statemamtsided in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Company’s management has determined that sketeenent described above was the result of mhvegiknesses in the Company'’s internal control dwancial
reporting. Accordingly, management’s assessmetiteoéffectiveness of the Company’s internal cordrar financial reporting in the Company’s Annua@g®rt on
Form 10-K and Form 10-K/A for the year ended Ma3ah 2007 should no longer be relied upon. Seedudiscussion of the material weaknesses and laede
remediation efforts in “ltem 9A. Controls and Prdoges.”

All amounts referenced in this Annual Report onfkrdi0K for the Relevant Periods and for comparisonsuidiclg a Relevant Period reflect the balances armliats o1
a restated basis as described above.



PART |
AVAILABILITY OF SEC FILINGS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANE INFORMATION

Our website address is www.acxiom.com, where capig be obtained, free of charge, of documentshwvie have filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Included among those documents ardmoual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports omfr@0-Q, Current Reports on Fornk8-and amendments
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Secti®(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Copies magp ak obtained through the SEC’s EDGAR site, cgdnding a
written request for copies to Acxiom Investor Rielas, 601 East Third Street, Little Rock, AR 722Cbpies of all of our SEC filings were availableam website
during the past fiscal year covered by this ForakK1th addition, at the “Corporate Governance” ggtbf our website, we have posted copies of oupGate
Governance Principles, the charters for the Alitmpensation, Finance, and Governance/Nominatimyn@itiees of the Board of Directors, the codes of
ethicsapplicable to directors, financial persoraral all employees, and other information relatmthe governance of the Company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS RELEVANT TO FORWARD-LOOKINGNFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including, withdumitation, the items set forth on pages F-3 -4#2Managemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operations, contains and may incatpdoy reference certain statements that may &meld to be “forward-looking statementgithin the meaning of tt
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,amended (as amended, the “PSLRA"), and thanéaded to enjoy the protection of the safe haftwoforward-
looking statements provided by the PSLRA. Thesestants, which are not statements of historicd| faay contain estimates, assumptions, projectmagor
expectations regarding the Company'’s financialtpmsiresults of operations, market position, praidievelopment, growth opportunities, economic ébmas, and
other similar forecasts and statements of expectaiorward-looking statements are often identifigdvords or phrases such as “anticipate,” “est@yidplan,”
“expect,” “believe,” “intend,” “foresee,” and sinait words or phrases. These forward-looking statésreme not guarantees of future performance andulject to a
number of factors and uncertainties that could edlaie Company'’s actual results and experiencesfés thaterially from the anticipated results angbectations
expressed in the forward-looking statements.

The factors and uncertainties that could causeabatsults to differ materially from those expresse or implied by, forward-looking statementslude but are not
limited to the following:

o the risk factors described in Part I, “Item 1A.REactors” and elsewhere in this report and theseribed from time to time in our future reportsdiwith the
Securities and Exchange Commissi

« the possibility that in the event a change of adrdf the Company is sought that certain clienty midempt to invoke provisions in their contraesulting in a
decline in revenue and prof

o the possibility that the integration of acquiredsimesses may not be as successful as planned;

« the possibility that the fair value of certain efr@ssets may not be equal to the carrying valukasie assets now or in future time periods;

« the possibility that sales cycles may lengthen;

o the possibility that we won't be able to properlgtivate our sales force or other associates;

« the possibility that we may not be able to atteaad retain qualified technical and leadership dases;, or that we may lose key associates to atfgamizations;
« the possibility that we won't be able to continaeeceive credit upon satisfactory terms and caodit

o the possibility that competent, competitive produtgchnologies or services will be introduced i marketplace by other companies;

o the possibility that there will be changes in cansuor business information industries and marketsnegatively impact the Company;
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« the possibility that we won't be able to proteapgmietary information and technology or to obta@tessary licenses on commercially reasonable terms;

o the possibility that there will be changes in thgislative, accounting, regulatory and consumeirenments affecting our business, including butlimited to
litigation, legislation, regulations and customiaitieg to our ability to collect, manage, aggregate use dat:

o the possibility that data suppliers might withdrdata from us, leading to our inability to providertain products and services;
« the possibility that we may enter into short-temntracts which would affect the predictability afraevenues;

o the possibility that the amount of ad hoc, volunasésl and project work will not be as expected,;

o the possibility that we may experience a loss ¢ danter capacity or interruption of telecommutigcalinks or power sources;

« the possibility that we may experience failure®@aches of our network and data security systkrading to potential adverse publicity, negativetomer
reaction, or liability to third partie:

« the possibility that our clients may cancel or nfiptlieir agreements with us;

o the possibility that we will not successfully com@ customer contract requirements on time or theeservice levels specified in the contracts, Wwinay
result in contract penalties or lost rever

« the possibility that we experience processing smdrich result in credits to customers, re-perforoesof services or payment of damages to customers;

With respect to the provision of products or segsioutside our primary base of operations in thiéedrStates, all of the above factors apply, alitp the difficulty of
doing business in numerous sovereign jurisdictaues to differences in scale, competition, cultlare/s and regulations.

Other factors are detailed from time to time inipaic reports and registration statements filechwlite United States Securities and Exchange Corianisbhe
Company believes that we have the product and tdoby offerings, facilities, associates and contpetiand financial resources for continued busirsessess, but
future revenues, costs, margins and profits arafflienced by a number of factors, including thdseussed above, all of which are inherently diififi to forecast.

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assuomgsti the Company cautions readers not to placeeuradiance on any forward-looking statements. The@any
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or sevany forward-looking statements based on thermaee of future events, the receipt of new infdforaor
otherwise.

Item 1. Business

Overview

At Acxiom Corporation (“Acxiom” or “the Company”NASDAQ: ACXM), we make information intelligent fanany of the world’s leading companies to help them
solve some of their most complex marketing problets products, services and thought leadershiplerithem to acquire new customers, retain theirtwalsiable
customers, communicate with customers in the method times they prefer, and make profitable marfgetnd business decisions. Acxiom’s unmatchecboust
insight is achieved by blending the world’s largesgtository of consumer data, award-winning techbgpland analytics, multi-channel expertise, priveadership, and
superior knowledge of a wide spectrum of industries

Founded in 1969, Acxiom is headquartered in LRtxk, Arkansas, with locations throughout the UWhi&tates and Europe, and in Australia and China.

6



Our client base in the U.S. consists primarily oftEne 1000 companies in the financial servicesyriance, information services, direct marketingdimeretail,
consumer packaged goods, technology, automotiadthivare, and telecommunications industries.Ourtiwis are designed to meet the specific needsrolEénts in
the industries in which they operate. We targeanizgations that view data as a strategic competidtwantage and as an integral component of thsinéss decision-
making process. Every day, Acxiom clients benefitf our decades of experience serving the infoumatechnology and marketing services needs. Wedwl clients
with:

e Marketing solutions built on our acquisition andtume-marketing database framework for customer acgoisitustomer growth and retention, and r-
channel integratio

o Professional consulting which provides analytical$, household segmentation products, and matgkstipport infrastructure to help our clients be
understand their prospects and customers

o Integrated digital marketing solutions for campaiganagement across m-media channels, including personaliz-mail, targeted Websites, banner and ¢
Web advertisements, search engines, and directcaraibaigns

o Creation of a single customer view through custoraeognition solution
« Database design, data content and data qualitughrour Customer Data Integration soluti
e Large-scale data and systems management through stréfegicastructure outsourcin

e Risk information, scoring and analytics for riskmagemen

Market Growth Drivers

In today’s technologically advanced and competitiusiness environment, companies are using vastigsiof customer, prospect and marketplace infaomab
manage their businesses. The information servimhssiry provides a broad range of products andcesdesigned to help companies manage custoragioreships.
Acxiom’s consultative capabilities, industry and analigtiowledge, premier data content, and technologicelvationscombine to enable our clients to effidigacces
and manage information throughout the enterprisecamna global scale.

We believe the following trends and dynamics ofittfermation services industry provide us with npl# growth opportunities:

« Increasing demand for business intelligence bystaming huge stores of data into insight for -time and operational decision maki
« Increasingly targeted, interactive and digital nedirig strategie

e Globalization

« Consumer empowerment which enables individualettebchoose, receive and reject information andresinment

e Technological advances in data management

e« Movement toward multiple communication tools anchtelogy

e Consumer privacy, security and fraud managementaddm

Information management processes have become simtghacomplex as companies learn to respond toodeaphic shifts and lifestyle changes, the prddifien of new
products and services, and the evolution of mdtiphrketing channels.

Marketing channels now include cable and satdbitevision, telemarketing, direct mail, direct respe, in-store point-of-sale, online services, #iedinternet. The
growing number of marketing channels creates evaeasing volumes of data and has compounded thetlgand complexity of managing data. At the saimet
more and more companies are realizing that consuh@are preferences about channels, such as relsggocitine and purchasing in the store.

Advances in computer and software technology halecked vast amounts of customer data that higttyisvas inaccessible, further increasing the amofidata to
manage and analyze. As these data resources eapdnd



become more complex, it becomes increasingly dilffio integrate all the fragmented, disparate afteh outdated information. The challenge to obitgjraccurate an
complete customer data — and ultimately true custansight — lies in obtaining, enhancing and iniigg data from across an organization to forringls,
comprehensive view of individual customers.

Advances in information technology and fragmentatibthe media, combined with the increasing am®woifitaw data and changing household and population
demographics, have spurred the transition fronitteexdl mass media to targeted one-to-one marke@mg-to-one marketing enables the delivery ofsaruized
message to a defined audience and the measurefithatresponse to that message. The Internet hasgethas an ideal one-to-one marketing chanrelolvs
marketing messages to be customized to specifisurnars and allows marketers to make immediate msatddns to their messages based on consumer lueteand
response. In many cases, digital marketing canasomplish these objectives far more cost effettithan traditional marketing media.

These changes are a benefit to Acxiom as comparggeoking increasingly outside of their own origations for help in managing their information deeThe reasol
for doing so include:

e Allowing a company to focus on its fundamental bess operatior

e Avoiding the difficulty of hiring and retaining saze technical personn

e Taking advantage of wol-class expertise in particular specialty areaspuiog consulting and analytir
e Benefiting from the cost efficiencies of outsoure

« Avoiding the organizational and infrastructure sasit building ir-house capabilit

e Benefiting more from the latest technolog

Most businesses are aware that the various typéatafthey gather and maintain — customer, prodinerjcial, sales and marketing — can be a conipetiesource for
acquiring and retaining customers, provided thermftion is well maintained and optimized throughtbe organization. Acxiom specializes in helpingnpanies
manage and optimize their customer information saihannels, with applications ranging from custoamel prospect marketing to customer lifecycle nganzent to
business intelligence.

Acxiom’s services help companies answer questiook as:

e Who are our existing customet

e Who are our prospective custome

e Who are our most profitable custome

o What are the common traits of our existing cust@?

e What do our customers want and when do they wa

o Inthis increasingly digital and interactive agdavdistribution channels should we use?
e How do we most effectively communicate with ourtonsers?

e How do we better serve our customers?

e How should we price our products and services?

e« What new products should we develop or what oldipcts should we retire?

Customers today want companies to recognize thederstand them, listen to them, and value themrelt@n be many challenges, including multiple sitbsustomer
data within an enterprise, an increasing numbéowdhpoints for interacting with customers, andenrers’ desire for greater control over the conaoss they have
with the companies with which they do business.

For today’s consumers, it is not enough to be reizegl by the companies with which they do busintigs; also want to feel that their preferencesuaderstood. They
want the right offer at the right time and at thght price. Failure to recognize the importancéhef customer experience can be costly for busif@ssester concluded
that poor experiences can cost large individuaigimore than $180 million per year.Te Business Impact of Customer ExperierimeBruce D. Temkin, 2008).
“Executives know that customer experience is imgtrtbut they can’t always tie it directly to busss results. Our analysis shows that good custerparience
correlates highly to loyalty — especially whenates to consumers’ plans for making additional pases. When we examined how this might affect timeial revenue
of individual companies, we found that customerezignce



quality could cause a swing of $242 million foraage bank and $184 million for a large reta”

In addition to helping companies improve marketiegults, another application for Acxiom’s solutiossn helping companies combat fraud and idertigft. As
customer contact channels proliferate and dataweduncrease, the opportunity for fraudulent aistimultiplies. Customer recognition capabilitiee @anportant tools t
verify that customers are who they say they arerefisrts of instances of identity theft continuéncrease, enterprise risk management has becdopecancern for
financial services as well as many other firms.

Our Growth Strategy

Acxiom’s growth strategy is built upon our fundartedrcompetencies and our position as a globalaetere marketing services company. The strategligaed with
the market growth drivers and includes three oweglgomponents:

1. Evolving into a premiere market-driven and solution-driven company by:

o Implementing a new operating model with a -defined global sales functic

e Productizing existing offerings and implementingrenoonsistent product lifecycle managen
e Aggressively managing detailed and accountabldipgeeporting

e Developing new growth are:

The recent introduction of Acxiom’s risk mitigatisuite of offerings is one example of executioroanstrategy to expand into new, related busine3sesugh
Acxiom Insight, we offer a powerful combinationdgep data resources and technology with the kihdaalytics and scoring that are necessary fomassies to fight
fraud and mitigate risk. Combined with Acxiom’sdchmanagement platform and the Acxiom Informatien8ity Services employment screening business v
line of business delivers a broader suite of dfigsithat address the complete risk mitigation spect

Our strategy involves a greater:

Global Orientation— Our clients, as well as consumers, are less i@nstl by geographical borders. We will build om swong base outside the U.S. to expand
these capabilities.

Digital Focus— From our market-leading position we intend toagour focus and capabilities to provide insightis consumer uses of and responses to all
emerging channels, such as e-mail, SMS/MMS, taddeamner and mobile advertising, and Internet Radtdelevision.

Consultative Approack With multiple channels for leveraging our consuimsights, clients are demanding return on investinfROI) analysis for each
channel. Concurrently, the numerous opportunitiggimeach channel offer significant value to oliemts that this consulting function can providelditionally,
providing advice to our clients regarding the lzslytical practices and tools will continue toilbgtrumental in how our clients will be able toraxt value.

Multi-Industry Emphasis- The credit card industry has been a technologgealer in the use of information for the acquisitand retention of customers. We

have found that the expertise we developed oveyehes to support the credit card industry traeslaery well to other industries. We will continieefocus on
industries such as insurance, telecommunicatidonzative, media and manufacturing.

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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2. Improve operational effectiveness in all aspects @fur business by:

« Driving down unit costs by leveragir“Centers of Excellen” across the enterprise based upon onshore/offstrategies
o Prioritizing investment across research and deveéoy, mergers and acquisitions, and infrastrugiuograms
e Adopting consistent project management methodology

3. Embrace the concept 0“ One Culture, One Team, One Compar” by:

e Implementing disciplined planning and business rganmeent functions
o Establishing consistent human resources and corapengractices
e Continuing to focus on being a “lean” enterprise

Our Competitive Strengths

By using the following competencies, Acxiom is atlecapitalize on market trends to drive growthe3d competencies also represent competitive ditiieters that wi
believe uniquely position us to deliver high-vakgdutions to our clients:

Ability to Transform Information into BusineCritical Insight

We believe that we are uniquely positioned to teeipclients transform information into insight taprove their marketing and business results. Ollityato deliver the
right data to the right place at the right time @mtes our clients’ marketing, risk management,tarsihess decisions. Those abilities revolve aramurd

o Data content and produc
« Data integration, management and delivery capegsi
« Information systems technology and manager

Accurate and Comprehensive Data Content and Prax

We believe we have the most comprehensive and ateccollection of U.S. consumer, property and teteye marketing data available from a single suppliée
believe we process more mailing lists than any @mgpn the U.S. Our InfoBase consumer databaseirninore than 40 billion data elements and cosiensst all
households in the U.S. Our real estate databasehitludes most major U.S. metropolitan areasec®approximately 92 million properties. We bedieur InfoBase
TeleSource product represents the most compreleeregpository of accurate telephone number inforonaior listed business and consumer telephone nisitné¢he
U.S. and Canada. We also have strong “referenda’asets — information that clients use for nomketang purposes, including data used in our emplenyt screening
and fraud and risk management solution offerings.

Acxiom’s offerings in Europe are aligned with thasehe U.S. We are the leading provider of consudag¢a with industry-leading databases, with bathgehold
coverage and data depth. In the U.K. alone, owBas$e Lifestyle Universe product contains data onenthan 38 million adults residing at 21 millioouseholds
covering more than 95 percent of the U.K. popuratia the U.K., Germany, France, Poland, PortugdlBhe Netherlands, we maintain consumer datactute
programs in order to build proprietary data produ€ur European customer information and segmentafiferings vary on a country-to-country basis émet similar to
our InfoBase offerings in the U.S.

In Australia, Acxiom is a leading supplier of conser and business information for marketing purpo@es lifestyle survey product recently exceededillion records.
Under a range of brand names, Acxiom’s data pradaiet used across numerous sectors, but particblarhajor financial institutions, telecommunicatiocompanies,
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utilities and charities to help them strengthernirtbestomer relationships and grow their marketshin China, we operate a business intelligenagtoener relationshi
management, and data management company headgdant&hanghai with additional operations in Begjjilt provides data, database management, andeataes ti
a number of Asian and international clients.

Customer Data Integration, Data Management and Oi¢tivery

We originated the term “Customer Data Integratiantl believe we are unparalleled in our abilityremsform and integrate massive amounts of dataedas our
knowledge of the industry, we believe we have nerpavhen it comes to building and managing hugebdeses. We believe that is why so many large copacross
many industries have chosen Acxiom as their dat@agement partner.

With our data factory offerings we are creatingeammarket space for Acxiom with our ability to igtate and transform voluminous, raw data input fronitiple
sources into enriched customer-defined informapiaducts. In addition, we have industry-leadingatalities in e-mail marketing and Web-based sesiddese
capabilities come with a serious responsibilitygaracy and security. We are committed to secutfirgdata we manage, and we work closely with bents to attemg
to ensure that it is used only for proper purposes.

Data integration for enterprise data managemvie believe our Customer Data Integration capaddljttombined with related real-time customer rettimgnsoftware
and infrastructure, are the leading solution fanpanies seeking to better integrate their custafatr and manage their customer relationships. Gsteelationship
management (CRM) involves analyzing, identifyinggairing and retaining customers. Knowledge deédedirectly and immediately to a desktop or othestamer
point of contact in real time is critical to the MIbrocess. Our Customer Data Integration produndsservices are designed to meet these challengesif clients.

As the basic infrastructure for integrated CRM #ohs, our patented AbiliTec® technology allows timking of disparate databases across a cbemisiness and mak
possible personalized, real-time CRM at every gustotouchpoint. AbiliTec’s unprecedented scopeussty and speed contribute to Acxiom being estabtisas the
Customer Data Integration leader, using AbiliTethtess an internal processing tool and as the enabthe single customer view that drives true,-tmene marketing.
Our clients gain advantages from AbiliTec by:

e Greatly improving the speed with which campaigrestaought to market in order to quickly seize opyaties
o Leveraging shorter turnaround times to increasértwiency of data warehouse upd:
e Basing marketing and other business decisions oe axxurate da

Information Systems Technology and Managei

As information grows at unprecedented rates andhiise increases, it magnifies the need to effetimanage the massive data volumes and transfenmtormation
into meaningful insights that drive business resulis one of the world’s largest processors of datacessing more than 1.5 trillion records per thpAcxiom’s IT
services are positioned to help companies, pastityuthose that are information-intensive.

We help companies optimize their IT infrastructuresiuce costs and transform information into megfui intelligence. We achieve this by deliveringrelardized
computing platforms, innovative technology soluiphest-in-class processes and expertise in datagement that we believe is unrivaled by any coitguen the
marketplace. Acxiom’s services range from fully mmged solutions, like mainframe and server managgneespecific point solutions, like desktop viri@ation. Our
services help clients solve some of their mostgingsproblems, all while improving data center gpiens. These services include:

o High-impact business intelligence solutions that lba implemented quickly and cost effectively
e Server and storage solutions for data-intensivéremments

e Virtualization solutions that focus on the datateemot just servers

o Remote infrastructure management for companieadaniainframe management challenges

e Security solutions that address growing data carscer
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Acxiom has extensive expertise and l-scale capacity in managing data cen- our own and those we manage for our clients. Sdttgeamost tangible examples
our commitment to helping companies, particuldnlyse managing growing volumes of business and cagisinformation, can be found in our data centers:

e Multiple data center locations and more than 195 fifuare feet of secure, controlled/managed arableldata center raised floor spe
e Over 56,000 MIPS (millions of instructions per sedpof processing pow:t
e Secure and redundant management for more thanQL5¢d0ers

o Over five petabytes of storage managed from leasliogage manufacturers (A petabyte is often useshwineasuring large computer storage; one petab
equivalent to 1,000 terabytes, or 1 quadrillioneisy)
o Enterprise backup services for more than 5 petahlyftdata monthl;

o Complete database management for over 3,500 dat

Acxiom focuses on creating a data center capabdéfettively managing tremendous volumes of dath@oviding a scalable computing infrastructurd tan
transform that data into business intelligenceckprly defining organizational strategy and linkiorocess management goals with this pioneerirgyrimdtion
technology, an organization can execute real-tigasibns for superior customer experiences andbssiperformance.

Acxiom has been an industry leader in using te@gyoto solve business information problems, andirfermation systems technology provides capabgito support
the needs of the largest enterprise. Some of thefite of this technology include:

o Performance- Acxiom utilizes commodity servers to replicate greeformance of a supercomputer that would otheradst many times more. When clie
need to increase their processing capability, veeale additional processors from this pool, rathen having to invest in another large, expensoraputer

e Scalability —Our data center architecture allows us to add madit storage as clients need it. This enable<liemts to store historical data for use in treggin
modeling and analytics, creating modes that aneasingly more sophisticated and accut

o Adaptability — Acxiom information technology is based upon a staddet of components and tools. Using tt*plug and pla” components, it is easier a
faster to set up new, repeatable and powerful gg&s The standard framework can be easily coefigfiar a specific client or industr

e Security - Our security objective is that no intellectualprdpgi.e ., data, software, or algorithms) stored in oramsit to/from Acxiom can be copied or moy
outside in a usable format without appropriate entication and authorizatio

Privacy Leadershi

We have always taken an active approach with réspeonsumer privacy. The growth of e-commerce @rdpanies’ needs for consumer information mearwtiea
must work even harder to assure that our privadigipe adequately protect consumer information. egjuently, we actively promote a set of effectikiegry
guidelines for the direct marketing, e-commercgk management and information industries as a whudeistry-wide compliance helps address privagyceons across
the globe. Furthermore, we are certified undei&hmpean Union safe harbor and contractually corwitly other international data protection requiretseo ensure
the continued ability to process information acrosslers.

We have a dedicated team in place to oversee oopl@nce with the privacy regulations that goveun business activities in the various countriewlich we operate.
We are committed to the protection of consumerrmgtion by promoting policies within the industhat offer individuals the appropriate choices aratertion of
information related to the individual, while pregag the flow of information that provides the matgnveniences consumers have come to expect. @bal3Privacy
Officer has extensive knowledge of U.S. federal statie laws governing
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the use of information, and she is sought by botltyp makers and regulators for her views on tHeative use of personal information. She is a fesjispeaker o
privacy and customer relationship management, hadhas published numerous articles and has patécpn writing books on these subjects.

For Acxiom’s U.S. information products, our U.SoBucts Privacy Policy outlines the variety of measwve take to protect consumers’ privacy. Adddityn Acxiom
maintains a privacy policy that governs our Int¢épresence as well as other country-specific pyivaadicies related to information product offeringshose countries.
Copies of these policies are posted on our Websitevw.acxiom.com We educate our clients and associates regardimguener privacy issues, guidelines and laws.
Within our U.S. Products Privacy Policy, we expltie steps that consumers may take to have theiesaemoved from our marketing products and toiolstaopy of
the information we maintain about them in our refere products.

Companies are assessing their own data governaactcps and beginning to recognize that Custonata Ihtegration technology can help them managedividual’s
preferences across their organizations and addoessimers’ concerns. We believe that Acxisi@ustomer Data Integration technologies can eraldmesses to mo'
beyond mere privacy “protection” and toward consuatocacy. Acxiom’s Customer Data Integration texbgy allows businesses to create a single viethef
customers in real time for marketing purposes aake® it much easier for businesses to honor thetomers’ preferences and selectively opt out dhgepractices,
and to provide better safeguards around their mets information.

The U.S. Congress continues to debate privacyl&gis, and there are many different types of mwkegislation pending in the 50 states. In moghefnon-U.S.
locations in which we do business, legislationriesihg the collection and use of personal dataaly exists. We expect this trend to continue hatrivacy legislatio
in various forms will be implemented in both theSUand abroad. We are supportive of legislationdbdifies the current industry guidelines of netand opt-out
regarding whether or not a consumer’s personatimétion is shared with independent third partiesfarketing purposes. We also support legislatamuiring all
custodians of sensitive information to deploy remdibe information security safeguards to proteat ififormation.

Business Segments

Acxiom reports segment information consistent wlith way we internally manage our operations tosasperformance and to allocate resources. We dpravaluate
the segment allocations in light of our currenéingl operations and make adjustments as nece¥gargvaluate the performance of the segments lmasedgment
operating income, which excludes certain gaingdssind other items. Information concerning thanfomal results of our fiscal year 2008 businessngegs and the tot
assets of each business segment is included inlBatéthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statémand in Management’s Discussion and Analysisimdifcial
Condition and Results of Operations, which arechattd to this Annual Report as part of the Finar8igdplement.

The three business segments in fiscal 2008 were:

o Information Service
e Information Products
e Infrastructure Management.

Information Services develops, sells and delivedsistry-tailored solutions globally through intetipa of products, services and consulting. Thoseiges include the
design and creation of marketing databases andagathouses; data integration and customer-regogrsystems; marketing applications; and list pssaey. Our
industry expertise is a competitive differentiatodustries in which we traditionally provide thesa&vices include automotive; retail and consunaekaged goods;
credit card; retail banking; investment; insurartcavel; media and publishing; and healthcare agd-tech.

Information Products develops and sells all glatzh products, including segmentation and digitatipcts, as well as domestic fraud and risk miibgaproducts. For
decades, Acxiom has been a leader in creating akihmadvances in data and segmentation produstiayTthese include InfoBaseT¥: , a customer-centric
foundation for all marketing needs with the largasitection of U.S. consumer information availaliie@ne source; Personic¥
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the industry-leading household segmentation anghlization system; and Relevance”X, an online advertising network that lets marketeexh the consumers most
likely to be interested in their particular prodoctservice.

Infrastructure Management develops and deliversrinétion technology products and services, sudf astsourcing and transformational solutions. Aewis IT
management expertise gives companies the freedémsus on their business-critical initiatives -€elilncreasing revenue and profitability — while wamage their IT
infrastructure services. Acxiom has a full suitesefvices ranging from fully managed solutions saglmanaged server outsourcing to specific polatisas such as
desktop virtualization.

Financial information about geographic areas incivhie operate, including revenues generated ingioi@untries and long-lived assets located inigreountries is
set forth in note 16, “Foreign Operations” of thetés to Consolidated Financial Statements, whiettté&ehed to this Annual Report on Form 10-K a$ pithe
Financial Supplement.

Clients

Our client base consists primarily of Fortune 180fhpanies in the financial services, insurancermétion services, direct marketing, publishingaitexnd
telecommunications industries. Some of our mdjents include Bank of America, CitiGroup, Deluxer@oration, Federated Department Stores, GE, Goitsp
Information Resources, Inc., JP Morgan Chase,PMbrris, Sears Holdings Corporation, Sprint, Ttani®n and Washington Mutual.

Our 10 largest clients represented approximatelpe36ent of our revenue in fiscal 2008. No sirgjlent accounted for more than 10 percent of ouemee during the
last fiscal year. We seek to maintain lalegm relationships with our clients. Many of olients typically operate under contracts with iditerms of at least two yea
We have historically experienced high retentioesatmong our clients.

Sales and Marketing

Acxiom’s sales and marketing organizations are $eduwn ensuring that clients and prospects understiat Acxiom’s strengths go well beyond beingengier
supplier of data and technology, and that theyhzaure greater business success by recognizing thateva fullservice thought leader that can help them userirdtior
to make higher-value marketing and business dewsigross multiple channels.

New to Acxiom is a centralized global team of sassociates focused exclusively on new businessia@went across all marke— primarily new clients and new lines
of business with existing clients. Supporting #tisicture is a new commitment to accountabilitysbiting clearer goals and more closely measuriagrpss and
achievement.

We have identified seven markets in which leadezscharged with identifying trends along industryegional lines where we need to tailor our erigtfferings.
These leaders’ focus includes revenue protectiprsalling into existing accounts, delivery of ekigtrevenue, and implementing new business asilé The markets
are: financial services; retail and consumer paeagods; travel, telecommunications and mediararce; manufacturing and distribution (which inlga automotive
high-tech and “data factory” type solutions); Eugppnd Asia Pacific.

In the past year a greater strategic focus wagglaa introducing C-level audiences to the Acxiaamld. This involved several well-attended eventstath Acxiom
hosted the chief executive officers and chief miamkeofficers of key clients.

Acxiom’s marketing organization recently createuati-channel branding campaign aimed at creatiggeater awareness of Acxiom and conveying our fiterie
clients and prospects. This campaign includedrtreduction of the “X” icon as an Acxiom emblempew theme line (“We make information intelligentigew produc
naming conventions for Acxiom (InfoBase-X, for exale) for greater consistency and superior Inteseatch optimization, and a new graphic identity. e recently
introduced a new Website featuring easier, morgtimé navigation
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and vastly improved search optimizati
Pricing

We seek to establish pricing for all of Acxiom’sdiof-business offerings to yield adequate retomswested capital and overall margins that exgeeedefined
targets.

Marketing Services
(a) Marketing Database Services
Data warehousing and database management solédioAsxiom’s top-tier clients are typically custoemgagements, and prices are developed after exagtime
scope of effort and degree of complexity requiedévelop and maintain the solutions.. Changesapes may result in additional fees to our cliehtsts mid- and
small-tier markets, Acxiom offers more economiaa-packaged or standard database solutions andor@nis.

(b) Digital Services

Digital e-mail marketing services are typicallyqail in multi-year arrangements using market-basethpg guidelines. Prices may be adjusted based tip®
degree of customization or complexity.

(c) Direct Services

Direct marketing services are typically priced dher a defined program retainer basis for one pean a project-by-project basis. For annual oltinyear
arrangements, the prices are based upon the pragnaplexity and volume.

Data

Market-based prices are published for most of @ta @roducts. Licenses for our entire consumeusiniess databases for one or more years are pnideedually.
Risk Mitigation

Market-based pricing guidelines are followed fdrodithe offerings within the Acxiom Insight suité products. Pricing within each offering varie®stantially due to

variables such as optional components, transaetiimes and delivery channels utilized. Identityifieation solution pricing, employment screeningdadata pricing
follow a transactional model. Collection solutioncpng and investigative solution pricing both folN a software license model.

Consulting

Analytics and consulting services are typicallycpd under a professional services model (time aaténals). Certain types of analytical models meayliced on a
fixed fee, per model basis.

Customer Data Integration Services

Market-based pricing guidelines are followed fois@mer Data Integration services such as datagitegipostal hygiene, merge/purge processing, asibeer
recognition. When our AbiliTec technology is licedsto our clients, it is priced under a subscriptiwodel. AbiliTec may be sold as part of an AbiliTenabled service
and priced as a bundled offering such as a custoegegnition solution.
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IT Services

IT management services are custom solutions, @oegpare negotiated with each client individuayicing is highly dependent on service levels,gfanof assets,
transfer of human resources, and other infrastradssues.

Competition

We believe we are the U.S. leader in a competiteld of expertise. Within the industry, we compatginst data content providers, database markstingce
providers, analytical data application vendorsegnise software providers, systems integratonssalting firms, list brokerage/list management 8rrand teleservices
companies. Many firms offer a limited number ofvéss within a particular geographic area, and h\ae national or international companies th&rad broad array
of information services. However, we do not knowan§ single competitor that offers our entire ranfjproducts and services.

In the U.S. services arena, we compete primarith wi-house information technology departmentsusfent and prospective clients, as well as firna grovide data
warehousing and database services, mailing listgsing and consulting services. Competition iedhas the quality and reliability of products aedvices, industry
and technological expertise, historical succestifyatp develop customized solutions for clientspcessing capabilities and price.

In the U.S. data sector, we compete with two tygfdgms: data providers and list providers. Conitit is based on the quality and comprehensiveottdse
information provided, the ability to deliver thdanmation in products and formats that our cliemed and, to a lesser extent, the pricing of in&tiom products and
services.

In the IT management market, competition is basetéohnical expertise and innovation, financiabsity, past experience with the provider, markat@ reputation,
cultural fit, quality and reliability of serviceproject management capabilities, processing enmigons and price.

In Europe, we face similar competition as in th&.Un terms of scope and type. While there is adeo range of competitors across Europe, partigutar customer
data, the major competitors in both the servicektha data markets are very similar to those illtt& In Australia and New Zealand, our competitorthe services
arena are predominantly well-established localri®sses or companies’ in-house IT departments; henveome large global competitors have begun &r dffeir
services in these countries. Our competitors irdtita arena are generally local Australian and Kealand companies, with the exception of one glbbalness-to-
business data provider. In 2004, Acxiom establishpdesence in China by purchasing an existingiessi which was one of the first providers of dataices in that
country. The competition in China is fragmentedhvainly a few local firms providing similar servicéNell-known global providers, however, have relgemeen
attracted by the potential of the Chinese markdtagpear to be investing heavily.

Employees

Acxiom currently employs approximately 6,610 emgey (associates) worldwide. None of Acxiom's UsSoeiates are currently represented by a labonuwniare the
subject of a collective bargaining agreement. Eoltest of management’s knowledge, approximatelgskdciates are elected members of work councitesepting
Acxiom associates in France, Germany and the Nati@s.Acxiom has never experienced a work stoppagdebelieves that its employee relations are good.
Recent Developments

Not applicable
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks described below could materially and asklg affect our business, financial condition aesllts of future operations. These risks are m®bnly ones we
face. Our business operations could also be imghayeadditional risks and uncertainties that arepnesently known to us, or that we currently cdasimmaterial.

We must keep up with rapidly changing technologiesr our products and services could become less costjiive.

The complexity and uncertainty regarding the dgwelent of new technologies affect our business lyrezd does the loss of market share through catigretor the
extent and timing of market acceptance of innoeagiroducts and technology. We are also poten@difcted by:

e Longer sales cycles for our solutions due to tttanezof that technology as an enterprise-wide gmigt

e The introduction of competent, competitive produmtsechnologies by other compani

e Changes in the consumer and/or business informatthrstries and markets;

e The ability to protect our proprietary informatiand technology or to obtain necessary license®omtercially reasonable terms; &

e The impact of changing legislative, judicial, acating, regulatory, cultural and consumer environtaémthe geographies where our products and snce
deployed

Maintaining technological competitiveness in outadaroducts, processing functionality, softwargesys and services is key to our continued suc@assability to
continually improve our current processes and telig and introduce new products and servicessisrggl in order to maintain our competitive pagitand meet the
increasingly sophisticated requirements of oumttielf we fail to do so, we could lose clientsctarent or future competitors, which could resnltiecreased revenues,
net income and earnings per share.

Changes in legislative, judicial, regulatory, cultwal or consumer environments relating to consumer pvacy or information collection and use may affectour
ability to collect and use data.

There could be a material adverse impact on ouinbss due to the enactment of legislation or ingusigulations, the issuance of judicial interptietss, or simply a
change in customs, arising from the increasingipwancern over consumer privacy issues. In the,b@&h the Congress and the legislatures of varsates have
recently focused their attention on matters coriogrthe collection and use of consumer data. Intrabthe non-U.S. locations in which we do businésgislation
restricting the collection and use of personal @ét@ady exists. Many times restrictions are plamethe use of data by the occurrence of eventsapally drive the
adoption of legislation or regulation. Restrictiarmild be placed upon the collection, managemegtegation and use of information, which could teisua material
increase in the cost of collecting some kinds ¢&dim the U.S. the general data collection regsrtbat non-sensitive data is usable so long apéhgon does not
affirmatively “opt-out” of the collection. In Eurepthe reverse is true. If the European model weopted in the U.S. it would lead to less data bewajlable and at a
higher cost. It is also possible that we could twhibited from collecting or disseminating certaipes of data, which could in turn materially achedy affect our ability
to meet our clients’ requirements, potentially tésg in decreased revenues, net income, and egser share.

We could experience a breach of the confidentialitpf the information we hold or of the security of ar computer systems.

We operate extremely large, powerful and complermater systems that contain personally identifialalz. Unauthorized third parties could attemmgdim entry to
such systems for the purpose of stealing datasoupling the systems. We believe that we have talequate measures to protect them from intrubiann the event
that
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our efforts are unsuccessful we could suffer sigaift harm. Further, we handle large quantitiegestonally identifiable information that must beimtained on ¢
confidential basis. In the event the confidentyatif such information was compromised, we couldesusignificant harm.

Data suppliers might withdraw data from us, leadingto our inability to provide products and services.

Much of the data that we use is either purchaséidensed from third parties. We compile the rerdaimof the data that we use from public record cesirWe could
suffer a material adverse effect if owners of th&adve use were to withdraw the data from us. patgiders could withdraw their data from us if thés a competitive
reason to do so, or if legislation is passed msig the use of the data, or if judicial interat&ins are issued restricting use of data. If ssuttial number of data
providers were to withdraw their data, our abityprovide products and services to our clientdccbe materially adversely impacted, which coulslitein decreased
revenues, net income and earnings per share.

The nature and volume of our customer contracts mawffect the predictability of our revenues.

While approximately 74%of our total revenue is eutty derived from clients who have loterm contracts (defined as contracts with iniahis of two years or more
these contracts have been entered into at vatimes &ind therefore some of them are in the latigrqgd their terms and are approaching their ogliynscheduled
expiration dates. Further, if renewed by the cusioithe terms of the renewal contract may not lzategm as long as, or may otherwise be on ternssfde®rable than,
the original contract. Revenue from customers Vaitig-term contracts is not necessarily “fixed” eaiaganteed, however, as portions of the revenue these customers
is volume-driven or project-related. With respectte portion of our business that is not undeg4iterm contract, revenues are less predictableaendlmost
completely volume-driven or project-related. Theref we must engage in continual sales effortsaimtain revenue stability and future growth witkgk customers. In
addition, if a significant customer fails to renawontract, our business could be negatively ingeaiftadditional business were not obtained toaeplthe business
which was lost.

Our operations outside the U.S. subject us to risksormally associated with international operations.

During the last fiscal year, we received approxehal8%o0f our revenues from business outside thedistates. As part of our growth strategy, we ptacontinue to
pursue opportunities outside the U.S., and in ot@elo this we must continue to strengthen ouriforeperations, hire additional personnel, andicoetto identify and
execute beneficial strategic alliances. To thergxteat we are unable to do these things in a yimenner, our growth, if any, in non-U.S. revenwikbe limited, and
our operating results could be materially adverséfigcted. In general, each of our foreign locatianexpected to fund its own operations and das¥sf although
periodically funds may be loaned or invested frown t).S. to the foreign subsidiaries. Thereforeharge rate movements of foreign currencies may Aavepact on
our future costs or on future cash flows from fgreinvestments. We have not entered into any fareigrency forward exchange contracts or otheweévie
instruments to hedge the effects of adverse fltictns in foreign currency exchange rates. Additioigks inherent in our non-U.S. business actisitienerally include,
among others, potentially longer accounts recee&zpalyment cycles, the costs and difficulties of agamg international operations, potentially advesseconsequence
and greater difficulty enforcing intellectual praoperights. The various risks which are inherentéi@ing business in the United States are also géyapplicable to
doing business outside of the United States, andbeaxaggerated by the difficulty of doing bussigsnumerous sovereign jurisdictions due to déffies in culture,
laws and regulations.

Loss of data center capacity or interruption of tetcommunication links could adversely affect our busess.

Our business is heavily dependent upon highly cemgata processing capability. Our ability to pebtur data centers against damage or interruftion fire, power
loss, telecommunications failure or other disastecsitical to our future. The on-line services previde are dependent on links to telecommuniogtimviders. We
believe we have taken reasonable precautions tegtrour data centers and telecommunication links fevents that could interrupt our operations. dagnage to our
data centers or any failure of our telecommunicestiinks that causes interruptions in our operatiwould materially adversely affect our abilitynb@et our clients'
requirements, which could result in decreased neegnnet income, and earnings per share.
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Failure to favorably negotiate or effectively integate acquisitions or alliances could adversely afte our business.

As part of our growth strategy we may continuedquare other complementary businesses, productsezhdologies or enter into joint ventures or samdtrategic
relationships. While we believe we will be ablestacessfully integrate recently acquired busineisgéeur existing operations, there is no certathat future
acquisitions or alliances will be consummated areptable terms or that we will be able to integsatecessfully the services, content, products ansopnel of any
such transaction into our operations. In additamy future acquisitions, joint ventures or similalationships may cause a disruption in our ongbingjness and distract
our management. There is also no assurance thabwi derive the revenue improvements, cost savangssother intended benefits of any such transactibe
occurrence of any of these events could resulearehsed revenues, net income and earnings per. shar

The direct marketing community could be negativelyaffected by both rising postal costs and the greemovement.

Postal rate increases are now expected to occty gear. The most recent increase in the U.S.rheaffective in May 2008 and the next increasexpeeted in May
2009. Rates are anticipated to rise annually ptcagimately the rate of inflation, and as they rise expect to see increased pressure on diret@méo leverage digital
communication and mail fewer pieces.

Those in the direct mail business, as well thegdestrvice, are under growing pressure to redugie ithpact on the environment. It is uncertainhés time what either
marketers or the postal service will do to les$mirtimpact. From a postal service perspectiveattimns to be taken may involve changing certapeats of mail
service that would negatively affect direct marketeFrom a marketer's perspective, such actionfldeave the same effect as increased rates, theaelsing them to
mail fewer pieces.

Acxiom is investing in digital marketing servicasdeexpects to offset some of the declining revemsssciated with regular mail, but an aggressispaese by direct
mailers could negatively affect us by decreasimgaimount of processing services our clients puecfrasn us, which could result in lower revenued,ineome and
earnings per share.

Industry consolidations could result in increased empetition for our products and services.

Our industry has experienced a variety of busigessbinations that consolidate our competitors. pbssibility of the consolidation or merger of comjgs who might
combine forces to create a single-source provitlerutiple services to the marketplace in whicheeenpete could result in increased price competidorus which
would negatively affect our business results. Wieenuly compete against numerous providers of glsiservice or product in several separate mapaates. (See the
discussion above under “Competition.”) Since weo# larger variety of services than many of ourant competitors, we have been able to succegsfaihpete
against them in most instances. However, the dyceofithe marketplace could be significantly aleifesome of the singlservice providers were to combine with e
other to provide a wider variety of services.

Processing errors or delays in completing servicevel requirements could result in negative financieconsequences.

Processing errors could result in the issuanceetfits to clients, the re-performance of work, andthie payment of damages. Likewise, the failunnét contractual
service level requirements or to meet specifiedgge#h contractual timeframes could result in m@ng penalties or lost revenue.

Our engagements with certain clients may not be pfdable.

The pricing and other terms of our client contraptsticularly our long-term IT outsourcing agreense require us to make estimates and assumptidhe éme we
enter into these contracts that could differ frastual results.
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These estimates reflect our best judgments regattanature of the engagement and our expectésl trogrovide the contracted services. Any incrédasainexpecte
costs or unanticipated delays in connection withglrformance of these engagements, including slekaysed by factors outside our control, could nthé&se contracts
less profitable or unprofitable, which would haveaalverse affect on our profit margin. Our expogarhis risk increases generally in proportiorhe scope of the
client contract and is higher in the early stagesuch a contract. In addition, a majority of olirdutsourcing contracts contain some fixed-prineentivebased or othe
pricing terms that condition our fee on our abititymeet defined goals. Our failure to meet a tBegxpectations in any type of contract may resudtn unprofitable
engagement.

Our ability to recover significant capital investments in certain contracts is subject to risks.

A few of our client contracts require significanvestment in the early stages which is expectdx teecovered through billings over the life of toatract. These
contracts often involve the construction of new pater systems and communications networks anddhelapment and deployment of new technologies. t8nbal
performance risk exists in each contract with treseacteristics, and some or all elements of eemelivery under these contracts are dependemt syexessful
completion of the development, construction andalepent phases.

We have identified two material weaknesses in ouniernal control over financial reporting, and concluded that our internal control was not effective a®f
March 31, 2008.

The Company has identified two material weaknegsesr internal control over financial reportingdaras a result, has concluded that our internarabover financial
reporting as of March 31, 2008 was not effectivithdugh we are adopting measures to remediate thaterial weaknesses, there can be no assurancaitir@medial
efforts will be effective, nor can there be anyusaaces that additional material weaknesses wilbeadentified in the future. Remediation of thaterial weaknesses
may be costly and time consuming. The inabilityrintain effective internal control over financiaporting could adversely affect our financial fesuwthe market pric
of our common stock or our operations. See Item@dtrols and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosuwetfls and Procedures in this Annual Report fantt0-K for
further discussion.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item 2. Properties
Acxiom is headquartered in Little Rock, Arkansa#hvadditional locations around the United States.alo have operations in Europe, Australia anch&Hn general,
our facilities are in good condition, and we bedighat they are adequate to meet our current nééglslo not anticipate that any substantial additigmoperties will be

required for our existing business during fiscary2009 and contemplate a reduction in the amduciiroent office space in the U.S. The table betets forth the
location, ownership and general use of our pridgypaperties currently being used by each busisegsent.

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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Location

United States:

Phoenix, Arizon:

Conway, Arkansas

Fayetteville, Arkansa

Little Rock, Arkansas

Foster City, California

Broomfield, Coloradc

Stamford,
Connecticut

Ft. Myers, Florida

Chicago, lllinois

Downers Grove
lllinois

Southfield, Michigar
Shoreview, Minnesota

New York, New York

Independence, Oh
Memphis, Tenness¢

Nashville, Tennesse

Europe:

London, Englanc

Normanton, England

Sunderland, England

Teddington, Englan

Lille, France

Held in fee

Eleven facilities held

in fee

Lease

Two leased buildings;
Two buildings held in
fee

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease
Lease

Two leased office

Lease
Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

C
]
D

Data center; office spar

Data center; office space

Office space

Principal executive offices;
office space; data center

Office space

Office space

Office space

Office space

Data center; office spar

Data center; office spar

Office space
Office space

Office space

Office space
Office space

Office space

Office space

Data center; office space

Data center; fulfillment
service center; office space;
warehouse space

Office space

Data center; office spat

Business Segme

Information Services ar
Infrastructure
Management

Information Services,
Information Products and

Infrastructure
Management

Information Services ar

Information Products

Information Services,
Information Products and
Infrastructure
Management

Information Services

Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Service

Information Products

Information Services ar
Infrastructure
Management

Information Services ar
Infrastructure
Managemen

Information Service
Infrastructure Management

Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Product
Information Service

Information Service
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Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Services and
Information Products

Information Services,
Information Products and
Infrastructure Management

Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Services ar



Paris, Franc

Frankfurt, German

Munich, German

Amsterdam

Netherlands

Gdansk, Polan

Warsaw, Polan

Lisbon, Portugal

Australia:

Sydney, Australit

China:

Shanghai, Chin

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Lease

Data center; office spat

Office space

Office space

Office space

Office space

Office space

Office space

Office space

Office space

Information Product

Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Services ar
Information Products

Information Services
Information Products and
Infrastructure Management

Information Services
Information Products and
Infrastructure Management

Information Services and
Information Product

Information Service

Information Service
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Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

The following is a description of material pendiegal proceedings and claims, other than ordinamyime litigation and claims incidental to our mess, to which
Acxiom is a party or of which any of our propersythe subject:

Richard Fresco, et al. v. R.L. Polk & Co. and Aewi€orporation, (U.S. Dist. Court, S.D. Florida,-60695)formerly, Linda Brooks and Richard Fresco v. Auto Data
Direct, Inc., et al., (U.S. Dist. Court, S.D. Fld&, 0:-61063)- This is a putative class action lawsuit, remoteetederal court in May 2003, filed against Acxiamd
several other information providers. The plaintédfiege that the defendants obtained and usedrdrii@ense data in violation of the federal Drisé?rivacy Protection
Act. To date, a class has not been certified. Ammthgr things, the plaintiffs seek injunctive rélistatutory damages, and attorneys’ fees. AcxiathRolk have agreed
to stay the proceedings while mediation is conduateder the purview of the Court. Two companioresgSharon Taylor, et al., v. Acxiom, et al., (U.S.tBi$ Court,
E.D. Texas, 207CV001) and Sharon Taylor, et diemetric Access Company, et al., (U.S. District€oE.D. Texas, 2:(-CV-00018)were filed in January 2007.

Epsilon Data Management LLC, et al. v. Acxiom Ceafion, (192" Judicial District Court of Dallas County, TX, 07/889)- This case, brought by a competitor of
Acxiom after the acquisition of three long timeagatoviders, alleges that Acxiom breached certims$ and conditions of the data licenses with tlasgired
companies in the course of building and distritgiiitxiom data products. The plaintiffs seek injiwetelief and unspecified damages. Acxiom contehdsit has
acted in conformance with the data licenses am@jerously defending the claims.

Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityolders

Not applicable

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Acxiom’s executive officers, their current positrmages and business experience are listed belwy. are elected by the board of directors annwalhs necessary to
fill vacancies or fill new positions. There arefamily relationships among any of the officers.

John A. Meyer, age 51, is the Company’s Chief EtieelOfficer and President. Mr. Meyer joined then@any in February 2008 as chief executive officet a
president. From 2003 - 2008 he was employed bytélldaicent, a global communications network firmpassident of the Alcatel-Lucent Services Groupyhich
position he was responsible for more than $6 billmannual revenue and the management of more2®&00 people. The group he led designed, implésdeand
managed some of the most sophisticated communisatietworks in the world. Prior to joining Lucelt;. Meyer spent nearly 20 years at Electronic C&tatems, Inc
(EDS), where he held a number of positions inclgdirad of the Northeast business in the Unitec&Sttd President of the Europe, Middle East anida@fegion. Mr.
Meyer holds an M.B.A. in quantitative methods frtira University of Missouri and a bachelor of scedegree in management from Pennsylvania Stateetsiy. He
also served in the U.S. Air Force from 1979 to 188 flight commander, achieving the rank of dapta

John A. Adams, age 53, is the Company’s Chief Qpey@fficer and Executive Vice President in whidpacity he has responsibility for directing themgtional areas
of the business which include the market facingigty units, Europe and Asia Pacific, service depelent and delivery, and information technologye jeined
Acxiom May 14, 2008, having served previously @sasultant to the Company. From 2004 — 2006 Mr.mslavas executive vice president of customer saiatfor
Eclipsys, a healthcare information software anglises vendor. In that capacity, he was responsisléhe company’s outsourcing and hosting unitereb as a number
of administrative functions. From 2003 — 2004, érved as chief financial officer for Exult, Inc.haman resources business process outsourcing ogrifpst was
subsequently sold to Hewitt Associates during Mitafs’ tenure. From 2000 — 2003 Mr. Adams servethis financial officer and vice president of AT&RUsiness
Services, a subsidiary of AT&T Corporation. In thidge, he led a successful restructuring of thesilidary’s operations. Prior to that, Mr. Adams veasployed by
Electronic Data Systems Corporation (EDS) for 1&rgeserving most recently as its vice presidedtcmtroller, in which capacity he oversaw the actmg and
finance functions for EDS worldwide. Mr. Adams, gtBh citizen, is a member of the Institute of @beeed Accountants in England and Wales. He holaschaelor of
arts degree with honors in economics from the Usitieof Exeter, England.

Christopher W. Wolf, age 46, is the Company’s Chiefancial Officer and Executive Vice President.jbfeedAcxiom in 2007 and is responsible for appests of
Acxiom’s financial management. He has over 20 yeaperience as a financial executive and consuitacdmpanies in the marketing, retail and techgpkectors. He
most recently served as an independent consuftaouiding consultation on financial reporting, Samks-Oxley compliance, corporate governance, dapitecture,
mergers and acquisitions, and tax planning to etyaof public and private entities. From 2005 080Mr. Wolf served as CFO of NiuTech LLC, an imietr marketing
services company, where he was responsible fadbeunting, financial planning and analysis, tregasand risk management activities of the comp&ngm 1996 -
2004, Mr. Wolf was employed in various finance &aud positions with Catalina Marketing Corporaticn|minating in his service as chief financial offidrom 2002 -
2004. He also served as executive vice president #003 - 2004; senior vice president from 200203 vice president —finance and treasurer from0202002;
executive director of tax, treasury and internaldmance from 1998 - 2000; senior director of e international finance from 1997 - 1998; andaedirector of tax
from 1996 - 1997. Prior to joining Catalina, Mr. \Weerved for a 10-year period as a tax managercandultant for Arthur Andersen & Co. Mr. Wolf icartified
public accountant and holds a bachelor of scieeges# in accounting from Florida State Universitg a master of accounting degree from the UniwedsitNorth
Carolina.

Cindy K. Childers, age 48, is the Company's Seviioce President — Human Resources. She joined Atxinl1985. In her current role, Ms. Childers leattategic
planning and execution in the areas of businegareylorganizational effectiveness, associate dgveént, recruiting, human resources and corpoaterwnications.
Previously, she served as leader of the finaneiices business unit and oversaw all of the firrand accounting functions of the Company. Befoining Acxiom,
she was a certified public accountant in audit t@mxd
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for KPMG Peat Marwick. Ms. Childers holds a degrebusiness administration from the UniversityGentral Arkansas

Richard K. Howe, age 46, is the Company’s Seni@e\Rresident - Marketing. He joined Acxiom in 200¥his role as marketing leader, Mr. Howe hadglo
responsibility over product marketing, marketingncounications, marketing relations, advertising, ljputelations, alliances, events, creative servaes
interactive/direct marketing. In his role as stggtéeader, he helps drive Acxiom’s growth throulgl &xecution of business strategies designed to mmeiet changes
and/or mitigate competitive threats including mesgend acquisitions. For many of these strategies|so assumes an operational leadership roletlweroups while
under development. Mr. Howe joined Acxiom from Ha&ac & Company, where he served as general maohtieat company’s Global Marketing Services (GMS)
unit, a business with over $100 million in annwealenue. Before joining Fair Isaac, he foundedwaasl chairman and CEO @ Wild Inc., a technology company whc
software and services were utilized by many ofléihgest financial services institutions in the UMr. Howe has at various times in his career Ipelsitions in product
marketing, project management, sales managemétwase development, and construction engineeridg.is a member of the board of the Arkansas Respyréiealtt
Association. He holds a bachelor’s degree in stratengineering from Concordia University, Canaal a master’s degree in engineering from McGilivarsity,
Canada.

Jerry C. Jones, age 52, is the Company’s Chiefll@€ficer, Senior Vice President and Assistant 8&ay. He joined Acxiom in 1999 and is responsfbtdeading the
strategy and execution of mergers and alliancasstasn the Company’s strategic initiatives, amdreees legal mattersPrior to joining Acxiom, he was employed for
19 years as an attorney with the Rose Law FirmitieLRock, Arkansas, representing a broad randmueiness interests. He is a member of the bdaditextors of
Entrust, Inc., a public company, and is chairmathefArkansas Virtual Academy, a statewide puldtlosl. Mr. Jones holds a degree in public adnmaiisin and a
juris doctorate degree from the University of Arkas.

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Ediy Securities

Market Informatior

The outstanding shares of Acxiom’s common stocKisted and traded on NASDAQ and trade under timets ACXM. The following table reflects the rangehigh
and low sales prices of Acxiom’s common stock gered by Dow Jones & Company, Inc. for each quamtéscal 2008 and 2007.

Fiscal 200¢ High Low
Fourth Quarte $ 13.6 $ 8.6
Third Quartel 17.20 10.55
Second Quarte 26.75 18.75
First Quartel 28.25 20.92
Fiscal 2007 High Low
Fourth Quarte $ 25.8 $20.9!
Third Quartel 25.89 24.09
Second Quarter 26.44 23.50
First Quarter 26.80 21.85
Holders

As of May 28, 2008 we had approximately 2,175 shodtters of record.

Dividends
In fiscal year 2007 the Company paid dividends.66%er shares during the first two quarters afé $er share during the last two quarters. No divits were paid

during the first two quarters of fiscal 2008 agsult of the Company’s having agreed, in conneciiith entering into to a merger agreement in Ma@72Qo suspend
dividend payments while the merger was pending.fbeger agreement was subsequently terminatedtob©c2007, and thereafter dividend payments wesemed

at the rate of $.06 per quarter.

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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Performance Grapl

The following graph compares the cumulative fivesy®tal return to shareholders on Acxiom's comistock relative to the cumulative total returnshaf t
NASDAQ Composite index and the NASDAQ Computer &#®Rrocessing index. The graph assumes that tbe véthe investment in the company's common stock
and in each of the indexes (including reinvestnoénlividends) was $100 on March 31, 2003 and trécksough March 31, 2008.

GCOMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Anong Acdom Corparaiion, The MASD A2 Com posite Index
And The MASDAD Com puter & Data Processing Index
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer afitiadd Purchaser:

The table below provides information regarding pases by Acxiom of its Common Stock during thegugiindicated.

Total Number of Maximum Number (or
Shares Purchased as| Approximate Dollar Value)
) Part of Publicly of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number | Average Price
of Shares Paid per Share Annogrgggri?ns or Purchag:ac;h))g?aer;];he Plans
Period Purchased
1/1/08-1/31/08 137,000 $10.58 137,000 $49,448,88¢
2/1/08- 2/28/08 - - -
3/1/08 — 3/31/08 - - -
Total 137,000 10.58 137,000 $49,448,88¢

The table above relates to a repurchase prograptediby the Board of Directors on October 26, 2@&7modified on February 13, 2008, pursuant to whjz to
$100,000,000 of stock may be repurchased betwetrb&c26, 2007 and October 26, 2008. As of May2P88, a total of 4,175,154 shares had been repsedrat a
total cost of $50,551,111.

Item 6. Selected Financial Date

For information pertaining to Selected Financiatdaf Acxiom, refer to page F-2 of the Financiapflement, which is attached hereto.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial@dition and Results of Operations

The information required by this Item appears | Bmnancial Supplement at pp. F-3 — F-24, whidchtiached hereto.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

Acxiom’s earnings are affected by changes in stesrtx interest rates primarily as a result of itsntédoan agreement and its revolving credit agreenvetmich bear
interest at a floating rate. Acxiom does not cuityense derivative or other financial instrumergstitigate the interest rate risk. Risk can bengsted by measuring the
impact of a near-term adverse movement of one ptage point in short-term market interest rateshtrt-term market interest rates increase onesp&age point
during the next four quarters compared to the prevfour quarters, there would be no material agvenpact on Acxiom’s results of operations. Acxibas no
material future earnings or cash flow expenses fthanges in interest rates related to its otheg-term debt obligations, as substantially all okiben’s remaining
long-term debt instruments have fixed rates. Ahbdarch 31, 2008 and 2007, the fair value of thenfany’s fixed rate long-term obligations approxiethtarrying
value.

Acxiom has a presence in the United Kingdom, Fralibe Netherlands, Germany, Portugal, Poland, Aliatand China. In general, each of the foreigations is
expected to fund its own operations and cash flaltlspugh funds may be loaned or invested fronli& to the foreign subsidiaries. Therefore, exgeamate
movements of foreign currencies may have an impadtcxiom'’s future costs or on future cash flonafrforeign investments. Acxiom has not entered amtp foreign
currency forward exchange contracts or other dévigdnstruments to hedge the effects of adversedhtions in foreign currency exchange rates.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

The Financial Statements required by this Item appethe Financial Supplement at pp. F-28 — Fvitlich is attached hereto.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

Based on managemesevaluation (with the participation of our CEOQifpipal executive officer) and our CFO (principalencial and accounting officer), our CEO
CFO have concluded that, because of the materi@knesses in internal control over financial repartthe Company's disclosure controls and procedaselefined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuBRtiesange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Acgewot effective as of March 31, 2008 to ensuaé th
information required to be disclosed by the Compamgports that it files or submits under the Exate Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarizedepatted within
the time periods specified in the Securities andharge Commission rules and forms; and (ii) accatedland communicated to the Company's manageimelotling
its principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer, as appropriate to allow timely deoiss regarding required disclosure. The identifiedarial weaknesses in
internal control over financial reporting involvéte use by the Company of policies and procedarestimate performance completed for informatiawises contract
that were not designed to provide sufficient supfmrthe recognition of revenue under U.S. gemgrdcepted accounting principles and insufficigolicies and
procedures for classification of cash flow actestithat resulted in improper classification of &#dds to deferred costs as an investing cash fidwity. See
“Management’s Report on Internal Control over FiziahReporting” and “Report of Independent RegestiePublic Accounting Firm” on pages F-25 and F-2the
Financial Supplement, respectively, and note 1¥thmpany’s consolidated financial statements orep&g66 — F-68 of the Financial Supplement.

Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repgog

Management'’s report on Acxiom’s internal controéofinancial reporting (as such term is define®ires 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchang®, Aad the
related report of Acxiom’s independent public ac@ting firm, are included in the Financial Supplemen pages F-25 — F-26 and are incorporated byeete.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Repogti

There were no changes in the Company’s interndtaloover financial reporting during the fourth qtea of fiscal 2008, which were identified in coltien with
management’s evaluation required by paragraphf(Rutes 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Aat,Have materially affected, or are reasonabBlyiko
materially affect, the Company’s internal contraeofinancial reporting.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compéfentified two material weaknesses in internaitonl over financial reporting. First, the Compaspolicies and
procedures to estimate performance completed fomration services contracts were not designedduige sufficient support for the recognition ofeeue under U.<
generally accepted accounting principles. SecdredCompany'’s policies and procedures for classifinaf cash flow activities were not sufficientcaresulted in
improper classification of additions to deferredtsoas an investing cash flow activity. These netareaknesses resulted in a restatement desdribeste 19 to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. Ia #rinual Report on Form 10-K, the Company is regd() its audited consolidated financial statetseor each of
the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006; (ii)riteudited consolidated financial statements for @di¢che quarterly periods ended December 31, 20072806,
September
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30, 2007 and 2006, June 30, 2007 and 2006, and\8drc2007; and (iii) its selected financial daiathe years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 (ciiggt the
“Relevant Periods”)to remove the recorded accrued revenue amounteeaodd the related income tax effect, and to re#flasadditions to deferred costs as an oper:
cash flow activity. The Company has not amended,daes not intend to amend, its Annual ReportsamFLO-K or Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for Relevant
Periods to reflect the restatement, and the firmstatements and related financial informationtaimed in those reports should no longer be relgzh. The Company
has modified its policies and procedures to noéomgcord accrued revenue on these types of serireesactions and to properly classify additianddferred costs.

Item 9B. Other Information

The Company has in the past entered into execséigarity agreements with certain key associatesébnuary 12, 2008, the Company’s Compensation dtigen
approved a phase out of the executive securityeageats over a two-year period. In order to implentigis phase out, the executive security agreenveeits amended
effective April 8, 2008. The form of the new agresrhis attached to this Annual Report on Form 18skan exhibit.

On May 23, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directoreeaded and restated the Company’s bylaws (as amlemikerestated, the “Bylaws”), effective immedigtdlhe
Bylaws were amended and restated so as to:

o Conform the Bylaw language regarding inspectorsl@étion with the new language of § 231 of the Gan@orporation Law of the State of Delaware (
“DGCL").

e Allow meetings of shareholders to be held electralfy as now permitted by DGCL § 21

e Address, consistently with DGCL § 213(b), “defaul” record date for written consent by shareholdecotporate action where prior Board action is
required.

e Conform the Bylaw language regarding where theadt@der list must be kept to the new language o€D@ 219.

o Clarify that a shareholde’ meeting may be adjourned if a quorum is not pre:

« Conform the Bylaw provision regarding the votingotédged shares to the provisions of DGCL § 21°

« Clarify provisions related to shareholder propogalesponse to recent Delaware rulings regarditvguace notice bylaw deficiencie

o Delete provisions relating to classified boardreat tlassification is addressed solely by Artidl&T3H of the Compan’s Certificate of Incorporatiol
o Delete the last sentence of Article Ill, Sectioscéthat waivers of notice are addressed solelyttiglé VIII, Section 4 of the Bylaws

e Substitute“Lead Independent Direc” for “Vice Chairman of the Boa” in Article Ill, Section 8 and clarify that the CEH&¥Esident must be a board membe
order to chair meetings of the board in the abseftiee Chairman.

« Enhance the Board’s flexibility to compensate dwexfor their services on the Board and/or its cuttees.

e Provide more flexibility with regard to the appairegnt of committees; delete provisions relating Bjpadly to the Audit Committee so that its compasn and
responsibilities are addressed primarily by the ifBGommittee Charter.
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o Expand the list of types of officers that may bpaipted and gives the CEO and President autharitiesignate additional officel

o Clarify that the rights to indemnity and the advement of expenses provided by the Com/'s Bylaws are not exclusive of any other rightsititemnitee
may have.

Other provisions of the Bylaws were updated or afedrso as to conform to current conditions and/gall requirements.

The foregoing description of the amendments tdBlaws is qualified in its entirety by referencethe full text of the Bylaws, a copy of which isaathed as Exhibit 3
(b) hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

PART 1l

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

Pursuant to general instruction G(3) of the indtams to Form 10-K, information concerning Acxiomasecutive officers is included under the captigmeécutive
Officers” at the end of Part | of this Report. Tleenaining information required by this Item appeaarder the captions “Election of Directors,” an&t8on 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in Aaxis 2008 Proxy Statement, which information is ipooated herein by reference. The Acxiom boardirefotiors
has adopted a code of ethics applicable to oucipéhexecutive, financial and accounting officaral all other persons performing similar functiohsopy of this cod
of ethics is posted on Acxiom’s website at www.aaxicom under the Corporate Governance sectioreddita.

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item appears uriderheading “Executive Compensation” in Acxion09& Proxy Statement, which information is incorpedsherein
by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by this Item appears urniderheading “Stock Ownership” in Acxiom's 2008 8r&tatement, which information is incorporatedeiriby
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaabns, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item appears uniderheadings “Related-Party Transactions” and fB@ad Committee Matters” in Acxiom's 2008 Proxgt&ment,
which information is incorporated herein by refaren

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item appears urnidlerheading “Fees Billed for Services Renderethdgpendent Auditor” in Acxiom's 2008 Proxy Stateevhich
information is incorporated herein by reference.

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a) The following documents are filed as a parthés report:

1. Financial Statements.

The following consolidated financial statementshef registrant and its subsidiaries included inRimancial Supplement and the Independent AudiRegports
thereof are attached hereto. Page references pagé&numbers in the Financial Supplement.

Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm F-26- F-27
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002667 F-28
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yerzaec
March 31, 2008, 2007 and 20 F-29
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity@omprehensive Income
for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and F-30
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeded
March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 F-31-F-32
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem F-33-F-71

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

All schedules are omitted because they are notcgtyé or not required or because the requirediimédion is included in the consolidated financtatements ¢
notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed with this repont are incorporated by reference to previously fileaterial.

Exhibit No.

2(a)  Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Acxionmp@ation, Axio Holdings LLC, and Axio AcquisitioBorp. dated May 16, 2007 (previously filed
May 22, 2007 as Exhibit 2.1 to Acxiom Corpora’s Current Report on Forn-K, and incorporated by reference here

2(b) Mutual Termination Agreement and Release dated @stwber 1, 2007 by and between Acxiom Corporatfrio Holdings LLC, Axio Acquisition Corp.
ValueAct Capital Master Fund, L.P., Silver LaketRars II, L.P., UBS Loan Finance LLC, Silver Lakarthers Ill, L.P., Silver Lake Partners lll, L.PB8

Securities LLC, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, bBred Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated (previodsgd on October 1, 2007 as Exhibit 10.1 to Acxiom
Corporatior's Current Report on Forn-K, and incorporated by reference here

3(a) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatme\iously filed as Exhibit 3(i) to Acxiom Corpoia's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quéyter
period ended June 30, 1996, Commission File I-13163, and incorporated herein by referei

3(b) Amended and Restated Byla
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10(a)

10(b)

10(c)

10(d)

10(e)

10(f)

10(g)

10(h)

10(i)

10()

10(k)

10()

10(m)

2005 Stock Purchase Plan of Acxiom Corporationyjpresly filed as Appendix B to Acxiom Corporat’s Proxy Statement dated June 24, 2005,
incorporated herein by referenc

Amended and Restated Key Associate Stock Optiom &flé&cxiom Corporation (previously filed as ExHithi0(e) to Acxiom Corporati¢ s Annual Report o
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, Comiais§&ile No. (-13163, and incorporated herein by referel

2005 Equity Compensation Plan of Acxiom Corporatimmmerly known as the Amended and Restated 208¥déiate Stock Option Plan of Acxic
Corporation) (previously filed as Appendix B to Aam Corporatio’s Proxy Statement dated November 16, 2007, andgdocated herein by referenc

2008 Nonqualified Equity Compensation Plan of Aaxi€orporation (previously filed on May 15, 2008Eagibit 10.2 to Acxiom Corporation’s Current
Report on Form-K, and incorporated herein by referen

Acxiom Corporation U.K. Share Option Scheme (presly filed as Exhibit 10(f) to Acxiom CorporatiorAsinual Report on Form =K for the fiscal yea
ended March 31, 1997, Commission File N-13163, and incorporated herein by referei

Acxiom Corporation Non-Qualified Deferred Compemmatflan (previously filed as Exhibit 10(i) to Acxn Corporation's Annual Report on FormHK@er the
fiscal year ended March 31, 1996, Commission Fide (-13163, and incorporated herein by referel

Acxiom Corporation FY 2009 Leadership Cash IncentNan

General Electric Capital Corporation Master Leageegment, dated as of September 30, 1999 (preyifilezl as Exhibit 10(m) to Acxiom Corporati's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year eshtdarch 31, 2001, Commission File No. 0-13163, imedrporated herein by reference)

Amendment to General Electric Capital Corporatioaskér Lease Agreement dated as of December 6,(pé®Zously filed as Exhibit 10 (j) to Acxiol
Corporatiors Annual Report of Form -K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, Comiais§&ile No. (-13163, and incorporated herein by referei

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated BMarch 24, 2005, by and among Acxiom Corporatas borrower, J.P. Morgan, N.A., as agent,
the lenders who are party thereto (previously fdsdExhibit 10.2 to Acxiom Corporation’s Reportleorm 8-K dated March 24, 2005, and incorporateéiher
by reference

Second Amendment to Third Amended and Restatedt@xgebement, dated as of April 22, 2005, by andagAcxiom Corporation, as borrower, J
Morgan, N.A., as agent, and the lenders who as@ty thereto (previously filed as Exhibit 10(j)A@xiom Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fhe
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, Commission Fite (-13163, and incorporated herein by referel

Increased Commitment Supplement to Third AmendedRestated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 135,20y and among Acxiom Corporation, as
borrower, J.P. Morgan, N.A., as agent, and thedend/ho are a party thereto (previously filed akiBix 10(k) to Acxiom Corporation’s Annual Reporm o
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ended March 31, 2003, Commission File N-13163, and incorporated herein by referei

10(n) Form of Executive Security Agreement effective Bi8oril 8, 2008

10(o) Agreement by and among Acxiom Corporation and VAras, LLC, ValueAct Capital Master Fund, L.P. |W&Act Capital Management, L.P., and Value
Capital Management, LLC dated August 5, 2006 (nesly filed on August 7, 2006 as Exhibit 10.1 tadsen Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and
incorporated herein by referenc

10(p) Amendment No. 1 to Agreement by and among Acxionp@ation and VA Partners, LLC, ValueAct Capital $fkr Fund, L.P., ValueAct Capital
Management, L.P., and ValueAct Capital Managemdr(t, dated September 20, 2006 (previously filedSeptember 22, 2006 as Exhibit 10.1 to Acxiom
Corporatior's Current Report on Forn-K, and incorporated herein by referen

10(q) Amendment No. 2 to Agreement by and among Acxionp@ation and VA Partners, LLC, ValueAct Capital $fkr Fund, L.P., ValueAct Capital
Management, L.P., and ValueAct Capital Managemdrt, dated May 16, 2007 (previously filed on May, 2D07 as Exhibit 10.1 to Acxiom Corporation’s
Current Report on Fornm-K, and incorporated herein by referen

10(r)  Voting Agreement by and between Acxiom Corporatod ValueAct Capital Master Fund, L.P., dated Méy2007 (previously filed on May 22, 2007 as
Exhibit 10.2 to Acxiom Corporatics Current Report on Forn-K, and incorporated herein by reference

10(s) Asset Purchase and License Agreement dated Dec&@p2005 between Acxiom Corporation and EMC Caapion and EMC (Benelux) B.V., S.a.1
10(t) Transition Amendment dated March 31, 2008 betweexion Corporation and EMC Corporation and EMC (BergB.V., S.a.r.l.

10(u) Employment Agreement by and between Acxiom Corjpamednd John A. Meyer dated as of January 14, 2p@&iously filed on January 17, 2008 as Ext
10.1 to Acxiom Corporatic's Current Report on Forn-K, and incorporated herein by referen

10(v) Employment Agreement dated May 14, 2008 betweertix@m Corporation and John A. Adams (previousligd on May 15, 2008 as Exhibit 10.1 to Acxic
Corporatior's Current Report on Forn-K, and incorporated herein by referen

10(w) Separation Agreement and General Releasd ddech 6, 2008 between Acxiom Corporation and Ro®) Kline

10(x) Professional Services Agreement dated March 6, P@8Been Acxiom Corporation and Rodger S. K

10(y) Amended Separation Agreement and General Reletesg April 17, 2008 between Acxiom Corporation and.ee Hodge:

10(z) Professional Services Agreement dated March 278 B@Bveen Acxiom Corporation and L. Lee Hod

21 Subsidiaries of Acxiom Corporatic

23 Consent of KPMG LLF

24 Powers of Attorne!

31(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$EC Rule 12-14(a)/15«14(a), as adopted pursuant to Sections 302 andf4®drbane-Oxley Act of 200z

34



31(b) Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant$EC Rule 13-14(a)/15+-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Sections 302 andf4Bdrbane-Oxley Act of 200z
32(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdidio8e906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

32(b) Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiio8e906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 200z

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

35



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(tH)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be signedsobeibalf by the
undersigned.

ACXIOM CORPORATION

Date: May 30, 200 By: /sl Catherine L. Hughe
Catherine L. Hughes

Corporate Governance Officer & Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptie following persons on behalf of the registrand in the

capacities and as of the dates indicated.

Signature

William T. Dillard II* Director May 30, 200¢
William T. Dillard Il

Michael J. Durham Director (Non-Executive Chairman of the Boar May 30, 200¢
Michael J. Durham

Mary L. Good* Director May 30, 200¢
Mary L. Good

Ann Die Hasselmo Director May 30, 200¢
Ann Die Hasselmo

William J. Henderson Director May 30, 200¢
William J. Henderson

Thomas F. McLarty, lII* Director May 30, 200¢
Thomas F. McLarty, llI

John A. Meyer* Director, CEO & Presider

John A. Meyel (principal executive officer May 30, 200¢
Stephen M. Pattersotr Director May 30, 200¢
Stephen M. Patterson

Kevin M. Twomey* Director May 30, 200¢
Kevin M. Twomey

Jeffrey W. Ubben® Director May 30, 200¢
Jeffrey W. Ubben

R. Halsey Wise: Director May 30, 200¢
R. Halsey Wise

Christopher W. Wolf* Chief Financial Officer (principal financii

Christopher W. Wol and accounting officel May 30, 200¢

*By:  /[s/ Catherine L. Hughe
Catherine L. Hughes
Attorney-in-Fact

36
ACXIOM CORPORATION
INDEX TO FINANCIAL SUPPLEMENT
TO ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

Selected Financial Da F-2
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior F-3
Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repay F-25
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing F-26

Annual Financial Statemen

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002667 F-28
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeraded March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2! F-29
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity @athprehensive Income

for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and F-30
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and F-31
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem F-33

F-1






ACXIOM CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(In thousands, except per share data)

2007 2006 2005 2004
Years ended March 3 2008 (Restated (Restated (Restated (Restated
Statement of operations da
Revenue $1,384,07¢ $1,390,511 $1,328,77: $1,220,13¢ $1,009,31¢
Net earnings (loss $ (7780 $ 6787 $ 61,77f $ 67,91 $ 57,40
Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic $ (0.10) $ 082 $ 071 $ 0.7¢  $ 0.67
Diluted $ (0.100 $ 0.8 $ 066 $ 0.7z $ 0.63
Cash dividend per common shi $ 0.1z $ 02: $ 02C % 017 $ 0.04
2007 2006 2005 2004
As of March 31 2008 (Restated (Restated (Restated (Restated
Balance sheet dat
Current assel $ 38505¢ $ 381,04¢ $ 309,89C $ 307,02z $ 261,51¢
Current liabilities $ 339,62¢ $ 387,78¢ $ 379,99C $ 364,262 $ 296,10:
Total asset $1,471,858 $1,624,07¢ $1,511,53t $1,373,26¢ $1,190,97¢
Long-term debt, excluding current
installments $ 575306 $ 648,87¢ $ 376,41t $ 141,70¢ $ 293,457
Stockholders' equit $ 500,512 $ 489,481 $ 677,214 $ 788,22¢ $ 562,406

As discussed in note 19 to the consolidated firdrstatements, certain amounts above have beeta@$b remove the previously recorded accruechigyamounts of
certain information services revenue and recordelaed income tax effect and to reclassify addgito deferred costs as an operating cash flowitsatather than an
investing cash flow activity. The consolidated Ibaka sheet as of March 31, 2007 and the consolicdatéeiments of operations for the fiscal years émdarch 31, 2007
and 2006 have been restated as set forth in th& RO0n 10-K. The data for the consolidated balaets as of March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 ancbtisolidated
statements of operations for the fiscal years eidi@ath 31, 2005 and 2004 have been restated, bhtregtated data have not been audited, and igedefriom the
books and records of the Company. This informasioould be read in conjunction with “Management’'sddission and Analysis of Financial Condition andu®s of
Operations” and the historical financial statememts notes thereto. The historical results areneoessarily indicative of results to be expecteahiy future period. The
restatement of the consolidated financial statesifemtthe years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006 is fotly described in note 19 to the consolidatedricial
statements.

The Company has not amended its previously-filedush Reports on Form 10-K or Quarterly Reports om#10-Q for the periods affected by this restateimehe
financial information that has been previouslydiler otherwise reported for these periods is s@pled by the information in this Annual Report omrd.0-K, and the
financial statements and related financial infoioratontained in such previously-filed reports ddmw longer be relied upon.
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Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior

Introduction and Overview

At Acxiom (“Acxiom” or “the Company”) (Nasdaq: ACXMwe make information intelligent for many of terld’s leading companies to help them solve some af
most complex marketing problems. Our productsjises and thought leadership enable them to acqeirecustomers, retain their most valuable custemer
communicate with customers in the methods and tilmes prefer, and make profitable marketing andrimss decisions. Acxiom’s unmatched customer risgy
achieved by blending the world’s largest repositfrgonsumer data, award-winning technology andysing, multi-channel expertise, privacy leaderslaipd superior
knowledge of a wide spectrum of industries. FoundelP69, Acxiom is headquartered in Little Rockké&nsas, with locations throughout the United StéteS”) and
Europe, and in Australia and China.

Highlights of the most recently completed fiscahyare identified below.

¢ Revenue of $1.384 billion, down 0.5 percent fron891 billion a year ago, a decrease of $6.4 mililoannual revenue.

¢ Income from operations of $40.2 million compare&154.1 million last year.

¢ Diluted loss per share of $0.10 compared to dileehings per share of $0.80 in fiscal 2007.

e Pre-tax loss of $9.8 million, compared to pre-taréngs of $113.4 million in fiscal 2007.

e Operating cash flow for the fiscal year was $26#ilion compared to $218.4 million in the prior yea

e Gross margin was 21.4 percent compared to 27.Epeirt fiscal 2007.

e The Company divested certain operations in France.

e The Company shut down the operations of Harbingesogiates, LLC, an international consulting anéitnetogy firm it acquired in fiscal 2007.

e The Company recorded $75.1 million in restructughgrges and adjustments included in gains, leasg®ther items for associate-related paymentselea
termination accruals, contract termination accraals asset disposals.

e The Company completed the acquisitions of EchoTahge., an on-line behavioral targeting and addsgr company, and MKTG, an operating subsidiary of
Automatic Research, Inc. that provides data pracgssd list management services.

The highlights above are intended to identify t® teader some of the more significant events amséctions of the Company during the fiscal yededrMarch 31,
2008. However, these highlights are not intenddakta full discussion of the Company’s 2008 fisedr. These highlights should be read in conjunatigh the
following discussion of Results of Operations arapital Resources and Liquidity and with the Compampnsolidated financial statements and footnatesrapanyin
this report.

Restatement of Financial Statements

On May 14, 2008 the Company announced that it woedthte its financial statements for the yearedmdarch 31, 2007 and 2006 and its selected fiahdaita for the
years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 (collectithy,'Relevant Periods”) to correct an error in @@mpany’s accounting for accrued revenue. Histtlyicand for all
the Relevant Periods, the Company has recordedextcevenue for certain information services reeetuntracts based on a calculated estimate ofivebadlue of
performance that has occurred but has not yet isE@Egnized as revenue. The Company determinedhaalculation that had been used for severabyaidrnot
adequately support the accrual of revenue in aecmelwith the Securities and Exchange CommissBiaff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (“SAB 104"). THéompany
has concluded that the calculated estimates foR#tevant Periods cannot be relied upon, and tiep@ay is unable to objectively support recordingraed revenue
for these information services transactions. Acewlg, the Company has restated its consolidateahitial statements for the Relevant Periods to vertize recorded
accrued revenue amounts and record the relatechmntax effect. Additionally, the Company has resiféed additions to deferred costs as an operatirsl) flow activit
rather than an investing cash flow activity. Th@uatinents to restate previously reported seledteth€ial data are summarized as follows (in thodsaaxcept per she
data):
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Year ended March 31, 20(

Year ended March 31, 20!

As As As As
reportec Adjustment restatec reportec  Adjustment  restatec
Statement of operations da
Revenue $1,395,13¢ $ (4,625 $ 1,390,511 $ 1,332,56¢ $ (3,795 $1,328,77:
Net earnings (loss $ 70,74C $ (2,867 $ 67,87¢ $ 64,12¢ $ (2,353 $ 61,77¢
Earnings (loss) per shal
Basic $ 086 $ (004 $ 082 $ 073 $ (002 $ 071
Diluted $ 084 $ (0.04) $ 0.80 $ 071 $ (0.03) $ 068
Cash dividend per common
share $ 022 $ - $ 022 $ 020 $ - $ 020
Balance sheet dat
Current assel $ 41287¢ $ (31,830 $ 381,046 $ 33885: % (28,963 $ 309,89
$ $
Current liabilities $ 387,78¢ - $ 387,786 $ 379,99C - $ 379,99
Total asset $ 1,65590¢/ $ (31,830 $ 1,624,074 $ 1,540,49¢ $ (28,963 $ 1,511,53¢
Long-term debt, excluding $ $
current installment $ 648,87¢ - $ 648,87¢ $ 376,41F - $ 376,41¢
Stockholders' equit $ 521311 $ (31,830 $ 489,481 $ 706,177 $ (28,963 $ 677,21«

Year ended March 31, 20!

Year ended March 31, 20!

As As As As

reportec Adjustment restatec reportec Adjustment restatec
Statement of operations da
Revenue $ 1,223,042 $ (2,903 $ 1,220,13¢ $ 1,010,822 $ (1,508 $ 1,009,31
Net earnings (loss $ 69,71¢ $ (1,800, $ 67,91¢ $ 5834< $ (935, $ 57,40¢
Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic $ 080 $ (0.02) $ 0.78 $ 068 $ (001) $ 067
Diluted $ 074 $ (002 $ 072 $ 064 $ (001) $ 0.63
Cash dividend per common
share $ 017 $ - $ 017 $ 004 $ - $ 0.04
Balance sheet dat
Current assel $ 333632 $ (26,610 $ 307,02z $ 286,32¢ $ (24,810 $ 261,51¢
Current liabilities $ 364,26z $ - $ 364,262 $ 296,10¢ $ - $ 296,10
Total asset $1,399,87¢ $ (26,610 $ 1,373,26¢ $ 1,215,78¢ $ (24,810, $ 1,190,97¢
Long-term debt, excluding
current installment $ 141,70¢ $ - $ 141,70¢ $ 293457 $ - $ 293,457
Stockholders' equit $ 814,83¢ $ (26,610, $ 788,22¢ $ 587,21€ $ (24,810, $ 562,40¢
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Results of Operatior

A summary of selected financial information for lead the years in the three-year period ended Maigt2008 is presented below (dollars in millioescept per share
amounts):

2007 2006 % Change % Change
2008 (Restated (Restated 200¢&-2007 2007-2006
Revenue
Services $ 1,049.7 $ 1,056t $ 1,008.6 D)% 5%
Data 334.3 334.0 320.0 0 4
$ 1,384.C $ 1,390t $ 1,328.¢ (1)% 5%
Total operating costs and
expense: 1,343.8 1,236.4 1,201.5 9 3
Income from operation $ 40.2 $ 1541  $ 127.2 (74)% 21%
Diluted earnings (loss) persh: _$ __ (0.10) $ 08 $ 0.6¢ (113)% 18%

Revenue

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, the Cayisaevenue was $1,384.0 million, compared to mereof $1,390.5 million in fiscal 2007, reflectinglecrease of
$6.4 million or 0.5%. Services revenue decrease8l B@llion or 0.6% and data revenue remained naditiflat. International services increased apprately $14.6
million, of which $6.9 million was due to favorabd&change rate variances in Europe and AustrahidewS services declined $21.3 million. Excludengpuisitions,
US services revenue declined $25.8 million or apipnately 2.7%. The decline was driven primarilydsclines of $32.6 million in IT services of whicB455 million
was due primarily to contractual changes with @mge IT services customer. The contractual chapgesrily relate to the procurement of hardware software.
Accounting under the new contract is to recogniieettansaction net in cost of services rather grass which was the appropriate accounting tredtomester the
previous contract. Traditional service lines exgeced declines of $10.4 million due to reductianpriocessing volumes in many financial serviceantd which the
Company believes is driven by economic pressurésose industries and some contract losses. Thep@uyrbelieves the economic pressures in the fiaheervices
industry may continue in the near term. These deslivere offset by increases in digital servicebl®f5 million and in risk services of $6.0 millidmoth primarily due
to volume changes driven by clienistreasing demand for these services. In the agtgedata revenue in fiscal 2008 was basically litareases in US data revenue
$4.4 million were driven by increases in pass-thfodata revenue of $3.3 million. These increases wiset by decreases of $4.1 million in data nesefrom the
Company'’s international operations. These decreases primarily due to a reduction of $6.0 millieiated to the sale of the French GIS businesg; $ilion due to
the impact of closing down operations in Spain @ million due to lower marketing list volumes@ermany, which were offset by increases in exchaates of $9.
million.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the Cawyipaevenue was $1,390.5 million, compared to mereeof $1,328.8 million in fiscal 2006, reflectiag increase of
$61.7 million or 4.6%. Services revenue increaged Bmillion or 4.7% and data revenue increased0bddllion or 4.4%. The increase in services re\eisuattributabl
in part to the acquisition of Digital Impact, In¢DI”) in 2006 which added $12.5 million, the acsition of InsightAmerica, Inc. (“IA”) in 2006 whichdded $9.2
million, and the acquisition of Equitec in 2007 wiiadded $2.0 million. The remaining contributosvgaowth in revenues from clients operating indb&®motive,
retail, and background screening industries, piilsndue to volume increases driven by clients’ gasing demand for these services. The increasgarrevenue is
primarily attributable to growth in European opéas of $8.1 million, of which 86% was driven byattges in currency conversion rates and volvateted increases
domestic revenues from publishing and banking tief $4.1 million.

The Company reports segment information consistéhtthe way management internally disaggregatesperations to assess performance and to allcesdarces. In
fiscal 2008, as a result of a management reorgiémizavhich is line-of-business oriented, ratharttyeographic, the Company realigned its busiregments to better
reflect the way management assesses the busires€ompany’s new business segments consist ofiaftion services, information products and infrastice
management. Information services develops, setldativers industry-tailored solutions globallyahgh the integration of products, services and witing.
Information products develops and sells all glatath products as well as domestic fraud and risigation products. Infrastructure management depselnd delivers
information technology products and services suchi autsourcing and transformational solutionse Gompany evaluates performance of the segmeresl loas
segment operating income, which excludes assetiimpats and gains, losses and other items. Theviolg table shows the Company’s revenue by busisegsient
for each of the periods reported (dollars in milsp The Company has revised its segment informditém fiscal 2006 and 2007 to reflect its realigteisiness
segments.
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2007 2006 % Change % Change

2008 (Restated (Restated 200¢-2007  2007-2006
Information service $ 741,25¢ $ 728,01 $ 697,14¢ 2% 4%
Information product: 431,316 415,417 385,443 4% 8
Infrastructure manageme 447,488 476,333 474,336 (6)% 0
Eliminations (235,984) (229,253) (228,152) 3% 1
Total Revenur $1,384,07¢ $1,390,511 $1,328,77: (1)% 5%

For the year ended March 31, 2008 Information ses/revenue increased $13.2 million, or 1.8%, @wl$¥ million over fiscal 2007. The favorable reswdte due to
revenue growth in the mulimdustry client services and digital units, offegtdeclines in the financial services unit for #ane reasons as described above. The sel
also benefited from favorable foreign currency exde rates. Information services revenue incred3e® million, or 4.4% to $728.0 million in fiscaD07 compared 1
fiscal 2006. As noted above, acquisitions of DI &uglitec added $14.5 million.

For the year ended March 31, 2008, Information petelrevenue increased 3.8% to $431.3 million. Gnag/primarily attributable to the risk line of finess.
Information products revenue increased $30.0 mi/laxr 7.8% to $415.4 million in fiscal 2007 comphte fiscal 2006. The risk line of business incesb$15.0 million,
international revenue increased $8.1 million arfdbase increased $5.5 million, with the remainder tb volume-related increases in multi-industigrdlservices.

For the year ended March 31, 2008, Infrastructumaagement revenue decreased 6.1% to $447.5 milllmndecrease is due to contract reductions wliinge client.
Infrastructure management revenue increased $2i0mor 0.4% to $476.3 million in fiscal 2007 cpared to fiscal 2006.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, approtéin&4% of the Company’s consolidated revenue fnama clients who have lontgerm contracts (defined as contr:
with initial terms of two years or more) with the@pany. These revenues include all revenue froemidifor which there is a long-term contract thmaters some
portion of that client’s revenue. However, this slo®t mean that revenue from such contracts isssaddy fixed or guaranteed, as portions of revefmurm clients who
have long-term contracts, as well as substantllgf the revenue from clients which are not undeg-term contract, is variable or project-related

Operating Costs and Expenses
The following table presents the Company’s opegatiosts and expenses for each of the years imtbe-{ear period ended March 31, 2008 (dollarsiitioms):

% Change % Change

2008 2007 2006 200¢-2007  2007-2006

Cost of revenu

Services $ 8581 $ 807.C $ 778.E 6% 4%

Data 229.6 206.6 202.0 11 2

Total cost of revenu 1,087.7 1,013.6 980.5 7 3
Selling, general and administrati 219.7 213.8 2115 3 1
Gains, losses and other items, 36.4 8.9 9.5 309 (6)
Total operating costs and expen $ 1,343.8 $ 1236.5 $ 1,201t 9% 3%
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The following table presents the Comp’s operating costs and expenses in natural expaisgoeies for each of the years in the t-year period ended March =
2008 (dollars in millions):

% Change % Change

2008 2007 2006 200¢-2007  200%-2006

Salaries and benefi $ 604.2 $ 570.C $ 503.1 6% 13%
Computer, communications and other

equipmen 314.9 290.3 299.2 8 (©)]
Data cost: 176.7 173.9 179.1 2 3)
Other operating costs and exper 2115 193.2 210.6 9 8)
Gains, losses and other items, 36.4 8.9 9.5 309 (6)
Total operating costs and expen $ 1.343¢ $ 1236c $ 1201F 9% 3%

Gross Profit
The following table presents the Company’s grosditgior each of the years in the three-year peeaded March 31, 2008 (dollars in millions):

2007 2006 % Change % Change
2008 (Restated (Restated ~ 200¢-2007  2007-2006
Services
Revenue $ 10497 $ 1,056 $ 1,008.¢ (1)% 5%
Cost of revenu 858.1 807.0 778.5 6 4
Gross profit $ 1916 $ 249.5  $ 230.2 (24)% 9%
Gross profit % of services reven 18.3% 23.6% 22.8%
Data
Revenue $ 334 % 334.C $ 320.C 0% 4%
Cost of revenu 229.6 206.6 202.0 11 2
Gross profit $ 1047 % 1274 $ 118.C 18% 8%
Gross profit % of data reven: 31.3% 38.1% 36.9%
Consolidatec
Revenue $ 1384.C $ 1,390t $ 1,328.€ (1)% 5%
Cost of revenu 1,087.7 1,013.6 980.5 7 3
Gross profit $ 296.2  $ 376.¢ $ 348.% (22)% 8%
Gross profit % of consolidated revel 21.4% 27.1% 26.2%

Gross profit margins for services were 18.3% indi2008 compared to 23.6% in fiscal 2007 and 22r8fiscal 2006. Gross profit declines are due priiy to
restructuring contracts for three major IT servickants, which resulted in a $43.6 million increas cost of services revenue. The remainder ofléntine is due to
headcount growth in the digital, risk and consgltoperations.

The gross profit margins for data were 31.3% iodi008 compared to 38.1% in fiscal 2007 and 3@®&%tiscal 2006. This margin decline can be attréal to
increases in the costs of building and deliverm€ompany’s data products.

The consolidated gross profit margin for fiscal 20@as 21.4%, which compares to 27.1% for fiscal7280d 26.2% for fiscal 2006.

The cost of services for fiscal 2008 of $858.1 imilincreased $51.1 million or 6% from fiscal 200Ae increase is due primarily to restructuringtcants for three
major IT services clients, which resulted in a $4illion increase in cost of services revenue. fidmainder of the increase is due to headcounttfras discussed
above.

The cost of services for fiscal 2007 of $807.0 imilincreased $28.5 million or 4% from fiscal 2006e increase in cost of services is primarilyilatttable to
acquisitions of DI, 1A, and Equitec, which contribd $8.2 million, $6.9 million and $1.3 million,ggectively. The remaining increase is due to grawservice
revenue.
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Cost of data includes acquired data, data royalt@m®pilation costs and the costs of building aelivdring the Compar’s various data products. The cost of datz
fiscal 2008 of $229.6 million increased $23.0 roiflior 11% from 2007. The increase can be attribigtéacreases in the costs of building and delhgdata products.

Selling, general and administrative expenses fwafi2008 of $219.7 million increased $5.9 millmm2.7% from fiscal 2007. As a percent of revertbese costs were
15.9% compared to 15.4% a year ago. The incrediscal 2008 was primarily attributable to acquésis ($3.1 million) and restricted stock grants.68illion). These
were offset by lower corporate bonuses. Sellingega and administrative expenses for fiscal 2005243.8 million increased $2.3 million or 1.0%rfdiscal 2006.
The increase in fiscal 2007 was primarily attrillilgésto acquisitions. Selling, general and admiatste expense as a percent of total revenue wd&4dlis 2007
compared to 15.9% in fiscal 2006.

Gains, losses and other items for each of the ywasented are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Terminated merger expen $ 17,68 $ - $ -
Merger termination fe (65,000) - -
Retirement paymet 3,000 - -
Gain on disposition of operations in France (ngt (3,157) - -
Spain operation closu (1,622) 6,622 -
Loss on divestiture - - 1,326
Leased airplane disposi 6,445 - (1,548)
Gain on sale of buildin - - (2,787)
Legal contingency (note 1. 4,000 - -
Restructuring plan charges and adjustm 75,147 2,500 12,965
Other (150) (225) (452)

$ 36,35: $ 889 $ 9,50«

In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a total of. $78illion in restructuring charges and adjustmémttuded in gains, losses and other items in tresglidated
statement of operations. The expense includesaeseand other associate-related payments of $1ili@n, lease accruals of $19.0 million, contractruals of $6.7
million, asset disposal and write-offs of $29.6lioil, and other related costs of $0.5 million.

In March 2007, the Company recorded $2.5 milliongstructuring included in gains, losses and oteens in the consolidated statement of operatibhs.charges
include $1.5 million in severance for paymentspgpraximately 105 associates who were notified irdi2007 that they were to be involuntarily terntitg $0.3
million in fees paid to terminate contractors; &@d7 million for contract termination fees paidatéormer senior executive who terminated employnreffebruary
2007.

In fiscal 2006 the Company recorded a total of @18illion in restructuring and other impairment aies (see note 2 to the consolidated financiadistants). The
charges included $6.8 million in severance andratksociate-related reserves for payments to be meaidvoluntarily terminated associates; $3.7imillin lease
termination costs or costs to be incurred aftetirgxicertain leased facilities; and $2.5 millionather costs including the write-off of certain Aproductive assets and
other contract termination costs. The bulk of teeesance and associate-related costs were paftelnt of the fiscal year. The remaining accruestiscare expected to
be paid out over the terms of the related leasesmiracts, of which the longest runs through fi2€d.2.

On May 16, 2007, the Company announced it had eshiato an agreement to be acquired by Silver laaddeValueAct Capital, at a price of $27.10 per stpws the
assumption of outstanding debt. On October 1, 20@/Company announced that this transaction had teeminated. For fiscal 2008, the Company incltrensactio
related expenses of $17.7 million. Per the termth@Mmerger termination agreement, which was sighetdber 1, 2007, Silver Lake and ValueAct wereuneg to pay
the Company a settlement fee of $65 million. Tkiglement fee was received on October 10, 2007.
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In November 2007, the Company entered into a tiansagreement with its Chief Executive Officer endvhich he retired, and agreed to continue toeservan interir
basis until the selection of a successor by thedbdinder the agreement, the Company paid $3.0omilSubsequent to the selection of a successCtampany will
also pay the retiring officer $0.5 million per ydar consulting services for approximately threarnge The successor officer was hired, effectivertraly 4, 2008. The
Company has accrued the present value of the ramggiyments under this contract as of March 3082fecause management does not intend to useribeltog
services after March 31, 2008. The expense foratiieement is included in the associate-relatediatscof $19.3 million referred to above.

On December 7, 2007, the Company entered into reagnt with Pitney Bowes Software to sell the Canyfs GIS operations in France. The operation veas n
considered to be aligned with the Company’s ongbumgjness strategy. The Company received $14.pmiibr the sale and recorded a gain in the stat¢wfe
operations of $3.2 million. The gain was net of/dillion in goodwill which was allocated to thesgbsed operations from the goodwill of the InforioraProducts
segment based on the relative fair value of theadied operations to the international componetttefnformation Products segment. Also, includethi&gain
calculation was a $1.3 million accrual for exitiaities. As of March 31, 2008, $1.1 million remathaccrued in other accrued liabilities. The ultiengain on the
disposal is subject to adjustment once the pactiegplete an agreement as to the final working eapite gain recorded is net of an estimated $0lf® madjustment t
the final working capital. The final agreement oorlwng capital is expected to occur in fiscal 2008e annual revenue associated with the GIS opesatvas
approximately $14 million.

In fiscal 2007, the Company announced plans to dbwn its operations in Spain as a result of ungiéopmance. Upon the completion of this closure,@lompany
recorded $6.6 million in write-offs and exit costs;luding $0.7 million in severance costs, $3.9iami in accruals for contingent liabilities reldtéo governmental data
protection claims, and $2.0 million in asset wifés and other accruals (see note 4 to the coregelitifinancial statements). During the quarter dridarch 31, 2008,
the Company reversed $2.4 million of the remairdngrual offset by $0.8 million in expense due torency translation expenses, leaving $1.0 milliooraed at the er
of fiscal 2008 which is expected to be paid ouidnal 2009.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2007, thep@oy entered into an agreement to dispose olsadeaircraft. Under the terms of the lease, the gamy was
required to make a termination payment to the leasd the lessor sold the asset and paid the metee¢he Company. The Company has recorded $2ibrmexpense
in gains, losses and other items, for the net paymoeterminate the lease and dispose of the asset.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Comeatered into an agreement to dispose of anotlaset aircraft. Under the terms of the lease, trepany is
required to make a termination payment to the leasd the lessor will sell the aircraft and pay pheceeds to the Company. The Company has rec@@i8dnillion
expense in gains, losses and other items, fordtimated net payment to terminate the lease apasksof the asset.

During fiscal 2006 the Company disposed of anoleesed aircraft. Under the terms of the leaseCthrapany was entitled to the proceeds of the seds,the
termination value of the lease. The Company recbed$1.5 million gain in gains, losses and othamni for the net proceeds received. In additiorsicaf 2006, the
Company sold an unused facility for cash proceé&3® million and recorded a gain of $2.8 million.

In fiscal 2006 the Company sold its lettershop apens in Melville, New York and its real propedsita compilation business recording net lossetesetsales of $0.3
million and $1.9 million, respectively. In fiscaD@6 the Company also sold a subsidiary in Spainhtad no remaining operations but had availablédss
carryforwards which could be used by the buyer. Jdle generated proceeds of $1.2 million and agaidisposal included in gains, losses and otkerstof $0.8
million.

In fiscal 2008 the Company accrued $4.0 milliontfar estimated settlement cost on an ongoing laysee note 11 to the consolidated financial states).
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The following table shows the balances that weoewsd for the restructuring plans, as well as tienges in those balances during the years endethN3ar 2006
2007 and 2008 (dollars in thousands):

Associat-relatec Ongoing
reserves contract cost Other accrual Total
Fiscal year 2006 restructuring
plan amoun 6,800 3,687 2,478 12,965
Paymentt (5,593) (1,944) (2,219) (9,756)
March 31, 200t 1,207 1,743 259 3,209
Fiscal year 2007 restructurii
plan amoun 2,500 - - 2,500
Payment: (1,414) (232) (115) (1,761)
March 31, 200° $ 2,290 $ 151 $ 14. 3 3,94¢
Fiscal year 2008 restructurii
plan amoun 17,850 26,509 570 44,929
Adjustments 157 (749) (112) (704)
Payment: (6,652) (391) (245) (7,288)
March 31, 200¢ $ 13,64¢ $ 26,88 $ 35 $ 40,88

The following table shows the balances that wecewsat for the Spain closure as well as the chaimgi®se balances during the years ended MarcB(15, 2007 and
2008 (dollars in thousands):

Associat-relatec Ongoing
reserves contract cost Other accrual Total

Fiscal 2007 charge $ 65t $ 110 3% 4,78 % 5,55¢
Payment: (378) (20) (200) (598)
March 31, 200° $ 27t $ 92 % 458¢ 3 4,96(
Adjustments (5) - (2,304) (2,309)
Payment: (292) (95) (1,971) (2,358)

Change in foreign currency translation
adjustmen 19 2 651 672
March 31, 200 $ - % - % %! $ 96!

Operating Margins

Fiscal 2008 operating margins were 2.9% compardd tb% for fiscal 2007 and 9.6% for fiscal 2006eT2008 margins were negatively impacted by resiring
charges noted above as well as impairment of timeger contracts in IT services. The 2007 and 2Q@&ating margins were also negatively impactechy t
restructuring charges noted above.

Other Income (Expense), Income Taxes and Othesltem

Interest expense for fiscal years 2008 and 2002#ased $4.6 million and $17.9 million or 9.9 % &2d2%, respectively, due primarily to the new téoan borrowing
of $600 million under the amended and restateditcagdeement which closed September 15, 2006 (seeto the consolidated financial statements¢ Thmpany's
weighted-average interest rate on long-term delstm8% and 6.8% at March 31, 2008 and March 317 2@3pectively.

Other net decreased $4.7 million in fiscal 2008rfriiscal 2007. The decline is primarily due to #réte off of an investment that was determinedeaibrecoverable
during the period, resulting in a loss of $2.7 imill Other net also includes interest income oefoéceivable, invested cash balances and taxdeffr3.2 million,
$3.6 million and $1.5 million in fiscal 2008, 208Wd 2006 respectively. Other net in fiscal 200Tuded a gain of $1.6 million from the sale of amastment.

The Company'’s effective tax rate was 20.3% in fi2€®8 compared to 40.2% in fiscal 2007 and 38.6%stcal 2006. The current year rate was impaciethé foreign
losses for which no tax benefit is available arelékpiration of state net operating loss carryfodsalue to the losses generated by the unusuageharhese items
were offset by a $0.7 million reversal of the resefior potential penalties due to failure to filedign information returns. The Company receiveticeahat such
penalties would not be incurred. Additionally, therent year included adjustments related to thalifiation of the fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 armezhthx returns for
both the US and International operations, as veefiralization of US tax audits from fiscal 2003080
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The rate for fiscal 2007 was impacted by losseSpain for which there was no tax benefit, and ddjast of reserves related to the research taxtcreajether thes
two items increased tax expense by approximatey $@llion. The effective rate for 2006 reflectgtedn costs incurred related to the Company’s defagainst
ValueAct's attempted takeover, which were determhittebe non-deductible for federal income tax pegsoand therefore were accounted for as non-détkietipense.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

Working Capital and Cash Flow

Working capital at March 31, 2008 totaled $45.4lionl compared to negative $6.7 million at March 3Q07. Total current assets increased $4.0 milliweiuding a
$24.9 million increase in cash offset by an $18illian decrease in accounts receivable, and culiebilities decreased $48.2 million. Cash providedoperating
activities was $267.8 million compared to $218.4liomi in fiscal 2007 and $232.3 million in fiscaD@6. Operating cash flow in fiscal 2006 included ithcome tax
benefit of the exercise of stock options and wasahhis benefit is now required to be reported &isancing activity under SFAS 123R. The amountiided in
operating cash flow for fiscal 2006 was $19.1 roili

Investing activities used $80.5 million in fisc&l@B compared to $87.1 million in fiscal 2007 an@&® million in fiscal 2006. Investing activities fiscal 2008
included capitalized software development cost33.3 million as compared to $27.4 million in fis2@07 and $21.9 million in fiscal 2006. Capitapenditures were
$21.6 million in 2008 compared to $14.2 millionfiscal 2007 and $6.8 million in fiscal 2006. Datayaisition costs were $32.2 million in 2008 compkie $25.1
million in fiscal 2007 and $26.9 million in fiscaDO6.

Total spending on capitalized software developmentliscussed above, and research and developrpemise was $53.1 million in fiscal 2008, $46.5 imillin fiscal
2007 and $37.5 million in fiscal 2006. Research deeklopment expense, charged to cost of reverae $d9.8 million in fiscal 2008, $19.1 million iisd¢al 2007 and
$15.6 million in fiscal 2006.

Investing activities also reflect net cash paiddoqguisitions of $11.2 million in fiscal 2008 comed to $33.1 million in fiscal 2007 and $144.6 ioifl in fiscal 2006.
Fiscal 2008 included cash paid for the acquisitibechoTarget for $2.1 million and MKTG for $3.7Ilain. Fiscal 2007 included cash paid for the asijign of
Equitec for $14.4 million, Harbinger for $9.4 mill, and Kefta for $8.9 million. Fiscal 2006 inclad®106.9 million paid for the acquisition of DI a$id7.0 million paic
for the acquisition of IA. The remainder of the lcgsid for acquisitions each year relates to feelsemrnout payments paid on acquisitions madepiioayear and
purchases of minority interests on prior acquisgio

In fiscal 2007 the Company received $10 million anfiscal 2006 the Company received $20.0 millionthe sale and license of software to EMC Corfjona
(“EMC"). The Company expects to receive an addaidb2.0 million during fiscal 2009 (see note 7te tonsolidated financial statements for more imfition).

In fiscal 2008 the Company received $14.2 millionthe sale of its GIS operations in France (see #4do the consolidated financial statementsgdri2006 investing
activities also include $5.1 million related toesabf assets including $3.6 million from the sdlarmunused facility. Payments received on investsef $3.6 million in
2008, $2.8 million in 2007, and $3.8 million in ZDMclude sales or collections on a number of itmests.

With respect to certain of its investments in joiahtures and other companies, the Company mayderaash advances to fund losses and cash flowitdefThe
Company may, at its discretion, decide not to gtevinancing to these investments during futuréopst In the event that it does not provide funding these
investments have not achieved profitable operatitresCompany may be required to record an impaitrolearge up to the amount of the carrying valughe$e
investments ($1.5 million at March 31, 2008). lscfil 2008, the Company determined that one ofiitsstments was impaired and wrote off its valug2¥ million to
other, net. In the event that declines in the valtiés investments occur and continue, the Compmaay be required to record further impairment changlated to its
investments.

On October 26, 2007, the board of directors adoateew common stock repurchase program, which etigeprevious common stock repurchase program. This
program was further modified on February 13, 2Q0&er the new common stock repurchase progranGdmepany may purchase up to $100 million worth f it
common stock over the twelve months ending Oct@8be2008. From its inception on October 26, 200@ugh March 31, 2008, the Company had repurchaged 4
million shares of its stock for $50.6 million. Oroiember 14, 2002 the Company announced a previook epurchase program. From that date until Get@6, 2007
the Company repurchased, excluding shares purchasknt a Dutch-auction, self-tender, 21.8 millibares of its common stock for an aggregate purghase of
$404.0 million (average price of $18.51 per sharg)er this repurchase program. The Company repsedh@.6 million shares at an average $24.04 pee $haan
aggregate $13.9 million in 2007 and 12.1 millioargs for an aggregate price of $231.5 million $cdl 2006. Cash paid for repurchases was $50.Bmi$299.3
million and $233.8 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 aR@06, respectively.
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Financing activities in fiscal 2008 used $163.1ionil including $158.7 million in debt payments, idiends paid of $9.5 million and stock repurchade®56.6 million
offset by $47.9 million in sales of stock,. Finargictivities in fiscal 2007 used $101.8 milliocliding $178.1 million in net proceeds from debd &33.5 million in
sales of stock, offset by dividends paid of $18ilfian and stock repurchases of $299.3 million. &iscluded in financing activities in fiscal 200862007 was the tax
benefit from stock options, warrants and restrictedk of $5.5 million and $4.1 million, respectizePreviously this amount was reported in opegatntivities but is
now required to be reported in financing under SAZSR. Financing activities in fiscal 2006 used .8aillion including $130.8 million in net proceeftsm debt and
$58.6 million in sales of stock, offset by dividenghid of $17.4 million and stock repurchases &3%2 million as discussed above.

In each of the fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 20@6Ciimpany has incurred debt to finance the ac@nsitf data, software licenses, property and eqeipmacquisitions
and construction. The incurrence of this debt apgpea the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowsrdisdpplemental cash flow information.” Acquisit®under
capital leases and installment payment arrangernestes $24.8 million in 2008 compared to $58.9 miilin 2007 and $85.3 million in 2006, and consiarcand other
financing was $11.0 million in 2008 compared to #1@illion in 2007 and was $10.8 million in 2006ssets acquired under a data obligation were $18lidmrin
2008. Software licenses acquired under softwangatns were $0.5 million in 2008, $23.6 millian2007 and $15.0 million in 2006. Payment of thebtdn future
periods will be reflected as a financing activithe Company has also included details of its dapptents within the “supplemental cash flow” infotioa.

Credit and Debt Facilities

Effective September 15, 2006, the Company entertedain amended and restated credit agreement atioid) term loans up to an aggregate principal arhofi$600
million and (2) revolving credit facility borrowirsgconsisting of revolving loans, letter of credirticipations and swing-line loans to an aggregateunt of $200
million. On September 15, 2006, the Company borrbthe entire amount of the term loan. The term Isgrayable in quarterly principal installmentstdf5 million
through September 2011, followed by quarterly ppakinstallments of $150.0 million through Junel2pfollowed by a final installment of $40 milliatue September
15, 2012 (see note 9 to the consolidated finaist@éments). The term loan also allows prepaynteftee maturity. Revolving loan commitments andbalirowings of
revolving loans mature on September 15, 2011. Tédittagreement is secured by the accounts redeigfli\cxiom and its domestic subsidiaries, as aslby the
outstanding stock of certain Acxiom subsidiariesMarch 31, 2008 there were no revolving credirbaings outstanding and the Company had $200 mibieailable
under the credit agreement. Borrowings under thelveng credit agreement bear interest at LIBORs{lb%, an alternative base rate, or at the fefiemdk rate plus
2.25%.

Funded Software Arrangeme

On December 29, 2005, the Company entered intdimitilee Asset Purchase and License Agreement‘@ggeement”) with EMC Corporation (“EMC”"). The
Agreement provided, among other things, for thepase by EMC of the Company’s information grid epieg system software (the “Base Technology”) andlie
grant of a perpetual license from EMC to the Conypafrthe Base Technology and further developmemtshife Company’s continued use in connection wgh i
business. The Company also licensed other ancilidayed technology to EMC.

Under the terms of the Agreement, the parties wbtkgether to further develop the Base Technol&®C paid the Company $20 million in fiscal year 8Gihd $10
million in fiscal 2007. The Agreement also gave EME option during a two-year option period to dacgjthe Acxiom division responsible for the furttdavelopment
of the technology, upon payment of an option psigecified in the Agreement. EMC did not exercisedption and the parties have entered into an amendunder
which EMC will pay the Company $2.0 million in caghring the first quarter of fiscal 2009, as wellmoviding future discounts for the purchase afipepent from
EMC over the next four years. EMC is also to pusehat least $0.5 million in services from the Comypaver the next two years. The Agreement alsoires|the
parties to refer business opportunities to eacbrottihnenever possible.

Payments received by Acxiom from EMC under the &grent have offset previously capitalized softwaaaices associated with development of the soldiegnsed
technology and additional amounts capitalized tthier develop the technology. These payments haweffact on revenue, earnings, or operating casi. fThe
reduction in the capitalized balance will reduceifa amortization expense. The cash to be recéieed EMC under the amended agreement will be adeadufor in the
same way.
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Off-Balance Sheet Items and Commitm

The Company has entered into synthetic operatiggléacilities for computer equipment, furniturel aircraft (“Leased Assets”). These synthetic ofegdease
facilities are accounted for as operating leaseleUGAAP and are treated as capital leases fomedax reporting purposes. Lease terms under th@ai@r equipment
and furniture facility range from two to six yeavgth the Company having the option at expiratiéthe initial term to return, or purchase at a @gice, or extend or
renew the term of the leased equipment. The syintlegtse term for an aircraft expires in January12@vith the Company having the option at the eatjon to either
purchase the aircraft at a fixed price, enter itease for an additional twelve-month period (veithominal purchase price paid at the expiratiothefrenewal period),
or return the aircraft in the condition and manmeyuired by the lease. In the event the Compargtsete return the Leased Assets, the Company resugieed a portic
of the residual value to the lessors. AssumingXbmpany elects to return the Leased Assets tetsois at its earliest opportunity under the syitthease
arrangements and assuming the Leased Assets havgnifacant residual value to the lessors, the iman potential amount of future payments the Corgpaould be
required to make under these residual value guegantas $12.9 million at March 31, 2008. Sinceriheption of the facility, the total amount drawmder these
synthetic operating lease facilities was $255.7ioni] and as of March 31, 2008 the Company hasuadicommitment for lease payments of $24.6 milbeer the next
ten years.

Subsequent to March 31, 2008, the Company terndrihtelease for the above aircraft which was thuddi By the lessor. Under the terms of the leaseCthmpany was
required to pay the termination value of the lesess the proceeds of the aircraft sale. As atiebiel Company accrued a loss of $3.9 million ideldiin gains, losses
and other items in fiscal 2008. The cash paymelbetur in the first quarter of fiscal 2009.

In connection with certain of the Company’s fagt the Company has entered into 50/50 joint vestwith local real estate developers. In each, taseCompany is
guaranteeing portions of the loans for the buildidg addition, in connection with the disposateftain assets, the Company has guaranteed loatigefbuyers of the
assets. Substantially all of the third party inéelbiess for which the Company has provided guarsiigemllateralized by various pieces of real prop&he aggregate
amount of the guarantees at March 31, 2008 wasrflién.

Outstanding letters of credit, which reduce thedweing capacity under the Compasyevolving credit facility, were $7.2 million atdvich 31, 2008 and $10.2 millior
March 31, 2007.

Effective February 4, 2008, John A. Meyer has bextime Chief Executive Officer and President of@wnpany, pursuant to an employment agreement elnitetice
between the Company and Mr. Meyer dated Januar2Q08.

Pursuant to the employment agreement, Mr. Meydrseilve as Chief Executive Officer and PresiderthefCompany until May 16, 2011, with the term reable by
the Company for one-year terms following the exjpraof the initial term. Mr. Meyer will receive dnitial base salary of $0.7 million per annum avitl be eligible to
receive a target cash bonus in an amount equél% of his base salary and a maximum cash bonup tif 200% of his base salary during each conyreat, as
determined pursuant to predetermined performanget&to be established by the independent menalbéne Company’s board of directors or the compgoisa
committee of the board.

As an inducement to enter into the employment ages and to replace benefits lost by Mr. Meyeranreection with his job change, Mr. Meyer receiveiDa7 million
cash signing payment.

Under the employment agreement, Mr. Meyer has gesmted nonqualified stock options for 465,000 ekaf the Company’s common stock and restrictecksiaits
for 115,000 shares of the Company’s common stodklithonally, during fiscal 2009, Mr. Meyer will reteve performance share units in respect of 195¢b@@es of the
Company’s common stock, which units will vest sebje the terms and conditions of the awards baseahe or more performance periods ending Marct2@11.
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Contractual Commitmen
The following table presents Acxiom’s contractuasle obligations, exclusive of interest, and puret@snmitments at March 31, 2008 (dollars in thods@n

For the years ending March

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereaftel Total
Capital lease and installme
payment obligation $ 37,809 $ 21,300 $ 5714 $ 900 $ 548 $ 10,327 $ 76,598
Software and data license
liabilities 22,984 5,542 90 - - - 28,616
Warrant liability - - - - - 1,542 1,542
Term Loan 6,000 6,000 6,000 303,000 190,000 - 511,000
Other lon¢-term deb 2,466 2,064 13,208 1,449 2,405 5,219 26,811
Total long-term
obligations 69,259 34,906 25,012 305,349 192,953 17,088 644,567
Synthetic aircraft lease 1,219 1,219 1,219 1,219 1,219 5,689 11,784
Synthetic equipment and
furniture lease 8,837 3,849 125 - - - 12,811
Total synthetic
operating lease 10,056 5,068 1,344 1,219 1,219 5,689 24,595
Equipment operating leas 2,415 898 435 80 - - 3,828
Building operating lease 20,404 17,353 13,505 11,785 9,666 41,209 113,922
Partnerships building leas 2,155 1,645 1,599 1,599 1,599 1,732 10,329
Related party aircraft lea: 75 - - - - - 75
Total operating lease
payments 35,105 24,964 16,883 14,683 12,484 48,630 152,749
Operating software license
obligations 4,789 5,191 1,674 1,674 837 - 14,165
Total operating lease
and software license
obligations 39,894 30,155 18,557 16,357 13,321 48,630 166,914
Total contractual cash
obligations $109,153 $ 65,061 $ 43,569 $321,706 $206,274 $ 65,718 $811,48]

For the years ending March
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereaftel Total

Purchase commitments on
synthetic aircraft lease $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2251 $ 2251

Purchase commitments on
synthetic equipment and
furniture lease 3,070 7,178 377 - - - 10,625

Other purchase commitme 37,566 15,342 12,030 11,164 9,157 21,197 106,456
Total purchase commitmer $ 40,636 $ 22520 $ 12407 $ 11,164 $ 9,157 $ 23,448 $119,332
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The purchase commitments on the synthetic equiprieniture and aircraft leases assume the leasesrtate and are not renewed, and the Companyseteptirchas
the assets. The other purchase commitments inclutteactual commitments for the purchase of datbogen purchase orders for equipment, paper, dfipplies,
construction and other items. Other purchase comemits in some cases will be satisfied by entenitmfuture operating leases, capital leases, @rdihancing
arrangements, rather than payment of cash. Theeatmmmitments relating to long-term obligationsndd include future payments of interest. The Corgpestimates
interest payments on debt and capital leasesdoalf2009 of $41.4 million.

The following table shows contingencies or guarasitender which the Company could be required, iitaitecircumstances, to make cash payments as oftiVad,
2008 (dollars in thousands):

Residual value guarantee on the synthetic compuatgipment and furniture lea $ 10,62¢
Guarantees on certain partnership and other | 4,808
Outstanding letters of crec 7,188

The total of loans “on certain partnerships an@&ptbans,” of which the Company guarantees thegortoted in the above table, are $11.8 milliomf&slarch 31,
2008.

While the Company does not have any other mateoiaractual commitments for capital expenditurestain levels of investments in facilities and caitgp equipment
continue to be necessary to support the growthebtisiness. In some cases, the Company alsessfiisre and hardware to clients. In addition, mesmsourcing or
facilities management contracts frequently regsirestantial up-front capital expenditures to acgoirreplace existing assets. Management beliéegshte Company’s
existing available debt and cash flow from operaiwill be sufficient to meet the Company’s workizapital and capital expenditure requirementsterforeseeable
future. The Company also evaluates acquisitions fime to time, which may require up-front paymestftsash. Depending on the size of the acquisitiomy be
necessary to raise additional capital. If additi@agital becomes necessary as a result of anyriaatariance of operating results from projectiangrom potential
future acquisitions, the Company would first useikable borrowing capacity under its revolving dtegyreement, followed by the issuance of debtjoiitg securities.
However, no assurance can be given that the Compauld be able to obtain funding through the issganf debt or equity securities at terms favorabithe
Company, or that such funding would be available.

Acquisitions

On November 9, 2007, the Company entered into eseagent with Automatic Research, Inc., to purcltastain assets collectively known as MKTG. MKTG veae
of five operating subsidiaries of Automatic Resbdrc. MKTG is a traditional direct marketing optoa that provides its customers with data procegdist sales and
list management services. The acquisition exteffdsings to markets with favorable growth that ware currently serviced by the Company. The Compzaigl $3.7
million for MKTG. There are no earnout arrangememtsther contingencies related to this acquisititime operations of MKTG are included in the coitdkd results
beginning November 9, 2007. The annual revenudskafG as of the date of acquisition are approximagd.4 million.

On August 28, 2007, the Company acquired EchoTahget an on-line behavioral targeting and adisgreompany based in New York. The Company pai@ $1.
million net of cash acquired and executed a proonyssote in the amount of $0.3 million which wasdolarch 31, 2008. The operations of EchoTargeirmieided in
the consolidated results beginning September 17.20@ annual revenues of EchoTarget as of theadaequisition are less than $0.5 million.

On March 27, 2007, the Company acquired Kefta, (fikefta”), a leader in real-time, dynamic persamafion solutions for the Internet that was base8an Francisco,
California. The acquisition bolsters the Comparapdity to integrate one-to-one personalized comications across digital channels. The Company $aié million,
net of cash acquired, for Kefta not including amtsuii any, payable pursuant to the terms and ¢mmdi of two deferred payment agreements. Theifiratdeferred
cash compensation agreement that requires the GCognpg@ay up to $1.5 million if three of Kefta'sykemployees are retained by the Company for eighsecutive
quarters following the acquisition. The secondnarnout agreement that allows for payment obupilt5 million if the acquired business achievetaie revenue
goals. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 @@mpany paid $0.8 million under the earnout agezgnwhich has been treated as additional purghése. The
Company has also amended the deferred compensatargement to require payment of an additional $fllion through June 30, 2008. Payments undeptignal
deferred compensation arrangement are treateclpags purchase price (57%) and partially as camsgtion expense (43%). Payments under the amerdedet!
compensation agreement are all treated as compamnsapense. Kefta’s results of operations areuhet! in the Company’s consolidated results beggAipril 1,
2007. Kefta's total annual revenue as of the dasequisition is approximately $2.7 million.
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On March 15, 2007, the Company purchased HarbiAgsociates, LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary blager Technologies, Inc. (“Harbinger”) from ICx
Technologies, Inc. The Company paid $9.5 milliohafecash acquired, and executed a promissoryfoonother $1.3 million to acquire Harbinger, $inion of
which was paid on March 15, 2008. The remainin@ $illion will be paid by March 15, 2009. Harbingeresults of operations are included in the Corgfgan
consolidated results beginning March 15, 2007. muthe quarter ended March 31, 2008, the Compautydgiwn the remaining operations of Harbinger awbrded a
charge of $9.5 million in gains, losses and ottemns.

On December 29, 2006, the Company completed thaéisitign of certain assets of the Equitec divisaéiThe Henry Group, Ltd. (“Equitec”), a consultingd analytics
company headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio. The Cagnpaid approximately $14.7 million in cash for Eeu, and issued shares of the Company’s commak stdh
an approximate value of $3.6 million. The $18.3lioml purchase price paid for Equitec does not idelamounts, if any, payable pursuant to the tenmdscanditions of
an earnout agreement based on Equitec’s achieverheettain operating targets over the period empdiiarch 31, 2009. Equitec’s results of operatiomsiacluded in
the Company’s consolidated results beginning JanLia2007. Equitec’s annual revenue for the yeer po acquisition was approximately $11.3 millidrhe Company
has accrued through costs of operations $1.5 mipieyable under the earnout agreement for 2008tdfakremaining potentially payable for fiscal 208 $5.0 million.

In August 2005, the Company completed the acqaisivf InsightAmerica, Inc. (“IA”) a privately helcompany based in Broomfield, Colorado. IA specesiin fraud
prevention and risk mitigation services. The Conypgaid approximately $34.6 million in cash for IAet of cash acquired, and not including amountsiplgypursuant
to the terms and conditions of an earnout agreeriiéiet Company paid an additional $2.4 million dgrihe year ended March 31, 2006 relating to theaaragreeme
and made a final earnout payment of $1.0 milliofisnal 2008. IA’s results of operations are in@ddn the Company’s consolidated results beginAiagust 1, 2005.
IA’s total annual revenues at the date of acquisitvere approximately $18 million.

In May 2005, the Company completed the acquisibbDigital Impact, Inc. (“DI”). DI is a provider ointegrated digital marketing solutions and is loaise-oster City,
California. Management believes DI provides the @any with new digital services capabilities tha aomplementary to the Compasgxisting service offerings. T
Company paid approximately $106.8 million in cashDl, net of cash acquired, and DI's results cérgpions are included in the Company’s consolida¢edlts
beginning May 1, 2005. DI's total annual revenuethea date of acquisition were approximately $48iom.

See note 3 to the consolidated financial statenfentaore information about the Company’s acquosisi.

Seasonality and Inflation

Although the Company cannot accurately determieeathounts attributable to inflation, the Company heen affected by inflation through increasedscost
compensation and other operating expenses. Geneheadleffects of inflation are offset by technatiad advances, economies of scale and other opaetfficiencies.
The Company has established a pricing policy fogierm contracts, which provides for the effedtexpected increases resulting from inflation.

The Company'’s traditional direct marketing openasi@xperience their lowest revenue in the firstignaln order to minimize the impact of these fuations, the
Company continues to seek long-term strategic pestips with more predictable revenues. Revenur &lgents who have long-term contracts with the @any
(defined as two years or longer), as a percentagernsolidated revenue, was approximately 74%sicdfi 2008 compared to 73% in fiscal 2007 and 71%isdal 2006.

Related Parties

In accordance with a data center management agreelated July 27, 1992 between Acxiom and Transkimaxiom (through its subsidiary, Acxiom CDC, Ihc.
acquired all of TransUnion’s interest in its Chioatata center and agreed to provide TransUnion weitlous data center management services. In al&g82
agreement, Acxiom agreed to use its best effortaitise one person designated by TransUnion tcebtedlto Acxiom’s board of directors. TransUniosideated its
CEO and President, Harry C. Gambill, who was appdito fill a vacancy on the board in November 1884 was elected at the 1993 annual meeting dktsdbders to
serve a three-year term. He was elected to sedigathl threeyear terms at subsequent annual stockholders rgsetite resigned from the board effective Febru&
2006 at which time transactions with TransUnioneveo longer considered related-party transactidosiom recorded revenue from TransUnion of $106ifion in
fiscal 2006.
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See note 14 to the consolidated financial statesrfentadditional information on certain relationshiand related transactiol

Non-U.S. Operations

The Company has a presence in the United Kingdoamde, the Netherlands, Germany, Portugal, Pokanstralia and China. Most of the Company’s exposare
exchange rate fluctuation is due to translatiomgiand losses as there are no material transatiansause exchange rate impact. In general, &atle foreign
locations is expected to fund its own operatiorgs @ash flows, although funds may be loaned or ieeeom the U.S. to the foreign subsidiaries scifje limitations ir
the Company’s revolving credit facility. These ade@s are considered to be long-term investmentsaay gain or loss resulting from changes in exgbamates as well
as gains or losses resulting from translating tineign financial statements into U.S. dollars auded in accumulated other comprehensive incéoss)( Exchange
rate movements of foreign currencies may have gadation the Company’s future costs or on futurd €lasvs from foreign investments. The Company hatsemtered
into any foreign currency forward exchange congactother derivative instruments to hedge theceffef adverse fluctuations in foreign currencytrege rates. The
Company’s European operations had earnings ofr@idlién in fiscal 2008, earnings of $1.2 million fiscal 2007, and net losses of $3.7 million irc&k2006. All three
years include the impact of recording certain efgains, losses and other items within Europearatipaes. The Australian and China operations hadosses of $1.5
million for fiscal 2008, $0.3 million for fiscal T and $1.5 million for fiscal 2006.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsiriormity with accounting principles generallycapted in the United States of America. These adouy
principles require management to make certain jigmand assumptions that affect the reported atmofiassets and liabilities and the disclosureoottingent assets
and liabilities as of the date of the financiakastaents and the reported amounts of revenues guahses during the reporting periods. Note 1 tatt®mpanying
consolidated financial statements includes a supmisignificant accounting policies used in thepgaration of Acxiom'’s consolidated financial stagents. Of those
policies, we have identified the following as thesncritical because they require management'®iisemplex and/or significant judgments:

Revenue Recognition The Company provides database management anddducing services under long-term arrangemetissd arrangements may require
the Company to perform setup activities such aslésggn and build of a database for the customéenithe database management contracts and migodttba
customer’s IT environment under IT outsourcing cacts. In the case of database management contteetsustomer does not acquire any ownershipgighthe
Companys intellectual property used in the database aad#tabase itself provides no benefit to the custautside of the utilization of the system durihg tern
of the database management arrangement. In sore®, tias arrangements also contain provisions rieguiustomer acceptance of the setup activities poi
commencement of the ongoing services arrangemenfrdut fees billed during the setup phase for ¢tesangements are deferred and setup costs ¢éhdiract
and incremental to the contract are capitalizedaandrtized on a straight-line basis over the sertécm of the contract. Revenue recognition do¢bagin until
after customer acceptance in cases where contr@etsin acceptance provisions. Once the setup phasenplete and customer acceptance occurs, the&uwoy
recognizes revenue over the remaining service tétitme contract. In situations where the arrangerdeas not require customer acceptance beforedhgp@ny
begins providing services, revenue is recognizeat the contract period and no costs are deferred.

The Company accounts for revenue arrangementsmuittiple elements in accordance with Emerging Isstesk Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Elements.” EITF 00-2bpides guidance on (a) how arrangement consideratiould be measured, (b) whether the arrangement
should be divided into separate units of accountng (c) how the arrangement consideration shoeldllocated among the separate units of accourtiig 00-
21 also requires disclosure of the accounting pdbe recognition of revenue from multiple-deliveta arrangements and the description and natusaabf
arrangements.
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The Company accounts for all elements under itstdee management and IT outsourcing arrangemeatsiagle unit, since the initial setup activitpyformec
under the arrangements do not have stand-alone talie client and the Company is unable to detexitne relative fair values of the delivered elatseand the
undelivered elements. Therefore, when third pasfinare, hardware and certain other equipment@rceadong with services, the Company records satdssover
the related service period. Additionally, the Compavaluates revenue from the sale of data, softwerdware and equipment in accordance with theigions of
EITF Issue 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross asrecipal versus Net as an Agent,” to determine whetbeh revenue should be recognized on a grossier a
basis over the term of the related service agreemdrof the factors in EITF 99-19 are considereith the primary factor being whether the Compathie
primary obligor in the arrangement. “Out-of-pockeXpenses incurred by, and reimbursed to, the Coynipeconnection with customer contracts are reedras
gross revenue in accordance with EITF Issue 01tddome Statement Characterization of ReimbursemBeceived for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred.”

The Company evaluates its database management andslourcing arrangements using the criteria IlFFE)1-8, “Determining Whether an Arrangement Corgai
a Lease.” EITF 01-8 requires the Company to detegmihether an arrangement contains a lease withénvéces arrangement and, if so, requires the leas
component to be accounted for separately fromeheming components of the arrangement. In casesendatabase management or IT outsourcing arramgeme
are determined to include a lease, the lease Isated to determine whether it is a capital leaseperating lease and accounted for accordinglg. [€ase revenues
are not significant to the Company'’s financial sta¢nts.

All taxes assessed on revenue-producing transaatiescribed above are presented on a net basiscladed from revenues.

The Company also performs services on a projeds basside of, or in addition to, the scope of ldagn arrangements. The Company recognizes reieome
these services as the services are performed.

Revenues from the licensing of data are recognipech delivery of the data to the customer in cirstances where no update or other obligations dxe&tenue
from the licensing of data in which the Companpliigated to provide future updates on a monthliarterly or annual basis is recognized on a sttdigh basis
over the license term. Revenue from the licensindata to the customer in circumstances whereitease agreement contains a volume cap is recaimize
proportion to the total records to be deliveredarrttie arrangement.

Included in the Company’s consolidated balancetstere deferred revenues resulting from billingd/anclient payments in advance of revenue recamnit
Deferred revenue at March 31, 2008 was $64.1 miltiompared to $113.3 million at March 31, 2007. @kerease is primarily due to one significant outsimg
customer acquiring equipment under a new contedfedtive April 1, 2007) for which the Company red® revenue on a net basis. In the past, this mesto
purchased equipment along with services under soorcing arrangement and paid up front. The Complaferred both the cost and revenue and recogbiatd
over the term of the services arrangement. Thetedfethis one customer decrease was approximé@gdymillion. In addition, due to the impairmentasfother
outsourcing contract the Company reduced defeseenue by $8.9 million (see note 2 to the const#ifinancial statements).

In certain cases, such as hardware or softwareadpgrsold and/or licensed to existing clients whggeCompany has no further obligations with respeesuch
upgrades or project work, management has deterntirz@devenue recognition upon delivery of the hene or software to the client or upon completibéthe
project work is appropriate. The Company recognizegnue of $6.7 million in 2008, $9.6 million i@ and $15.8 million in 2006 for hardware andwsafe
where the Company has determined that up-frontigyeecognition is appropriate.

In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 all of the $6.7 rilli $9.6 million and $15.8 million in revenue, restively, noted above was recorded on a gross.basis

Accounts receivable include amounts billed to ¢eas well as unbilled amounts recognized in acourd with the Company’s revenue recognition pdiicie
Unbilled amounts included in accounts receivablesv30.3 million and $30.3 million, respectivelyMarch 31, 2008 and 2007.

The Company does not provide end-users with priogeption or rights of return. The Compasigontracts provide a warranty that the servicggaducts will mee
the agreed-upon criteria or any necessary modificatwill be made. The Company ensures that senac@roducts delivered meet the agreed-upon ierifeior to
recognition of revenue.
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Software, Purchased Software Licenses, and ResaadcBevelopment Cos- The Company capitalizes software development aoxdsr both the provisions
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No:"86¢counting for the Costs of Computer Softward&Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed” (“SFAS &6ijl
the American Institute of Certified Public Accounts Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for @ests of Computer Software Developed or Obtained f
Internal Use” (“SOP 98-1"). Although there are diffnces in the two accounting standards, depemdinghether a product is intended for internal use de
provided to customers, both standards generallyirethat research and development costs incumiedtp establishing technological feasibility detbeginning o
the application development stage of software petsdare charged to operations as incurred. Costdeshally developed software, upon its generlgase, are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the esghatonomic life of the product, generally twoitefyears, or the amortization that would be reedrty using the
ratio of gross revenues for a product to totalenirand anticipated future gross revenues forgtaduct, whichever is greater. The Company recoededrtization
expense and impairment charges related to intgrdalleloped computer software of $19.3 millionigstél 2008, $19.1 million in fiscal 2007 and $2illion in
fiscal 2006. Additionally, research and developnusts associated with internally developed sofvilacurred prior to becoming eligible for capitalion of $19.¢
million in fiscal 2008, $19.1 million in fiscal 2G0and $15.6 million in fiscal 2006 were chargedperations during those years.

Purchased software licenses include both prepdida® and capitalized future software obligatiémswhich the liability is included in long-term bie Costs of
purchased software licenses are amortized usimitstof-production basis over the estimated econdii@ of the license, generally not to exceedytears. The
Company recorded amortization of purchased softliegases of $35.9 million in fiscal 2008, $45.0lian in fiscal 2007 and $43.6 million in fiscal @6. Some of
these purchased software licenses are, in effekttime purchase agreements for software licensetedder internal use and to provide services téarmsers over
the terms of the agreements. Therefore, amortizéities are periodically reevaluated and, if neagssadjusted to reflect current and future expatage based
units-of-production amortization. Factors considdreestimating remaining useful life include, lawé not limited to, contract provisions of the urylag licenses,
introduction of new mainframe hardware which is patible with previous generation software, preditsi of continuing viability of mainframe architecyand
customers’ continuing commitments to utilize maanfie architecture and the software under contrabilethe Company believes current license lives are
appropriate and material changes in amortizatioioge are not anticipated, changes in relevanbfaatannot be predicted.

Capitalized software, including both purchased iatetnally developed, is reviewed each period #ntkcessary, the Company reduces the carryingevaflieach
product to its net realizable value. In performihg net realizable value evaluation of capitaligeftware, the Company’s projection of potentialfetcash flows
from future gross revenues by product, reducedbycbsts of completing and disposing of that produe compared to the carrying value of each produwrite-
down of the carrying amount of a product is madgéhéextent that the carrying value of a produceexs its net realizable value. During fiscal 2@B8,Company
recorded software impairment charges of $5.2 millist March 31, 2008, the Company’s most recentaimpent analysis of its purchased and internalyettgped
software indicates that no further impairment existowever, no assurance can be given that fuhalysis of the Company’s capitalized software wilt result in
an impairment charge. Additionally, should futurejpct revenues not materialize and/or the cosbafpleting and disposing of software products Sicgmtly
exceed the Company'’s estimates, further write-dosfimurchased or internally developed software mighrequired up to and including the total camyialue of
such software ($170.8 million at March 31, 2008).

Valuation of LongLived Assets and Goodwilt Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intaleg are reviewed for impairment whenever eventshanges in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouminodsset may not be recoverable. Recoverabiligagseéts to be held and used is measured by a coompafi the
carrying amount of an asset to the undiscounteld ftass expected to result from the use and evéulisposition of the asset. In cases where castsfltannot be
associated with individual assets, assets are gbtggether in order to associate cash flows vaighetsset group. If such assets or asset grougsslered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is mesasby the amount by which the carrying amount efahsets exceeds the fair value of the assetstsAedee
disposed of are reported at the lower of the cagrgimount or fair value less costs to sell. Dufisgal 2008 the Company recorded impairment chafgeleng-
lived assets associated with restructuring actisitf $29.6 million, included in gains, losses atiter items. In addition the Company recorded $48Ifon of asse
impairment charges in cost of operations relatdthfzaired capitalized contract costs. See notetBa@onsolidated financial statements. At MarchZ8D8, the
Company believes that no further impairment exsth respect to its long-lived assets. Howeverassurance can be given by management of the Contipainy
future impairment charges to its long-lived asselsnot be required as a result of changes in &/and/or circumstances.
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Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs the fair values of net assets acquired iimiess combinations treated as purchase transactidmder the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Otherdngible Assets,” goodwill is not amortized, butésiewed at least annually for impairment undexva-part
test. In the event that part one of the impairntesitindicates potential impairment of goodwilyfmrmance of part two of the impairment test tpuieed. Any
impairment that results from the completion of thve-part test is recorded as a charge to operationsgitite period in which the impairment test is céetgd. Th
Company performs its annual goodwill impairmentleation as of the beginning of its fiscal year.eT®ompany completed part one of an annual, two-part
impairment analysis of its goodwill during the gearended June 30, 2007 as well as an additionadimment test completed as a result of the shutrdufthe
Harbinger operation and the related goodwill wateeluring the quarter ended March 31, 2008, argldeermined that no impairment of its goodwillsted as of
the date of those tests. Accordingly, step twthefgoodwill impairment test was not required fsc&l 2008. Changes in circumstances may redur€bmpany
to perform impairment testing on a more frequesidaNo assurance can be given by the Companwdufitional impairment tests will not require a eduring
future periods should circumstances indicate @Qompany’s goodwill balances are impaired.

In completing step one of the tests and making#sessment that no potential impairment of the @oryip goodwill existed, management has made a nuofbe
estimates and assumptions. In particular, the grawrevenue and margins and discount rates ugetblmagement in determining the fair value of eafche
Company'’s reporting units through a discounted ¢last analysis significantly affect the outcometbé impairment test, as well as numerous otheofact
Management has determined that it is appropriapetform the goodwill impairment test at the repartunit level, which is one step below the repll¢ssegment
level. As a result, individual tests were perfodifier five reporting units that aggregate into @@mpany’s three reportable segments. For eachesggm
management used growth and margin rates for thiefiseal year based on its internal budget for tetr. For future years management used growels eatd
margin rates expected to occur in each of thosgoaents for the next four years, followed by anralféerminal value estimate. Management used vihwlieve:
to be a conservative assumption for each signifieatimate. Management has used a discount rdt2 pércent for all components, representing amcpation
of the Company’s weighted-average cost of capithich resulted in an excess of fair value overéeassets of each of the Compamgporting units. However,
actual results prove to be worse than managemestitwates, or if in future periods management esvits estimates of future cash flows downwardréiselts of
step one of the goodwill impairment test couldthia future, indicate that potential impairment deeist, requiring the Company to proceed to stepdfthe test
and possibly recording an impairment of its gootwil

StockBased Compensation Accountindrhe Financial Accounting Standards Board issuate8ient of Financial Accounting Standards No. (R&vised 2004),
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R") which requeesipensation cost related to stock options and sthere-based payments be recognized in the fialanci
statements. The Company adopted SFAS 123R, eféegtivil 1, 2006, using the modified prospectivensiition method and therefore has not restatedtsefaul
prior periods. Under the modified prospective mdttemmpensation cost must be recognized for atieshased payments granted after the adoption ofSSEZ8R
and for all awards granted prior to the adoptiote @ehich remain unvested on the adoption dater Ryiadoption of SFAS 123R, the Company acceleragsting
of substantially all unvested options.

Fully diluted shares outstanding and diluted egmiper share (“EPS”) include the effect of “in-theney” stock options and warrants (calculated basethe
average share price for the period) and restristeck.

The dilution from employee options, warrants, agstnicted stock, as computed under the treasuck stethod, fluctuates based on changes in the pfitree
Company’s common stock. If the price of the Compastock decreases, fewer options and warrant§ratee money”and the impact on diluted earnings per s
is smaller. If the price of the Company’s stockré&ses, more options and warrants are “in the niareythe impact on diluted earnings per shareeatgr.
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Deferred Costs and Data Acquisition Cc— The Company defers certain costs, primarily sadaaied benefits and other direct and incrementad tharty costs, il
connection with client contracts and various ottetracts and arrangements. Direct and incremeasas$ incurred during the setup phase under a@mtacts for
database management or for IT outsourcing arrangsnaee deferred until such time as the databaseautsourcing services are operational and teven
recognition begins. These costs are directly rdledghe individual client, are to be used spealficfor the individual client and have no otheews future benefit.
In addition, revenue recognition of billings, ifyamelated to these setup activities are defertethd the setup phase under client contracts. ddtsand billings
deferred are then amortized as contract revenagnén occurs, generally ratably over the renrarierm of the arrangement. During the period wéasts are
being deferred, the Company performs a net redézadlue review on a quarterly basis to ensuretti@tieferred costs are recoverable through elthercognition
of previously deferred revenue, 2) future minimuontcactual billings or 3) billings in excess of t@ttual minimum billings that can be reasonabhnested and
are deemed likely to occur. Once revenue recogniiegins, these deferred costs are assessed fairingmt when events or changes in circumstanceésaitedthe
carrying value may not be recoverable. Some coisti@ntain provisions allowing the customer to esjueductions in pricing if they can demonstrhsd the
Company charges lower prices for similar servicesther customers, or if the prices charged aredrithan certain benchmarks. If pricing is renegetl, deferred
costs are assessed for impairment.

The test of recoverability is performed by compatine carrying value of the asset to its undiscedieixpected future cash flows. If such review iatis that the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds the sum exjtscted future cash flows, the asset’s carryinguarhis written down to its estimated fair valuairfvalue is
determined by an internally developed discountejepted cash flow analysis of the asset. Due emagotiation of contracts with three different outing
customers, the Company performed a test for paetenipairment of the related capitalized costs. Tlenpany determined that the future cash flowgingao
these renegotiated outsourcing contracts wouldaaufficient to recover the costs that were chiptd. Based on these analyses, the Company reteandie-
downs relating to the capitalized costs of thesgraots. The combined $43.6 million charge is rdedrin cost of operations in the accompanying cosele
consolidated statement of operations and in the&@ate segment for segment disclosures. The clieclyeled $46.0 million in deferred costs, $0.1 ioiilin
property and equipment, $2.5 million in other assetd an accrual of $4.0 million, offset by $8.%iom in deferred revenue.

In addition to client contract costs, the Compaefeds direct and incremental costs incurred in eotion with obtaining other contracts, includindgtcilities,
lease facilities, and various other arrangemertdstCdeferred in connection with obtaining schedldiebt facilities are amortized over the term ef éirangement
using the interest method. Costs deferred in cdrorewith lease facilities or revolving credit féites are amortized over the term of the arrang&ma a straight-
line basis.

The Company also defers costs related to the atiqoisr licensing of data for the Company’s prepairy databases which are used in providing datdugts and
services to customers. These costs are amortizadioy useful life of the data, which is from tveosieven years. In order to estimate the usefubfieny acquired
data, the Company considers several factors inufutl) the type of data acquired, 2) whether tha Hatomes stale over time, 3) to what extent tkeewl#l be
replaced by updated data over time, 4) whethetstage” data continues to have value as histodeah, 5) whether a license places restriction$ieruse of the
data, and 6) the term of the license.

Restructuring- The Company records costs associated with empli@yeninations and other exit activity in accordamith SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” (“SFBANo0. 146"), SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Restructuring and Impairment Charges,” (“SAB 1)@hc
SFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postempi@nt Benefits, an Amendment of FASB StatementsSNind 43,” (“SFAS 112") as applicable. Under
SFAS No. 146, the Company records employee terinmaenefits as an operating expense when the ibanefngement is communicated to the employeenand
significant future services are required. Under SRA2, the Company records employee terminatioefiiewhen the termination benefits are probabb @n be
estimated. The Company recognizes the present véfiaeility lease termination obligations, netestimated sublease income and other exit costs) thiee
Company has future payments with no future econdm@iefit or a commitment to pay the terminationt€o$ a prior commitment. In future periods the Qamy
will record accretion expense to increase thelitsib an amount equal to the estimated futurdhgzeyments necessary to exit the leases. Thisresjaisignificant
amount of judgment and management estimation iardaddetermine the expected time frame it wilktéd secure a subtenant, the amount of subleasméto be
received and the appropriate discount rate to ttethe present value of the future cash flowsuBhactual lease exit costs differ from estimaties,Company
may be required to adjust the restructuring chargieh would impact net income in the period anyuatthent was recorded.
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New Accounting Pronouncemer

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accountitem&ards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SHBA3") in September 2006. SFAS 157 defines fair@alu
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, expands disclosures about fair value measurentauttdoes not require any new fair value measemessnSFAS
157 will be effective for Acxiom as of April 1, 28Gand will be applied prospectively. Managementsdug believe implementation of this standard hélve a
significant impact on the Company, except for reggiexpanded disclosures.

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accountitem@ards No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Finah@ssets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 1591 Februan
2007. SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measany financial instruments and certain other g@tfair value. The intent of this statement isriprove financial
reporting by providing entities with the opportynid mitigate volatility in reported earnings cad$® measuring related assets and liabilities wfidy without having
to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SEBS will be effective for Acxiom as of April 1, 280The Company does not currently hold the typesseéts and
liabilities covered under the scope of this statetytherefore management does not expect to dself bf the elections offered.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofeirhAccounting Standards No. 141(R), “BusinessnBimations”, (“SFAS 141R"), which replaces SFAS 141
SFAS 141R requires most assets acquired and tiebiissumed in a business combination, contirgergideration, and certain acquired contingencidetmeasured
at their fair values as of the date of acquisit®RAS 141R also requires that acquisition-relatestscand restructuring costs be recognized sepafaim the business
combination. SFAS 141R will be effective for ther@many for fiscal year 2010 and will be effective business combinations entered into after Aprdgo.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ohEinhAccounting Standards No. 160, “Noncontrollingerest in Consolidated Financial StatementsSFAS
160"). SFAS 160 amends previous accounting liteeato establish new accounting and reporting statsdf@r the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiang for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is effedior the Company as of the beginning of fisdalQ.
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Forwarc-looking Statement

This document contains forward-looking statemenhitese statements, which are not statements oficaltéact, may contain estimates, assumptiongeptions and/or
expectations regarding the Company'’s financialtiosi results of operations, market position, pridievelopment, growth opportunities, economic o, and
other similar forecasts and statements of expectalihe Company indicates these statements by veonplsrases such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “pldaxpect,”
“believe,” “intend,” “foresee,” and similar words phrases. These forward-looking statements arguentantees of future performance and are sulgjechtimber of
factors and uncertainties that could cause the @oyip actual results and experiences to differ ralg from the anticipated results and expectatierpressed in the
forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements may include but ardinated to the following:
e that the amounts for restructuring and impairméatrges and accruals for litigation will be withistinated ranges;
e that the cash flows used in estimating the recdiiaof assets will be within the estimated rasgand
¢ that items which management currently believesiatenaterial will continue to not be material ire tiuture.

The factors and uncertainties that could causeabatsults to differ materially from those exprebsse or implied by, forward-looking statementslude but are not
limited to the following:

o the risk factors described in Part I, “Item 1A.REactors” and elsewhere in this report and theseribed from time to time in our future reportsdiwith the
Securities and Exchange Commission;

¢ the possibility that in the event a change of adrif the Company is sought that certain clienty rmidempt to invoke provisions in their contrasulting in a
decline in revenue and profit;

¢ the possibility that the integration of acquiredimesses may not be as successful as planned;

¢ the possibility that the fair value of certain efr@assets may not be equal to the carrying valikasfe assets now or in future time periods;

¢ the possibility that sales cycles may lengthen;

e the possibility that we won't be able to properlgtimate our sales force or other associates;

¢ the possibility that we may not be able to atteawd retain qualified technical and leadership @ases; or that we may lose key associates to atfgemizations;
¢ the possibility that we won’t be able to continoeeceive credit upon satisfactory terms and coodit

¢ the possibility that competent, competitive produttchnologies or services will be introduced thie marketplace by other companies;

¢ the possibility that there will be changes in cansuor business information industries and marttetsnegatively impact the Company;

¢ the possibility that we won’t be able to proteaygmietary information and technology or to obta@tessary licenses on commercially reasonable terms;

¢ the possibility that there will be changes in thgi$lative, accounting, regulatory and consumeirenments affecting our business, including butlimoited to
litigation, legislation, regulations and customiatieg to our ability to collect, manage, aggregate use data;

e the possibility that data suppliers might withdrdata from us, leading to our inability to providetain products and services;
¢ the possibility that we may enter into short-temntracts which would affect the predictability afraevenues;

¢ the possibility that the amount of ad hoc, volunaséxl and project work will not be as expected;

¢ the possibility that we may experience a loss ¢é danter capacity or interruption of telecommutidcalinks or power sources;

¢ the possibility that we may experience failureb@aches of our network and data security systerading to potential adverse publicity, negativetomer
reaction, or liability to third parties;

¢ the possibility that our clients may cancel or nfiptheir agreements with us;

¢ the possibility that we will not successfully comj@ customer contract requirements on time or theetervice levels specified in the contracts, twinay
result in contract penalties or lost revenue;
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¢ the possibility that we experience processing smdrich result in credits to customers, re-perforoesof services or payment of damages to customers;

With respect to the provision of products or segsgioutside our primary base of operations in thiéedrStates, all of the above factors apply, alitp the difficulty of
doing business in numerous sovereign jurisdictéms to differences in scale, competition, cultlaes and regulations.

Other factors are detailed from time to time iniqaic reports and registration statements filechwlite United States Securities and Exchange Coriomisbhe
Company believes that we have the product and tdoby offerings, facilities, associates and contpetiand financial resources for continued busirsessess, but
future revenues, costs, margins and profits arafflienced by a number of factors, including thdseussed above, all of which are inherently diififi to forecast.

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assuomgsti the Company cautions readers not to placeeuradiance on any forward-looking statements. The@any
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or sevany forward-looking statements based on thermaee of future events, the receipt of new infdforaor
otherwise.
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Managemen’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Acxiom Corporation (the Companygsponsible for establishing and maintainingqadée internal control over financial reporting.

The Company'’s internal control over financial rdpay is a process designed to provide reasonablaasce regarding the reliability of financial refrgy and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples, and includes those policies armtpdures that:

¢ Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoregtsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thensactions and dispositions of the assets of tep@ny;

¢ Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@eled as necessary to permit preparation afidiahstatements in accordance with generally gecep
accounting principles, and that receipts and exipered of the Company are being made only in acurd with authorizations of management and direaibthe

Company; and

¢ Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of the Company’s assets that cbalk a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuetiof effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that mmatmay become inadequate because of changesdiitions, or that the degree of compliance withpghkcies or
procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehtres Company’s internal control over financiagporting as of March 31, 2008. In making this assest, the
Company’s management used the criteria set fortindyCommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of trea@iway Commission (COSO) limternal Control-Integrated
Framework.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or boration of control deficiencies, that result ineasonable possibility that a material misstateroétite annual or
interim financial statements will not be preventedietected on a timely basis. Management's assggswhinternal control over financial reportingeidified material
weaknesses in internal control over financial répgr The Company’s policies and procedures taregt performance completed for information servizegracts
were not designed to provide sufficient supporttfia recognition of revenue under U.S. generalbepted accounting principles. In addition the Comypspolicies an
procedures for classification of cash flow actestiwvere not sufficient to properly classify addisdo deferred costs as an operating cash flowigctrhese material
weaknesses resulted in a restatement describexderi8 to the Company’s consolidated financiakstents.

Because of the material weaknesses described patiagraph above, management determined that,March 31, 2008 the Company’s internal control dirgincial
reporting was not effective based on the criterilniernal Control-Integrated Framewoiiksued by COSO.

KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accmgntirm, that audited the financial statementduded in this annual report has issued an auddrtegappearing o
the following page, on our internal control overancial reporting in which they expressed an advepsnion on the effectiveness of our internal oardgver financial
reporting as of March 31, 2008.
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEinm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Acxiom Corporation:

We have audited Acxiom Corporation and subsidiattee Company) internal control over financial ogfing as of March 31, 2008, based on criterial#istaed in
Internal Contro—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companysagement is
responsible for maintaining effective internal dohbver financial reporting and for its assessnadrihe effectiveness of internal control over fio&l reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Canys internal control over financial reporting beson our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightrd&@nited States). Those standards require thailareand
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoet athether effective internal control over finaalgieporting was maintained in all material respe@ur audit
included obtaining an understanding of internaltc@rover financial reporting, assessing the riskt ta material weakness exists, and testing ardagireg the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controklasn the assessed risk. Our audit also includddrpgng such other procedures as we consideregssacy in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provide=agonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessssuregarding the reliability of financial repogt and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. A company’s internal control ograncial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(ih) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly refteettransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)igereasonable assurance that transactions aneleecas necessary to permit preparation of finasta@ements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipies; and that receipts and expenditures of tinepemy are being made only in accordance with aizibons of
management and directors of the company; and (Rjige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usegisposition
of the company’s assets that could have a magffidt on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuatif effectiveness
future periods are subject to the risk that costrolly become inadequate because of changes irtioasdor that the degree of compliance with thiécpes or
procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combamatif deficiencies, in internal control over finalaeporting, such that there is a reasonableipitissthat a material
misstatement of the company’s annual or interirarfitial statements will not be prevented or deteoted timely basis. The following material weakmsskave been
identified and included in management’s assessment:

e« The Company did not have effective policies andedures to apply the appropriate revenue recogmititeria under U.S. generally accepted accourgimiples
relating to certain types of customer contra
e« The Company did not maintain effective controlsraye preparation and review of the consolidatatestent of cash flows relating to deferred cc

In our opinion, because of the effect of the af@ationed material weaknesses on the achieveméhe abjectives of the control criteria, Acxiom Coration and
subsidiaries have not maintained effective intecaaltrol over financial reporting as of March 3008, based omternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ommission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@snited States), the consolidated balance sloé&tsxiom
Corporation and subsidiaries as of March 31, 20@B29007, and the related consolidated statememparhtions, stockholders’ equity and compreherisiseme, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-peaiod ended March 31, 2008. These material weakssesere considered in determining the naturengndnd extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2008smidated financial statements, and this reporsdus affect our report dated May 30, 2008, whixgpressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated finanstatements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 30, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Acxiom Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Acxiom Corporation and subsidiaries Gompany) as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, ancetheed
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgrsty and comprehensive income, and cash flawg#ch of the years in the three-year period eiidh 31,
2008. These consolidated financial statementsharessponsibility of the Company’s management. @sponsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobtidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafiqUnited States). Those standards require tagtlan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetathether the financial statements are free dérnia misstatement. An audit includes examiningadest basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréifinancial statements. An audit also includessing the accounting principles used and sigmifiestimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfiaeacial statement presentation. We believe tha audits provide a reasonable basis for ouniopi

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéapects, the financial position of Acxiom Coration and subsidiarie
as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the resultsesf bperations and their cash flows for each efythars in the three-year period ended March 318,26 conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in note 19 to the consolidated fir@rstatements, the Company has restated their kdaisa balance sheet as of March 31, 2007 ancethted
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgrsty and comprehensive income, and cash flawsihfe years ended March 31, 2007 and 2006.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&tement, during 2007, the Company adopted i@t&ieof Financial Accounting Standards No. 12SRare-Based
Paymen.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@snited States), Acxiom Corporation and subsidgr
internal control over financial reporting as of Miar31, 2008, based on criteria establishedternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgxDSO), and our report dated May 30, 2008, expreas adverse opinion on the effectiveness of treganys
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 30, 2008

F-27




ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
MARCH 31, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel

Trade accounts receivable, net, including receeséiloim related parties of $882 in 2C

and $821 in 200
Deferred income taxe
Refundable income tax
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, net of accumulated degiegiand amortizatio
Software, net of accumulated amortization of $152,ih 2008 and $134,183 in 20

Goodwill
Purchased software licenses, net of accumulatedtiaatoon of $370,849 in 2008 ai
$300,674 in 200

Deferred costs, nt
Data acquisition costs, n
Other assets, n

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current installments of loi-term debt
Trade accounts payak
Accrued expense
Payroll
Other
Deferred revenu
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity

Common stock, $0.10 par value (authorized 200 onilihares; issued 114.3 million &

111.4 million shares at March 31, 2008 and 200speetively)
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earninc
Accumulated other comprehensive incc

Treasury stock, at cost (37.0 million and 32.9immillshares at March 31, 2008 and 2007,

respectively’
Total stockholders' equit

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@#tstents
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2007

2008 (Restated

$ 62661 $ 37,77¢
216,462 234,511
44,211 41,850
16,080 7,657
45,645 59,252
385,059 381,046
266,269 312,292
59,263 44,289
484,796 522,046
111,574 151,326
90,707 137,684
51,566 35,398
22,621 39,993
$1,471,858 $1,624,07<
$ 69,25¢ $ 106,921
45,749 54,808
39,061 33,663
121,441 79,078
64,116 113,318
339,626 387,788
575,308 648,879
51,429 97,926

4,980 -
11,428 11,145
779,815 718,336
413,758 431,014
33,976 17,526
(738,465)  (688,540)
500,512 489,481
$1,471,858 $1,624,07¢




ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2007 2006
2008 (Restated (Restated
Revenue
Services, including revenue from related partie$26
million in 2008, $2.2 million in 2007 and $107.4 millior
2006 $  1,049,79( $ 1,056,47¢ $ 1,008,75¢
Data 334,289 334,033 320,019
Total revenue 1,384,07¢ 1,390,511 1,328,772
Operating costs and expen:
Cost of revenu
Services 858,173 806,991 778,490
Data, including related party expense of $16.3iomill
in 2006 229,587 206,629 201,950
Total cost of revenu 1,087,76( 1,013,62C 980,440
Selling, general and administrati 219,721 213,849 211,541
Gains, losses and other items, 36,352 8,897 9,504
Total operating costs and expen 1,343,83% 1,236,36¢ 1,201,48¢
Income from operation 40,246 154,145 127,288
Other income (expense
Interest expens (51,230) (46,632) (28,744)
Other, ne 1,223 5,933 2,005
Total other income (expens (50,007) (40,699) (26,739)
Earnings (loss) before income ta (9,761) 113,446 100,549
Income tax expense (bene (1,981) 45,573 38,774
Net earnings (loss $ (7,780 $ 67,87, $ 61,77
Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic $ 0.10 $ 08. $ 0.7:
Diluted $ 0.10 % 0.8 $ 0.6¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@#tstents
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ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY ANCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

Common Stocl Treasury stocl
(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated

other
Additional Unearned comprehensivi Total
Number of paid-in stock-based Comprehensive Retained income Number stockholders’
shares Amount capital compensatio __income (loss _ earnings (loss) of shares Amount equity

Balances at March 31, 2005 as previously repc 104,400,16 $ 10,440 $ 588,15¢ $ - $ 363,556 $ 12,61¢€ (9,187,086 $ (159,934 $ 814,83¢
Restatement to net income prior to March 31, z - - - - (26,610) - - - (26,610)

Balances at March 31, 2005 as rest: 104,400,16. $ 10,440 $ 588,15€ $ - $ 336,946 $ 12,61¢€ (9,187,086 $ (159,934, $ 788,22/
Employee stock awards, benefit plans and othernrssee 5,057,99: 506 59,466 - - - - (51,304) (1,358) 58,614
Tax benefit of stock options and warra - - 19,097 - - - - - - 19,097
Acquisition of Digital Impact, Inc - - 10,632 (3,091) - - - - - 7,541
Amortization of unearned sto-based compensatic - - - 1,150 - - - - - 1,150
Non-cash shar-based compensatic 163 - 163
Warrant exercis - - (488) - - - - 33,901 488 -
Acquisition of treasury stoc - - - - - - - (12,105,132 (231,533 (231,533
Dividends - - - - - (17,406) - - - (17,406)
Comprehensive incom

Foreign currency translatic - - - - (10,405) - (10,405) - - (10,405)

Unrealized loss on marketable securities, net>o - - - - 6) - (6) - - 6)

Net earnings, as restat - - - - 61,775 61,775 - - - 61,775
Total comprehensive income, as rest: $ 51,364

Balances at March 31, 2006 as resti 109,458,15. $ 10,946 $ 677,026 $ (1,941) $ 381,31 $ 2,20t (21,309,622 $ (392,337 $ 677,21«
Employee stock awards, benefit plans and othearssee 1,962,61° 196 33,878 - - - - (13,838) (610) 33,464
Tax benefit of stock options, warrants and restdcitock - - 4,142 - - - - - - 4,142
Implementation of SFAS 123 - - (1,941) 1,941 - - - - - -
Non-cash shar-based compensatic - - 3,823 - - - - - - 3,823
Restricted stock units vest 25,000 3 3) - - - - - - -
Warrant exercis - - (110) - - - - 7,668 110 -
Acquisition of treasury stoc - - - - - - - (11,687,081 (297,792 (297,792
Acquisition of Equitec - - 1,521 - - - - 140,735 2,089 3,610
Dividends - - - - - (18,174) - - - (18,174)
Comprehensive incom

Foreign currency translatic - - - - 15,228 - 15,228 - - 15,228

Unrealized loss on marketable securities, netxo - - - - 93 - 93 - - 93

Net earnings, as restat - - - - 67,873 67,873 - - - 67,873
Total comprehensive income, as rest: - - - - $ 8319«

Balance at March 31, 2007 as rest¢ 111,445,76' $ 11,145 $ 718,33€ $ - $ 431,014 $ 17,52¢ (32,862,13¢ $ (688,540 $ 489,481
Employee stock awards, benefit plans and othearssee 2,706,96¢ 270 47,631 - - - - 2,704 42 47,943
Tax benefit of stock options, warrants and restdcitock - - 5,513 - - - - - - 5,513
Non-cash shar-based compensatic - - 8,348 - - - - 38,352 584 8,932
Restricted stock units vest 127,864 13 (13) - - - - - - -
Acquisition of treasury stoc - - - - - - - (4,175,154 (50,551, (50,551)
Dividends - - - - - (9,476) - - - (9,476)
Comprehensive incom

Foreign currency translatic - - - - 16,568 - 16,568 - - 16,568
Unrealized loss on marketable securities, netxo - - - - (118) - (118) - - (118)
Net (loss) - - - - 7,780) (7,780) - - - (7,780)
Total comprehensive incon - - - - $ 8,67(C
Balances at March 31, 20i 114,280,59' $ 11,428 $ 779,815 $ - $ 413758 $  33,97¢ (36,996,23¢ $ (738,465 $ 500,51z

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaddstents
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ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

2007 2006
2008 (Restated (Restated

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earnings (loss $ (7,780 $ 67,87, $ 61,77
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net
provided by operating activitie

Non-cash impact of restructurir 72,503 - -
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of long-
lived asset: 272,792 229,566 231,137
Gain on disposal of assets, 9) (1,718) (1,797)
Deferred income taxe (2,135) 14,369 17,451
Income tax benefit of stock options and warrants
exercisec - - 19,097
Non-cash shar-based compensation expel 8,932 3,823 1,313
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 14,781 (25,515) (17,367)
Deferred cost (32,538) (41,581) (43,524)
Other asset 8,653 (19,101) (26,197)
Accounts payable and other liabiliti (17,258) 3,960 (15,148)
Deferred revenu (50,135) (13,305) 5,569
Net cash provided by operating activit 267,806 218,371 232,309
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds received from the disposition of operat 14,250 - 4,844
Proceeds received from the disposition of as - - 5,123
Payments received from investme 3,603 2,758 3,760
Capitalized software development cc (33,345) (27,443) (21,903)
Capital expenditure (21,600) (14,225) (6,848)
Cash collected from the sale and license of
software - 10,000 20,000
Data acquisition cos (32,163) (25,106) (26,930)
Net cash paid in acquisitiol (11,235) (33,067) (144,626)
Net cash used in investing activiti (80,490) (87,083) (166,580)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from del 2,127 649,756 437,870
Payments of det (158,699) (471,670) (307,120)
Dividends paic (9,476) (18,174) (17,406)
Sale of common stoc 47,943 33,464 58,614
Acquisition of treasury stoc (50,551) (299,301) (233,770)
Income tax benefit of stock options, warrants and
restricted stocl 5,513 4,142 -
Net cash used in financing activiti (163,143) (101,783) (61,812)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 712 566 (397)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 24,885 30,071 3,520
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 37,776 7,705 4,185
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 62,66. $ 37,77t $ 7,70

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaatstent:

F-31




ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

2008 2007 2006
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the period f

Interest $ 51,66¢ $ 46,64' $ 27,95¢
Income taxe: 7,979 37,596 4,185
Payments on capital leases and installment pay

arrangement 69,706 76,135 72,232
Payments on software and data license liabil 31,819 26,897 29,069
Prepayment of del 30,000 50,000 -
Other debt payments, excluding line of cre 25,047 10,235 9,302
Revolving credit paymen 2,127 308,403 196,517

Noncash investing and financing activiti

Common stock, options, and warrants issuec

acquisitions - 3,610 7,541
Enterprise software licenses acquired under soél

obligation 513 23,571 14,950
Acquisition of property and equipment under caf

leases and installment payment arrangerr 24,841 58,928 85,261
Disposal of asset under financi (5,304) - -
Construction and other financi 11,025 18,380 10,772
Assets acquired under data obligat 15,306 - -
Note payable issued in acquisiti 300 1,300 -

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaatstents
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ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

At Acxiom (“Acxiom” or “the Company”) (Nasdaq: ACXM we make information intelligent for many of terld’s leading companies to help them solve some af
most complex marketing problems. Our productsjises and thought leadership enable them to acqeirecustomers, retain their most valuable custemer
communicate with customers in the methods and tthes prefer, and make profitable marketing andrimss decisions. Acxiom’s unmatched customer risgy
achieved by blending the world’s largest repositmfrgonsumer data, award-winning technology andysing, multi-channel expertise, privacy leaderslaipd superior
knowledge of a wide spectrum of industries. Foundetb69, Acxiom is headquartered in Little Rockk&nsas, with locations throughout the United StétgS”) and
Europe, and in Australia and China.

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consoliati

The consolidated financial statements include to@ants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Athicant intercompany balances and transactions baen
eliminated in consolidation. Investments in 209683 owned entities are accounted for using thetgquethod with equity in earnings recorded in “otheet” in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatiomgstments in less than 20% owned entities arelatted for at cost. Investment income and chagjated to
investments accounted for at cost are recordedthet, net.”

Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made a number ofatset and assumptions relating to the reportiragséts and liabilities and the disclosure of coetim assets and
liabilities to prepare these consolidated finanstatements in conformity with accounting princgpteenerally accepted in the United States. Acesllts could differ
from those estimates. Areas in which significadigjments and estimates are used include projecsétficavs associated with recoverability of assetstructuring and
impairment accruals, and litigation loss accruals.

New Accounting Pronounceme-

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accountitem&ards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SHAA3") in September 2006. SFAS 157 defines fair@alu
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, expands disclosures about fair value measurentauttdoes not require any new fair value measemessnSFAS
157 will be effective for Acxiom as of April 1, 28Gand will be applied prospectively. Managementsdugt believe implementation of this standard hélve a
significant impact on the Company, except for reggiexpanded disclosures.

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accountitem@ards No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Finah@ssets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 1591 Februan
2007. SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measany financial instruments and certain other st@fair value. The intent of this statement ismiprove financial
reporting by providing entities with the opportynid mitigate volatility in reported earnings cad$® measuring related assets and liabilities wfidy without having
to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SEBS will be effective for Acxiom as of April 1, 260The Company does not currently hold the typessséts and
liabilities covered under the scope of this statetytherefore management does not expect the fialsneill be impacted by this pronouncement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofeirbAccounting Standards No. 141(R), “BusinessnBimations”, (“SFAS 141R"), which replaces SFAS 141

SFAS 141R requires most assets acquired and tiabiissumed in a business combination, contingergideration, and certain acquired contingencidgetmeasured
at their fair values as of the date of acquisit®RAS 141R also requires that acquisition relateiscand restructuring costs be recognized sepafaim the business
combination. SFAS 141R will be effective for therqmany for fiscal year 2010 and will be effective business combinations entered into after AprkQ9.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ohEiahAccounting Standards No. 160, “Noncontrollingerest in Consolidated Financial StatementsSFAS
160"). SFAS 160 amends previous accounting liteeato establish new accounting and reporting statsdf@r the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiang for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 is eifecfor the Company as of the beginning of fisdal@.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith original maturities of three months or lesde cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts billed to cuglis as well as unbilled amounts recognized inrdecme with the Compangtrevenue recognition policies, as st
below. Unbilled amounts included in accounts reaele, which generally arise from the delivery ofedand performance of services to customers inramtvaf billings,
were $30.3 million and $30.3 million, respectivedy March 31, 2008 and 2007.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets include the current portiaintilled and notes receivable of $4.1 million &1®.9 million as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, retpely (see note
5). The remainder of other current assets consigisepaid expenses, non-trade receivables and wiiseellaneous assets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depi@tiand amortization are calculated on the stitdigle method over the estimated useful lives efdlssets as follows:
buildings and improvements, 2 - 30 years; datagssiog equipment, 2 - 5 years, and office furnituré other equipment, 3 - 7 years.

Property held under capitalized lease arrangeneisluded in property and equipment, and the @ased liabilities are included in lortgrm obligations. Amortizatic
of property under capitalized leases is includedepreciation and amortization expense. Properdyegiipment taken out of service and held for satecorded at the
lower of depreciated cost or net realizable vahe depreciation is ceased.

Leases

Rent expense on operating leases is recorded twaight-line basis over the term of the lease apese.

Software and Research and Development Costs

Costs of internally developed software are amadtize a straight-line basis over the remaining estiah economic life of the software product, gemetalo to five
years, or the amortization that would be recordedding the ratio of gross revenues for a produébtal current and anticipated future gross reesrfar that product,
whichever is greater. The Company capitalizes so#vdevelopment costs under both the provisioi&tatEment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86,
“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software €3bld, Leased or Otherwise Marketed” (“SFAS 861} ehe American Institute of Certified Public Accoants
Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Sasf Computer Software Developed or Obtained ficerhal Use” (“SOP 98-1"Although there are differences in 1
two accounting standards, depending on whetheodugpt is intended for internal use or to be prodittecustomers, both standards generally requaerésearch and
development costs incurred prior to establishimgitelogical feasibility or the beginning of the &pation development stage of software productsasrged to
operations as such costs are incurred. Once temfioal feasibility is established or the applicat@evelopment stage has begun, costs are capitaiige the software
is available for general release. Amortization evgeerelated to both internally developed and puetigoftware is included in cost of revenue inatt@mpanying
consolidated statements of operations.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Purchased Software Licenses

Purchased software licenses include both prepdida® and capitalized future software obligatiémswhich the liability is included in long-term bie Costs of
purchased software licenses are amortized usimitstof-production basis over the estimated econdii@ of the license, generally not to exceedytears.
Amortization of software is included in cost of eeme in the accompanying consolidated statemernpesftions.

Some of these licenses are, in effect, volume @selagreements for software licenses needed &naituse and to provide services to customersthederms of the
agreements. Therefore, amortization lives are daxddly reevaluated and, if justified, adjustedeflect current and future expected usage basenhits+-of-production
amortization. Factors considered in estimating iemg useful life include, but are not limited tmntract provisions of the underlying licenses,adtiction of new
mainframe hardware which is compatible with presigeneration software, predictions of continuirapbility of mainframe architecture, and customemsitnuing
commitments to utilize mainframe architecture amelgoftware under contract.

Goodwill -

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs the fair values of net assets acquired imiess combinations. Goodwill is reviewed at leastually for
impairment under a two-part test. Part one of thedgvill impairment test involves a determinationadfether the total book value of each reporting ahthe Company
(generally defined as the carrying value of assetsis the carrying value of liabilities) exceeds teporting unit’s estimated fair value. In thevbat part one of the
impairment test indicates an excess of book vakee the estimated fair value of net assets, peidoca of part two of the impairment test is requirgdereby estimate
fair values are assigned to identifiable assets arty residual fair value assigned to goodwill. &inment exists to the extent that the reporting'sinécorded goodwill
exceeds the residual fair value assigned to suctwgd. Any impairment that results from the comtpd@ of the twopart test is recorded as a charge to operationsg
the period in which the impairment test is completeompletion of the Company’s most recent anmaghkiirment test during the quarter ended June 37,26 well as
an additional impairment test completed as a resulie shut-down of the Harbinger operation aredrtiated goodwill write-off during the quarter eddMarch 31,
2008, indicated that no potential impairment ofgit®dwill balances exists. The Company expect®iopiete its next annual impairment test duringdgbarter ending
June 30, 2008.

Impairment of Longived Assets and Lontived Assets to Be Disposed ©Of

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intafeghkare reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that the cargmgunt of an
asset may not be recoverable (see note 2). Reduhtyraf assets to be held and used is measuresddgmparison of the carrying amount of an asstte¢aindiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use andtaaédisposition of the asset. If such assets ansidered to be impaired, the impairment to begeized is measured
by the amount by which the carrying amount of teseés exceeds the fair value of the assets. Asskésdisposed of shall be classified as helddt® and are reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or fair valaed costs to sell.

Unbilled and Notes Receivable

Unbilled and notes receivable are from the salesfifvare, services, data licenses, equipment sald$rom the sale of divested operations, neéb@fcurrent portions
such receivables. Certain, but not all, of the lidbiand notes receivable from software, servida licenses and equipment sales have no staeedshrate and have
been discounted using an imputed interest ratesrgéy 5% to 8%, based on the customer, type cdegent, collateral and payment terms. The terrhedfe notes is
generally three years or less. This discount isdetcognized into income using the interest metdmatithe interest income is included as a compaofeiother, net” in
the accompanying consolidated statements of opesatCash flows from unbilled and notes receivabtereported in operating cash flows as a changther assets.
The current portion of unbilled and notes receigablincluded in other current assets and the rmosicuportion is included in other assets.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Deferred Costs and Data Acquisition Costs

The Company defers certain costs, primarily sadaai®d benefits and other direct and incrementad tharty costs, in connection with client contreansl various other
contracts and arrangements. Direct and incremeasts$ incurred during the setup phase under diemiracts for database management or for IT outgugyir
arrangements are deferred until such time as ttaddse or the outsourcing services are operat@mhfevenue recognition begins. These costs aetlyirelated to the
individual client, are to be used specifically fbe individual client and have no other use orreitoenefit. In addition, revenue recognition ofibgs, if any, related to
these setup activities are deferred during thepsgitase under client contracts. All costs andrgjlideferred are then amortized as contract rewemognition occurs,
generally ratably over the remaining term of theagement. During the period when costs are be#fered, the Company performs a net realizableeveduiew on a
quarterly basis to ensure that the deferred costseaoverable through either 1) recognition of/resly deferred revenue, 2) future minimum corttratbillings or 3)
billings in excess of contractual minimum billingt can be reasonably estimated and are deenadyl ikoccur. Once revenue recognition begins glieferred costs
are assessed for impairment when events or chamgesumstances indicate the carrying value maybeorecoverable. Some contracts contain provisiinging the
customer to request reductions in pricing if thap demonstrate that the Company charges lowerspidcesimilar services to other customers, or & phices charged ¢
higher than certain benchmarks. If pricing is resiedged, deferred costs are assessed for impairment

In addition to client contract costs, the Compaefeds direct and incremental costs incurred in eatian with obtaining other contracts, includindticilities, lease
facilities, and various other arrangements. Cosfsrded in connection with obtaining scheduled dabilities are amortized over the term of the agement using the
interest method. Costs deferred in connection lekse facilities or revolving credit facilities aamortized over the term of the arrangement onaégsit-line basis.

The Company also defers costs related to the atignisr licensing of data for the Company’s pregpeairy databases which are used in providing datduots and
services to customers. These costs are amortizzdioy useful life of the data, which is from tveosieven years. In order to estimate the usefubfieny acquired data,
the Company considers several factors includindpd kind of data acquired, 2) whether the data imesostale over time, 3) to what extent the datebwireplaced by
updated data over time, 4) whether the stale datdrues to have value as historical data, 5) wéredHicense places restrictions on the use ofiéi®, and 6) the term
the license.

Marketable and Nomarketable Securities

Other assets include the Company’s investment iketable and nomarketable securities of $1.5 million and $4.3 imillas of March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectiy
The Company has classified its marketable secsi@tieavailable for sale. Unrealized holding gairmlasses, net of the related tax effect, on abkstéor-sale securities
are excluded from earnings and are reported agaaage component of other comprehensive incoms)(logil realized. Realized gains and losses fioensale of
available-for-sale securities are determined opegific identification basis.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Investments in non-marketable equity securitiesvaaitored for impairment and written down to feue with a charge to earnings if a decline inVaiue is judged
to be other than temporary. The fair values of marketable equity securities are determined baseaglioted market prices. If quoted market pricesnateavailable,
fair values are estimated based on an evaluationmierous indicators including, but not limited affering prices of recent issuances of the samsnoitar equity
instruments, quoted market prices for similar conipaand comparisons of recent financial infornmgtaperating plans, budgets, market studies aedtdlformation
to the information used to support the initial \alan of the investment. The Company considersraéf@ctors to determine whether a decline in #ievalue of a non-
marketable equity security is other than temporagiuding the length of time and the extent toeththe fair value has been less than carrying yéheefinancial
condition of the investee, and the intent and ghilf the Company to retain the investment for aqueof time sufficient to allow a recovery in valu

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of amounts billed in exod revenue recognized on sales of software lidatasses, services and equipment. Deferred reseamee
subsequently recorded as revenue in accordancehgitBompany’s revenue recognition policies.

Revenue Recognitien

The Company provides database management and$dwuing services under long-term arrangementss& berangements may require the Company to pedgetup
activities such as the design and build of a damlfar the customer under the database manageomracts and migration of the customer’s IT envinent under IT
outsourcing contracts. In the case of database geament contracts, the customer does not acquirewngrship rights to the Company'’s intellectualgendy used in
the database and the database itself providesmadib® the customer outside of the utilizatiortloé system during the term of the database maregfeamrangement.
In some cases, the arrangements also contain asisequiring customer acceptance of the setupitées prior to commencement of the ongoing sessiarrangemer
Up-front fees billed during the setup phase foséharrangements are deferred and setup costgéhgitect and incremental to the contract are afipétd and amortized
on a straight-line basis over the service ternhefdontract. Revenue recognition does not begihaftér customer acceptance in cases where cdstcaotain
acceptance provisions. Once the setup phase isletgmd customer acceptance occurs, the Compeogmnizes revenue over the remaining service tertheof
contract. In situations where the arrangement doesequire customer acceptance before the Comipegins providing services, revenue is recognizest the contrac
period and no costs are deferred.

The Company accounts for revenue arrangementsmuittiple elements in accordance with Emerging Isstesk Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Elements.” EITF 00-2bpides guidance on (a) how arrangement consideratiould be measured, (b) whether the arrangerhentdsbe
divided into separate units of accounting, anch@y the arrangement consideration should be atédcatnong the separate units of accounting. EITEI8}so requires
disclosure of the accounting policy for recognitafirevenue from multiple-deliverable arrangemeartd the description and nature of such arrangements

The Company accounts for all elements under itstdee management and IT outsourcing arrangemeatsiagle unit, since the initial setup activitpesformed under
the arrangements do not have stand-alone valietdient and the Company is unable to determiaeadlative fair values of the delivered elements e undelivered
elements. Therefore, when third party softwaredWvare and certain other equipment are sold alotty services, the Company records such sales ogeetated
service period. Additionally, the Company evaluatagnue from the sale of data, software, hardaadeequipment in accordance with the provisions|ef Issue 99-
19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal vexsisas an Agent,” to determine whether such revehoeld be recognized on a gross or a net basistoegéerm of
the related service agreement. All of the factorBITF 99-19 are considered with the primary fatt®ing whether the Company is the primary obligathie
arrangement. “Out-of-pocket” expenses incurreddogl reimbursed to, the Company in connection witamer contracts are recorded as gross reveragedandance
with EITF Issue 01-14, “Income Statement Charaz#&ion of Reimbursements Received for ‘Out-of-Péckrpenses Incurred.”
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

The Company evaluates its database management andslourcing arrangements using the criteria iIlFED1-8, “Determining Whether an Arrangement Carga
Lease.” EITF 01-8 requires the Company to determihether an arrangement contains a lease withéméces arrangement and, if so, requires the leasgonent to
be accounted for separately from the remaining @omapts of the arrangement. In cases where dataf@s@gement or IT outsourcing arrangements arendigted to
include a lease, the lease is evaluated to deterwiether it is a capital lease or operating l@askaccounted for accordingly. These lease reveameasot significant t
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

All taxes assessed on revenue-producing transaatiescribed above are presented on a net basiscloded from revenues.

The Company also performs services on a projeds basside of, or in addition to, the scope of ldagn arrangements. The Company recognizes reieomethese
services as the services are performed.

Revenues from the licensing of data are recognipedh delivery of the data to the customer in cirstances where no update or other obligations dX&tenue from
the licensing of data in which the Company is dditiigl to provide future updates on a monthly, qugrte annual basis is recognized on a straigte-basis over the
license term. Revenue from the licensing of dat&éocustomer in circumstances where the licensseagent contains a volume cap is recognized ingotiom to the

total records to be delivered under the arrangement

The Company does not provide end-users with priogeption or rights of return. The Company'’s coctsgprovide a warranty that the services or pradudif meet the
agreed-upon criteria or any necessary modificatwiide made. The Company ensures that servicgsantucts delivered meet the agreed-upon criterta o
recognition of revenue.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consighprily of trade accounts, unbilled and notes nemigle. The
Company’s receivables are from a large number stocners. Accordingly, the Company’s credit riskffected by general economic conditions. The Compan
maintains deposits in federally insured finanamtitutions in excess of federally insured limkanagement, however, believes the Company is nmised to
significant credit risk due to the financial positiof the depository institutions in which thos@adsits are held.

Income Taxes

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries filerssolidated federal income tax return. The Compaforsign subsidiaries file separate income taxrretun the
countries in which their operations are based.

The Company provides for deferred taxes undershetand liability method. Deferred tax assetsliatidlities are recognized for the future tax cansences
attributable to differences between the finandialesnent carrying amounts of existing assets atudities and their respective tax bases. Defefagdssets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax ratpec®d to apply to taxable income in the yearshitivthose temporary differences are expected tevwersed.
Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce defdee assets to an amount whose realization is tik@lg than not. In determining the recognitionwfcertain tax
positions, the Company applies a more-likely-thahrecognition threshold and determines the measeméof uncertain tax positions considering the amtsand
probabilities of the outcomes that could be redligpon ultimate settlement with taxing authoritiéeome taxes payable are classified in the accagipg consolidate
balance sheets based on their estimated payment dat

The Company adopted Financial Accounting StandBodsd Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Un@enty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB. M09",
effective April 1, 2007. See note 13 for additioimdbrmation related to this new standard.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Foreign Currency Translation

The balance sheets of the Company’s foreign sudb#di are translated at period-end rates of exehargl the statements of earnings are translatbe ateighted-
average exchange rate for the period. Gains oe$assulting from translating foreign currency fiogl statements are included in accumulated abeprehensive
income (loss) in the consolidated statements aksimlders’ equity and comprehensive income.

Advertising Expense

The Company expenses advertising costs as incukokebrtising expense was approximately $10.1 milli$9.2 million and $6.7 million for the years edddarch 31,
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Advertising espds included in selling, general and administeaéxpense on the accompanying consolidated séatisnof
operations.

Guarantees

The Company accounts for the guarantees of indebgsdof others under the provisions of FASB Intgggion No. 45 (“FIN 45”) “Guarantor’s Accountingé
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Includityéct Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others natarmpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, andd@y
Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.” Undeg ghrovisions of FIN 45, a guarantor is requiredettognize, at the inception of the guarantee Jilitiafor the fair
value of the obligation undertaken in issuing thargntee. A guarantor is also required to maketiaddi disclosures in its financial statements dlufligations under
certain guarantees issued. FIN 45 requires the @oynio recognize a liability in its consolidatedéfcial statements equal to the fair value ofusrgntees, including
any guarantees issued in connection with its syictequipment arrangements. However, the provist#dN 45 are applied only on a prospective basiguarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The @ow's liability for the fair value of guaranteasniot material.

Loss Contingencies and Legal Expenses

The Company records a liability for loss contingesavhen the liability is probable and reasonaklyneable. Legal fees associated with loss conticigsrare recorded
when the legal fees are incurred.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Earnings (Loss) per Share-

A reconciliation of the numerator and denominatobasic and diluted earnings per share is showovbéh thousands, except per share amounts):

2007 2006
2008 (Restated (Restated
Basic earnings (loss) per she
Numerator- net earnings (loss $ (7,780 $ 67,87 $ 61,77!
Denominato weightec-average shares outstand 79,123 82,564 87,557
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ (010 $ 08. $ 0.7:
Diluted earnings (loss) per sha
Numerator- net earnings (los $ (7,780 $ 67,87. $ 61,77!
Denominator
Weightet-average shares outstand 79,123 82,564 87,557
Dilutive effect of common stock options, warrants,
and restrictive stock as computed under the
treasury stock methc - 2,115 2,732
79,123 84,679 90,289
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ (010 $ 08 $ 0.6¢

Due to the net loss incurred by the Company, tfexebf options, warrants and restricted stock.afrhillion shares was excluded from the earningsshare calculatio
for fiscal 2008 since the impact on the calculatias anti-dilutive. In addition options, warrantslaestricted stock units to purchase shares ofreamstock that were
outstanding during the periods presented, but weténcluded in the computation of diluted earnipgs share because the effect was anti-dilutiveslaogvn below (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

2008 2007 2006
Number of shares outstanding under options, wesramd
restricted stock unit 7,903 3,590 6,970
Range of exercise prices for options and warr $13.2-$268.55 $24.2:-$268.55 $22.10- $268.5¢

ShareBased Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued a revised Statieofié-inancial Accounting Standards No. 123, “®iBased Payment” (“SFAS 123R"). SFAS 123R as oaifyn
issued required adoption by the Company in thersiqoarter of fiscal 2006. Subsequent to issuahtieecstatement, the effective date was delayedithetbeginning
of the next fiscal year, which began April 1, 2008e Company adopted SFAS 123R, effective Aprd@)6, using the modified prospective transitionhmodtand
therefore has not restated results for prior peritthder the modified prospective method, compé@nsabst must be recognized for all share-basedpays granted
after the adoption of SFAS 123R and for all awapdsted prior to the adoption date which remainested on the adoption date. Substantially all @f@ompany’s
existing options were vested prior to adoption BAS 123R.

SFAS 123R requires the cost of employee serviaesved in exchange for an award of equity instrusiéincluding stock options) based on the granedait value of
the award to be recognized in the statement ofregsrover the service period of the award. Priokpoil 1, 2006 the Company accounted for its stopkons under the
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion.\e5 and related interpretations, under whicherapensation cost had been historically recognizeith®
Company for any of its stock options except fotaerin-the-money stock options issued as a redutte DI acquisition. SFAS 123R supersedes OpiiNon25 and
eliminates the use of the intrinsic value methaal/fmusly used by the Company.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Sharebased Compensation Plans

The Company has stock option plans and equity casgi®n plans (collectively referred to as the fsHaased plans”) administered by the compensatomdttee of
the board of directors under which options andicetset stock units were outstanding as of March28D8.

The Company’s 2005 Equity Compensation Plan previtlat all associates (employees, officers, dirscaffiliates, independent contractors or consisfpare eligible
to receive awards (grant of any option, stock agipt®n right, restricted stock award, restrictemtk unit award, performance award, performanceesheerformance
unit, qualified performance-based award, or ottaelsunit award) pursuant to the plan with the teand conditions applicable to an award set fortipiplicable grant
documents. In the future, the Company expectsdntgestricted stock awards, stock options ancpednce-based awards.

Incentive stock option awards granted pursuarttiecsshare-based plans cannot be granted with acigx@rice less than 100% of the per-share maeiae\of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant and havexarm duration of ten years from the date of gr&atard policy currently requires that nonqualifegations be
priced at or above the fair market value of the wmm stock at the time of grant with a maximum dorabf ten years.

Restricted stock units may be issued pursuanet@@95 Equity Compensation Plan and representgheto receive shares in the future by way of waral agreement
which includes vesting provisions. Award agreemeats further provide for forfeitures triggered tartain prohibited activities, such as breach officemtiality. All
restricted stock units will be expensed over theting period as adjusted for estimated forfeitures.

The Company receives income tax deductions asudt mfthe exercise of stock options and the vestifirestricted stock units. Under the provisiohSBAS 123R, the
tax benefit of share-based compensation expersecess of the book compensation expense is redlesta financing cash inflow and operating casfiautncluded
in changes in operating assets and liabilities. Thmpany has elected the short-cut method in atitmufor the tax benefits of share-based paymertrdsv

Prior to April 2006, the Company accounted foisiisck options under the intrinsic value provisioh&\PB 25. Had compensation cost for options gréiteen
determined on the basis of the fair value of tharaw at the date of grant, consistent with the ouitogy prescribed by SFAS 123 prior to its rewisithe Company’s
consolidated net earnings would have been reductgtfollowing unaudited pro forma amounts for year ended March 31, 2006 (in thousands, exceptzee
amounts):

2006
(Restated
Net earnings, as report $ 61,77!
Plus: stock-based employee compensation expenseléacin
determination of net income, net of income tax fie 814
Less: stock-based employee compensation expense iaidvalue based
method, net of income tax bene (2,650)
Pro forma net earning $ 59,93¢
Earnings per shar
Basic- as reportes $ 0.7
Basic- pro forma $ 0.6¢
Diluted - as reportet $ 0.6¢
Diluted - pro forma $ 0.6t
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contired):

Restructuring

The Company records costs associated with empkeyesenations and other exit activity in accordamdgth SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associateith Exit
or Disposal Activities,” (“SFAS No. 146"), SEC St#ccounting Bulletin No. 100, “Restructuring amdpairment Charges,” (“SAB 100"), and SFAS No. 112,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefias, Amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and 43FAS 112”) as applicable. Under SFAS No. 146, the
Company records employee termination benefits agpamating expense when the benefit arrangemeoinisnunicated to the employee and no significantréut
services are required. Under SFAS 112, the Compesords employee termination benefits when theitextion benefits are probable and can be estimatesl.
Company recognizes the present value of faciligéetermination obligations, net of estimated saag@éncome and other exit costs, when the Compasijuture
payments with no future economic benefit or a commant to pay the termination costs of a prior cotmrent. In future periods the Company will recordration
expense to increase the liability to an amount kefguike estimated future cash payments necessayittthe leases. This requires a significant amhoéijudgment and
management estimation in order to determine theerp time frame it will take to secure a subtenidet amount of sublease income to be receivedrandppropriate
discount rate to calculate the present value ofuthee cash flows. Should actual lease exit cdter from estimates, the Company may be requiicegldjust the
restructuring charge which would impact net incamthe period any adjustment was recorded.

2. RESTRUCTURING, IMPAIRMENT AND OTHER CHARGE¢

The Company records costs associated with empleysenations and other exit activity in accordandn SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associateith Exit
or Disposal Activities,” (“SFAS 146"), SEC Staff Aounting Bulletin No. 100, “Restructuring and Impaént Charges,” (“SAB. 100”), and SFAS No. 112 “Hayers’
Accounting for Postemployment Benefits, an AmendneéfrASB Statements No. 5 and 43,” (“SFAS 112"ppglicable. The following table summarizes the
restructuring activity for the years ended March3106, 2007 and 2008 (dollars in thousands):

Associat-relatec Ongoing
reserves contract cost Other accrual Total
Fiscal year 2006 restructuril
plan amoun 6,800 3,687 2,478 12,965
Paymentt (5,593) (1,944) (2,219) (9,756)
March 31, 200t $ 1,200 $ 1,740 $ 25¢ 3 3,20¢
Fiscal year 2007 restructuring
plan amoun 2,500 - - 2,500
Payment: (1,414) (232) (115) (1,761)
March 31, 200° $ 229 % 151 $ 14.  $ 3,94¢
Fiscal year 2008 restructurii
plan amoun 17,850 26,509 570 44,929
Adjustments 157 (749) (112) (704)
Payment: (6,652) (391) (245) (7,288)
March 31, 200¢ $ 13,64 3 26,880 $ 35 % 40,88

The above balances are included in accrued expengie consolidated balance sheet.

Restructuring Plans

In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a total of. $78illion in restructuring charges and adjustmémttuded in gains, losses and other items in tresglidated
statement of operations. The expense includesaesernd other associate-related payments of $1ili@n, lease accruals of $19.0 million, contractruals of $6.7
million, asset disposal and write-offs of $29.6lioil, and other related costs of $0.5 million.
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2. RESTRUCTURING, IMPAIRMENT AND OTHER CHARGES (contied):

The associate-related payments of $19.3 millioatesio approximately 592 associates in the UnitateS and Europe who either have been terminatatedo be
terminated. These accruals were evaluated undeB3AR which governs employers’ accounting for posployment benefits. The Company provides bengfits
terminated employees under a substantive plan wirioides benefits to the terminated associatesdas their years of service to the Company. Tte &dso include
amounts calculated under SFAS 146 paid to pershosretired in conjunction with the workforce redoatand to persons who had employment contracts thvé
Company which determined how much they were toaie ppon termination. Of the $19.3 million accrugti3.0 million remained accrued as of March 31,820hese
costs are expected to be paid out in fiscal 2009.

The lease accruals of $19.0 million were evaluateter SFAS 146, which governs exit costs. SFASréd@ires the Company to make an accrual for thditiafor
lease costs that will continue to be incurred witheconomic benefit to the Company upon the datettie Company ceases using the leased propertyr Before
March 31, 2008, the Company ceased using certagetkoffice facilities. The Company intends torafieto sublease those facilities to the extentiptessunder SFAS
146, the Company has established a liability ferfdir value of the remaining lease payments, giyrtoffset by the estimated sublease paymente teteived over the
course of those leases. The fair value of thebditias is based on a net present value modelusiaredit-adjusted risk-free rate. These liak#itill be paid out over
the remainder of the leased properties’ terms,fo€lwthe longest continues through November 202tu#l sublease terms may differ from the estimat&gnally
made by the Company. Any future changes in theneséis or in the actual sublease income could reduiure adjustments to the liability for theseskes which would
impact net income in the period the adjustmentéerded.

The contract accruals of $6.7 million were evaldatader SFAS 146 which requires that a liabilitgydominate a contract before the end of its termelbbegnized when
the contract is terminated in accordance witheites. Prior to March 31, 2008, the Company gavie@einder certain service contracts to the othergsawhich caused
the Company to incur termination payments undesetemntracts. The amount accrued represents iheaégsd termination payments, which are expectdubtpaid
during fiscal 2009.

The asset disposal and write-offs of $29.6 millieclude $7.6 million to write off goodwill and $1r8illion to write off other intangible assets redtto the Harbinger
acquisition (see note 3). In the fourth quartefisafal 2008, the Company completely shut down therations of Harbinger because this acquisitionri@gerformed in
accordance with the Company’s expectations siscacguisition March 15, 2007. Because this businassnever integrated into the Company’s operatitresentire
amount of goodwill related to the acquisition wastten off upon the closing of the Harbinger openas. The other intangible assets were testedripairment under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. $dce the intangible assets do not generate asty ftow, they were determined to be fully impaired

The asset disposal writsfs also include a $10.2 million loss on dispasfad software asset which was sold during the foguarter of fiscal 2008. The Company hax
over-capacity of software licenses relating to d@ipalar software agreement. The supplier of thiénsare agreed to purchase the excess softwareskceapacity from
the Company in return for providing software mairgece to the Company for other software. The lepsesents the excess of the carrying value ofdfteare over th
fair value of the software maintenance received.

Other asset disposal write-offs included $3.8 wmillof assets, primarily furniture and leaseholdrisnpments that were abandoned and written offrasut of exiting
leased buildings and contracts referred to abawt $&.1 million in write-offs related primarily ttbandoned software products. All of these assets aaluated under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, #ch requires the Company to test assets foaimment whenever events or changes in circumstandesate
that the asset may be impaired. In each of thesescthere was a triggering event during the fogutrter of fiscal 2008 which required the Comptntest the asset f
impairment. In order to test the asset for impairtnthe Company estimated future cash flows forabeet, and if the future cash flows were not endagecover the
carrying value of the asset, the asset was writtevn to its estimated fair value. In most of theases, the fair value was zero and the asset waglely written off.

The other related costs of $0.5 million are prifyamoving costs associated with the closing ofléesed facilities referred to above.
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2. RESTRUCTURING, IMPAIRMENT AND OTHER CHARGES (contied):

In March 2007, the Company recorded a total of $albon in restructuring charges included in gailtsses and other items in the consolidated sttenf operations.
The charges included $1.5 million in severanceathdr associate-related reserves for payments modole to approximately 105 associates who weréembth March
2007 that they were to be involuntarily terminaged $0.3 million in fees paid to terminate contnaotkers. Separately, the Company recorded $0.Iftomflor contract
termination fees to a former senior executive. Atréh 31, 2007, the total accrued costs were $ll®miwhich had all been paid by March 31, 2008.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2005, tinep@ny recorded a total of $13.0 million in restwictg and other impairment charges included in gdimsses and
other items in the consolidated statement of ojmerat The charges included $6.8 million in seveeasued other associate-related reserves for payr@ehtsmade to
approximately 160

associates who were notified during the quarterttiey were to be involuntarily terminated; $3.liom in lease termination costs or costs to beiired after exiting
certain leased facilities; and $2.5 million in atkests including the write-off of certain non-puntive assets and other contract termination c@sis.table above
includes the portion of the above charges whictyateéo be paid as of March 31, 2008. The remaiatued costs of $1.1 million are expected todid put over the
terms of the related leases or contracts, of wtiieHongest one continues through fiscal 2012.

Terminated Acquisition of the Company

On May 16, 2007, the Company announced it had eshiaeto an agreement to be acquired by Silver laaddeValueAct Capital, at a price of $27.10 per slws the
assumption of outstanding debt. On October 1, 20@/Company announced that this transaction had teeminated. For fiscal 2008, the Company incltrensactio
related expenses of $17.7 million which are inctlolegains, losses and other items. Per the tefrtteanerger termination agreement, which was sigbetober 1,
2007, Silver Lake and ValueAct were required to tieeyCompany a settlement fee of $65 million. Hettlement fee was received on October 10, 2007eutded in
gains, losses and other items in fiscal 2008.

Leased Asset Disposal

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Compatsred into an agreement to dispose of a leasedfirUnder the terms of the lease, the Compars/required to
make a termination payment to the lessor and Ssotesold the asset and paid the proceeds to tmp&ty. The Company has recorded $2.5 million expéngains,
losses and other items, for the net payment toitester the lease and dispose of the asset.

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Compatsred into an agreement to dispose of anotheedeaiscraft. Under the terms of the lease, the Gowyjis
required to make a termination payment to the lessd the lessor will sell the aircraft and pay pheceeds to the Company. The Company has rec®i8dnillion
expense in gains, losses and other items, foreghpayment to terminate the lease and disposeecigbet.

During fiscal 2006 the Company disposed of anoleesed aircraft. Under the terms of the leaseCthrapany was entitled to the proceeds of the seds,the
termination value of the lease. The Company recbed®1.5 million gain in gains, losses and othamn for the net proceeds received.

Retirement Payment

In November 2007, the Company entered into a tiansagreement with its Chief Executive Officer endvhich he retired, and agreed to continue toeservan interir
basis until the selection of a successor by thedbdinder the agreement, the Company paid $3.0omilSubsequent to the selection of a successaCdmpany will
also pay the retiring officer $0.5 million per ydar consulting services for approximately threange The successor officer was hired, effectivertaly 4, 2008. The
Company has accrued the present value of the reamggiayments under this contract as of March 3082fecause management does not intend to userbeltiog
services after March 31, 2008. The expense foratpieement is included in the associate-relatediatscof $19.3 million referred to above.
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2. RESTRUCTURING, IMPAIRMENT AND OTHER CHARGES (contied):

Gains, Losses and Other ltems

Gains, losses and other items for each of the ywasented are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Terminated merger expen $ 17,68 $ - $ -
Merger termination fe (65,000) - -
Retirement paymet 3,000 - -
Gain on disposition of operations in France (ngt (3,157) - -
Spain operation closu (1,622) 6,622 -
Loss on divestiture - - 1,326
Leased airplane disposi 6,445 - (1,548)
Gain on sale of buildin - - (2,787)
Legal contingency (note 1. 4,000 - -
Restructuring plan charges and adjustm 75,147 2,500 12,965
Other (150) (225) (452)

$ 36,35: $ 889 $ 9,50«

Impairment

The Company reviews the recoverability of its calpied costs whenever events or changes in ciramoss indicate that the carrying amount of an asagtnot be
recoverable. The test of recoverability is perfodrbg comparing the carrying value of the assetstamdiscounted expected future cash flows. If segrew indicates
that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds theo§its expected future cash flows, the asset’s/oay amount is written down to its estimated feaatue. Fair value is
determined by an internally developed discountejepted cash flow analysis of the asset. Due #nagotiation of contracts with three different outsing customers
during fiscal 2008 the Company performed a tespfiiential impairment of the related capitalizedtsoThe Company determined that the future cas¥sftelating to
these renegotiated outsourcing contracts wouldbatufficient to recover the costs that were clpéd. Based on these analyses, the Company retendi-downs
relating to the capitalized costs of these constaktie combined $43.6 million charge is recordecbist of operations in the accompanying condensedatidated
statement of operations and in the Corporate segimesegment disclosures. The assets written daalnded $46.0 million in deferred costs, $0.1 miilin property
and equipment, $2.5 million in other assets andcanual of $4.0 million, offset by $8.9 million deferred revenue.

3. ACQUISITIONS:

On November 9, 2007, the Company entered into eeeagent with Automatic Research, Inc., to purclwastain assets collectively known as MKTG. MKT®ig of
five operating subsidiaries of Automatic Research MKTG is a traditional direct marketing operatithat provides its customers with data procesdisigsales and lis
management services. The acquisition extends pffetio markets with favorable growth that werepretiously serviced by the Company. The Compang $ai7
million for MKTG. There are no earnout agreementstber contingencies related to this acquisitiime operations of MKTG are included in the consaikdi results
beginning November 9, 2007. The annual revenu®8kfG are approximately $7.4 million. Due to the imtariality to the consolidated results, no pro farm
disclosures have been included.

On August 28, 2007, the Company acquired EchoTahget an on-line behavioral targeting and ad-isgreompany based in New York. The Company pai& $1.
million net of cash acquired and executed a proonyssote in the amount of $0.3 million which wasdolarch 31, 2008. The operations of EchoTargeirieided in
the consolidated results beginning September 17.20@ annual revenues of EchoTarget are lessibanmillion. Due to the immateriality to the cofidated results,
no pro forma disclosures have been included.
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3. ACQUISITIONS (continued)

On March 27, 2007, the Company acquired Kefta, (fikefta”), a leader in real-time, dynamic persamafion solutions for the Internet that was base8an Francisco,
California. The acquisition bolsters the Comparabdity to integrate one-to-one personalized comications across digital channels. The Company $aiél million,
net of cash acquired, for Kefta not including amtsuii any, payable pursuant to the terms and ¢mmdi of two deferred payment agreements. Theifiratdeferred
cash compensation agreement that requires the Ggntpgay up to $1.5 million if three of Kefta'sykemployees are retained by the Company for eighsecutive
quarters following the acquisition. The secondnarnout agreement that allows for payment obupilt5 million if the acquired business achievetaie revenue
goals. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 @@mpany paid $0.8 million under the earnout agegnwhich has been treated as additional purghése. The
Company has also amended the deferred compensatargement to require payment of an additionad $fllion through June 30, 2008. Payments undeptiggnal
deferred compensation arrangement are treate@lpades purchase price (57%) and partially as carsption expense (43%). Payments under the amerdiedet!
compensation agreement are all treated as compamsapense. The Company has omitted pro formdadisres related to this acquisition as the pro foefiect of thi:
acquisition is not material to the Company’s coitded results for any period presented. Keftassilte of operations are included in the Compamgnsolidated resul
beginning April 1, 2007. Kefta’s total annual reueris approximately $2.7 million.

On March 15, 2007, the Company purchased HarbiAgsociates, LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary lviiager Technologies, Inc. (“Harbinger”) from ICx
Technologies, Inc. The Company paid $9.5 milliorash, net of cash acquired, and executed a proryisste for another $1.3 million to acquire Haden, $1.0
million of which was paid as of March 31, 2008. Teenaining $0.3 million will be paid by March 19@. The Company has omitted pro forma discloseleted to
this acquisition as the pro forma effect of thigasition is not material to the Company’s consatét! results for any of the periods presented. iHgel's results of
operations are included in the Company’s consa@dlatsults beginning March 15, 2007. During therignanded March 31, 2008, the Company shut down th
operations of Harbinger and recorded charges & $lion in gains, losses and other items forwhie-off of goodwill and other intangible assetfie Company also
accrued $1.1 million of exit costs, primarily leas®ruals discussed in note 2.

On December 29, 2006, the Company completed thaésitign of certain assets of the Equitec divisaddiHenry Group, Ltd. (“Equitec”), a consulting aadalytics
company headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio. The Cagnpaid approximately $14.7 million in cash for Eqa, and issued shares of the Company’s comma stih
an approximate value of $3.6 million. The Compaag bmitted pro forma disclosure related to thisugition as the pro forma effect of this acquisitis not material t
the Company’s consolidated results for any of t#eqals presented. The $18.3 million purchase yragd for Equitec does not include amounts, if grayable pursuant
to the terms and conditions of an earnout agreebes#d on Equitec’s achievement of certain opeyatirgets over the period ending March 31, 2009itEg's results
of operations are included in the Company’s codstdid results beginning January 1, 2007. Equitau'sial revenue for the year prior to the acquisitias
approximately $11.3 million. The Company has acgriireough costs of operations $1.5 million payalsider the earnout agreement for 2008. The totahirgng
potentially payable for fiscal 2009 is $5.0 million

In August 2005, the Company completed the acqaisivif InsightAmerica, Inc. (“IA”), a privately helcompany based in Broomfield, Colorado. IA spez&siin fraud
prevention and risk mitigation services. The Conypeaid approximately $34.6 million in cash for Idet of cash acquired, which does not include paysn@ade unde
an earnout agreement. The Company paid an addi@vamillion during fiscal 2006 relating to tharaout agreement and made a final earnout payni&it @ million
in fiscal 2008. IA’s results of operations are udgd in the Company’s consolidated results beggAimgust 1, 2005. |1A’s total annual revenues fairtifiscal year
ended December 31, 2004 were approximately $18milThe Company has omitted pro forma discloselaed to this acquisition as the pro forma efééahis
acquisition is not material to the Company’s coitsdéd results for any of the periods presented.

In May 2005, the Company completed the acquisidbBDigital Impact, Inc. (“DI”). DI is a provider ointegrated digital marketing solutions and is losise-oster City,
California. Management believes DI provides the @any with new capabilities that are complementarthe Company previous service offerings. The Company
approximately $106.8 million in cash for DI, netazfsh acquired. DI's results of operations areuihet! in the Company’s consolidated results beginMay 1, 2005.
DI's total annual revenues were approximately $4lban at the date of purchase. The Company hagtechpro forma disclosure related to this acquisitis the pro
forma effect of this acquisition is not materialthe Company’s consolidated results for any oftbeods presented.
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3. ACQUISITIONS (continued)

In fiscal 2004, the Company completed the acqoisitf the Claritas Europe group of companies f@raximately $38.0 million, net of cash acquiredeTgurchase
price was finalized in an October 2007 agreemettden the parties which finalized all componentthefpurchase price calculation. The agreementteesin a $0.4
million payment from the Company to VNU (the forntevner). The settlement was $2.0 million less tthenamount the Company had previously accrued,iwhis

adjusted to goodwill in fiscal 2008.

The following table shows the allocation of MKTGsHBTarget, Kefta, Harbinger, Equitec, IA and DIghase prices to assets acquired and liabilitiasnasg (dollars
in thousands):

MKTG  EchoTarge Kefta Harbinger  Equitec IA DI
Assets acquirec
Cash $ - $ 13 % 75 $ 74 % - % 541 $ 27,025
Goodwill 2,318 2,089 8,444 7,652 14,100 30,085 101,127
Other intangible asse 800 - 2,870 2,375 4,100 7,000 20,800
Other current and noncurre
asset: 1,228 87 447 1,308 79 6,716 14,390
4,346 2,189 11,836 11,409 18,279 44,342 163,342

Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and capital lea

assumel 689 32 1,323 559 - 5,850 17,236
Net assets acquire 3,657 2,157 10,513 10,850 18,279 38,492 146,106
Less:

Cash acquire - 13 75 74 - 541 27,025
Common stock issue - - - - 3,610 - -
Promissory not - - 300 - - -
Accrued liabilities - - 395 - - - -
Issuance of vested stock

options - - - - - - 7,541

Payments to be made for
restricted stocl - - - - - - 4,768
Net cash pai $ 3657 $ 2,144 $ 10,043 $ 10476 $ 14,669 $ 37,951 $106,772
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3. ACQUISITIONS (continued):

The amounts allocated to other intangible assetseinable above include software, customer relahigp intangibles, and databases. Amortizatiorslfee those
intangibles range from two years to seven years.fdthowing table shows the amortization activifitleese intangible assets (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006
Database assets, grt $ 10,04C $ 10,04C $ 10,04C
Accumulated amortizatio (9,751) (8,790) (5,910)
Net database asst $ 289 $ 1,250 $ 4,130
Developed technology assets, gr $ 18,100 $ 14,700 $ 14,700
Accumulated amortizatio (8,996) (5,423) (2,532)
Net developed technology ass $ 9,104 $ 9,277 $ 12,168
Customer/trademark assets, gr $ 24,595 $ 22,813 $ 17,652
Accumulated amortization
(12,600) (7,066) (3,803)
Net customer/trademark ass $ 11,995 $ 15,747 $ 13,849
Total intangible assets, grc $ 52,735 $ 47,553 $ 42,392
Total accumulated amortizatit (31,347) (21,278) (12,245)
Net intangible asse $ 21,388 $ 26,275 $ 30,147
Amortization expens $ 10,068 $ 9,033 $ 8.24C

The following table shows a projection of amortiaatexpense associated with the above assetsdaretkt five years (dollars in thousands):

Projectec
amortization

Year ending March 3: expense
2009 $ 7,183
2010 6,450
2011 3,948
2012 3,194
2013 613

None of the amounts allocated to goodwill or othéangible assets for the EchoTarget, Kefta, HagbinlA or DI acquisitions are deductible for taxjposes. Th
amounts allocated to intangible assets and goolwithe MKTG and Equitec acquisitions are expec¢tede deductible. The allocation of purchase pidgcehe MKTG
acquisition is subject to adjustment as the Compaales the final determination of the fair valussigned to acquired assets and liabilities.
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3. ACQUISITIONS (continued):

As a result of the DI, Claritas Europe and Consadatuisitions, management has formulated plaosrtsolidate certain facilities, eliminate duplisatoperations, and
terminate or relocate certain associates. The Coyncorded aggregate accruals in other accrukdities of $15.4 million as of the purchase daté¢he Claritas
Europe and Consodata acquisitions (acquired ialfi3@04) for the estimated costs of the integragimcess, including lease termination costs, aofstsrminating or
relocating associates, and for other contract teatiuin costs. The table below shows adjustmerasdopayments of these accruals during the yeaedeMdrch 31,
2008 and 2007. Any future adjustments to thesespiaany result in future expense or in decreasdsetgoodwill recorded for the acquisitions. The retimg reserves
are expected to be paid in the next fiscal year.

Other contract

(dollars in thousands) Associat-relatec Lease and relate termination
reserves reserves reserve Total
Balance at March 31, 20( $ 1,16. $ 487 % 1,28 $ 7,32
Adjustments (115) (116) - (231)
Payment: (836) (3,803) (199) (4,838)
Change in foreign currency translation
adjustmen 43 259 121 423
Balance at March 31, 20( $ 25. $ 1,21¢  $ 1,200 $ 2,67
Adjustments (53) 8 (2,017) (1,062)
Payment: (14) (880) (241) (1,135)
Change in foreign currency translation
adjustmen 38 134 67 239
Balance at March 31, 20( $ 22 $ 48. $ L $ 71
4, DIVESTITURES:

On December 7, 2007, the Company entered into ereagnt with Pitney Bowes Software to sell the Canyfs GIS operations in France. The Company redeive
$14.2 million for the sale and recorded a gairhmdtatement of operations of $3.2 million. Thengaas net of $6.7 million in goodwill which wasadhted to the
disposed operations from the goodwill of the Infation Products segment based on the relative &urevof the disposed operations to the internatiooaponent of
the Information Products segment. Also, includethangain calculation was a $1.3 million accrualdgit activities. At March 31, 2008, $1.1 millisamained accrued
in other accrued liabilities. The ultimate gaintbe disposal is subject to adjustment once thégsacbmplete an agreement as to the final workapital. The gain
recorded is net of an estimated $0.9 million adjigsit to the final working capital. The final agremthon working capital is expected to occur infttet quarter of
fiscal 2009. The annual revenue associated witlGiiseoperations was approximately $14 million.

In fiscal 2007, the Company announced plans to dbwh its operations in Spain. Upon the completibthis closure, the Company recorded $6.6 milbbexit costs
including $0.7 million in severance costs, $3.9iomilin accruals for contingent liabilities relatemlgovernmental data protection claims pendin§pain, and $2.0
million in asset write offs and other accruals. ingrthe fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the Compeewersed $2.4 million of the accrual related togheernmental data
protection claims, because most of those claime baen settled for less than the Company origiratyued. This reversal has been partially offges®8 million in
expense due to currency translation expenses,ret eredit recorded in gains, losses and othersitier fiscal 2008 of $1.6 million. Related to tBpain closure, $1.0
million remains accrued at the end of fiscal 2008efstimated data protection claims.

In fiscal 2006 the Company sold a subsidiary iniSglzat had no remaining operations but had avigltdx loss carryforwards which could be used leytthyer. The
sale generated proceeds of $1.2 million and agraidisposal included in gains, losses and othersitef $0.8 million.

In fiscal 2006, the Company sold its real propeéidsa compilation business and associated assetstffproceeds of $0.3 million. The loss on the s&als $1.9 million.
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4. DIVESTITURES (continued)

Effective July 1, 2005 the Company sold its letiepsoperations in Melville, New York. In connectiaith the sale, the Company received a note reb&va the
amount of $0.9 million and recorded a net losshensale of $0.3 million.

The Company sold an unused facility in fiscal 2@@6cash proceeds of $3.6 million and recordedia ga$2.8 million.

The following table shows the balances that wecewsst for the Spain closure as well as the chaimgi®se balances during the years ended MarcB(I, and 2008
(dollars in thousands):

Associaterelatec Ongoing
reserves contract cost Other accrual Total

Fiscal 2007 charge $ 65t $ 110 3% 4,78 % 5,55¢
Payment: (378) (20) (200) (598)
March 31, 200° $ 27t $ 92 % 458¢ $ 4,96(
Adjustments (5) - (2,304) (2,309)
Payment: (292) (95) (1,971) (2,358)

Change in foreign currency translation
adjustmen 19 2 651 672
March 31, 200 $ - % - % % $ 96!

5. OTHER CURRENT AND NONCURRENT ASSET:

Other current assets consist of the following @hsliin thousands):

March 31, March 31,
2008 2007
Current portion of unbilled and notes receive $ 4,14; $ 10,90
Prepaid expens¢ 21,682 23,736
Non-trade receivable 4,446 7,432
Assets of SNQDC retirement plan (note 15,272 17,021
Other miscellaneous ass 103 159
Other current asse $ 45,645 $ 59,252
Other noncurrent assets consist of the followirgjléds in thousands):
March 31, March 31,
2008 2007
Investments in marketable and nonmarketable sexs $ 1,52t $ 4,29¢
Acquired intangible assets, r 11,995 15,747
Other miscellaneous noncurrent as: 3,223 3,205
Noncurrent portion of unbilled and notes receive 5,877 16,742
Noncurrent asse’ $ 22,62, % 39,99:

During fiscal 2004, the Company made an investroé#6.0 million in Battleaxe, LLC, a limited liality company formed for the purpose of owning andchaging real
property in lllinois. Under the terms of the opergtagreement, which was amended in April 2006 Gbmpany’s ownership investment in this entity Wi returned
through cash payments, including interest at 5%istral 2008, the value of this investment was ieiiged to be impaired and its balance of $2.7 omillivas written off
to other, net in the consolidated statement of atpmrs.

During fiscal 2007 and 2006 the Company disposearmimber of investments, recording aggregate iecanother, net of $1.6 million in 2007 and $1. liom in
2006.
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5. OTHER CURRENT AND NONCURRENT ASSETS (continued):

Unbilled and notes receivable are from the salesfifvare, data licenses, and equipment and frensale of divested operations, net of the currertigns of such
receivables.

With respect to certain of its investments in joiahtures and other companies, the Company maydereash advances to fund losses and cash flowitdefThe
Company may, at its discretion, decide not to gtevinancing to these investments during futuréopst In the event that it does not provide funding these
investments have not achieved profitable operatitresCompany may be required to record an impaitrolearge up to the amount of the carrying valughe$e
investments ($1.5 million at March 31, 2008).

6. GOODWILL:

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs the fair values of net assets acquired imless combinations. Goodwill is reviewed at leastually for
impairment under a two-part test. Impairment existthe extent that the reporting usitecorded goodwill exceeds the residual fair vaksgned to such goodwill. A
impairment that results from the completion of thve-part test is recorded as a charge to operatlarieg the period in which the impairment testasnpleted.
Completion of the Company’s most recent impairmest during the quarter ended March 31, 2008 iteécao potential impairment of its goodwill balasce

The carrying amount of goodwill, by business segirfen the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 an® 280d the changes in those balances are preserites
following table.

(dollars in thousands) Information Information Infrastructure
Services Products Managemen Total

Balance at March 31, 20( $ 292,14. % 136,22¢ $ 44,03 $ 472,40:
Purchase adjustmer 8,906 2,332 - 11,238
Equitec acquisitiol 12,973 - - 12,973
Kefta acquisitior 9,807 - - 9,807
Harbinger acquisitiol - 9,985 - 9,985
Purchase of minority intere - 260 - 260
Reversal of acquired deferred tax valuation

allowance (3,391) (2,138) - (5,529)
Change in foreign currency translation

adjustmen 3,273 7,638 - 10,911
Balance at March 31, 20( $ 323,70¢ % 154,30¢ $ 44,03 $ 522,04¢
EchoTarget acquisitio 2,089 - - 2,089
MKTG acquisition 2,318 - - 2,318
Sale of operations in Fran (6,652) - - (6,652)
Harbinger purchase adjustme - (2,333) - (2,333)
Shu-down of Harbinge - (7,652) - (7,652)
Deferred consideration and other fi 1,243 1,000 - 2,243
Reversal of acquired deferred tax valuation

allowance (33,863) (5,117) (38,980)
Purchase adjustmer (1,771) (2,004) - (3,775)
Change in foreign currency translation

adjustmen 4,648 10,844 - 15,492
Balance at March 31, 20( $ 291,72: $ 149,04« $ 44,03 $ 484,79¢
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7. SOFTWARE AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS:

The Company recorded amortization expense relateddrnally developed computer software of $19ifion for fiscal 2008, $19.1 million for fiscal ZI and $27.0
million for fiscal 2006 and amortization of purclkdssoftware licenses of $35.9 million, $45.0 miiliand $43.6 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respelst
Additionally, research and development costs of &18illion, $19.1 million and $15.6 million were &tyed to cost of revenue during 2008, 2007 and ,2@8pectively
Amortization expense related to both internallyeleped and purchased software is included in dasivenue in the accompanying consolidated statesran
operations.

On December 29, 2005, the Company entered intdiritiles Asset Purchase and License Agreement‘@ggeement”) with EMC Corporation (“EMC”"). The
Agreement provided, among other things, for thelpase by EMC of the Company’s information grid epieg system software (the “Base Technology”) andlie
grant of a perpetual license from EMC to the Conypafrthe Base Technology and further developmemtghiie Company’s continued use in connection wgh i
business. The Company also licensed other ancii@aged technology to EMC.

Under the terms of the Agreement, the parties wibtkgether to further develop the Base Technol&¥C paid the Company $20 million in fiscal year 8Gihd $10
million in fiscal 2007. The Agreement also gave EME option during a two-year option period to acgjthe Acxiom division responsible for the furttgavelopment
of the technology, upon payment of an option psigecified in the Agreement. EMC did not exercisedption and the parties have entered into an aeteagreement
under which EMC will pay the Company $2.0 milliondash during the first quarter of fiscal 2009yw&4 as providing future discounts for the purchatequipment
from EMC over the next four years. EMC is also tmghase at least $0.5 million in services from Aaxiover the next two years. The agreement alsdresgthe partie
to refer business opportunities to each other wiemgossible.

Payments received by Acxiom from EMC under the &grent have offset previously capitalized softwaaaices associated with development of the soldiegnsed
technology and additional amounts capitalized tthir develop the technology. These payments hawffact on revenue, earnings, or operating casi. fThe

reduction in the capitalized balance will reduceifa amortization expense. The cash to be recéieed EMC under the amended agreement will be adeadufor in the
same way.

8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, some of which has beergpteds collateral for long-term debt, is summaraedbllows (dollars in thousands):

March 31, March 31,

2008 2007
Land $ 16,71 $ 16,71!
Buildings and improvemen 222,756 223,226
Data processing equipme 462,327 429,857
Office furniture and other equipme 63,248 63,377

765,046 733,175
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 498,777 420,883

$ 266,26¢  $ 312,29:

Depreciation expense on property and equipmeniugiiteg amortization of property and equipment unchgsitalized leases) was $95.4 million, $99.8 willand $91.7
million for the years ended March 31, 2008, 200d 2006, respectively.
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT:

Long-term debt consists of the following (dollanghousands):

March 31, March 31,
2008 2007
Term loan credit agreeme $ 511,00 $ 547,00(
Capital leases and installment payment obligat@ntand, buildings and
equipment payable in monthly payments of princgdat interest at rates
ranging from approximately 4% to 8%; remaining temp to fifteen year 76,598 121,39¢
Warrants 1,542 1,651
Software license liabilities payable over term2apeven years; effective interest
rates ranging from approximately 6% to 18,117 44,615
Data license agreement, effective interest rate 10,499 -
Other debt and lor-term liabilities 26,811 41,135
Total lon¢-term debt and capital leas 644,567 755,800
Less current installmen 69,259 106,921
Long-term debt, excluding current installme $ 575,30¢ $ 648,87¢

Effective September 15, 2006, the Company entertedain amended and restated credit agreement atioid) term loans up to an aggregate principal arhofi$600
million and (2) revolving credit facility borrowirsgconsisting of revolving loans, letter of credirticipations and swing-line loans up to an aggieeganount of $200
million. The term loan is payable in quarterly wijpal installments of $1.5 million through SeptemB@11, followed by quarterly principal installmertf $150 million
through June 2012, followed by a final installmeh$40 million due September 15, 2012. The ternm lalso allows prepayments before maturity. Revgvaan
commitments and all borrowings of revolving loanstane on September 15, 2011. The credit agreemmaecured by the accounts receivable of Acxiomitsnd
domestic subsidiaries, as well as by the outstanstiock of certain Acxiom subsidiaries.

On September 15, 2006, the Company borrowed thiee emhount of the term loan. Term loan proceedewsed to purchase shares of the Company’s comiook s
pursuant to the terms of its “Dutch auction” selfider offer for approximately $278 million (seeen@®), to pay certain fees of approximately $6.4ionirelated to
entering into the credit agreement and to pay m#xsting revolving loan of approximately $267 lnit. The remainder of the term loan proceeds veasiuo retire
additional debt or for general corporate purpobeaddition to the quarterly $1.5 million principaktallments, the Company paid $50.0 million impipal in fiscal
2007 and $30.0 million in fiscal 2008. The Companpensed $0.3 million in fiscal 2008 and $0.5 miilin fiscal 2007 of deferred costs related toghdy payments.

Revolving credit facility borrowings currently beiaterest at LIBOR plus 1.5% or at an alternatiasédrate or at the Federal Funds rate plus 2.26p&ndling on the
type of borrowing. Term loan borrowings currentab interest at LIBOR plus 1.75%. There were nolkrg loan borrowings outstanding at March 31,200 2007.
The weighted average interest rate on term loarobdmgs outstanding at March 31, 2008 was 5.7%stantling letters of credit at March 31, 2008 wefe $nillion.

Under the terms of certain of the above borrowitigs,Company is required to maintain certain dektash flow and debt service coverage ratios, anotimey
restrictions. At March 31, 2008, the Company wasdmpliance with these covenants and restrictibmaddition, if certain financial ratios and otlremditions are not
satisfied, the credit agreement limits the Compsuayility to pay dividends in excess of $30 milliarany fiscal year (plus additional restrictionsciertain
circumstances).
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9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued):

The Company'’s future obligations, excluding intéresder its long-term debt at March 31, 2008 aréodows (in thousands):

Year ending March 3:

2009 $ 69,25¢
2010 34,906
2011 25,012
2012 305,349
2013 192,953
Thereaftel 17,088

$ 644,56°

10. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS:

A summary of the activity of the allowance for dtfubaccounts, returns and credits is as followdléds in thousands):

Bad debts
Additions written off,
Balance a  charged to net of
beginning o costs and Other amounts Balance a
period expense: change: recoverec end of perio
2006:
Allowance for doubtful accounts, returns
and credits 7,636 $ 6,235 $ (654) $ (4,722) $ 8,495
2007:
Allowance for doubtful accounts, returns
and credits $ 8,495 $ 1,946 $ 629 $ (2,755 $ 8,31%
2008:
Allowance for doubtful accounts, returns
and credits $ 8,31% $ 2,283 $ 746 $ (1,333) $ 10,011

Included in other changes are valuation accourgsieed in connection with business combinationspadsals, and the effects of exchange rates.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Legal Matters

Richard Fresco, et al. v. R.L. Polk and Company/acxiom Corporation, (U.S. Dist. Court, S.D. Flaid7-60695) formerly, Linda Brooks and Richardsemev. Auto
Data Direct, Inc., et al., (U.S. Dist. Court, SHorida, 03-61063) is a putative class action latysemoved to federal court in May 2003, filed exgh Acxiom and
several other information providers. The plaintdfiege that the defendants obtained and usedrdriieense data in violation of the federal Drigd?rivacy Protection
Act. To date, a class has not been certified. Anmthgr things, the plaintiffs seek injunctive rélistatutory damages, and attorneys’ fees. Acxiasithade an informal
offer to settle the case and has accrued $4.Comifbr the offer of settlement and possible experssociated with the notice and claims administrgirocess. Acxiom
and Polk have agreed to stay the proceedings wigltiation is conducted under the purview of ther€diwo companion cases, Sharon Taylor, et aoxiom, et al.,
(U.S. District Court, E.D. Texas, 207CV001) and r8haTaylor, et al. v. Biometric Access Companyalet(U.S. District Court, E.D. Texas, 2:07-CV-0801, were
filed in January 2007.
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued):

Epsilon Data Management LLC, et al. v. Acxiom Caggimn, (192"dJudicial District Court of Dallas County, TX, 0788) is a case that was brought by a competitor
of Acxiom after the acquisition of three long-tidata providers and alleges that Acxiom breachetdiceierms and conditions of the data licenses thitise acquired
companies in the course of building and distritgiiitxiom data products. The plaintiffs seek injivetrelief and unspecified damages. Acxiom contehdsit has

acted in conformance with the data licenses amtya&rously defending the claims.

The Company is involved in a number of actions whia Data Protection Authority of Spain, involviatieged improper usage of individuals’ data. Thenpany is
negotiating with the Data Protection Authority im @tempt to settle the claims, and the Companytaiais that the Company’s usage of data has besonipliance
with the applicable law. However, upon advice afitgel and after review of the pending claims, tbenfany accrued $3.9 million as part of the coslasure of the
Spain office (see note 4). During the quarter erldacth 31, 2008, the Company reversed $2.4 mithibthe accrual as some of the claims had beereddtt less than
the Company originally accrued. As of March 31, 2@ Company has a remaining accrual for thisenaft$1.0 million.

The Company is involved in various other claims Bwgdl actions in the ordinary course of businesthe opinion of management, the ultimate dispasiof all of
these matters will not have a material adverseeffe the Company’s consolidated financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

Commitments

The Company leases data processing equipment,aeftaffice furniture and equipment, land and effipace under noncancellable operating leasestiéwally, the
Company has entered into synthetic operating Idase®mputer equipment, furniture and aircraft€dsed Assets”). These synthetic operating leadiéscare
accounted for as operating leases under genexagpéed accounting principles and are treated@itatéeases for income tax reporting purposesidiiease terms
under the synthetic computer equipment and furaitacility range from two to six years, with ther@aany having the option at expiration of the inikEase to return
the equipment, purchase the equipment at a fixied,or extend the term of the lease. The lease ¢éran aircraft expires in November 2017, with @@mpany having
the option to purchase the aircraft, renew theddéasan additional twelve months, or return ttreraift to the lessor. The Company has notifiedélssor of its intent to
terminate the aircraft lease subsequent to Mar¢c2@d8. Once the lessor sells the aircraft the Gomwill be required to pay the termination valdi¢he lease, less the
proceeds of the aircraft sale. The Company hasiaddhe net loss of $3.9 million in gains, lossed ather items in fiscal 2008. The cash paymeritaeitur in fiscal
2009.

The total amount drawn under these synthetic oiper&tase facilities since inception was $255.7iamland the Company has a future commitment faséepayments
of $24.6 million over the next ten years. In themithe Company elects to return the Leased Adbet€ompany has guaranteed a portion of the ralsidiue to the
lessors. Assuming the Company elects to returh¢fased Assets to the lessors at its earliest apmibrtunder the synthetic lease arrangements asvaeg the Leased
Assets have no significant residual value to tkedes, the maximum potential amount of future paymthe Company could be required to make undeethesidual
value guarantees was $12.9 million at March 318200

Total rental expense on operating leases and s@ftieenses, including the synthetic lease faesitwas $55.6 million, $50.8 million and $54.3 raill for the years
ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectifFelyire minimum lease payments under all noncarell@perating leases and software licenses, inujuttie
synthetic lease facilities, for the five years egdMarch 31, 2013, are as follows: 2009, $39.9iom||2010, $30.2 million; 2011, $18.6 million; 2Q1%16.4 million; and
2013, $13.3 million.

In connection with certain of the Company’s fagt the Company has entered into 50/50 joint vestwith local real estate developers. In each, taseCompany is
guaranteeing portions of the loans for the buildiig addition, in connection with the disposateftain assets, the Company has guaranteed loatieefbuyers of the
assets. These guarantees were made by the Compaayily to facilitate favorable financing termsrfthose third parties. Should the third partiesad&fon this
indebtedness, the Company would be required toparfinder its guarantee. Substantially all of thiedtparty indebtedness is collateralized by vesipieces of real
property. At March 31, 2008 the Company’s maximuwteptial future payments under all of these guaesbf third-party indebtedness were $4.8 million.
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12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

The Company repurchased 11.1 million of its comrsioares for approximately $283.9 millionthrough adbuAuction Self Tender (“DAST”) which closed on
September 12, 2006. Borrowings under the new cfadiiity, which closed September 15, 2006 (see ®t were used to fund the DAST and retire exgstiabt.

The Company has authorized 200 million shares df@par value common stock and 1 million shareklo®O par value preferred stock. The board of thrsmf the
Company may designate the relative rights and preées of the preferred stock when and if issuadh Sights and preferences could include liquidapeeferences,
redemption rights, voting rights and dividends, gmlshares could be issued in multiple series aliffarent rights and preferences. The Companyeruly has no plans
for the issuance of any shares of preferred stock.

As discussed below, the Company has issued wat@ptschase shares of its common stock. The fafiguable shows outstanding warrants as of Marci2608:

Number of Weighted
warrants average

outstanding Issuec Vesting date  Expiration date  exercise pric
AISS acquisition (fiscal 200: 1,272,02.  August 200z August 200z August 12,201" $ 16.32
Toplander acquisition (fiscal 200 102,93! March 2004 March 2004 March 17, 201¢ $ 13.2¢

November 1

ChinaLOOP acquisition (fiscal 200 100,00 October 200: 2007 October 24,201 $ 15.0C
1,474,95 $ 16.01

In conjunction with the acquisition of ChinaLOOPfiscal 2005, the Company issued a warrant to @agel100,000 shares of its common stock. The exgucice for
the warrant is $15 per share and the warrant maxeércised until October 24, 2014. The warrant atsttains a put feature, which gives the holderrite to receive
up to an additional $1.5 million in Acxiom commadock if the value of the common stock upon exeri@dess than $30 per share. The put feature clgrberexercised
on or after November 1, 2009, and can only be és@idaconcurrently with the exercise of the warr#frthe warrant and the put feature were both a@gettas of March
31, 2008, the put feature would require the Compangsue an additional 131,694 shares.

The fair value of the warrant upon issuance wasrdehed to be $1.8 million. Due to the terms ofitt&rument and the fact that the warrant and paut@be settled by
issuance of a variable number of shares, the &irevof the warrant is recorded as a liabilityJuded in long-term debt (see note 9) and the falue will be adjusted at
each balance sheet date to its current fair véludlarch 31, 2008, the fair value of the warransv..5 million. The change in the warrant valueeiorded in other, n
in the accompanying consolidated statement of dpesaas income of $0.1 million in 2008, expens&@B million in 2007 and income of $0.3 million2006. In
general, the value of the warrant will increas¢hasstock price increases and decrease as thepsioekdecreases. Other factors that influencéaihealue of the
warrant include the remaining term, the risk-freteiiest rate, the volatility of the Company’s staakd the Company’s dividend rate. If the warraréjercised, the
recorded value will be transferred to equity.

On October 26, 2007, the board of directors adoateew common stock repurchase program, which etigeprevious common stock repurchase program. This
program was further modified February 13, 2008. éirthe new common stock repurchase program, thep@oynmay purchase up to $100 million worth of tsnenon
stock over the twelve months ending October 258268m its inception on October 26, 2007 throughrdh 31, 2008, the Company repurchased 4.2 miliares of
its stock for $50.6 million. On November 14, 206% Company announced a previous common stockalepse program. From that date through its disswiudn
October 26, 2007, the Company had repurchasedn@lli@n shares of its common stock for an aggregatehase price of $404.0 million under this repase
program.
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12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (continued):
The Company paid dividends on its common stockénamount of $0.12 per share in fiscal 2008, $pe&tZXhare in fiscal 2007 and $0.20 per share ¢alf2006.

Stock Option Activity

The Company has stock option and equity compemsatans for which a total of 37.7 million sharegtod Company’s common stock have been reservedsoance
since inception of the plans. These plans providéthe option price of qualified options will bieca above the fair market value of the commonlisaiche time of the
grant. Board policy has required that nonqualifigtions be priced at or above the fair market valfufie common stock at the time of grant. At MaBdh 2008, there
were a total of 6.7 million shares available fawufe grants under the plans.

The per-share weighted-average fair value of somtions granted during 2008 was $4.09 on the dageamt using a lattice option pricing model wittetfollowing
weighted-average assumptions: dividend yield o¥4dt.iisk-free interest rate of 4.3%; expected oplifenof 5.8 years and expected volatility of 26¥he per-share
weighted-average fair value of stock options grauhering 2007 was $9.45 on the date of grant uaitagtice option pricing model with the followingeighted-average
assumptions: dividend yield of 1.0%; risk-free net rate of 4.6%; expected option life of 8.7 gemnd expected volatility of 25%. The per-shareghigid-average fair
value of stock options granted during fiscal 20@&\84.52 on the date of grant using the Black-®shabtion pricing model with the following weightaderage
assumptions: dividend yield of 1%; risk-free instreate of 4.26%; expected option life of 3 years] expected volatility of 24%. The short optide for the options
granted in fiscal 2006 was due to those optionsgkilly vested when granted.

Total expense related to stock options was appraety $3.2 million for fiscal 2008 and $1.5millidor both 2007 and 2006 and was charged to seljegeral and
administrative expense. Future expense for theensps expected to be approximately $5.8 milliototal over the next five years.

Activity in stock options was as follows:

Weightet-
average
Weighte(- remaining
average contractual ~ Aggregate
Number of exercise pric term (in  Intrinsic value

shares per share years) (in thousand:
Outstanding at March 31, 20! 11,784,40¢ $ 215
Grantec 1,195,00C $ 15.4
Exercisec (1,965,126, $ 18.5 $ 271
Forfeited or cancelle (268,630) $ 24.3
Outstanding at March 31, 201 10,745,65C $ 21.3 775 % 1,60¢
Exercisable at March 31, 20! 9,342,514 $ 22.0 744 % 1,18¢

The aggregate intrinsic value for options exercisdiscal 2006 was $53.5 million, in fiscal 200a$v$12.8 million and in fiscal 2008 was $0.3 millidhe aggregate
intrinsic value at period end represents totaltpreintrinsic value (the difference between Acxismlosing stock price on the last trading day efgkriod and the
exercise price for each in-the-money option) thatild have been received by the option holders Iptidroholders exercised their options on March2Z08. This
amount changes based upon changes in the fair thaalke of Acxiom'’s stock.
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

Following is a summary of stock options outstandisgf March 31, 2008:

Options outstandin Options exercisabl

Weightec- Weighter- Weighte-

Range of average average average
exercise price Options remaining exercise price Options exercise price

per share outstanding contractual life per share exercisable per share

$0.11- $9.62 141,197 5.70 years $ 6.6¢ 120,781 $ 6.5¢

$10.17- $ 14.68 1,950,90¢ 8.6lyears $ 11.9¢ 1,485,05¢ $ 12.2¢

$15.00- $ 19.82 2,800,05¢ 7.93years $ 16.4¢ 2,218,191 $ 16.6¢

$20.12- $ 24.53 2,928,82¢ 8.00 year: $ 22.7¢ 2,928,824 $ 22.7¢

$25.00- $ 29.30 1,738,69¢ 7.27years $ 26.5¢ 1,403,69t $ 26.6¢

$30.93- $ 39.12 868,391 5.99years $ 35.7( 868,391 % 35.7(

$40.50- $ 75.55 313,866 6.33years $ 44.6¢ 313,866 $ 44.6¢

$168.61- $268.5E 3,712 1.89years $ 208.1¢ 3,712 $ 208.1¢

10,745,65( 7.73years $ 21.32 9,342,514  $ 22.0%

Restricted Stock Unit Activi
Non-vested restricted stock units and changes dunegear ended March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Weighted average
fair value per share Weighted-average

at remaining
Number grant date contractual term
of shares (in thousands) (in years)
Outstanding at March 31, 201 451,750 $ 23.7¢ 3.3¢
Grantec 826,365 $ 12.4¢
Vested (127,865 $ 23.5(
Forfeited or cancelle (25,314 $ 20.7"
Outstanding at March 31, 20i 1,12493¢ $ 15.5¢ 3.3i

During fiscal 2006, the Company issued restrictedksunits covering 75,000 shares of common staith avvalue at the date of grant of $1.6 milliorurlhg fiscal

2007, the Company issued restricted stock unitemoyg 454,250 shares of common stock with a valdleeadate of grant of $10.9 million. During fis@908, the
Company issued restricted stock units covering®bshares of common stock with a value at the afegeant of $10.3 million. The value at the datg@@nt is
determined by reference to quoted market pricethishares, less a small calculated discounflextehe fact that the restricted shares do ngtdigdends until they
are vested. Restricted stock units vest in equali@rincrements over four years. The expense tetateestricted stock was $4.8 million in fiscal80$1.7 million in
fiscal 2007 and $0.2 million in fiscal 2006 and veharged to selling, general and administrativeeegp. Future expense for these restricted stotk isréxpected to be
approximately $4.7 million in fiscal 2009, $4.2 haih in fiscal 2010, $3.4 million in fiscal 2011n@ $0.3 million in fiscal 2012.

Qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In addition to the share-based plans, the Compaigtains a qualified employee stock purchase fESRP”) that permits substantially all employeegptiochase
shares of common stock at 85% of the market pfibe.number of shares available for issuance at IMat¢ 2008 was approximately 1.5 million. Approxieig
480,000 shares were purchased under the ESPP dugilngmbined fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2006.tdtal expense to the Company for the year endedivil,
2008 for the discount to the market price was axiprately $0.6 million.

F-58




ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006

13.  INCOME TAXES:

Total income tax expense (benefit) was allocatelésvs (dollars in thousands):

2008 2007 2006
(Restated (Restated)
Income from operatior $ (1,981 $ 45,57: $ 38,77:
Stockholder’ equity:
Tax benefit of stock options, warrants and resdct
stock (5,513) (4,142) (19,097)
$ (7,494 $ 41,43: $ 19,67

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to egsifnom operations consists of (dollars in thousynd

2008 2007 2006
(Restated (Restated
Current:

U.S. Federa $ 4,395 $ 26,98: $ 19,95:
Non-U.S. 3,055 520 16
State 1,494 3,700 1,354
154 31,204 21,323

Deferred:
U.S. Federa (7,290) 7,040 11,396
Nonr-U.S. 4,843 3,066 1,037
State 312 4,263 5,018
(2,135) 14,369 17,451
Total $ (1,981 $ 4557 $ 38,77

Deferred income tax expense for 2008, 2007 and Btfdédes expense of $18.3 million, $5.5 milliondeb4.1 million, respectively, resulting from wutgition of
acquired deferred tax assets on which full valueéitowances existed and that resulted in redustiorgoodwill (see note 6). In addition, in fis@8I08 the Company
reversed valuation allowances previously recordediéferred tax assets on certain acquired compar@sulting in an additional $20.7 million redoctin goodwill.

Earnings (loss) before income tax attributable 18.l4nd non-U.S. operations consist of (dollathausands):

2008 2007 2006
(Restated (Restated
u.s. $ (15,504 $ 108,99: $ 104,00
Nor-U.S. 5,743 4,455 (3,454)
Total $ (9,761 $ 113,44¢ $ 100,54¢

Earnings before income taxes, as shown above asedlon the location of the entity to which suatmiegs are attributable. However, since such egsmimay be
subject to taxation in more than one country, ffo®ine tax provision shown above as U.S. or non-tdz8. not correspond to the earnings shown above.
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13. INCOME TAXES (continued):

Below is a reconciliation of income tax expensen@fit) computed using the U.S. federal statutoppme tax rate of 35% of earnings before incomestéx¢he actual
provision for income taxes (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006

2008 (Restated (Restated

Computed expected tax expense (ben $ (3,416 $ 39,70t $ 35,19:
Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting fr

State income taxes, net of federal ber 1,174 5,176 4,142
Reserves for tax iten 460 4,520 -
Research, experimentation and other tax cr (889) (2,885) (1,808)
Permanent differences between book and tax exf (2,097) 208 (99)
Non-U.S. subsidiaries taxed at other than & 4,787 (235) (40)
Other, ne (3,000) (917) 1,387
$ (1,981 $ 4557, $ 38,77:

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tagets and liabilities at March 31, 2008 and 2007aesented below. In
accordance with APB Opinion 23, “Accounting for émee Taxes-Special Areagtie Company has not recognized deferred income taxe¢he undistributed earnings
foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reineesbutside the respective parent’s country. As afdl 31, 2008 the respective parent companies$#&© million
excess financial statement carrying value ovebtsis. Such excess is a taxable temporary differenaccordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accountinglfarome Taxes,”
and would become taxable in the respective parentistry in the event of a distribution of the sdizsy’s earnings or a disposition of its shareald@lation of the
deferred income tax related to this taxable temmyattéference is not practicable.

(dollars in thousands) 2007
2008 (Restated
Deferred tax asset
Accrued expenses not currently deductible for tapppses $ 22,65 $ 6,19:
Revenue recognized for tax purposes in excessrehte for
financial reporting purpose¢ 23,712 34,264
Investments, principally due to differences in bder tax anc
financial reporting purpost¢ 3,157 1,370
Property and equipment, principally due to diffaesin
depreciatior 15,736 7,199
Acquired net operating loss and tax credit carmyfods 63,453 79,981
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwe 11,229 9,103
Other 11,164 6,785
Total deferred tax asse 151,110 144,894
Less valuation allowanc 44,751 81,713
Net deferred tax asse 106,359 63,181
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets, principally due to differenceamortizatior $ (65,709 $ (66,056
Capitalized and purchased software differer (47,868) (48,681)
Reserves for tax iten - (4,520)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (113,577) (119,257)
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (7,218 $ (56,076
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13. INCOME TAXES (continued):

At March 31, 2008, the Company has net operatisg tarryforwards of approximately $55.9 million &&6.3 million for federal and state income taxgmses,
respectively. Of these net operating losses, $%tlln for federal and $36.2 million for state moe tax purposes relate to subsidiaries acquiredglfiscal years
ended March 31, 2005 and March 31, 2006. The Coynalso has federal and state income tax crediyfmawards of approximately $10.0 million. Of thesedits,
$0.3 million relate to subsidiaries acquired duttihg fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. These neftadipg loss and income tax credit carryforwardsirexin various
amounts from 2010 through 2023.

The Company has foreign net operating loss camdaits of approximately $127.9 million, includingpapximately $70.9 million related to acquisitiongrishg fiscal
2004 and 2005. Of the $127.9 million, $116.9 millido not have expiration dates. The remainder egpir various amounts from 2009 through 2013.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax @sseanagement considers whether it is more likedy not that some portion or all of the defer@eddssets will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred aasets is dependent upon the generation of fuanadle income during the periods in which thosepaary differences
become deductible. Based upon the Company’s histigpyofitability and taxable income and the reedis taxable temporary differences in the U.S, agament
believes that with the exception of carryforwamiseértain states it is more likely than not the @any will realize the benefits of these deductiifeerences. The
Company has established valuation allowances aggi3s8 million of loss carryforwards in the statedsere activity does not support the deferred et

Based upon the Company’s history of losses in itenan-U.S. jurisdictions, management believes ihore likely than not the Company will not realike benefits of
the foreign carryforwards and has established valnallowances for substantially all foreign deéet assets. The goodwill recorded related to thehase of certain
non-U.S. based subsidiaries includes valuatiomaliees recorded against their deferred tax aseetsibe these companies have not yet demonstratsidtent and/or
sustainable profitability.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No:"AB8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — Arterpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN $&hich
clarifies the accounting treatment for uncertaingasitions. FIN 48 prescribes recognition and messent guidance and requires that the Compangssdeether the
benefits of tax positions taken are more likelynthat of being sustained under tax audits. The Gomadopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective Afri2007. Prior t
adoption, the Company accounted for uncertain tesitipns under Statement of Financial Accountirgn8ards No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFA”),
whereby it recorded liabilities associated with tencertainties when the likelihood of occurrence weobable and the Company was able to reasonstityage the
liability. As a result of this adoption, the Compaecognized a decrease in noncurrent deferrelitiaikties of $4.5 million with a correspondingdrease to other long-
term liabilities. As a result of its adoption ofNF48, the Company made no adjustments to retaiagdrgs.

The following table sets forth changes in the tgtalss unrecognized tax benefit liabilities, inéghgdaccrued interest, for the year ended Marct2808. Approximately
$4.7 million of this total represents the amoumtt tff recognized, would affect the Company’s efffexincome tax rate in future periods.

(dollars in thousands)

Balance at April 1, 2007 included in deferred ineotax liability $ 4,52(
Additions based on tax positions related to theenryeai 889
Additions based on tax positions taken in priorrg 291
Reductions due to settleme 720

Balance at March 31, 20 $  498C

The Company reports accrued interest and penadtiated to unrecognized tax benefits in incomeetepense. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 206@8Company
recognized $0.3 million of tax-related interestexge and penalties and had $0.3 million of accintedest and penalties at March 31, 2008.
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13. INCOME TAXES (continued):

The Company files a consolidated U.S. income taxmeand tax returns in various state and locadglictions. The Company’s subsidiaries also fiberigturns in
various foreign jurisdictions. In addition to theSJ, the Company’s major taxing jurisdictions imguthe United Kingdom, France, Germany, and théétnds. The
number of years with open tax examinations vargggedding on the tax jurisdiction. In the U.S, thieinal Revenue Service has completed its exaromafithe
Company'’s federal income tax returns for fiscalrgehrough 2005. The status of foreign tax exarnonatvaries by jurisdiction. The Company does mbicgpate any
material adjustments to its financial statemengsilteng from tax examinations currently in progress

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

In accordance with a data center management agreelaied July 27, 1992 between Acxiom and Transkimaxiom (through its subsidiary, Acxiom CDC, Ihc.
acquired all of TransUnion’s interest in its Chioatpta center and agreed to provide TransUnion weittous data center management services. In ctionegith the
agreement, the Company agreed to use its bestseffocause one person designated by TransUnibe ébected to the Company’s board of directors,feord 1992
until February 2006 a TransUnion representativeesbon the Compang’board. That representative resigned from thedbioafebruary 2006 at which time transacti
with TransUnion were no longer considered relatedyptransactions. During the year ended March2806, the Company recognized $106.5 million in nexefrom
TransUnion.

The Company leases an aircraft from a business @bya former officer and director. Rent expensgeurthis lease was approximately $0.9 million for years ended
March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. The lease has keminated and the Company will only continue to enatonthly payments of $75,000 through April 2008.

The Company paid $0.6 million in fiscal 2007 andé®@iillion in fiscal 2006 in NASCAR sponsorship $e® a company which was partially owned by the afom
former officer of the Company until January 200#c® January 2004, neither the former officer risrson has an ownership interest in the sponsarexpany.
However, the sponsored company has other ongoisigdss relationships with both the officer andguis. In return for the sponsorship, the Compangived publicity
for the Acxiom brand and hospitality facilities fonstomers at race events.

The Company has an agreement to sell Acxiom predaurad services to a company whose majority shateh@ a family member of a former officer and dice of the
Company. Under the agreement the Company rece@xeshues of approximately $2.6 million in fiscal 8082.2 million in fiscal 2007 and $1.0 millionfiscal 2006.
The accounts receivable balance was approxima@®/fillion at March 31, 2008 and $0.8 million aaidh 31, 2007.

15. RETIREMENT PLANS:

The Company has a qualified 401(k) retirement gg/jplan which covers substantially all U.S. empésydhe Company also offers a supplemental norfpehli
deferred compensation plan (“SNQDC Plan”) for dartaanagement employees. The Company matches 5@8é &fst 6% of employees’ annual aggregate
contributions to both plans and may contribute talgal amounts to the plans from the Company’siegsat the discretion of the board of directorsnpany
contributions for the above plans amounted to apprately $8.2 million, $7.6 million and $6.7 millan fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivatiuded in
both other current assets and other accrued tiakikire the assets and liabilities of the SNQD#l it the amount of $15.3 million and $17.0 millanMarch 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively.

The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accountitem@ards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for DefinBenefit Pension and Other Postretirement PIdIBFAS
158”) in September 2006. SFAS 158 requires an eyeplim recognize the over-funded or under-fundatlstof a defined-benefit postretirement plan aasset or
liability in its statement of financial position @mo recognize changes in that funded status irye¢he in which the changes occur through other cehgnsive income.
SFAS 158 also requires the funded status of thetpl®e measured at the date of the year-end lmkdreet. SFAS 158 was effective for Acxiom as ofde81, 2007.
Acxiom only has two small defined-benefit pensideng covering certain European employees. Impleatient of SFAS 158 had no impact on the Companyarfcial
statements at March 31, 2007 since the Companglhesdy recognized the liability for the under-feddamount of these two plans.
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The projected benefit obligation for the plans $a$ million as of March 31, 2008 and $3.0 milliasof March 31, 2007. The accumulated benefit alibg for the
plans was $2.1 million as of March 31, 2008 and $2illion as of March 31, 2007. The accumulateddfi¢bligation (ABO) differs from the projected rufit
obligation (PBO) in that the ABO includes no asstiorpabout future compensation levels.

The fair value of the plan assets was $1.7 miléisrof March 31, 2008 and $1.5 million as of Marth2007. The excess of benefit obligations oven jpissets was $0.9
million at March 31, 2008 and $1.5 million at Margh, 2007. Net benefit cost recognized was $0.Ranifor fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006. The Companyegts to be
required to make contributions to the plan of $@ilion in 2009.

16. FOREIGN OPERATIONS

The Company attributes revenue to each geograpbior based on the location of the Company’s ojmersit The following table shows financial infornaatiby
geographic area for the years 2008, 2007 and 20fl&(s in thousands):

Revenue
2007 2006
2008 (Restated (Restated
United State: $ 1,175,03: $  1,191,75¢ $  1,143,84
Foreign
United Kingdom $ 112,31 $ 105,94 $ 99,11¢
France 33,566 34,551 32,872
Germany 25,868 26,695 24,345
Spain - 2,011 2,965
Portugal 1,567 1,309 1,041
Poland 4,102 2,996 2,777
The Netherland 11,518 10,615 9,444
Australia 14,423 11,031 9,032
Japar - - 78
China 5,690 3,608 3,254
All Foreign $ 209,04 $ 198,75 $ 184,92¢
$ 1,384,07¢ $ 1,390,51: $  1,328,77¢
Lonc-lived assets excluding financial instruments
2008 2007 2006
United State: $ 877,90( $ 1,031,66¢ $ 997,18(
Foreign
United Kingdom $ 72,95: $ 73,66( $ 67,29(
France 47,170 50,153 48,103
Germany 38,781 32,514 29,645
Spain - - 5,453
Portugal 1,646 1,369 1,458
Poland 2,445 336 519
The Netherland 20,661 17,715 16,014
Australia 12,361 11,098 9,711
China 7,004 6,915 7,133
Canade - 861 -
All Foreign $ 203,01¢ $ 194,62: $ 185,32¢
$ 1,080,91¢ $  1,226,28t¢ $ 1,182,50¢
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17. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
The following methods and assumptions were usestinate the fair value of each class of finaniaistruments for which it is practicable to estimitat value.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables |eshbihd notes receivable, short-term borrowingsteade payables - The carrying amount approxinfaiesalue
because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Investment securities - The carrying value of inwesnt securities is equal to fair value as deteedhioy reference to quoted market prices, wherdablai In the
absence of quoted market prices, the Company detesrapproximate fair values through the use ofmotlaluation techniques.

Long-term debt - The interest rate on the term lkaoh revolving credit agreement is adjusted fongea in market rates and therefore the carryingevaf these loans
approximates fair value. The estimated fair vallietber long-term debt was determined based upemptbsent value of the expected cash flows consglexpected
maturities and using interest rates currently akddé to the Company for long-term borrowings withikar terms. At March 31, 2008, the estimated failue of long-
term debt approximates its carrying value.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION:

The Company reports segment information consistéhtthe way management internally disaggregatesperations to assess performance and to allcesdarces. In
the current fiscal year, the Company realignedusiness segments to better reflect the way maregesmssesses the business. The Company’s new $sisegments
consist of Information Services, Information Prouand Infrastructure Management. Information Sewidevelops, sells and delivers industry-taila@dtions
globally through the integration of products, seed and consulting. Information Products developkszlls all global data products as well as doimésiud and risk
mitigation products. Infrastructure Management digpe and delivers information technology productd services such as IT outsourcing and transfoomati
solutions. The Company evaluates performance ofelgenents based on segment operating income, whathdes certain impairments and gains, losse®tret
items. Because segment operating income excludgsrcanpairments and gains, losses and other iteiesneasure is considered a non-GAAP financiasuee,
which is not a financial measure calculated in atance with generally accepted accounting prinsigiéanagement believes segment operating incomaédpful
measure in evaluating performance of the busiremsients. While management considers segment aggmtiome to be a helpful measure of comparatiesaimg
performance, this measure should be consideredditien to, but not as a substitute for, measufdémancial performance prepared in accordance BiAP presente
elsewhere in the financial statements. In additibe,Company’s calculation of segment operatingnme may be different from measures used by othrepeaies and
therefore comparability may be affected. The impaints and gains, losses and other items whichxatede=d from segment operating income are includéZiorporate
and other in the table below. Amounts excluded finfarmation services were $15.0 million in 2008,4million in 2007 and $4.0 million in 2006. Amdsrexcluded
from Information products were $22.4 million in 6.7 million in 2007 and $6.9 million in 2006mdunts excluded from Infrastructure management H8626
million in 2008, $0.2 million in 2007 and $3.1 nivlh in 2006.
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18. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued):

The Company has revised its segment informatiom fiscal 2006 and 2007 to reflect its realigneditess segments. The following tables present inddion by
business segment (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
2008 (Restated (Restated
Revenue
Information service $ 741,25¢ % 728,01: $ 697,14¢
Information product: 431,316 415,417 385,443
Infrastructure manageme 447,488 476,333 474,336
Eliminations (235,984) (229,253) (228,152)
Total revenus $ 1,384,07¢ $ 1,39051. $ 1,328,77!
Income from operation:
Information service $ 97,24¢  $ 124,62¢ $ 88,50:
Information product: 23,783 18,922 27,934
Infrastructure manageme 44,287 49,381 52,205
Corporate and othe (125,072) (38,786) (41,354)
Income from operatior $ 40,24t $ 154,14 $ 127,28t
Depreciation and amortizatio
Information service $ 69,63t $ 49,70 $ 53,44!
Information product: 46,528 22,699 24,837
Infrastructure manageme 153,076 152,923 148,155
Corporate and othe 3,550 4,240 4,700
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 27279 3% 229,56t  $ 231,13
Total assets
Information service $ 590,41 $ 630,127
Information product: 295,074 293,071
Infrastructure manageme 430,584 577,090
Corporate and othe 155,782 123,786
Total asset $ 1,471,855 $ l,624,07¢

The revenue attributed to the Infrastructure Managr@ segment above includes revenue from inteusibmers of approximately $124 million for fisc&@(8, 2007 an
2006. These intersegment revenues, as well asuesdrom external customers which are countedwesitees by multiple segments, are shown as elinoingin the
table above.
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19. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

On May 14, 2008 the Company announced that it woesthte its financial statements for the yeargdmdarch 31, 2007 and 2006 to correct an errdnénGompany’s
accounting for accrued revenue. Historically, anddl restated periods, the Company recorded adarevenue for certain information services comsrhased on a
calculated estimate of relative value of perforneatiat had occurred but had not yet been recograizedvenue. The Company determined that the esilmnlthat had
been used for several years did not adequatelyosuthye accrual of revenue in accordance with theuities and Exchange Commiss®Staff Accounting Bulletin N
104 (“SAB 104"). The Company has concluded thatdddeulated estimates for the restatement periadeat be relied upon, and the Company is unabbéjectively
support recording accrued revenue for these sertiaasactions. Accordingly, the Company has redtis$ consolidated financial statements for tis¢atement periods
to remove the recorded amounts of this accruechtevand record the related income tax effect. Aaftily in 2008, the Company has reclassified aolakt to deferred
costs as an operating cash flow activity. Previguesiiditions to deferred costs were presented &svasting cash flow activity. The adjustmentsdstate previously
reported financial statements are summarized &safsl(dollars in thousands, except per share data):

March 31, 200°

ASSETS (Reported’ (Adjustment (Restated

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 37,77¢ g - $  37,77¢
Trade accounts receivable, | 285,850 (51,339) 234,511
Deferred income taxe 22,341 19,509 41,850
Refundable income tax 7,657 - 7,657
Other current asse 59,252 - 59,252
Total current asse 412,876 (31,830) 381,046
Property and equipment, net of accumulated degregiand amortizatio 312,292 - 312,292
Software, net of accumulated amortizat 44,289 - 44,289
Goodwill 522,046 - 522,046
Purchased software licenses, net of accumulatedtizaton 151,326 - 151,326
Deferred costs, nt 137,684 - 137,684
Data acquisition costs, n 35,398 - 35,398
Other assets, n 39,993 - 39,993

$1,655904 $ (31,830 $1,624,074

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current installments of loi-term debt $ 106,921 $ - $ 106,921
Trade accounts payak 54,808 - 54,808
Accrued expense
Payroll 33,663 - 33,663
Other 79,078 - 79,078
Deferred revenu 113,318 - 113,318
Total current liabilities 387,788 - 387,788
Long-term debt 648,879 - 648,879
Deferred income taxe 97,926 - 97,926

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity

Common stock, $0.10 par val 11,145 - 11,145
Additional paic-in capital 718,336 - 718,336
Retained earninc 462,844 (31,830) 431,014
Accumulated other comprehensive incc 17,526 - 17,526
Treasury stock, at co (688,540) - (688,540)

Total stockholders' equi 521,311 (31,830) 489,481

$1,655904 $ (31,830 $1,624,074
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19. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued

March 31,200° March 31, 200¢
(Reported) (Adjustment (Restated) (Reported) (Adjustment (Restated)
Revenue
Services $1,061,10: $ (4,625 $1,056,47¢ $1,012,54¢ $ (3,795 $ 1,008,754
Data 334,033 - 334,033 320,019 - 320,018
Total revenue 1,395,13¢ (4,625) 1,390,511 1,332,56¢ (3,795) 1,328,77%

Operating costs and expen:
Cost of revenu

Services 806,991 - 806,991 778,490 - 778,49C
Data 206,628 - 206,629 201,950 - 201,95C
Total cost of revenu 1,013,62C - 1,013,62C 980,440 - 980,44C
Selling, general and
administrative 213,848 - 213,849 211,541 - 211,541
Gains, losses and other items, 8,897 - 8,897 9,504 - 9,504
Total operating costs and
expense: 1,236,36€ - 1,236,36¢ 1,201,48¢ - 1,201,48¢
Income from operation 158,77C (4,625) 154,145 131,083 (3,795) 127,288
Other income (expense
Interest expens (46,632) - (46,632) (28,744) - (28,744)
Other, ne 5,933 - 5,933 2,005 - 2,005
Total other income
(expense (40,699) - (40,699) (26,739) - (26,739)
Earnings before income tax 118,071 (4,625) 113,446 104,344 (3,795) 100,549
Income tax expens 47,331 (1,758 45,573 40,216 (1,442 38,774
Net earnings $ 70,74C 8 (2867 % 6787 $ 64,126 $ (2,353 % 61,77

Earnings per shar
Basic $ 08 $ (0.049
Diluted $ 084 $ (0.04

0.71
0.68

082 $ 073 $ (0.02)
08 $ 071 $ (0.03)

$ $
$ $
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19. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued):

March 31, 200° March 31, 200¢
(Reported (Adjustment (Restated (Reported (adjustment (Restated

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earning: $ 70,74C $ (2,867 $ 67,87 $ 64,12t $ (2,353 $ 61,77¢
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings
net cash provided by operating activiti
Depreciation, amortization and impairm:

of lonc-lived asset: 229,566 - 229,566 231,137 - 231,137
Gain on disposal of assets, (1,718 - (1,718 1,797 - (1,797)
Deferred income taxe 16,127 (1,758 14,369 18,893 (1,442) 17,451
Income tax benefit of stock options &

warrants exercise - - - 19,097 - 19,097
Non-cash shar-based compensatic

expense 3,823 - 3,823 1,313 - 1,313
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Accounts receivabl (30,140 4,625 (25,515 (21,162 3,795 (17,367)
Deferred cost - (41,581, (41,581 - (43,524, (43,524)
Other asset (19,101 - (19,101 (26,197 - (26,197)
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 3,960 - 3,960 (15,148 - (15,148)
Deferred revenu (13,305 - (13,305 5,569 - 5,569
Net cash provided by operating
activities 259,952 (41,581 218,371 275,833 (43,524 232,309

Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds received from the disposition of

operations - - - 4,844 - 4,844
Proceeds received from the disposition of
asset: - - - 5,123 - 5,123
Payments received from investme 2,758 - 2,758 3,760 - 3,760
Capitalized software development cc (27,443 - (27,443 (21,903 - (21,903)
Capital expenditure (14,225 - (14,225 (6,848 - (6,848)
Cash collected from the sale and license of
software 10,000 - 10,000 20,000 - 20,000
Deferral of costs and data acquisition ct (66,687 66,687 - (70,454 70,454 -
Data acquisition cos - (25,106, (25,106 - (26,930 (26,930)
Net cash paid in acquisitiol (33,067 - (33,067 (144,626 - (144,626)
Net cash used in investing
activities (128,664 41,581 (87,083 (210,104 43,524 (166,580)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from del 649,756 - 649,756 437,870 - 437,870
Payments of det (471,670 - (471,670 (307,120 - (307,120)
Dividends paic (18,174 - (18,174 (17,406 - (17,406)
Sale of common stoc 33,464 - 33,464 58,614 - 58,614
Acquisition of treasury stoc (299,301 - (299,301 (233,770 - (233,770)
Income tax benefit of stock options,
warrants and restricted sto 4,142 - 4,142 - - -
Net cash used in financing
activities (101,783 - (101,783 (61,812 - (61,812)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 566 - 566 (397 - (397)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 30,071 - 30,071 3,520 - 3,520
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of $ $
period $ 7,70¢ - $ 7,70t $ 4,18t - $ 4,18t
$ $
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $__ 37,77¢€ - $ 377 $ 7,708 - 8 7,708
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20. UNAUDITED SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA:

As explained in note 19, the Company has restédezbnsolidated financial statements for each @fy#ars ended March 31, 2007 and 2006. The Confpglso
restated its unaudited consolidated financial statgs for each of the quarterly periods ended Dbeedl, 2007, September 30, 2007, June 30, 200/¢h\&d., 2007,
December 31, 2006, September 30, 2006 and Jur936,to reflect the correction of an error relatedccrued services revenue. The adjustmentstimegsreviously
reported quarterly periods are included below @dslin thousands, except per share data).

Quarter ended June 30, 2C Quarter ended September 30, 2!
As reportec Adjustment As restate( As reportec Adjustment As restatec
Revenue $ 338,16¢ $ (3,499, $ 334,66¢ $ 351,02¢ $ (2,172, $ 348,85¢
Gross profit 72,197 (3,499) 68,698 85,331 (2,172) 83,159
Income from
operations 4,138 (3,499) 639 20,357 (2,172) 18,185
Net earning:
(loss) (11,521) (2,169) (13,690) 10,542 (1,347) 9,195
Basic earnings
(loss) per
share $ (0.15) $ (0.02) $ (0.17) $ 0.12 $ (0.02) $ 0.11
Diluted earnings
(loss) per
share $ (0.15) $ (0.02) $ (0.17) $ 0.12 $ (0.02) $ 0.11
Quarter
ended
March
Quarter ended December 31, 2( 31,2008
As reportec Adjustment As restate( As reportec
Revenue $ 350,26¢ $ 49C $ 350,75¢ $ 349,797
Gross profit 88,070 490 88,560 55,902
Income from
operations 96,890 490 97,380 (75,958)
Net earning:
(loss) 54,696 304 55,000 (58,284)
Basic earnings
(loss) per
share $ 0.6¢ $ - $ 0.6¢ $ (0.76)
Diluted earnings
(loss) per
share $ 0.6¢ $ - $ 0.6¢ $ (0.76)
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20.  UNAUDITED SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (contirued):

Quarter ended June 30, 2C Quarter ended September 30, 2
As reportec Adjustment As restatec As reportec Adjustment As restatec

Revenue $ 336,70 $ (353, $ 336,352 $ 348,31¢ $ (1,098, $ 347,221
Gross profit 91,060 (353) 90,707 95,873 (1,098) 94,775
Income from

operations 36,315 (353) 35,962 41,865 (1,098) 40,767
Net earning: 17,808 (219) 17,589 21,716 (681) 21,035
Basic earnings

(loss) per

share $ 0.2C $ - $ 0.2C $ 0.2t $ (0.01) $ 0.24
Diluted earnings

(loss) per

share $ 0.2C $ (0.01) $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2t $ (0.01) $ 0.24

Quarter ended December 31, 2( Quarter ended March 31, 20
As reportec Adjustment As restatec As reportec Adjustment As restatec

Revenue $ 352,841 $ (2,301, $ 350,54C $ 357,271 $ (873, $ 356,39¢
Gross profit 100,133 (2,301) 97,832 94,450 (873) 93,577
Income from

operations 51,293 (2,301) 48,992 29,297 (873) 28,424
Net earning: 24,945 (1,427) 23,518 6,271 (540) 5,731
Basic earnings

(loss) per

share $ 0.3z $ (0.02) $ 0.3C $ 0.0¢ $ (0.01) $ 0.07
Diluted earnings

(loss) per

share $ 0.31 $ (0.02) $ 0.2¢ $ 0.0¢ $ (0.01) $ 0.07

In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company recoraé¢stal of $69.2 million of expense in restruatgrcharges and adjustments included in gains, dcese other items
in the consolidated statement of operations. Tipeese includes severance and other associateerplagenents of $13.4 million, lease accruals of $18illion,
contract accruals of $6.7 million, asset disposdl arite-offs of $29.6 million, and other relateakts of $0.4 million. Additional expenses includedains, losses and
other items include $4.0 million for a legal cogimcy and $3.9 million for the disposal of a leaaiedraft, which is offset by a $2.1 million gaiorfthe reversal of a
legal contingency accrual related to the dispasitiboperations in Spain and $0.6 million of adjusnts to the gain on the disposition of operatiarfarance.

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company recoraédtal of $63.5 million of gains in gains, lossesl other items, which included a $65.0 millionngiair the merger
termination, a gain of $2.5 million for the dispasn of operations in France and a gain for recp¥ierm Montgomery Ward of $0.2 million. These gawsre offset by
expense of $3.0 million for an executive retiremesyment, $0.3 million in terminated merger expef€el million in loss on Spain divestiture and8illion of
adjustments to prior period restructuring.
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20.  UNAUDITED SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (contirued):

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company recoadetal of $9.9 million of expense in gains, lesaad other items which includes $5.2 million opemse in
restructuring charges and adjustments for severamd@ther associate-related payments. Also indlidgains, losses and other items were $2.2 millicterminated
merger expense, $2.3 million of expense on dispafdehsed aircraft and $0.2 million of expenséss on Spain divestiture.

In the first quarter of 2008, the Company recordédtal of $15.4 million of expense in gains, Iesaad other items which includes $0.2 million ijuatiments for
severance and other associate-related paymentsdétethe fourth quarter 2007 restructuring evAigo included in gains, losses and other itemsevdr5.1 million in
terminated merger expense and $0.1 million in &yvsSpain divestiture.

Also during fiscal 2008, the Company recorded cesaiig cost of operations related to impairmentsapitalized costs of $5.2 million in the first gtear $4.4 million in
the second quarter, and $34.0 million in the fogudharter. The Company also recorded a charge iarQtlet of $2.7 million for an investment impairrhenthe fourth
quarter.

For the quarter ended March 31, 2007, net earnimgisdes $2.5 million in restructuring, $6.6 miliidor the disposal of the business operations airSand a $0.6

million non-cash financing charge associated withyeretirement of debt. The quarter ended Decer8heP006 included a recovery from Montgomery Wair§0.2
million. All of the above were recorded in gairssdes and other items with the exception of theaasih financing charge, which was recorded in @steexpense.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS
OF
ACXIOM CORPORATION

ARTICLE I. OFFICES

The registered office of ACXIOM CORPORATION (refed to herein as the "Corporation") shall be locatetthe City of Wilmington, County of New Cas’
State of Delaware. The principal office of the Gugition shall be located in the City of Little Reagkounty of Pulaski, State of Arkansas. The Corpimnamay hav
such other offices, either within or without theites of Delaware and Arkansas, as the Board otire may designate or as the business of the @irpo may requir
from time to time.

ARTICLE Il. SHAREHOLDERS

SECTION 1. _Annual MeetingThe annual meeting of the shareholders shallebe dfter the Corporation's fiscal year end on siefe and at such time
determined annually by the Board of Directors foe purpose of electing directors and for the tretisa of such other business as may properly coaferé th
meeting.

SECTION 2. _Inspectors of ElectioThe Corporation shall, in advance of any meetifithe shareholders, appoint one or more inspetboast at the meetil
and to make a written report thereof. The Corporathay designate one or more persons as altemsgiedtors to replace any inspector who fails tol&aaib inspectc
or alternate is able to act at a meeting of theedtwders, the person presiding at the meetind apabint one or more inspectors to act at the imgeThe inspecto
shall: (i) ascertain the number of shares outstandnd the voting power of each; (ii) determineghares represented at a meeting and the valilifyogies and ballot
(iii) count all votes and ballots; (iv) determinedaretain for a reasonable period a record of thpagition of any challenges made to any deternandiy the inspector
(s); and (v) certify their determination of the rloen of shares represented at the meeting, andotha of all votes and ballots. The inspector(s) rpgoint or retai
other persons or entities to assist the inspegtorthe performance of the duties set forth iis thection 2.

SECTION 3. Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of the shareholders, for anypgae or purposes, may be called by the Chief Exec@fficer, the
President, the Board of Directors, or by a commaitté the Board of Directors that has been dulygiested by the Board and whose power and authastgxpress
provided in these Bylaws or in a resolution of Bward, include the power to call such meetings, asgecial meeting shall be called by the Chiefchtiee Officer o
the President at the request of the holders ofjarityaof all the votes entitled to be cast on assue proposed to be considered at such speciainged such holdel
have signed, dated, and delivered to the Secrefahe Corporation one or more written demandsHermeeting describing the purpose or purposewtficeh it is to b
held.




SECTION 4. Place of MeetindJnless otherwise prescribed by statute, the Boafirectors may designate any place, either withi without the States
Delaware or Arkansas, as the place of meetingrfgramnual or special meeting of the shareholdesswithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Direstoray determir
that any annual or special meeting of the sharehslghall not be held at any place, but may insbealdeld by means of remote communications to xtené permitte
by Delaware law. A waiver of notice signed by dldseholders entitled to vote at a meeting may deségany place, whether within or without the StateDelaware ¢
Arkansas, unless otherwise prescribed by statstéheaplace for the holding of such meeting or thatmeeting shall not be held at any place bueatsby means
remote communication. If no designation is made place of meeting shall be the principal officalef Corporation in the State of Arkansas.

SECTION 5. _Notice of MeetingUnless otherwise prescribed by applicable lavittevr notice stating the place, date and time efrtfeeting, and in case ¢
special meeting the purpose or purposes for whiemteeting is called, shall be given either by nedctronically, or in person to each sharehotdeecord entitled t
vote at such meeting, not less than ten (10) daysnore than sixty (60) days before the date ofntfeeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemekatee been give
and delivered when deposited in the United States, [ostage prepaid, and addressed to the shdestat the shareholder's address as it appearemidck transfi
books of the Corporation.

SECTION 6. Date for Determination of Shareleotdof Record In order that the Corporation may determine tharaholders (i) entitled to notice of ol
vote at any meeting of shareholders or any adjoamrthereof or to express consent to corporateraati writing without a meeting, (ii) entitled teceive payment
any dividend or other distribution or allotmentaofy rights, (iii) entitled to exercise any rightsrespect of any change, conversion, or exchangéook, or (iv) for th
purpose of any other lawful action, the Board ofeBiors may fix, in advance, a record date, whitdllshot be more than sixty (60) days nor less ttean(10) day
before the date of any such meeting, nor more #ivety (60) days prior to any other action. If neoed date is fixed: (i) the record date for deterimg shareholde
entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting cfrgholders shall be at the close of business ondlienext preceding the day on which notice is igg if notice i
waived, at the close of business on the day nexdealing the day on which the meeting is held;tki@ record date for determining shareholders edtitb consent
corporate action in writing without a meeting, wham prior action by the Board of Directors is reqdi under the General Corporation Law of the Sthteelaware
shall be the first date on which a signed writtensent setting forth the action taken or proposelkttaken is delivered to the Corporation by @giivto its registere
office in the State of Delaware, its principal gaaf business, or the Secretary of the Corporaton; (iii) the record date for determining shardbeas for any oth:
purpose shall be at the close of business on tigeotiewhich the Board of Directors adopts a regmhutelating thereto. A determination of sharehoddef record entitle
to notice of or to vote at a meeting of sharehaddall apply to any adjournment of the meetingyijgled, however, the Board of Directors may fixeavrrecord date fi
the adjourned meeting.

SECTION 7. _List of Shareholders Entitled tot&oAfter fixing the record date for a meeting, thecftary shall prepare an alphabetical listinghef iame
of all of the shareholders of the Corporation whe entitled to notice of the shareholders' meetmgich list must be arranged by voting group andstrahow th
address of and number of shares held by each tacaiolder. The shareholders' list shall be opeheé@xamination of any shareholder, for any pueggermane to t
meeting for a period of at least ten (10) daysrpigothe meeting, either (i) on a reasonably adbksslectronic network, or (ii) during ordinary $ioess hours, at t
principal office of the Corporation. If the




meeting is to be held at a place, the shareholtsrshall also be produced and kept at the time place of the meeting during the whole time tbkrand may b
inspected by any shareholder who is present.

SECTION 8. _Quorum; Vote Required For Actiodnless otherwise provided by applicable law, @eegtificate of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, ajorisy
of the votes entitled to be cast on a matter bystr@eholders of the Corporation represented isopeor by proxy shall constitute a quorum for pwgsoof such matt
at any meeting of shareholders. A majority of tlwtes cast at any meeting at which a quorum is ptesieall decide every question or matter submittedhe
shareholders at such meeting, unless otherwiseédeby applicable law, the Certificate of Incoration, or these Bylaws.

SECTION 9. ProxiesEach shareholder entitled to vote at a meetinghafeholders may authorize another person or petsocact for such shareholder
proxy, but no such proxy shall be voted or actednugfter three (3) years from its effective datdess the proxy expressly provides for a longeiopletA duly execute
proxy shall be revocable unless the appointmemh foonspicuously states that it is irrevocable andoupled with an interest sufficient at law to o an irrevocab
power. An irrevocable proxy is revoked when theiiest with which it is coupled is extinguished. Waseholder may revoke any proxy which is not ireakde b
attending the meeting and voting in person or bgdiwith the Secretary of the Corporation an instent in writing revoking the proxy or another delyecuted prox
bearing a later date. Proxies shall be dated aaltlts filed with the records of the meeting.

SECTION 10. _AdjournmentsAny meeting of shareholders, annual or spectaljhéch a quorum is present may adjourn from timérne to reconvene at t
same or some other place or by means of remote coination, and notice need not be given of any sutjburned meeting if the time and place, if ahgréof and tr
means of remote communication, if any, are annaliatehe meeting at which the adjournment is takea.quorum is not present at any meeting of diaders, th
shareholders entitled to vote at such meeting,eptes person or represented by proxy, may adjabenmeeting from time to time (without notice othbar
announcement at the meeting) until a quorum isemteAt the adjourned meeting the Corporation nmagsact any business which might have been trastsadtth
original meeting. If the adjournment is for moreauththirty (30) days, or if after the adjournmenteav record date is fixed for the adjourned meetingptice of th
adjourned meeting shall be given to each sharehofdecord entitled to vote at the meeting in ti@nner provided in these Bylaws.

SECTION 11. _OrganizationMeetings of shareholders shall be presided oyehé Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Cligecutive Officer or tF
President, or in the absence of the foregoing perdy a presiding officer designated by the Bodr®icectors, or in the absence of such designaltipra presidin
officer chosen at the meeting. The Secretary sttalas secretary of the meeting, but in the absehttee Secretary the presiding officer of the rimeptnay appoint ar
person to act as secretary of the meeting.

SECTION 12. _Voting of SharesSubject to the provisions of these Bylaws, andi@darly the following section hereof, each oatsding share of comm
stock of the Corporation entitled to vote with respto a particular matter shall be entitled to wot upon such matter when submitted to a voshafeholders.

SECTION 13. Voting of Shares by Certain Holde.




(a) Shares standing in the name of another cdiparmay be voted by such officer, agent or progythe bylaws of such corporation may prescribeinothe
absence of such provision, as the board of direabsuch corporation may determine.

(b) Shares held by an administrator, executorrdiaa or conservator may be voted by such perstimrein person or by proxy, without a transfersofct
shares into such persemame. Shares standing in the name of a trustgébengoted by the trustee, either in person orioxy but no trustee shall be entitled to \
shares held as trustee without a transfer of sbates into such trustee's name.

(c) Shares standing in the name of a receiver lmeayoted by such receiver and shares held by ceruhé control of a receiver may be voted by seckive
without the transfer thereof into the receiver'meaif authority so to do is contained in an appiaip order of the court by which such receiver appointed.

(d) Persons whose stock is pledged shall be ahtitlevote the shares so pledged, unless in theferaby the pledgor on the books of the Corporasioot
person has expressly empowered the pledgee tsuokeshares, in which case only the pledgee, dr gleclgee’s proxy, may represent and vote sucteshar

(e) Shares of the Corporation's own stock and &eltteasury shares or otherwise belonging to tirpdZation shall not be voted, directly or inditgcat an)
meeting, and shall not be counted in determinilgidital number of outstanding shares at any givea. t

SECTION 14. _Action by Shareholder&ny action required or permitted to be taken ateeting of shareholders may be taken without atined one o
more written consents, setting forth the actiortad@n, shall be signed by all of the shareholdatiled to vote with respect to the subject mattareof. All writter
consents executed by one or more shareholderstshaticluded in the minutes or filed with the carde records. If it is required by law that notafethe propose
action be given to non-voting shareholders andatton is to be taken by written consent of theingtshareholders, the Corporation shall give ite-nating
shareholders written notice of the proposed adtiaccordance with the law requiring the givingsath notice.

SECTION 15. Nominations for Director.

(a) Nominations for election to the Board of Distmay be made by the Board of Directors, or bgpramittee of the Board of Directors which has beely
designated by the Board of Directors and whose powed authority, as expressly provided in theskBy or in a resolution of the Board of Directarglude thi
power to nominate directors, or by any sharehatdemy outstanding class of capital stock of thepBoation entitled to vote for the election of di@rs who complie
with the notice procedures set forth in this sectio

(b) Nominations by a shareholder shall be madeyauntsto timely notice in writing to the Secretafytlie Corporation. To be timely, a shareholderbtice sha
be delivered to or mailed and received at the jpaioffice of the Corporation (i) with respectda election to be held at an annual meeting ofettrdders, not less th
60 nor more than 90 calendar days prior to thé éinmiversary of the preceding yeagnnual meeting of shareholders; provided, howehat if the date of the anni
meeting is advanced more than 30 calendar daystpriar delayed by more than 30 calendar days #fteanniversary of the preceding ysaahnual meeting, notice
the shareholder to be timely must be so




delivered not later than the close of businessherldter of the 9t calendar day prior to such annual meeting or th® dflendar day following the day on which pu
disclosure of the date of such meeting is first eyaohd (ii) with respect to an election to be halé special meeting of shareholders, not latar tha close of busine
on the 90" calendar day prior to such special meeting or th# dalendar day following the day on which public tisaire of the date of such meeting is first made
purposes of this Section 15 of Atrticle Il and Sewtll6 of Article I, “public disclosurefneans disclosure in a press release reported bpdieJones News Servit
Associated Press or a comparable national newgseasvin a document filed by the Corporation witie Securities and Exchange Commission pursuahet8ecuritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchangd,Amt furnished by the Corporation to its shareholdkrsio event will the public announcement of ajpathmen
of an annual or special meeting commence a newggred for the making of a shareholder’'s nominmatis described above.

(c) A shareholdes notice under this Section 15 of Article Il shsdit forth (i) as to each person whom the sharehgd®poses to nominate for electior
reelection as a director, (A) the name, age, bssimgldress, and residence address of such peBdahe(principal occupation or employment of suenspn, (C) th
class and number of shares of the Corporation waiehbeneficially owned by such person, and (D) etier information regarding each such person asldvbe
required under the proxy solicitation rules of tBecurities and Exchange Commission if proxies wierbe solicited for the election of such personpsopose
(including, without limitation, such person's weitt consent to being named in the proxy statemeatra@minee and to serving as a director if electgg)as to thi
shareholder giving the notice (A) the name and esiJras they appear on the Corporation's booksjabf shareholder, and (B) the class and numbenasés of th
Corporation which are beneficially owned by suchrsholder; (iii) a representation that the shamols a holder of record of stock of the Corpamatntitled to vote
such meeting and intends to appear in person oprboyy at the meeting to nominate the person orgmerspecified in the notice; and (iv) a descriptafnall
arrangements or understandings between the sheeehed each nominee and any other person or gefsaming such person or persons) pursuant to wthi
nomination or nominations are to be made by theettwdder.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions ofstliection 15 of Atrticle Il, a shareholder must ctympth all applicable requirements of the Excharge
with respect to matters set forth in this SectiérofLArticle I1.

(e) To be eligible to be a shareholder nomineesfection as a director of the Corporation, a persoist deliver in writing (in accordance with theé period
prescribed above for delivery of notice of a shaléér nomination for director) to the Secretarythad Corporation a representation as to whethepéigon (i) intends,
elected as a director, to promptly tender to tharBmf Directors an irrevocable resignation effeztipon (A) his or her failure to receive the regdivote for reslectior
at the next meeting of shareholders of the Cororait which he or she would face ekection, and (B) acceptance of such resignatiothbyBoard of Directors,
accordance with a publicly disclosed policy adopgdthe Board of Directors in this regard; (ii) ds intends to become a party to any agreementngeraent ¢
understanding with any other person or entity réigarthe manner in which the person, if electec afirector, will vote on any matter coming befone Board c
Directors; and (iii) is or intends to become a paotany agreement, arrangement or understanditigamy other person or entity (other than the Catpon) regardin
any direct or indirect compensation, reimbursenoedemnification in connection with his or hengee as a director of the Corporation.

(f) At the request of the Board of Directors, argrgon nominated for election as a director shahifin to the Secretary of the Corporation that rimiatior
required to be set forth in a shareholder's




notice of nomination which pertains to the nominde. person shall be eligible for election as adwe of the Corporation unless nominated in acaoedawith th
procedure set forth in this Section. The chairmbthe meeting shall, if the facts warrant, deterenimd declare to attendees of the meeting thatranation was nc
made in accordance with the procedures prescripéidebBylaws of the Corporation, and in such evtm,defective nomination shall be disregarded.

SECTION 16. Notice of Shareholder Busine.

(a) At an annual meeting of shareholders, only suginess shall be conducted as shall have begenbydrought before the meeting. To be properbuigh
before an annual meeting, business (other thamrénadion of a candidate for election as a direatdrich is covered in Section 15 of the Articlefiust be (i) specifie
in the notice of the meeting given by or at thediion of the Board of Directors, (ii) otherwiseoperly brought before the meeting by or at theatiom of the Board (
Directors, or (iii) otherwise properly brought befathe meeting by a shareholder. For business tordygerly brought before an annual meeting by aestader,
shareholder must have given timely notice thereaofiiting to the Secretary of the Corporation. Totlmely, a shareholder's notice must be delivévent mailed an
received at the principal office of the Corporatiwt less than 60 nor more than 90 calendar dags tprthe first anniversary of the preceding ysamnual meeting
shareholders; provided, however, that if the dathe annual meeting is advanced more than 30 datetfays prior to or delayed by more than 30 caleddys after tt
anniversary of the preceding year's annual meetintice by the shareholder to be timely must bdedivered no later than the close of business erd#te of the 98
calendar day prior to such annual meeting or th# ddlendar day following the day on which public tisarre of the date of such meeting is first madend event she
the public disclosure of an adjournment of an ahmeeting commence a new time period for the givahg shareholder’s notice as described above.

(b) A shareholdes notice under this Section 16 of Article Il shedt forth as to each matter the shareholder preposbkring before the annual meeting |
brief description of the business desired to beigiht before the annual meeting and the reasonsoftilucting such business at the annual meetinghéiname ar
address, as they appear on the Corporatibobks, of the shareholder proposing such busiiésshe class and number of shares of stocthefCorporation which a
beneficially owned by the shareholder, (iv) any enial interest of the shareholder in such busiress,(v) any other information required by Rule -Bdaf the Exchanc
Act.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions ofstiBection 16 of Article Il, a shareholder must alsmply with all applicable requirements of the Eange
Act with respect to matters set forth in this Saeti6 of Article II. Nothing in this Section 16 Afticle Il will be deemed to affect any rights dfageholders to requt
inclusion of proposals in the Corporation’s proxgtsment pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the ExchAnge

(d) Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to toatrary, no business shall be conducted at anyameeting except in accordance with the proesise
forth in this section. The chairman of the annuakting shall, if the facts warrant, determine aadlare to the attendees of the meeting that busiwes not proper
brought before the meeting in accordance with tfwvipions of this section, and in such event sugkiriess not properly brought before the meetingdl sitwh be
transacted.




ARTICLE Ill. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. _General Power$he business and affairs of the Corporation dfmlhanaged by its Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. Number, Election and Tern.

(a) The Board of Directors of the Corporation shwhsist of not less than three (3) nor more thfieeh (15) individuals, the exact number withirck
minimum and maximum limits to be fixed and deteredirfrom time to time by resolution of a majorityth& entire Board of Directors.

(b) Except as provided below in Section 9 of thisicde 1l (“Vacancies”)and as may be provided in the terms of any sefigsederred stock authorized
issuance pursuant to the Corporat®Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporagach nominee for director in an election in whilsb number of nominees
equal to the number of open board seats (an “Uested Election”) shall be elected by a vote ofrtiggority of the votes cast with respect to that imea’s election ¢
any shareholders’ meeting at which a quorum isqmiesf, as of the fourteenth () day preceding the date the Corporation firstritistes its notice of meeting 1
such meeting to its shareholders, the number ofimees exceeds the number of open board seats (@€'€ed Election”)the directors shall be elected by the vote
plurality of the votes cast, whether or not sudtebn becomes an Uncontested Election after satd éor purposes of this Section 2, a majorityaies cast she
mean that the number of shares voted “for” a nogigelection exceeds the number of shares votearfatj that nominee’s election. “Abstentions” aratdker non-
votes,” if applicable, although counted for quorporposes, shall not be included in the total nundferotes cast or be counted as votes cast “for'against” any
nominees election. At a meeting of shareholders at whichotbrs are to be elected by a plurality of théesocast, shareholders shall not be permitted 2o w#e:
“against” any nominee, but rather shall either vote for othhld their votes with respect to any nominee.hWA\figgard to Uncontested Elections, the Boarc
established procedures pursuant to which any nemiif® fails to receive a majority of the votes acaittender his or her resignation to the BoartieBoard will ac
upon a tendered resignation within ninety (90) dafythe date on which the election results weréifea and will promptly make public disclosure thfe results of it
actions. If the Board accepts a direcsaresignation, or if a nominee for director is atected and the nominee is not an incumbent direttten the Board may fill ti
resulting vacancy in accordance with Section i Article 111.

SECTION 3. Regular MeetingsThe Board of Directors may provide, by resolutithe time and place for the holding of regular timges without othe
notice than such resolution.

SECTION 4. Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of the Board of Directors maycaked by the Chairman of the Board of Directdhg Chief Executiv
Officer or the President, and shall be called iy @hairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief &rive Officer or the President upon receipt of @tten reques
therefore from two (2) or more directors.

SECTION 5. Place of MeetingsRegular meetings of the Board of Directors shalheld at the place designated in the resolutidgheoBoard of Directol
providing for the holding of such meetings. Othezetings of the Board of Directors shall be heldwuth place as is designated in the notice of thetinge A waiver ¢
notice signed by all directors entitled to vot@aheeting may designate any place as the pladefding such meeting. If no designation is made,Bbard of Director
meeting shall be held at the principal office & tborporation in Arkansas.




SECTION 6. Notice . Notice of the date, time and place of any spetiakting of the Board of Directors shall be givéreast two (2) days prior to t
meeting by written notice delivered personally,ngil or electronically to each director at his/besiness address. If mailed, such notice shalkekengd to be deliver
when deposited in the United States mail so adedesgith postage thereon prepaid, provided the saree mailed at least five (5) days prior to theeting. If notice b
given electronically, such notice shall be deentebet delivered upon transmission by the sender.dwrgctor may waive notice of any meeting pursuarection 4 ¢
Article VIII..

SECTION 7. Quorum; Vote Required for Actio majority of the directors shall constitute soqum at any meeting, except when otherwise proviu
applicable law, the Certificate of Incorporationtbese Bylaws. If less than a quorum of the dimeci® present at any meeting, then a majority efdinectors prese
may vote to adjourn such meeting, from time to tiare the meeting may be held, as adjourned, wittuwther notice other than announcement at thetingeExcept il
cases in which the Certificate of Incorporatiortregse Bylaws provide otherwise, the vote of a nitgjof the directors present at a meeting at wkicuorum is prese
shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 8. _OrganizationMeetings of the Board of Directors shall be ptediover by the Chairman of the Board, or in theeabe of the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer or the President, if samme members of the Board of Directors, or by thed_&dadependent Director,, if any. In the absencelbbf the
foregoing, meetings shall be presided over by #&mlza chosen at the meeting. The Secretary shiadisasecretary of the meeting, but in the absehtteedSecretary, tt
chairman of the meeting may appoint any persorctagsecretary of the meeting.

SECTION 9. VacanciesNewly created directorships resulting from angréase in the number of directors and any vacawccyrdng on the Board
Directors may be filled by the affirmative vote afmajority of the remaining directors then in ogfichough less than a quorum of the Board of Darsgtunles
otherwise provided by applicable law. A directaeaéd to fill a vacancy shall be elected for thexired term of his or her predecessor in officé antil such director
successor shall have been elected and qualifieddédoease in the number of directors constitutireg Board of Directors shall shorten the term of amumber
director.

SECTION 10. _CompensatioBy resolution of the Board of Directors, eacledior may be compensated for his or her servidh@Board and any commit
thereof, and may be reimbursed for reasonable egsedirectly incurred in connection with such segvi

SECTION 11. _Presumption of AsserA director of the Corporation who is present aheeting of the Board of Directors at which act@nany corpora
matter is taken shall be presumed to have assemtbd action taken unless the director's disseabstention shall be entered in the minutes ofriketing, or unless t
director objects at the beginning of the meetingofomptly upon his or her arrival) to the holdiofgthe meeting or to the transaction of busineskeatmeeting.

SECTION 12. _Action by Unanimous Written Conseldhless the Certificate of Incorporation or thBs#aws otherwise expressly provide, any action iegl
or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the BazrDirectors, or any committee thereof, may Hestawithout a meeting if all members of the Boardsoct
committee, as the case may be, consent thereteitingy and the consents are filed with the minugéshe proceedings of the Board or such commitéetion takel
under this Section is effective when the last doesigns the consent, unless the consent speaeifigéerent effective date.
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SECTION 13. _Advisory DirectorsThe Board of Directors may appoint one or morgismty directors who will not actually serve as nimrs of the Boar
Such advisory directors shall only act in an advis@pacity and shall have no power of final derish any matters concerning the corporation.

SECTION 14. _Telephonic Meetings Permittddembers of the Board of Directors, or any comeeittiesignated by the Board, may participate in etinge o
such Board or committee by means of conferenceghelge or similar communications equipment by meaiwhich all persons participating in the meetiray
simultaneously hear each other, and participatianiineeting pursuant to this section shall coristppuesence in person at such meeting.

ARTICLE IV. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. _CommitteesThe Board of Directors may designate such standitd special committees as and when it deems s@gesnd appropriate. T
Board of Directors may appoint one or more rotatmgmbers of any committee and may appoint one oe mioectors as alternate members of any committhe,ma
replace any absent or disqualified member at argtinge of the committee. The Board of Directors Etakignate one member of each committee to seroharmar
Each committee must have two or more members, ebatnom shall serve at the pleasure of the BoarDicgctors, and only members of the Board of Diextma:
serve on a committee. Any such committee, to therg»provided by resolution of the Board of Direstor in its charter, and to the extent not othsewprohibited b
applicable law, shall have and may exercise allpbeers and authority of the Board of Directorghe management of the business and affairs of thrpdation
Committees shall have such name or names as nigtéenined from time to time by resolution adogtgdhe Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. Committee Rules and Minutednless the Board of Directors otherwise providesch committee designated by the Board of Dirsctoa)
make, alter and repeal rules for the conduct obitsiness. In the absence of such rules, each dteenshall conduct its business in the same mamséne Board «
Directors conducts its business pursuant to Artitlef these Bylaws. Each committee shall keeputagminutes of its meetings and report the samhéoBoard ¢
Directors.

ARTICLE V. OFFICERS

The officers of the Corporation may consist of &tkxecutive officer, a president, a chief opemgfficer, a chief financial officer, a chief Idgficer, one o
more executive vice presidents, one or more seferpresidents, one or more vice presidents, @etgg and a treasurer, one or more assistanttagese one or mo
assistant treasurers, as well as such other dffeemay from time to time be designated in acem&avith this Article V. The Board of Directors #ha every cas
elect a chief executive officer, president and etaey, and may designate (if applicable) and edéctuch other officers as it may from time to tiaem necessary
appropriate. The Board of Directors may authorfee thief executive officer or president to design@t applicable) and elect officers other than dhéef executiv
officer, president, chief operating officer, chfefancial officer, chief legal officer and secrstailhe officers of the Corporation shall have stitbs, authority an
powers designated by the Board of Directors (indd®e of officers elected by the Board of Diredtarsthe chief executive officer or president (ire tcase of office
elected by the chief executive officer or presidesspectively). The officers of the Corporatiomlskerve for a term of one year, or until theicsessors are elected and




qualified, or their earlier death, resignation gdialification or removal. Any officer may be remavat any time by the Board of Directors. In additiany officer electe
by the chief executive officer or president may&moved at any time by the chief executive offiegrd any officer elected by the president may beokeed at any tirr
by the president. Any number of offices may be lwldhe same person.

ARTICLE VI. CERTIFICATES FOR SHARE!
AND THE TRANSFER THEREOF

SECTION 1. Certificates for Share.

(a) Certificates representing shares of stock énGbrporation shall be in such form as shall berdeined by the Board of Directors. Such certifisadball b
signed by the Chairman, the Chief Executive officerthe President and by the Secretary or an fasgiSecretary or by the Treasurer or an AssiStesgdisurer or k
such other officers authorized by applicable lawt by the Board of Directors and sealed with thepomate seal, if any. Any or all of the signaturesaocertificate me
be facsimile. All certificates for shares shall msecutively numbered or otherwise identified. Tlaee of the person to whom the shares represémeeby ar
issued, with the number of shares and date of ijshall be entered on the stock transfer book&@{Qorporation. All certificates surrendered to @@ poration or it
transfer agent for transfer shall be cancelledramdew certificate shall be issued until the formeutificate for a like number of shares shall haeen surrendered &
cancelled, except that in case of a lost, destrayeuutilated certificate a new certificate mayissued therefor upon such terms and indemnity éoGbrporation &
these Bylaws and the Board of Directors may prbscri

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of thesdaBys, the Corporation may adopt a system of issjamecordation and transfer of its shares by elaidrol
other means not involving any issuance of physiedificates, including provisions for notice torpliasers in substitution for any required statementcertificates, al
as may be required by applicable corporate seesriiws, which system has been approved by therieswand Exchange Commission. Any system so adbghal
not become effective as to issued and outstandamtificated securities until the certificates tHerehave been surrendered to the Corporation. Exaspmay b
otherwise provided by law, the rights and obligasi@f the holders of uncertificated shares anditjfeés and obligations of the holders of certifexdshares of the sa
class and series shall be identical.

SECTION 2. _Transfer of Share¥ransfer of shares of stock in the Corporaticaildhe made only on the stock transfer books ofGbgporation by the hold
of record thereof or by his or her legal represiarégawho shall furnish proper evidence of authpoti transfer, or by the holder's attorney thereuntthorized by pow
of attorney duly executed and filed with the Cogdmm or its transfer agent, and only upon theesuter for cancellation of the certificate for ssttares. The person
whose name shares stand on the books of the Ctiggoshall be deemed by the Corporation to be tieen thereof for all purposes.

SECTION 3._Lost, Destroyed or Mutilated Stock Cerdites; Issuance of New CertificateShe Corporation may issue a new certificate o€lstin the place «
any certificate theretofore issued by it whichlisged to have been lost, destroyed or mutilatezshupceipt by the Corporation of an affidavit odtliact by the pers:
claiming the certificate of stock to be lost, stoler destroyed, and the Corporation may requirecivaer thereof, or his or her legal representativegive th
Corporation a
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bond sufficient to indemnify the Corporation agaiasy claim that may be made against the Corparatioaccount of the alleged loss, destruction dtilation of any
such certificate or the issuance of such new ceat#.

SECTION 4. _Classes of StoeResignation If the Corporation shall be authorized to issu@erthan one class of stock or more than one sefiesy clas:
the designations, preferences and relative, ppaticig, optional or other special rights of eachssl of stock or series thereof and the qualifiaatidimitations ¢
restrictions of such preferences or rights shakéteforth in full or summarized on the face orlbatthe certificate which the Corporation shafiuie to represent st
class or series of stock; provided, however, exegpbtherwise provided by law, in lieu of the fareg requirements there may be set forth on the &adack of th
certificate which the Corporation shall issue tpresent such class or series of stock a statemmainthie Corporation will furnish without chargeeach shareholder w
so requests the designations, preferences andveglparticipating, optional or other special righaf each class of stock or series thereof andgtraifications
limitations or restrictions of such preferencesrights. In the case of uncertificated shares, tloep@ration will make available electronically a degtion of the
designations, preferences and relative, particigatiptional or other special rights of each clafsstock or series thereof and the qualificatidinsitations or restrictior
of such preferences or rights.

ARTICLE VII. INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECDRS

SECTION 1. Right to IndemnificationEvery person who was or is a party or is threadeto be made a party to or is involved in anyoextsuit, 0
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative investigative, by reason of the fact that ©ieri was a director or officer of the Corporatiagrisoor was serving
the request of the Corporation as a director aceffof another corporation, or as its represeveaith a partnership, joint venture, trust, or otkaterprise, shall |
indemnified and held harmless to the fullest extegally permissible under and pursuant to any gdaces specified in the General Corporation Lavhef State ¢
Delaware, as amended from time to time, againsexgknses, liabilities, and losses (including attgs' fees, judgments, fines, and amounts paid dretpaid i
settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by aimmer in connection therewith. Such right of inddfication shall be a contract right that may béoeced in an
lawful manner by such person. Such right of indditetion shall not be exclusive of any other riglitich such directors or officers may have or hasgadcquire ani
without limiting the generality of such statemehgy shall be entitled to their respective righHtsndemnification under any agreement, vote of lshatders, provision
law, or otherwise, as well as their rights undés garagraph.

SECTION 2. InsuranceThe Board of Directors may cause the Corporatiopurchase and maintain insurance on behalf ofpamgon who is or was
director or officer of the Corporation, or is or sveerving at the request of the Corporation agectir or officer of another corporation, or asrégpresentative in
partnership, joint venture, trust, or other entisgragainst any liability asserted against suchgreand incurred in any such capacity or arisirtgobsuch status, whett
or not the Corporation would have the power to indiy such person.

SECTION 3. Advancement of ExpenseExpenses incurred by a director or officer of erporation in defending a civil or criminal actjosuit o
proceeding by reason of the fact that he or sho isas a director or officer of the Corporation (eais serving at the Corporation's request as &tdirer officer o
another corporation, or as its representativeparénership, joint venture, trust or other
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enterprise) shall be paid by the Corporation inaaxe of the final disposition of such action, swipproceeding upon receipt of an undertaking bgrobehalf of suc
person to repay such amount if it shall ultimatadydetermined that he or she is not entitled tmt#éemnified by the Corporation as authorized bgvaht sections of tl
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

SECTION 4. NorExclusivity of Rights. The rights to indemnification and to the advaneetrof expenses conferred in these Bylaws is ncusive of an
other right that any person may have or hereaftquiee under the Certificate of Incorporation, atgtute, agreement, vote of shareholders or disistied directors
otherwise.

ARTICLE VIII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. _Fiscal YearThe fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixgdresolution of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. Dividends The Board of Directors may from time to time deel and the Corporation may pay, dividends omutstanding shares in 1
manner and upon the terms and conditions provigieapplicable law and the Certificate of Incorpavati

SECTION 3. _Corporate Searlhe Board of Directors may provide a corporatd sénich shall be circular in form and shall hamsdribed thereon the na
of the Corporation, the year of its organizatidre state of incorporation and the words "Corpo&stal." A corporate seal shall not be mandatorytfervalidity of an'
contract, instrument or other document properlycated by an authorized officer or officers of ther@ration.

SECTION 4. _Waiver of NoticeAny written waiver of notice, signed by the persmtitled to notice, whether before or after theetstated therein, shall
deemed equivalent to notice. Attendance of a peas@meeting shall constitute a waiver of notiEswch meeting, unless the person at the beginofirige meetin
objects to holding the meeting or transacting bessnat the meeting. In addition, a person waivéectibn to consideration of a particular mattert tisanot within th
purpose or purposes described in the meeting ndtieech person attends the meeting and does rjettoto consideration of such matter when it isspreeed. Al
waivers of notice shall be filed with the minutdgtte meeting.

SECTION 5. Inspection of BylawsA copy of these Bylaws, with all amendments thershall at all times be kept in a convenient elatthe principal offic
of the Corporation, and shall be open for inspectmall shareholders during normal business hours.

SECTION 6. Interested Directors; Quoruido contract or transaction between the Corpanatiod one or more of its directors or officerspetween th
Corporation and any other corporation, partnersiggpciation, or other organization in which onenore of its directors or officers are directorsofficers, or have
financial interest, shall be void or voidable splébr this reason, or solely because the directoofficer is present at or participates in the rimgpbf the Board ¢
Directors or committee thereof which authorizesdbetract or transaction, or solely because sucsopés votes are counted for such purposes, ifth@ )naterial fac
regarding such person's relationship or intereshé contract or transaction are disclosed or kntwithe Board of Directors or the committee, and Board ¢
committee in good faith authorizes the contradtamsaction by the
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affirmative vote of a majority of the disinterestéidectors, even though the number of disinteredtsgttors constitute less than a quorum; or (8)rttaterial facts as
such person's relationship or interest in the emntor transaction are disclosed or are knownecsttareholders entitled to vote thereon, and thegact or transaction
specifically approved in good faith by a vote of tthareholders; or (3) the contract or transadsidair to the Corporation as of the time it islarized, approved

ratified. Interested directors may be counted itexrining the presence of a quorum at a meetinth@fBoard of Directors or of a committee which auites th:
contract or transaction.

SECTION 7. Form of RecordsAny records maintained by the Corporation in tbgular course of its business, including a steclgér, books of accou
and minute books, may be kept electronically, piedithat the records so kept can be convertedcletly legible form and printed within a reasorabme. Thi
Corporation shall so convert any records so kephupe request of any person entitled to inspecstime.

SECTION 8. _Amendments of BylawSubject to the laws of the State of Delawaretaadrovisions of the Certificate of Incorporatitimese Bylaws may |
altered, amended or repealed at any regular meefirsfpareholders (or at any special meeting thededf called for that purpose) by a vote of thershalders i
accordance with Article Il, provided that in thetioe of such meeting, notice of such purpose df@bjiven. Subject to the laws of the State of Dafawthe Certifica
of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Board oEbBliors may by a majority vote of the entire Boar®wectors amend these Bylaws, or waive any piions hereof, ¢
enact such other Bylaws as in their judgment magdwsable for the regulation of the conduct ofaffairs of the Corporation.
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Exhibit 10(g)

Acxiom Corporation
FY2009 Executive Officer Leadership Cash Incentiv®lan

Part One

1.1 Base Compensation

Base compensation represents salary that is paidreenthly.

1.2 Variable Compensation

A variable compensation opportunity reflecting aigeated percentage of base pay is available thrattginment of Company revenue, operating inconaefiiee cash
flow to equity targets. The Company may also esthbiew targets or change existing targets asitndenecessary. Payment will be made within 60 dagse end of
the fiscal year, subject to completion of the athawait.

1.3 Funding

Funding of the variable compensation opportunityibhe after the threshold operating income targetés. The maximum payment at the threshold tasy80% of
opportunity. Additional funding beyond the 90% payrhis contingent upon meeting operating incomgetarbeyond the threshold target. The maximum payoreer
the plan is 200% of opportunity, provided the maximtargets are met for revenue, operating incorddrae cash flow to equity.

Part Two

2.1 Terms & Conditions

e This plan is for FY2009 only. Provisions may or nmet carry over to the next yei
e This plan does not alter an assoc's a-will status, nor does it create, imply or meannplly a term of employment or a contract for congidemployment

e The version of this plan posted online on the AsgedResource Center will be used as the contgotlimcument. It is the associ's responsibility to reviey
revisions announced in writing and subsequentlygabsn the Associate Resource Cer
e« Payments are contingent upon employment with thagamy on the date of payment, unless otherwisefigzkeby law.

o Leaders new to the plan are eligible to participatiie plan beginning with the next full montheaftheir leadership appointment and are eligibleteive &
prorated payout for that quart:

For
current
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the
variable
opportunity
will
be
calculated
based
on
base

pay

adjusted
in

the

first

half

of

the

fiscal
year,
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will

be
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and

pro-

rated

for

the
remainder
of



the

fiscal
year.

In

the

event

of

retirement,

layoff,

or

death,

leaders

or

their

beneficiaries

may,

at

the

Company’s

discretion,

receive

a

prorated

payout

based

on

the

actual

employment

period.
Leaders
on
an
approved
leave
of
absence
(STD,
FMLA,
military,
jury,
or
approved
unpaid
leave)
are
eligible
to
participate
if
they
worked
any
portion
of
the
plan
period,
and
are
eligible
to
receive
a
prorated
payout
based
on
the
actual
time

worked.



e The plan is administered by the Corporate InteBwmhpensation Committee based upon the terms esdtatlby the Acxiom Board of Direct’ Compensatic
Committee, which is authorized to modify or diséouné the plan as it deems necess



Exhibit 10(n)
EXECUTIVE SECURITY AGREEMENT
This Executive Security Agreement is made and edtarto effective as of the 8th day of April, 200Bffective Date”), by and between

“Executive”), an individual, and Acxiom Corporatiosm Delaware corporation having its principal plat®usiness at 1 Information Way,
Little Rock, Arkansas 72202, and its successorsaas@ns (“Company”).

WHEREAS, Executive is a senior leader or key exeeudf the Company and has made and is expecteshtinue to make significant contributions to thert
and long term success of the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company considers the establishmeht@intenance of a sound and vital management és&ential to protecting and enhancing the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders;

WHEREAS, the Company recognizes that, as is the frasmost publicly held companies, the possibititya Change of Control (as defined herein) exeatsl,
that possibility, together with the uncertainty apstions that it may raise among managementresajt in the departure or distraction of the Conypgleadership to
the detriment of the Company and its shareholders;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company dketermined that appropriate steps should be takegirtforce and encourage the continued attentiol
dedication of certain members of the Company'sdesiidp to their assigned duties without distractiothe face of potentially disturbing circumstasegising from the
possibility of a Change of Control of the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to assure itself smstéckholders of both the present and futureicoity of its management and desires to estabkstam
minimum severance benefits for its officers anceottey executives, including Executive, applicabléhe event of a Change in Control; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide additiamdiicement for Executive to continue to remairhia ¢mploy of the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Company and Executive agrdeliasvs:

1. Defined Terms For purposes of this Agreement, the followingreishall have the meanings indicated below:

(@) “ Cause’ Termination by the Company of Executive’'s empimnt for "Cause" means termination upon (i) Exeesiwillful and continued failure to

satisfactorily perform his or her material dutieitvthe Company (other than any failure resultiranf Executive’s incapacity due to physical or meitirzess), after a
written demand for satisfactory performance is\wdgbd to Executive by the Executive’s leader

1
or the chief executive officer (“CEQ”) (or if Exeiive is the CEO, then by the Chairman of the Corspgan Committee of the Board of Directors) thacsfically
identifies the manner in which the Company belieb@s$ Executive has not satisfactorily performesidri her material duties; or (ii) Executive’s willfy engaging in
misconduct that is materially injurious to the Ca@mp, monetarily or otherwise. For purposes of 8gstion 1(a), no act, or failure to act, on Exeai§ part will be
considered "willful* unless done, or omitted todmne, by Executive not in good faith and withowtsenable belief that Executive’s action or omissi@s in the best
interest of the Company. Notwithstanding the ab&escutive will not be deemed to have been terrah&dr Cause unless and until Executive has beemgai copy of
a the notice of termination specified herein, aféarsonable notice to Executive and an opportdait{xecutive, together with Executive’s counselbe heard before:
(x) the direct leader of Executi's leader or (y) if Executive is an elected offioéthe Company, the Board of Directors of



Company; and a finding that in the good faith opinodf the leader of Executi’'s leader or, in the case of an elected officeindirig that in the good faith opinion
two-thirds of the Board of Directors, Executive comettthe conduct set forth above in clauses (i)ipofithis Section 1(a) and specifying the partérslof that finding
in detail.

(b) “ Change of Contral’ A “Change of Control’shall mean the occurrence of any of the followingres during the period in which this Agreen
remains in effect:

0] the acquisition by any person, entity'gmoup,” within the meaning of Sections 13(d) @{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), other than the Company of its subsidiaries or other entities colfebby the Company, or any employee benefit plan
maintained by the Company or by any of its subsielaor other entities controlled by the Compariypeneficial ownership (within the meaning of Raigd-3
promulgated under the Exchange Act) of 50% or noftée total voting power represented by the thetstanding Voting Securities, regardless of whether
transaction or event by which the foregoing 50%lés exceeded is approved by the Incumbent Baard;

(i) the Company files a report with the Séttess and Exchange Commission disclosing in respdn a Current Report on Form 8-K or Schedule
14A (or successor form, report or schedule) thettange in control (as defined by such forms, reportschedules) has occurred; or

(iii)  individuals who, as of the date hereadpnstitute the Board of Directors of the Compaimg (incumbent Board”) cease for any reason to
constitute at least a majority of the Board of Biogs of the Company, provided  (a) that any person becoming a member of the BolBdrectors of the
Company subsequent to the date hereof whose eldcticmmomination for election by the Company’s &twalders) was approved by a vote of at least a ritygjo
of the members then comprising the Incumbent Behedl be, for purposes of this Agreement, consitlesethough such person were a member of the
Incumbent

2
Board, or (b) that any member of the Board of Dives of the Company who is nominated in any defieiproxy statement furnished to stockholders ef th
Company in connection with the solicitation of pieson behalf of the Board of Directors of the Campshall be, for purposes of this Agreement, a®red
as a member of the Incumbent Board; provided howy¢hat any individual who has been elected a membthe Company’s Board of Directors in opposition
to a solicitation of proxies by or on behalf of thhembers of the Incumbent Board, or a committeretifeshall not be deemed a member of the Incumbent
Board; or

(iv)  the Company is merged, combined, constéid or reorganized with or into another corporatioother legal person (“Acquiring Person”), or
the Company sells or otherwise transfers all ostautially all of its assets to an Acquiring Persaimd, as a result of such merger, combinatiorsaatation or
reorganization or sale or transfer of assets,tlems a majority of the combined voting power of then outstanding securities of the Acquiring Pera@ held
in the aggregate by holders of Voting Securitiest@at term is defined) immediately prior to su@nsaction; or

(v) the Company is dissolved or liquidat

(c) “ Disability.” “Disability” shall mean that at the time Exeorgis employment is terminated he or she shall leen unable to perform the duties of his
or her position for a period of at least six (6hisecutive months as the result of total and perntaneapability due to physical or mental illnessmury.

(d) “ Good Reasori Termination for "Good Reason" means terminatigrExecutive of his or her employment within thyears (if a Change of Control
occurs between April 8, 2008 and March



2009) or two years (if a Change of Control occiesveen April 1, 2009 and March 31, 2010) followthg initial existence of at least one of the folilogvconditions
without the consent of the Executive:

0] A material diminution in the title, afes or authority or in the nature of Executivesponsibilities as they existed immediately prioat
Change of Control, except in connection with threnfeation of Executive’s employment for Cause osdbiility or as a result of Executive’s death or by
Executive other than for Good Reason; or

(i) A material diminution by the CompanyHkixecutive's base salary as in effect immediatelgrgo the Change of Control unless such reduction
is made to all other similarly situated employe®s;

(i)  The Company's requiring Executive tolimsed more than forffiwe (45) miles from the location where he or shéased immediately prior tc
Change of Control, except for required travel a@ompany's business to an extent substantiallyistent with Executive’s business travel obligasignior to
the Change in Control, or if Executive consentthd relocation, the failure by

3
the Company to pay (or reimburse Executive foryedlsonable moving expenses incurred by Executit@ indemnify Executive against any loss realired
the sale of Executive’s principal residence in @wtion with that relocation; or

(iv)  The taking of any action by the Companghwespect to any incentive compensation plan(gigoeements in which Executive is participatin
in effect, immediately prior to a Change of Contwhich has the effect of a material diminutiorthe total benefits provided to the Executive uralesuch
incentive compensation plans; provided howevet, filen modifications or terminations, changes irtipgation levels or payment changes applying dgua
all similarly situated employees, including Exegatido not satisfy this section; or

) The taking of any action by the Comparithwespect to any retirement plan, life insuraplas, health and accident plan, disability plamde
benefit, paid days off benefit or another bendéhpgn which Executive is participating immediatgiyor to a Change of Control which has the effda
material diminution in the total benefits providedhe Executive under all such benefit plans; or

(vi)  The failure by the Company to obtain #esumption of the Company’s obligations underAlgieeement by any successor, as contemplated in
Section 7.

Provided however, that Executive must provide emithotice of the condition giving rise to the righterminate for Good Reason within 90 days ofitfitéal existence
of such condition. The Company has thirty (30) ddlye "Cure Period") to cure the acts or omiss@imgig rise to such condition. In the event thattsa cure is
effectuated by the end of the Cure Period, angnasion by Executive shall no longer qualify as@@ Reason termination under the terms of this égent.

(e)  “Voting Securities’ “Voting Securities” shall mean all outstandiniggses of voting capital stock of the Company ketito vote generally in the
election of directors of the Company.

2. Term Subject to the provisions of Sections 3 and £dieithis Agreement shall continue until the earie i) either party provides written notice tceth
other of its intention to unilaterally terminateetAgreement as specified in section 4(a); ii) Exieels resignation without Good Reason; iii) Execels other
termination of employment unless termination of Aggeement would be invalid under section 4(b);Executive’s death; or (v) March 31, 2030pvided, however
that if prior to March 31, 2010 the Company has r@nced discussions with any third person(s) thahately results in a Change of Control which oscafter March
31, 2010, the Agreement shall remain in effectth&ttime of the



occurrence of any of these events, this Agreenteit se deemed terminated without further actiaquneed by either party
4

3. Payments following Change of Control and Terminatid Employmen.

(a) In the event a Change of Control of the Compzoours between April 8, 2008 and March 30, 2008, iExecutive’s employment with the
Company is terminated other than for Cause or Olisaby the Company or the Acquiring Person oEKecutive resigns for Good Reason within three yefter such
Change of Control, the Company shall, within telesdar days of the date of any such terminatioengployment (“Termination Date”), make a single, jusum cash
severance payment to Executive equal to: (i) ifteemination Date occurs within one year of the i@f&of Control, 2 times Executive’s annualized uddble
compensation for the base period consisting ofrthst recent five taxable years ending before the ola which the Change of Control occurs; (iijié fTermination
Date occurs between one and two years of the Chafri@entrol, 1 times Executive’s annualized inchldicompensation for the base period consistirthefmost
recent five taxable years ending before the datelioh the Change of Control occurs; or (iii) ietffermination Date occurs between two and threesyafethe Change
of Control, .5 times Executive’s annualized inchldicompensation for the base period consistingemost recent five taxable years ending befaredtite on which
the Change of Control occurs.

(b) In the event a Change of Control of the Compaggurs between March 31, 2009 and March 31, 28 f Executive’'s employment with the
Company is terminated other than for Cause or Dligaby the Company or the Acquiring Person oEKecutive resigns for Good Reason within two yedter such
Change of Control, the Company shall, within teledar days of the date of any such terminatioenmployment (“Termination Date”), make a single, jusum cash
severance payment to Executive equal to: (i) ifteemination Date occurs within one year of the i@feaof Control, 1 times Executive’s annualized uddble
compensation for the base period consisting ofrthet recent five taxable years ending before tie ola which the Change of Control occurs; or {ithe Termination
Date occurs between one and two years of the Chafr@entrol, .5 times Executive’s annualized indhie compensation for the base period consistintp@imost
recent five taxable years ending before the datwhioh the Change of Control occurs.

(c) For purposes of this Section 3, the phrasesualized includible compensation” and “base petiathd any terms relating to such phrases shall
the meanings set forth in Section 280G of the ireRevenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), as amermiegh)y subsequent provision, and the Treasury atignk
promulgated thereunder. In the event Executivebeas employed with the Company for less than fixalble years prior to a Change of Control, the ipased for
calculating the payments called for in this Sec8wshall be determined in accordance with Sect83(x20f the Code and the Treasury regulations prgatet
thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Camypshall have no obligation to make any payme#ix@cutive under this Agreement if Executive’s eoyphent is
terminated for Cause, due to Executive’s deathisalillity, or as a result of Executive’s retirementesignation other than for Good Reason.
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4, Termination of Agreemer.

(a) This Agreement and/or the employment of Exeetiereunder may be unilaterally terminated byGbmpany, without incurring any obligation
under Section 3 above, at any time for any readuwatswever prior to the occurrence or pendencyGiiange of Control.

(b) Notwithstanding paragraph 4(a) of this Agreemany termination of this Agreement or the emplenof Executive by the Company following
the commencement of discussions with a third petisanultimately results in a Change of Controllsba deemed to be a termination of this Agreen



or Executiv’'s employment after a Change of Control for purpasékis Agreement, and any attempt by the Compgangrminate this Agreement shall be rendered
and void. Any termination by Executive for Good Beafollowing commencement of discussions withtthiel party that ultimately results in a ChangeCaintrol with

that third party shall be deemed a terminationxaddtitive’s employment after a Change of Contrayvted that, the events qualifying the terminatsrone for Good
Reason were as a result of such discussions witindaparty regarding a possible Change of Cordgral the leader making the decision and/or appraviegccurrence
of such events was aware of such discussions withdaparty.

5. Additional Payments by the Compaihy the event that all or any portion of any payter benefit paid to Executive under the termSe€tion 3 or
otherwise paid or payable or distributed to Exe@lih connection with, or arising out of, his or kenployment with the Company or a Change of Contreffective
control of the Company (collectively the “Paymetsibuld be subject to the excise tax imposed byi@ed999 of the Code, or any successor providigreason of
being considered an “excess parachute paynandefined in Section 280G of the Code, or anyessmr provision, or to any similar tax imposed tayesor local law, ¢
any interest or penalties with respect to suci{gaxh tax or taxes, together with any such inteaedtpenalties, being collectively referred tores“Excise Tax”), then
Executive shall be entitled to receive from the @any an additional payment or payments (collecfivitle “Gross-Up Payment”), such that the net arhoetained by
Executive, after deduction and/or payment of angi&Tax on the Payments and the Gross-Up Paymdrdrey federal, state and local income tax on ttes&Up
Payment, including penalties and interest, shaédpeal to the Payments. All Gross Up Payments brigtaid by the Company within two and a half (2#énths after
the close of the Executive’s taxable year whictudes the Termination Date (“Due Date”). Notwithgtang the foregoing sentence to the contrary,beitomes
administratively impracticable to make all the Gradp Payments by the Due Date and as of the TefimmnBate such impracticability was unforeseeatien all of
such Gross-Up Payments shall be made as soon asistdatively practicable after the Due Date. Fargoses of determining whether it is administrdgive
impracticable to make all the Gross Up PaymenthbeyDue Date, an action or failure to act of thedtxive or a person under the Executive’s consuath as a failure
to timely provide necessary information or docuraénn, is
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not an unforeseeable event. Actions or failuresctdoy the Executive or a person under the Exeglstizontrol that result in the inability of the Cpamy to make
payment by the Due Date will result in a forfeitafecthe Gross Up Payment specified by this secfitie intent of the parties is that Executive shedkive no more or
no less than what Executive would have receivedihadayments not been subject to the Excise Tax.

All determinations required to be made under tkgisti®n 5, including whether an Excise Tax is pagdiyl Executive and the amount of such Excise Tiad, a
whether a Gross-Up Payment is required to be pattidd Company to Executive and the amount of sugds&Up Payment, if any, shall be made by the ad@umfirm
that is the Company'’s independent auditor as ofitte immediately prior to the Change of Controlsuch other nationally recognized accounting fimortually
agreeable to the Company and Executive (the “Actiogi-irm”). The Accounting Firm shall submit itetgrmination and detailed supporting calculati@enkdth the
Company and Executive within thirty (30) calendaysi after the Termination Date of Executive’s sswvith the Company. If the Accounting Firm deteres that any
Excise Tax is payable by Executive, the Companyl gt the required Gross-Up Payment to Executiithiwfive (5) business days after receipt of sdekermination
and calculations with respect to any Payment tactee. If the Accounting Firm determines that naiSe Tax is payable by Executive, it shall, atshene time as it
makes such determination, furnish the Company amdiive an opinion that Executive has substaatigthority not to report any Excise Tax on his arfeeeral, state
or local income or other tax return. As a resulthef uncertainty in the application of Section 489¢he Code (or any successor provision theretd)the possibility of
similar uncertainty regarding applicable stateomal tax laws at the time of any determinationtisy Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible thedss-Up Payments
which will not have been made by the Company shoufdct have been made (an “Underpayment”), coasisvith the calculations required to be made Unader. In
the event that Executive thereafter is ever requivamake a payment of any Excise Tax, Executiadl slirect the



Accounting Firm to determine the amount of the Updgment that has occurred and to submit its detetion and detailed supporting calculations tdttbe
Company and Executive as promptly as possible.ump Underpayment shall be promptly paid by the gamg to, or for the benefit of, Executive withindi(5)
business days after receipt of such determinatiohcalculations. The Company shall be solely resida for paying any fees charged by the Accounkimgh for its
services in connection herewith.

6. Costs of Enforcemenif the Company breaches this Agreement, or ihinithree (3) years following a Change of Conthalttoccurs between April 8,
2008 and March 30, 2009, or if within two (2) yeafs Change of Control that occurs between Mafc2809 and March 31, 2010 (a) Executive’s emplayise
terminated by the Company other than for Causeisafility, or (b) Executive terminates his or her@oyment for Good Reason, the Company will reinsbur
Executive for all legal fees and expenses reasgnatlirred by him or her by the last day of Exeeels second taxable year following the taxable yelich includes
his or her Termination Date as a result of thahteation (including all those fees and expensesnyf, incurred in contesting or disputing the teration or in seeking to
obtain or enforce any right or
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benefit provided by this Agreement). All reimbursarts made hereunder must be made on or beforagheddy of the Executive’s third taxable year follog the
taxable year which includes his or her Terminafdate as a result of that termination. Failure oé&xive to submit such expenses for reimbursentdeast sixty (60)
days prior to the last day of the applicable tagataar will result in forfeiture of the expense.

7. Successor Liability and N-Assignmen.

(@) The Company will require any successdrefiver direct or indirect, by purchase, mergersobdation, reorganization or otherwise) to all or
substantially all of the business or assets ofibmpany expressly to assume and agree to perfasnrAgneement in the same manner and to the sareatakie
Company would be required to perform if no suctcession had taken place. Failure of the Companyptain that agreement prior to the effectivenessngfsuccessic
will be a breach of this Agreement and will entlrecutive to compensation from the Company instimae amount and on the same terms as he or she beehtitlec
under this Agreement if he or she terminated empkyt for Good Reason within three (3) years follay@ Change of Control, except that for purposes of
implementing the foregoing, the date on which thatcession becomes effective will be deemed theihation Date. This Agreement will be binding ugord inure to
the benefit of the Company and any successor asguirectly or indirectly, all or substantiallyl af the business assets of the Company wheth@ubghase, merger,
consolidation, reorganization or otherwise, bus thijreement will not otherwise be assignable, feaable or delegable by the Company.

(b) This Agreement will inure to the benefitand be enforceable by Executive’s personal galleepresentatives, executors, administrator&essors,
heirs, distributees and legatees.

(c) This Agreement is personal in nature a@ither of the parties hereto shall, without thesemt of the other, assign, transfer or delegaeAtireement or
any rights or obligations hereunder except as esgtygrovided herein. Without limiting the generabr effect of the foregoing, Executive’s rightreceive payments
hereunder will not be assignable, transferablesteghble, whether by pledge, creation of a securigrest, or otherwise, other than by a transyeEkecutive’s will or
by the laws of descent and distribution and, ingbent of any attempted assignment or transferagnto this Section 7(c), the Company shall havdiability to pay
any amount so attempted to be assigned, transferréelegated.

8. Employment At Will Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contdimerein, Executive’'s employment with the Compangat for any specified
term and may be terminated by Executive or by tbe@any at any time, for any reason, with or withoautse, without liability except with respect te frayments
provided hereunder or as required by law or angrotbntract or benefit pla




9. Compliance with Section 409A of the €od@his Agreement is intended to meet the short-eferral exception to Section 409A of the Code, as
amended, or
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any subsequent provision, and shall be interpretedistent with the requirements of such excem®provided in the Code, the Treasury regulatiosamplgated
thereunder and any other interpretative guidarsees thereunder.

10. Offset Against Other Paymen#sny payment due to Executive under the termé$isf Agreement shall be decreased by the amourawmidier paid to
Executive as severance, separation or similar pyyenents made in connection with his or her tertironaof employment from Company.

11. Modification or WaiverNo amendment, modification or waiver of this Agmeent shall be binding or effective for any purposkess it is made in
writing and signed by the party against whom erdorent of such amendment, modification or waivesoisght. No course of dealing between the partiésiso
Agreement shall be deemed to affect or to modifyeiad or discharge any provision or term of thisefgnent. No delay on the part of the Company or &kezin the
exercise of any of their respective rights or reimedhall operate as a waiver thereof, and noeioigpartial exercise by the Company or Executiveny such right or
remedy shall preclude other or further exerciseetbfe A waiver of right or remedy on any one ocoasshall not be construed as a bar to or waivangfsuch right or
remedy on any other occasion.

12. Severability Whenever possible each provision and term ofAhi®ement shall be interpreted in such manneo &g effective and valid under
applicable law, but if any provision or term ofglAgreement shall be held to be prohibited by walid under such applicable law, then such prowisioterm shall be
ineffective only to the extent of such prohibitioninvalidity, without invalidating or affecting iany manner whatsoever the remainder of such poov@ term or the
remaining provisions or terms of this Agreement.

13. Entire AgreemenfThis Agreement constitutes the entire agreemfethieoparties hereto with respect to this transactmay be modified only by a
written agreement signed by both parties, and seges any prior agreements and representatiorsriegtto the subject matter hereof. This Agreenenbt intendec
however, to supercede or modify any other existimggen employment agreement between Executiveta@dCompany.

14. Governing LawExcept as may otherwise be specifically provithedny related agreements referenced herein oroéiptequired by law, this
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of theeStaDelaware.

15. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in one or moratesparts, all of which taken together shall cdogtione and the same instrument.

16. CaptionsThe caption headings are used in this Agreemagtas a matter of convenience and for referenue tiae parties hereto agree that the
caption headings do not define, limit, or descthxescope of this Agreement nor determine the frakany provision.
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17. Notices Any notice given with respect to this Agreemdrmdlsbe in writing and shall be given by personglivery, by electronic transmission
(facsimile or email) or by deposit in the Uniteét®s Mail or FedEx, addressed to the respectiveeades of the parties as set forth herein or &t stieer addresses as
may be provided by any party to the other in wgtin the manner herein stated, and, if to the Campaddressed to the attention of the Company’seSay. All
notices shall be effective only upon receipt bydddressee.



18. Good Faitt. In all matters in connection herewith, the paragree that each shall act in good faith in piagithformation to or dealing with anoth
party hereunder, and in complying with the requieats of this Agreement and otherwise consummatiagransactions herein contemplated.

19. Employment by a Related Entitither the Company or a subsidiary or other gniitimately controlled by the Company may be Exaa’s legal
employer. For purposes of this Agreement, any eefee to Executive’s termination of employment wita Company means termination of employment wigh th
Company and all subsidiaries or other entitiesnately controlled by the Company, and does notigiela transfer of employment between any of theme.actions
referred to under the definition of "Good ReasanSection 1(d) include the actions of the Comparipacutive’s employing entity, as applicable. Tinéigations
created under this Agreement are obligations ofXtbeapany. A change in control of a subsidiary tveotentity which employs Executive will not consté a Change in
Control for purposes of this Agreement unless tiesdso a contemporaneous Change in Control o€trapany.

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intendimdp¢ legally bound hereby, have executed this Agese effective as of the date first above written.

ACXIOM CORPORATION

Jerry C. Jones, Business Development/Legal Le

Catherine L. Hughes, Secret:

EXECUTIVE

(signature)

Name:

Address:

(please print address)
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Exhibit 10(s)

ASSET PURCHASE AND LICENSE AGREEMENT

ASSET PURCHASE AND LICENSE AGREEMENT (this “ Agreent”) dated as of December 29, 2005 (the “ Effectivad?), by and between Acxiom
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“ Acxidror “ Seller”), and EMC Corporation, a Massachusetts corpanaand EMC (Benelux) B.V., S.a.r.l., a Luxembourg
limited liability company (together, " EMCor “ Buyer”).

In consideration of the foregoing and for other@d@aad valuable consideration, the receipt andaaffcy of which is hereby acknowledged, Seller Baogler
each hereby agree as follows:

1. Acquired AssetsSeller, by this Agreement, does hereby convdy,teensfer, assign, grant, release, set overficorand deliver to Buyer all of Selley’
right, title and interest in and to the followingsats, properties, privileges, business and rightsvery nature and description, tangible or igtate, real, personal or
mixed and wherever situated, located or existing)léctively, the “ Acquired Asset3:

€) The technology described on Exhibif) higreto, including without limitation all currerititure and prior versions of such technology dhd a
derivative works of such technology (collectivelye “ Base Technolog$), and all know how, trade secrets, proprietafpimation, product documentation,
software, methodologies, processes, tools, diagnasst and maintenance aids that are or have Umsshin connection with the development, licensing
maintenance or distribution of the Base Technolmggre necessary for Buyer to develop, manufacmagntain or distribute the Base Technology or any
derivative works thereof, in each case, in ordgraonit Buyer, to the maximum extent possible,awedop, manufacture, maintain, distribute, or eregag
similar activities with respect to the Base Tecbgglin the future, or any derivative works thereof;

(b) (i) All patents and patent applicatioissued or pending, worldwide assigned to Sell@nihg subject matter related to the Base Techiyplog
if any; and (ii) all copyrighted materials and ws+or-hire owned by Seller related to the Base Technol8gjler shall execute and deliver such instrumant
take such other action as may be requested by Boysarfect or protect Buyer's intellectual propeights in the Acquired Assets and to carry oet th
assignments contemplated in this Section 1, andirglasonably assist Buyer at Buyer's expense laid tespective nominees to secure, and maintain, f
Buyer's own benefit all such intellectual propeights in the Acquired Assets in any and all coiastrSeller shall reasonably cooperate with Buy@&uger's
expense in the filing and prosecution of any patemopyright applications that Buyer may elecfil®mon the Acquired Assets.

(c) To the extent permitted under sucteagrents, the software license and maintenanceragneg (and all rights and obligations of Seller
thereunder) of Seller for third party software amdéchnology included in or related to the Basehif®logy (collectively, the " Included License Agneents');
provided that all software license and maintenagreements for third party software and/or techgywlacluded in or related to the Base Technologjctviare
not assignable or transferable hereunder or seffién scope to cover the Acquired Assets and therigss (as defined below) (collectively, the " IEged
License Agreementsand, together with the Included License Agreemgthie “ License Agreemenritsshall be listed in Exhibit 1(c) hereto along vihe
Included License Agreements and, with respect ¢ each Excluded License Agreement, Seller agresgi) within two (2) years of the date of this
Agreement or upon Buyer’s exercise of its optioadquire the Division in accordance with the primris of this Agreement, whichever shall occur sepne
Seller shall, at its own expense,




either negotiate an Included License Agreement reitipect to the content of such Excluded Licenseément or develop internally or obtain from aerlate
source and under an Included License Agreementantizly equivalent technology for inclusion iretcquired Assets and assign such Included Licemse
Buyer as an Acquired Asset at no additional chapgeyided that any applicable license fees and/galties shall be treated in a manner consistetfit thie
treatment of such fees in such Excluded Licensee@ment and provided further that Buyer and Sellell snutually agree in the Marketing Agreement (as
described in Section 16 below) for the appropnietes through of such license fees and / or rogattiether appropriate treatment, (i) in the imeiSeller
shall provide, at its own expense, such licensélsga@ontent of each Excluded License AgreemeBiugsr, the Division and its customers may require t
conduct the Business and (iii) in the event thateBudetermines, within 45 days of the date of &dseement that Exhibit 1(c) should include theitigtof
additional licenses, Seller shall reasonably coatpewith Buyer to amend such Exhibit 1(c) and tmply with the provisions of this Section 1(c) witsspect t
any such additional licenses;

(d) All of Seller's development and partriepsagreements (and all rights and obligationselfe® thereunder) related to the Base Technology,
each of which is listed on Exhibit 1(d) heretaaify (collectively, the “ Development Agreemehtnd, together with the License Agreements, téeduired
Contracts));

(e) With respect to the Base Technologggtebnic versions (paper version if electronic i@rsot available) of Seller’s (i) source code, thiee
in print, magnetically stored, or in some othenfpand related materials in the possession of aitable to Seller, including, but not limited t@roments, flow
charts, documentation, and manuals, and implementspecifics (collectively, “ Source Codlg it being understood that Seller’s obligationdeliver actual
electronic versions of such Source Code shall tisfieal upon the delivery to Buyer of all versiasfssuch Source Code currently used or relied upon i
connection with the development, manufacture, neaguice or distribution of any product or any susseproduct; provided that Buyer shall have thatrig
require that Seller deliver, promptly upon Buyegguest, any prior version or versions of such &@ode in the possession of or available to Sdiigr
system software which is a part of the Base Tedgyolexcept that with respect to system softwaikflsoftware covered by an Excluded License Agregme
Seller's obligation to Buyer shall be as set famth(c); (iii) build software (package and builéé) except that with respect to build software ceddy
an Excluded License Agreement, Seller's obligatioBuyer shall be as set forth in 1(c); (iv) rekeasripts, procedures and documentation; (v) téttss
scripts, procedures and process documentationpéviprmance documentation, programs and resuks (sd) product specifications; (viii) functional
specifications; (ix) design specifications; and¢uytomer service and support documentation amdiisédry (database, if applicable);

® Copies of all competitive analysis arsiness development information for the Base Telclgyoand any correspondence of Seller related
thereto; and

(9) Copies of all marketing and sales materials ofeBétir the Base Technolog

For purposes of this Section 1, EMC Corporatiorl sfeadeemed to be the acquiror of all such rigtie and interest in the Base Technology in Ndéktherica
and EMC (Benelux) B.V., S.a.r.l. shall be deemebedhe acquiror of all such right, title and iefgtrin the Base Technology everywhere else in thrédw

2. Excluded AssetdNotwithstanding the provisions of Section 1, #uguired Assets shall not include, without limitatj any assets, properties or
privileges of Seller not included in the Acquiredsits including without limitation and for purposéglarification only, the assets listed on Exhibi
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hereto and any other part of Se's business (th* Excluded Asset”). Without in any way limiting the foregoing and fdadfication purposes only, know how, tra
secrets, proprietary information, product documima software, methodologies, processes, tootgyrdistic, test and maintenance aids that are aloidied in the
Acquired Assets and are or have been used in cbanetith the development, licensing, maintenancdistribution of the Other Technology and any otbart of
Seller’s business shall be considered to be Exdddsets.

3. Assumed LiabilitiesSubject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet, at the Closing, Buyer shall assume and agrpay, perform, fulfill and
discharge the liabilities and obligations assodatéh the Acquired Assets, if any, which are listen Exhibit 3hereto (such liabilities and obligations are heafter
referred to as the * Assumed Liabiliti8s

4, Excluded Liabilities.

(@) Notwithstanding the provisions of SextB, Buyer is not assuming or in any way becontiatge or responsible for any liability of Selleotn
included in the Assumed Liabilities (collectivetie “ Excluded Liabilities).

(b) Seller shall retain and be responsibidife performance and discharge of all liabilitesl obligations (i) relating to the Excluded Assmtsii)
arising from the ownership of the Acquired Assatepto the Closing (as defined below).

(c) Seller agrees that Buyer is purchadimgassets debt-free and will reimburse the Buyeariy debt with respect to the Acquired Assetsithat
not an Assumed Liability.

5. Purchase Pricén consideration of the sale, transfer and dejiliy Seller to Buyer of the Acquired Assets andhef other agreements of the parties set
forth in this Agreement, and subject to the assiongiy Buyer of the Assumed Liabilities, if any, ygar agrees to pay to Seller an aggregate amodurtiicy
Million Dollars ($30,000,000.00) (the_* Purchaséckf) in cash as follows: (i) Twenty Million Dollarss@0,000,000.00) at Closing; (ii) Five Million Dotk
($5,000,000.00) on April 1, 2006; and (iii) Five INin Dollars ($5,000,000.00) on July 1, 2006, wiEMC Corporation contributing Nineteen Million Nine
Hundred Forty-Three Thousand Dollars ($19,943,000edd EMC (Benelux) B.V., S.a.r.l. contributingrif®illion Fifty-Seven Thousand Dollars
($10,057,000.00) of such aggregate amount. Eacmeatyshall be made by wire transfer of immediatelgilable funds to the account designated by Seller
Seller’'s sale of the Acquired Assets constitutesalated sale of a non-inventory asset.

6. Closing The closing (“ Closing) of the transactions contemplated by this Agreeraball be held at 10:00 A.M. local time at the a#Baof Buyer, 17
South Street, Hopkinton, Massachusetts as of tfeetiife Date (the " Closing Datg

(@) Deliveries at Closint.

0] At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer tlodidwing:
(A) a duly executed counterpart of this Agreem
B) all of the software, product documergatand related marketing material via electronianse

©) all of the Acquired Contracts, with suadsignments thereof and consents to assignmenasi@aif permitted by such
agreements) as are




necessary or appropriate to assure Buyer of thédulefit of the same; ar

(D) such other instruments of sale, transfenveyance and assignment as Buyer shall reayamajuest including, without
limitation, assignment agreements with respectltpadent, trademark and copyright rights of Selieany.

(ii) At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller tlidwing:
(A) a duly executed counterpart of this Agreem
(B) such other instruments of assumptioBelter may reasonably request; and

© the portion of the Purchase Price duglasing by wire transfer of immediately availableds to the account designated by
Seller.

7. Rights of BuyerSeller hereby constitutes and appoints Buyetrtieeand lawful attorney of Seller, with full powefr substitution, in the name of Sel
or Buyer, by, on behalf of and for the benefit afyBr: (a) to demand and receive from time to titheraany portion of the Acquired Assets and to makdorsements
and give receipts and releases for and in respp¢lsesame and any part thereof, (b) to institptesecute, compromise and settle any and all agtliigations (other
than litigation against Seller and its affiliatefficers, directors, employees and authorized ajemtgovernmental or administrative proceedings Buyer may deem
proper in order to collect, assert or enforce daing right or title of any kind in or to any Acqed Assets, (c) to defend or compromise any aaaibns, litigations or
governmental or administrative proceedings in respeany Acquired Assets, provided, however, thigh respect to any claim for which Buyer intendseek
indemnification from Seller under this AgreementiyBr shall not compromise or settle any such adiditigation without Seller’s prior written consg which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, and (d) toltdsueh acts and things in relation to the matsetsforth in the preceding clauses (a) througlagdpuyer shall
reasonably deem appropriate.

8. Further AssuranceEach of Seller and Buyer shall, from time to tiafer the Closing and at the reasonable requebedfther party and without
further consideration, execute and deliver sucth&rinstrumentation of transfer and assignmemake such other actions as may be reasonably ra@gassorder to
more effectively consummate the transactions coplated hereby in an effort to vest in Buyer good aalid title to the Acquired Assets and to givél farce and effec
to the intent of the parties reflected hereby.

9. Representations and Warranties byeGeBeller represents and warrants to Buyer thatepeesentations and warranties contained in tre§@e9 are
true, correct and complete as of the Effective Date

(@) Organization and Standin§eller is a corporation duly organized, validkyséing and in good standing under the laws ofStete of
Delaware and has full corporate power and authtwigonduct its business as presently conductedamioposed to be conducted by it. Seller hal @inas
complied with all provisions of its Certificate fcorporation and By-laws, each as currently ie&ffand is not in default under, or in violatidnany such
provision.

(b) Authority for AgreementSeller has full corporate power and authoritgxecute and deliver this Agreement and to carrytewbligations
thereunder. The execution,




delivery and performance by Seller of this Agreetexs been duly authorized by all necessary cotpation of Seller and no other action on the pg
Seller is required in connection herewith. This égmnent has been duly executed and delivered bgreitl constitutes the valid and legally bindintigattion
of Seller. The execution and delivery of this Agrnemt, the compliance with the provisions hereoBkeler, and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, will not (i) conflict with,sudt in a breach of, constitute (with or withoukduotice or lapse of time or both) a default undesult in the
acceleration of, create in any party the rightdoederate, terminate, modify or cancel, or reqairg notice, consent or waiver under the Certificdte
Incorporation and By-laws of Seller or under angtcact, lease, sublease, sublicense, franchismipéndenture, agreement or mortgage for borromeadey,
Security Interest or other interest to which SeBea party or by which Seller is bound or to whitshassets are subject, (ii) result in the imposiof any
Security Interest upon any assets of Seller gr\idlate any order, writ, injunction, decree, roleregulation applicable to Seller, or any ofgteperties or
assets, except in each case, where such confiéztch, default or other violation would not haveaerial adverse effect on the ability of Buyectmsummate
the transactions contemplated hereby and therainyplrposes of this Agreement, “ Security Intefesteans any mortgage, security interest, encumieranc
claim, charge, or other lien (whether arising bytcact or by operation of law), other than lienstixes not yet due.

(c) Title to Acquired Asset€xcept as set forth on Exhibit 1(c), Seller owmes Acquired Assets and Seller has and is convegilBuyer
hereunder, upon delivery to Buyer of the instruraaittransfer referred to in Section 6, good aridi\tdle to the Acquired Assets. Except as setifan
Exhibit 9(c), none of the Acquired Assets includey software distributed under a license that reguas a condition of use, modification or disttidu of the
software that such software or other software itisted with or combined with the software be (8aosed or distributed in source code form; (dgtised for
the purpose of making the derivative works or (@dlistributable at no charge (* Open Source Safiw)a

(d) ContractsSeller has furnished to Buyer a correct and ceteptopy of each Acquired Contract listed on Exkilh{c) and 1(d), if any, and
identified thereon what if any consents of any perare required to assign the Acquired ContracButger. Seller has performed all obligations urttier
Acquired Contracts required to be performed byidgmto the Closing. Seller is not in breach of angterial term or provision of any Acquired Contrdm the
knowledge of Seller, there does not exist underAgguired Contract any event of default, exceptaioy event which has not had and is not reasoniikly to
have a material adverse effect on the Acquired tA&ss@d no claim has been made against Selleiiradlegy event of default. All Acquired Contracte & full
force and effect and enforceable against each faeteto.

(e) ConsentsNo consent of any third party is required to beamed by Seller and no consent, approval, ordéiroaization of, or registration,
qualification, designation, declaration or filingttvany governmental authority is required in castizen with the execution and delivery of this Agment or
the consummation of the transactions contemplateebly.

(U] Intellectual PropertyAll patents, patent applications, copyrightsgéaames, trademarks and trademark applicationshvetne owned by or
licensed to Seller or in which Seller has an irgetieat is directly related to the Base Technolmpflectively and, together with the know how, eagkcrets an
proprietary information included in the Base Tedbgg, the " Intellectual Propert) are listed on Exhibit 9(f). All of Seller’s patts and registered trademarks
that are directly related to the Base Technologsetizeen duly registered in, filed in or issued iy applicable patent office of each country idégdiin Exhibit
9(f), and have been properly maintained and renewadcordance with all applicable laws and regoiest of each
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such country. The use of the Intellectual Propeotytemplated by this Agreement does not requiredmsent of any other Person except to the extantiny
such consent has already been provided by comrdicense or except as noted in Exhibit 1(c). Exees noted in Exhibit 1(c), all of Seller’s rightsand
interest in the Intellectual Property are freegnsferable (except as otherwise provided by law)aae owned exclusively by Seller free and clearof
Security Interests. Except for those items idesdifin Exhibit 1(c), no other Person has an intdrest right or license to use, or right to acquirethe right to
license any other Person to use (whether contingresttherwise), any Intellectual Property; no claior demands of any other Person pertaining théeste
been asserted against Seller in writing, and nogedings have been instituted or are pending dhet@nowledge of Seller, threatened, which chgkeSellers
rights in respect thereof; to the knowledge of &elone of the Intellectual Property of Sellebééng infringed by another Person, nor are anyeiit subject t
any outstanding order, decree, ruling, chargepitjon, judgment or stipulation; and no claim hastomade, or to the knowledge of Seller, is threste
charging Seller with infringement of any adverdadyd patent, trademark, trade secret or copyrigbtteer intellectual property. Seller has andassferring to
Buyer valid licenses for all third party softwamedatechnology included in the Acquired Assets.gdtsonnel, including employees, agents, consultards
contractors, who have contributed to or particigatethe conception and development of any paBeifer’s Intellectual Property rights on behalS#ller have
executed confidentiality, non-disclosure and ietgtihal property ownership agreements, represeatetipies of which have, or will be, furnished toyBu No
current or former partner, director, officer, emy@e, consultant, independent contractor or aféil@tSeller (or any predecessor in interest) &fter giving
effect to the transactions contemplated herein, omnetain any rights in or to any Intellectual peaty. No security measures have been implementtuei
software of Seller included in the Acquired Assetéch would impair operation thereof, except suaasures as have been disclosed to Buyer. The Base
Technology does not contain any device or featestgmhed to disrupt, disable, or otherwise impadrftinctioning of any such software.

(9) Trade Secrets and Customer LiSsller has the right to use, free and clear gfcdaims or rights of any other Person, all traelersts,
customer lists and secret processes and know-rdudied in the Acquired Assets required for or usetthe marketing of the Base Technology. With relgar
the Base Technology and to the knowledge of Selelter is not in any way making an unlawful or ngful use of any confidential information, know-hoov
trade secrets of any other Person.

(h) Litigation. There is no litigation or governmental or adntirgisve action, suit, proceeding or investigatidorfiestic or foreign) pending or,
the knowledge of Seller, threatened against Safidrdirectly related to the Base Technology, SoQmde or Acquired Contracts. No claims or demaridsp
other Person pertaining thereto have been assagtgdst Seller in writing, and no proceedings Haeen instituted or are pending or, to the knowleafgeeller
threatened, which challenge Seller’s rights in eesphereof.

0] Sufficiency. Seller hereby represents and warrants that thieément is sufficient to transfer and convey titithe Acquired Assets to Buyer
under applicable law.

0] Export LicensesSeller acknowledges that the Acquired Assets aiestito the export jurisdiction of the United $stspecifically the Expc
Administration Regulations and Export Control Cifisation Number (ECCN) 5D002. Seller represents tto Seller’'s knowledge, it has complied with all
applicable international laws and regulations,udelg, without limitation, the US Export Administien regulations in the development, use and mantetf
the Acquired Assets and in its business relatioitts third parties concerning the Acquired Assets

6




(k) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SET FORTH IN THISGHON 9, THE ACQUIRED ASSETS AND THE OTHER TECHNOIGY LICENSE
PROVIDED BY THIS AGREEMENT ARE PROVIDED “AS IS”, WIHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, BYSELLER OR ITS
AFFILIATES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PRTICULAR
PURPOSE, COMPLETENESS, ACCURACY, AVAILABILITY, TITE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, TRADE USAGE, COURSE OF DEALIN®R COURSE
OF PERFORMANCE. THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO PERFORMANCIE OHE ACQUIRED ASSETS AND THE OTHER TECHNOLOGY LIGCEE ARE
WITH BUYER AND THERE IS NO GUARANTEE THAT THE ACQURED ASSETS AND THE OTHER TECHNOLOGY LICENSE PROVIDBEJNDER
THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT WILL MEET THE REQUIREMMTS OF BUYER, BE ERROR FREE, OR OPERATE WITHOUT IBRRUPTION.

10. Representations and Warranties by BuBeyer represents and warrants to Seller th&uteer’'s actual knowledge, the representations aadamties
contained in this Section 10 are true, correct@nrdplete as of the Effective Date.

@) Organization and StandinBuyer is a corporation duly organized, validlysting and in good standing under the laws of tben@onwealth
of Massachusetts and has full corporate power atiiety to conduct its business as presently cotetl Buyer is not in default under, or in violatiof, any
provision of its Articles of Organization or RegtdBy-laws, each as currently in effect.

(b) Authority for AgreementBuyer has full corporate power and authorityxeaute and deliver this Agreement and to carnyitsudbligations
hereunder. The execution, delivery and performduycBuyer of this Agreement has been duly authorlzedll necessary corporate action of Buyer and no
other action on the part of Buyer is required inroection herewith. This Agreement has been dulgees and delivered by Buyer and constitutes tlid ead
legally binding obligation of Buyer. The executiand delivery of this Agreement, the compliance wli provisions hereof by Buyer, and the consurmonaii
the transactions contemplated hereby, will notgiflict with, result in a breach of, constituteittwor without due notice or lapse of time or baghjefault
under, result in the acceleration of, create inpayy the right to accelerate, terminate, modifgancel, or require any notice, consent or waineter the
Articles of Organization or Restated By-laws of Bupr under any contract, lease, sublease, subbcéranchise, permit, indenture, agreement orgagg for
borrowed money, Security Interest or other intet@sthich Buyer is a party or by which Buyer is bdwr to which its assets are subject, (ii) resuthe
imposition of any Security Interest upon any ase&Buyer, or (iii) violate any order, writ, injution, decree, rule or regulation applicable to Buye any of it:
properties or assets, except in each case, whehecsaflict, breach, default or other violation u@uot have a material adverse effect on the ghofitSeller to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

11. Division; Advisory Board; Additional Developme.

(@) As soon as practicable after the Effective Datde6Shereby agrees to organize and constitute igidivof Seller (the “ Divisiori) in which all
operations of Seller related to the Business $featiperated and managed. During the term of thieéxgent, the Division shall be the sole vehicleaittivities
of the Seller relating to the Business. The Divisstiall develop the Business in accordance wittbtisness plan and roadmap (the “ Plaattached as Exhit
11(a) (which shall be reviewed by an independend fharty mutually selected by Buyer and
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Seller as directed by the Advisory Board with respe those matters identified on Exhibit 11(a@ll& shall contribute to the Division such assetsluding,
without limitation, facilities, labs and equipmeatd other interests and rights as Seller and Bslyat mutually agree within thirty (30) days aftee Effective
Date, as well as such other assets as the Advigmayd shall recommend or require from time to tieller agrees that it shall fund research andldpreent
efforts within the Division for the Business in acdance with the Plan and at the direction of theisory Board (as such terms are defined belowgh&issets
shall constitute the assets, interests and ritlatsare necessary or advisable to develop, openai@tain and grow the Business.

(b) At the Effective Date, Seller shall assign not fethan 100 research and development associatds géathom is identified on Exhibit 11(b))
(the “ Assigned Employeé$ to work full time on the development of the Buosss within the Division, which number of employsball be maintained as full-
time employees of the Division during the termtotAgreement from the Effective Date until (i) Bugne as Buyer and Seller agree to redeploy such
associates, or (ii) Buyer elects not to acquireDhasion in accordance with Section 13. The AssigjfEmployees shall report to management of thesiwi
and the Advisory Board (as defined below). In therg of the voluntary resignation by an Assignedliyee from employment with Seller or the dismissal
an Assigned Employee from employment with Sellemidgsconduct €.g., fraud, drug abuse, theft) or for good cause sh@&eller will use commercially
reasonable efforts to replace such Assigned Employth an associate of comparable skill and abéiysoon as practical. For purposes of this Agreerhe
Business shall mean the development and commercializatiosm joint solution for a business intelligencedgti BIG "), as more fully described in the Plan.

(c) Seller agrees no later than the dateishtairty (30) days after the Effective Date ®iablish an advisory board (the “ Advisory Bo&ydvhich
shall have full and complete advisory responsibilitr the direction of the operations of the Diaisiincluding without limitation all matters relagindirectly or
indirectly to the development, operation, comméizasion, maintenance and growth of the Busineb® Advisory Board shall consist of six (6) membénsee
(3) of whom will be designated by each of Buyer Satler. The Advisory Board shall advise on anyheffollowing: (i) any change, amendment or
modification to the Plan, (ii) any allocation byli8e of any indebtedness to the Division; (iii) assle, transfer, sale or license of any of thetassfehe
Division, provided that this Section (b)(iii) shalbt apply to an indirect sale of the Division agsult of any merger, consolidation, acquisitissle of
substantially all of sellers assets, or any otl@nge of control of Seller; (iv) taking any actimnomitting to take any action a result of whichulbreasonably
be expected to be materially detrimental to thertmss relationships or goodwill of the Division; (@) establishing the terms of any transactionalimcations
of liabilities between Seller and the Division. Maement of the Division shall meet with the AdvisBioard not less often than each fiscal quarteafor
quarterly business review at which projected arida®ivision budget and financial information,wasll as relevant information concerning progressirast
the Plan, information about Assighed Employeessamth other matters as the Advisory Board shallrdetes, shall be discussed and evaluated.

(d) Dispute Resolutiol.

(i) The parties acknowledge that several aspects oktatonships among the parties will require muagageement and cooperation. In
this connection, the parties agree to work togete@sonably and in good faith to resolve disagregsend disputes as rapidly as practicable sotas no
to impair the performance or operations of Business




(i) Inthe event of a disagreement between EMC andohtdrising out of or related to this Agreement, heties agree to submit such
disagreement to the Advisory Board for resolutibme members of the Advisory Board shall negotiasonably and in good faith to resolve such
disagreement.

(i) In the event that the Advisory Board is unableetsoive the disagreement within five (5) business dd the date the issue is submit
to it, the parties agree to submit the disagreerteetite Business Sponsors identified on Exhibitd)(i{) for resolution. The Business Sponsors shall
negotiate in good faith to resolve the disagreement

(iv) Inthe event that the Business Sponsors are utabdsolve the disagreement within ten (10) busimizy's of the date the issue is
submitted to it, the parties agree to submit tisaglieement to the Executive Sponsors identifieBxmbit 11(d)(iv). The Executive Sponsors shall
negotiate in good faith to resolve the disagreement

(e) From time to time, Buyer may engage the Divisiopéoform certain development with respect to Buyeroprietary technology, on mutually
acceptable terms and conditions. The Hosted Sarlicense and the Division License notwithstandagysuch terms are defined below), in the event tha
Buyer licenses any additional technology or rightSeller, in furtherance of any such developmerthle Division or Seller to perform such developtmen
whether or not in connection with developing or ceencializing the Business, including without lintitan any license of technology of EMC / Smarts br o
VMware, any such additional license (including witit limitation any license to any work which cohsis, in whole or in part, a derivative work otku
technology) shall not include any independent rigfttseller to such technology other than for suehetbpment for the exclusive use and benefit ofdBuy
unless Buyer and Seller shall otherwise expresgigeto license terms therefor.

12. Licenses; No-Use of Acquired Asse!.

(&) Seller grants to Buyer a perpetuahdferable, assignable, sublicensable, reprodulitielese to use the assets and technology identified
Exhibit 12(a) (the “ Other Technolody and all derivative rights of the Other Technologlety in connection with the development or commnaization of the
Base Technology to manage and operate the Budithes$Other Technology Licensg provided, that Seller agrees that it shall gaint any license to the
Other Technology to any person other than Buyeu$erin connection with the development or comnaéiration of the Base Technology.

(b) Subject to the terms of this Agreem8ulyer grants a non-exclusive, transferable, asbignaublicensable, reproducible, irrevocable,
perpetual, royalty-free license to use the Baséii@ogy and Source Code, and all know how, tradeet® proprietary information, product documewotati
software, methodologies, processes, tools, diagndsst and maintenance aids conveyed to Buyacdordance with Section 1(a) (i) to Seller, on Kfedfethe
Division, to make, use, modify, distribute, credégivative works of and otherwise develop and conciakize the Base Technology and derivative workihe
Base Technology solely at the Sellers' facilitigsSiller and solely in order to manage and opeéh&td@usiness (the “ Division Licen&g and (i) to Seller to
use, modify, create derivative works of, and depelod commercialize the Base Technology and sucbhatige works for use solely in connection witketh
Hosted Services business of Seller (the “ Hostedi&ss License). For purposes of this Agreement, “ Hosted Sagsfcshall mean (i) a business relationship
in which Acxiom provides a customer with data cewstecomputer management operation services tohtdas the
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manipulation or transformation of information tipebvides a customer with business intelligence/@n(@) internal business operations of Acxiomttheclude
the manipulation or transformation of informatidvat provides Acxiom with business intelligence Aaxiom’s own use, an Acxiom customer’s use, orrésr
sale to third parties; provided, however, that ldds$ervices shall not include products or serwidgsh are designed primarily to provide informatidacycle
management services or products such as thosedftigrEMC, and shall not include, without limitatjidocal/remote replication or storage and/or cointe
management software. THE DIVISION LICENSE AND HOSTEBERVICE LICENSE PROVIDED BY THIS PARAGRAPH ARE RF/IDED “AS 1IS”,
WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, B BUYER OR ITS AFFILIATES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FORA PARTICULAR PURPOSE, COMPLETENESS, ACCURACY, AVAMBILITY,
TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, TRADE USAGE, COURSE OF DEANG, OR COURSE OF PERFORMANCE. THE ENTIRE RISK A®
PERFORMANCE OF THE BASE TECHNOLOGY AND SOURCE COBRE WITH SELLER AND THERE IS NO GUARANTEE THAT THEICENSES
PROVIDED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT WILL MEETHE REQUIREMENTS OF SELLER, BE ERROR FREE OR ORHE
WITHOUT INTERRUPTION.

(c) Except with respect to any Open Sosafevare, Seller will hold the confidential anddeasecret portions of the Base Technology and 8ourc
Code and other Acquired Assets in confidence, afichat allow access to, divulge, disclose, copypablish any such information to any third partyheut the
prior written approval of Buyer. The obligationstbfs Section 12(c) will survive in perpetuity.

(d) Except with respect to any Open Soudfenvgre, Buyer will hold the confidential and traskecret portions of the Other Technology in
confidence, and will not allow access to, divuldisclose, copy or publish any such informationrig third party without the prior written approvdl Seller.
The obligations of this Section 12(d) will surviweperpetuity.

(e) For purposes of the Hosted Servicesrise, upon any change of control of Acxiom, thetetbServices business of Seller shall be deemed to
include any Hosted Services business of the eatitpiring control of Acxiom, as in existence on tlage of such change of control for existing artdriei
customers; provided, that such entity agrees tisdtall and shall cause Acxiom to license and naalelable to EMC on a royalty free basis no lessdiently
than on a quarterly basis all derivative workshef Base Technology that are created after theofiatiech change of control.

® For purposes of the Division Licenspon the earlier to occur of (i) an election by EM@ to acquire the Division in accordance with #ect
13; or (ii) any change of control of Acxiom thatf@lowed by an election by EMC not to acquire bigision in accordance with Section 13, the Divisio
License shall continue in effect, provided, thaaa®ndition of such continuation, each of Acxiond @ny entity acquiring control of Acxiom agreeatth will
and, as appropriate, will cause Acxiom and the $dwi to license and make available to EMC on altgyeee basis no less frequently than on a quigrtesis
all derivative works of the Base Technology that ereated after the effective date of such contiondor such time as the Division License is ifeef.

13. Option to Acquire Division; Employee.

@) Buyer shall have the option, exercisabiés absolute and sole discretion at any tinterahe Effective Date and prior to the date thahirty
(30) days after the second
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anniversary of the Effective Date (t“ Option Perioc”), to acquire all of Acxior's right, title and interest in and to the Divisi@xcluding buildings, furniture
and fixtures) for a purchase price not to exceddiilion pursuant to an asset purchase agreenoetéining provisions substantially identical toshset fort
in Exhibit 13(a) with respect to the assets ofiésion, including those assets identified on Bihil to this Agreement, as such exhibit shaldbended
from time to time. Buyer agrees to pay the follogvppurchase price if the option is exercised dutiregtime period represented in the table below:

Exercise Occurs in the FollowincMonths of Amount of Purchase
the Option Period Price Owed to Seller
Effective Date to end of thetmonth $5,000,000.00
Beginning of 8" month to end of 1¥ month $10,000,000.00
Beginning of 12th month to end of ¥7month $15,000,000.00
Beginning of 18" Month to end of Option $20,000,000.00
Period

Buyer's right to give notice of the exercise of suchapshall terminate upon the expiration of thirt@X8ays following the second anniversary of thes&five
Date. In the event that Seller proposes to engagdriansaction that would constitute a chang®iirol of Seller, Seller shall give Buyer twentpf2lays
written notice prior to the consummation of anyhstransaction.

(b) In the event that Buyer exercises sudfoonfo acquire the Division, it shall give writtextice of such exercise to Seller and Seller amgeB
agree to consummate such acquisition no later30atays after the date of such notice in accordaiittethe terms of Section 12(a).

(c) In addition to the option described gcfon 13(a), Buyer shall have the option, exeldesan its absolute and sole discretion at any tafter
the second anniversary of the Effective Date arat fine date that is thirty (30) days after thessebanniversary of the Effective Date (the “ Notife
Extension Period), to extend the Option Period for a period of ¢hpyear (the “Extension Period”). To exercisetsaption, Buyer shall deliver notice of such
exercise within the Notice of Extension Period glarith an amount in cash equal to $20 million tde3es a nonrefundable deposit. In the eventBoger
elects to so extend the Option Period, Buyer atiérSegree that if Buyer elects to acquire the Bl at the end of the Extension Period, the pwelmaice of
the Division at the end of the Extension Periodldsea$40 million, comprised of $20 million in tfierm of such previously delivered non-refundablpatst
and $20 million that shall be delivered at the consation of the acquisition of the Division. Seldgrees that it shall fund research and developefémts
within the Division for the Business during the &xsion Period in accordance with the Plan andeadlittection of the Advisory Board.

(d) Personne.

0] For a period of ninety (90) days commencing up@nréteipt by Seller of notice of the election byyButo acquire the Division (the “
Transition Period), Buyer shall have the exclusive right to offeng@oyment to the Assigned Employees.
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(i)  During the Transition Period and for a period atyi{60) days thereafter, Seller will actively encage such individuals to join Buy
and will otherwise assist and support the transitiming process consistent with the parties’ ititars.

(i) In the event that any individual to whom Buyer hade a good faith offer of employment pursuanhi® $ection 13(c), rejects such
offer and accepts an offer of employment with Sedféer Buyer’s election, Seller shall provide Buyéth such individual’'s salary and other
compensation information in order to permit Buyentake a revised offer of employment to each sodividual within thirty (30) days of the date of
receipt of such salary and other compensationimétion.

(iv)  If more than five percent (5%) of the individuadswthom Buyer has made a good faith offer of emplentpursuant to this Section 13
in the aggregate, rejects Buydffer of employment and accepts an offer of egmplent with Seller, Buyer shall have the right bat the obligation t
cause Seller to continue to engage such individondlse Business at the expense of Seller for mgaf up to one (1) year after the date such
individuals reject Buyer’s offer. If neither of thedividuals identified on Exhibit 13(d)(iv) accepBuyer’s offer of employment and each individual
instead accepts an offer of employment with SeBeryer shall have the right but not the obligatiortause Seller to continue to engage such
individuals in the Business at the expense of Bdlea period of up to two (2) years after theedsich individuals reject Buyer’s offer. If onesofch
individuals listed on Exhibit 13(d)(iv) accepts Baris offer of employment, the foregoing restrictioith respect to such individuals shall not apply.
Seller agrees during the Transition Period andfperiod of one year thereafter, Seller shall nekeran offer of compensation to either such indial
at a rate in excess of their compensation at the &f the second anniversary of the Effective Dattevided that the foregoing restriction shall not
apply to raises made in the ordinary course ofrfassi consistent with past practices.

(v)  Seller will not assign any individual who has régeta good faith offer of employment by Buyer afetes to accept an offer of
employment with Seller on any engagement thatspeditive with the Business for a period of oney@ar after such rejection.

(d) Operation of the DivisiarSeller covenants and agrees that, during thegé&wm the Effective Date and continuing until lsditne as Buyer
exercises the option to acquire the Division inoedance with Section 12, unless Buyer shall otheswigree in writing, Seller shall cause the Diviim
conduct the Business and any other matters, ater Shhll not cause the Division to take any acémoept in, the ordinary course of business aradrimanner
consistent with the direction of the Advisory Boamtl the intent of the parties expressed in thie@mgent and the Joint Sales and Marketing Agreeraadt
Seller shall use commercially reasonable efforjsréserve intact the Division and the Busines&etp available to the Division the services of Asgigned
Employees and to preserve the present relationshighe Division or the Business with customerppiers, channel partners or other persons witkckvhi
Seller, the Division or the Business have signifidausiness relations.

14. Nonsolicitation In the event that Buyer exercises the optiorctjuae the Division, Seller agrees that for a pgnbeighteen (18) months following the
consummation of such acquisition it shall not amallsnot permit any of its subsidiaries or affiiatto solicit or hire any employee of Buyer or gagt or current
employee of Seller who was engaged in the Busidessg the period beginning on the Effective Datd anding on the date that Buyer’s acquisitiorhefDivision is
consummated.
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During the term of this Agreement and except asrilse expressly provided for herein, each of Buyet Seller agrees it shall not solicit any empéoggthe othe
party for employment without the written permissafrsuch other party and at such time as Buyercises the option to acquire the Division or in évent that Buyer
does not exercise such option, each of Buyer atlierSgrees that for a period of one year followihg second anniversary of the Effective Dateatlghot solicit any
employee of the other party for employment withitnet written permission of such other party. Thefming notwithstanding, restrictions on a partysity to solicit
employees for hire shall not apply to or restriehgral solicitation or recruitment advertising teogeted at any specific individual or group ofiunduals.

15. Option to Repurchase Base Technol.

(@) At any time following (i) expiration @fie Option Period or the Extension Period, as #se enay be, or (ii) Seller’s receipt of written
notification from Buyer that Buyer either waivesy®u's right to purchase the Division or that Bupas elected not to purchase the Division, Sellell slave
the right to offer to acquire Buyer's right, titend interest in and to the Base Technology. Bulyall fave the right, but not the obligation, to otate with
Seller with regard to terms, if any, upon which Buwould sell such right, title and interest tol&ellf Buyer is willing to sell, transfer and dedir such right,
title and interest to Seller and Buyer and Seltemot agree upon the purchase price therefor, @abtyer and Seller shall submit a proposed pureipsge to
an independent third party firm which (i) is recag for valuation work, (ii) shall be mutually eeted by Buyer and Seller and (iii) shall be olikglto
determine the valuation of the Base Technologyteadgurchase price therefor to be paid by Sell&uyger. Such determination shall not be bindingrupo
Buyer and Seller.

(b) Upon any acquisition by Seller of the 8d®chnology in accordance with this Section 16 ftlowing licenses shall expire: (i) the Division
License and (ii) the Hosted Services License. itamh, the parties will use commercially reasomadiforts to promptly return or destroy the confitial
information of the other party (with any such destion certified by an authorized representativa party to the disclosing party).

(c) Nothing contained in this Agreement shestrict a party from the use of any general sgeancepts, know-how, or techniques retaineden th
unaided mental impressions of such party’s perdomhieh either party, individually or jointly, del@ps or discloses under this Agreement, provided! ith
doing so such party does not breach its obligatiomter the Confidentiality Agreement describedéct®n 27 below or infringe the intellectual progeights
of the other party or third parties who have lieghsr provided materials to the other party.

16. Joint Sales and Marketing AgreeméFtie parties agree to use commercially reasoratzigyood faith efforts to agree upon appropriatéogmarket
and product support arrangements with respecet®tlsiness such that, at a minimum, the partidscahmercialize products based upon the Base Téogyoo later
than two years from the Effective Date. Such areamgnts shall contemplate, among other things, eeeatent of Buyer and Seller to arrange for endsuselicense th
Base Technology from Buyer in exchange for appetpnioyalty payments in connection with revenuesgenerated from leads provided by Buyer. Suengements
shall also contemplate Buyer’'s commitment to paniith Seller for go-tamarket purposes for BIG for a period of at leaste¢h(3) years following any acquisition of
Division by Buyer, subject to Sellarperformance of its obligations in such connectidmiess otherwise extended by the parties in mgjtthe Joint Sales and Market
Agreement (the “ Marketing Agreemehtshall be executed no later than sixty (60) diagem the Effective Date. Nothing contained herdialkbe construed as
preventing either party from developing, acquirimgrketing, selling, supporting or maintaining dieial products, solutions or services for
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commercialization in combination with the Base Trealbgy, the Other Technology or the Acquired Assatsthe case may be,(including by means of notitign
example products or services similar to or comipetitvith the products used by Seller in its HosBedvices business), or from entering into agreesneith or
providing the Base Technology, the Other Technolmgthe Acquired Assets to other parties (includimgse who may be competitors of Buyer or Selletha case mi
be, in certain markets), provided that in so dommegther Buyer nor Seller breaches its obligationder this Section 16 or the Marketing Agreement.

17. Survival of Representations and WaieantExcept as otherwise set forth in this Agreemalhtepresentations, warranties and agreementsltdr&nc
Buyer contained herein or in any document, cedifioor other instrument required to be delivere@ineder in connection with the transactions contateg hereby
shall survive the Closing for the period endingtloa fifth anniversary of this Agreement.

18. Indemnification.

(@). Indemnity by SellerSeller hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hatmless Buyer and its directors, officers arfidiaes against and in
respect of any damage (@) that results from thecimacy of any representation or warranty madedeSherein, (b) resulting from any misrepreseatat
breach of warranty or non-fulfillment of any agremror covenant of Seller contained herein, andaenalyall actions, suits and proceedings resultiogn fany
of the foregoing, (c) relating to Excluded Assetgd) arising from ownership of the Acquired Asset®r to the Closing, other than Assumed Lial&htiif any
(hereinafter called a_* Buyer Claitvor collectively “ Buyer Claims).

(b) Certification of Claimslf Buyer is of the opinion that any Buyer Clairashoccurred or will or may occur, Buyer shall stifgcseller, and
each such notice shall be in writing and shall dbsawith reasonable specificity the nature of saskerted Buyer Claim.

(c) Termination of Rights Hereundeéotwithstanding any other provision hereof, noy&uClaim may be made or lawsuit instituted under t
provisions of this Section 18 or in any way arisingonnection with this Agreement or any represtomn or warranty hereunder (except for Reservedh@
(as defined below)) after the fifth anniversantias Agreement. “ Reserved Claithshall mean any Buyer Claims which have been assen@ccordance wi
this Section 18, within the applicable periodsfeeth above.

(d) Third Party Actionsin the event any claim is made, suit is brougjatiast Buyer, Seller, or any of their respectiwectors, officers or
affiliates which involves or appears reasonablgliiko involve a Buyer Claim for which indemnifigah may be sought against Seller hereunder, suth wél
promptly (and in any event within three (3) busidays) after receipt of notice of any such clauit or proceeding, notify Buyer or Seller, as thse may be,
of the commencement thereof. Any failure by Buyesd notify Seller of the commencement of any stialm, suit or proceeding will relieve Seller from
liability only to the extent that such failure maadly and adversely affects the ability of Sellerdefend Seller’s interests in such claim, actoproceeding.
Seller (at Seller’'s expense) shall have the rigltshall be given the opportunity to assume andrabthe defense of such claim, suit or proceediithy
counsel of their choice reasonably satisfactoruger so long as (i) Seller notifies Buyer in wrgiwithin ten (10) days after Buyer has given ret€ the
claim that Seller will indemnify Buyer from and agst the entirety of any damages Buyer may suffeulting from, arising out of, relating to, in thature of,
or caused by such claim, (ii) such claim involvefyanoney damages and does not seek an injunctiother equitable relief, (iii) Seller conducts thefense
of such claim actively and diligently, (iv) Selleas the financial resources to conduct an active
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and diligent defense and to pay, if necessarymieimum amount of the damages sought and furnsings documents and other information with respe
such financial resources as may be reasonably sexpiby Buyer, and (v) Seller promptly provides 8ugnd its counsel with all documents and other
information relating to the claim and defense tbées may be reasonably requested by Buyer ooitesel; provided that Buyer and its counsel (ateBisy
expense) may participate in (but not control thedemst of) all matters pertaining to the defensseitiement of such claim, suit or proceeding. Weetr not
Seller elects to assume such defense, Buyer shtakkxcept at its own cost, make any settlemerit véispect to any such claim, suit or proceedingauit the
prior written consent of Seller. Buyer’s consenttte settlement of any such claim, suit or procegdly Seller shall be required and shall not beaswnably
withheld or delayed, but such consent shall naebeired if (or to the extent that) such settlem@y requires the payment of a monetary amour8diler anc
includes a full release of claims by the claimard &eller against Buyer and does not include arsint as to or admission of fault, culpability aitdre to act
by or on behalf of Buyer.

In the event any of the conditions set forth irusks (i) to (iv) above is or becomes unsatisfied, ®eller elects not to conduct the defense efdlaim,
then (A) the Buyer may defend against, and cortsethite entry of any judgment or enter into anyleetént with respect to, such claim in any manneray
deem appropriate (and the Buyer need not constlif @i obtain any consent from, Seller or any giffiliates in connection therewith), (B) Selleitlw
reimburse the Buyer promptly and periodically foe tosts of defending such claim (including reabtenattorneys’ fees and expenses), and (C) Seller w
remain responsible for any damages the Buyer mifgrgesulting from, arising out of, relating te, the nature of, or caused by such claim to tHedukextent
provided in this Section 18.

(e) Definition of Damaged-or purposes of this Section 18, the term “ daasaghall mean the amount of any loss, claim, demdadage,
deficiency, assessment, judgment, remediation,arosxpense (including reasonable attorneys’, dten#is’ and experts’ fees and expenses) actuatlyried,
lessthe sum of any amount recovered under any insunaoléey carried by the party or parties seekingeimahification. In the event that Buyer pays a claim
covered by Buyer’s insurance for which it is eetitito indemnification by Seller hereunder, Buyealispay such claim and Seller shall reimburse Bukerfull
amount of such claim (less the amount of any immegroceeds previously recovered by the Buyer rgpect to such claim). In the event the Sellgs jza
claim and Buyer subsequently receives insuranceegas with respect to such claim, Buyer shall peieSsuch insurance proceeds up to the amounalactu
paid by Seller.

® The foregoing provisions of this Seatib3 notwithstanding, in no event shall the liapitf Seller in connection with the Agreement extae
aggregate amount equal to $50 million.

19. No Third Party Beneficiariedothing in this Agreement, express or impliedntended or shall be construed to confer upomg give to, any person,
firm, limited liability company or corporation oththan Buyer and its successors and assigns, amdseor claim under or by reason of this Agreemahterms,
covenants, promises and agreements containedcsidgineement shall be for the sole and exclusivefiteof Buyer and its successors and assigns.

20. Expensestach of Seller and Buyer shall assume and beerpénses, costs and fees incurred or assumeachypsrty in the preparation and
execution of this Agreement and the performanddetransactions contemplated hereby, whether tthedransactions shall be consummated; and BanyéiSeller
shall indemnify and hold each other harmless froch @gainst any and all liabilities and claims ispect of any such expenses, costs or fees no¢spensibility of or
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assumed by the other par

21. Publicity; Disclosures; Confidentiafdrmation; Use of NameExcept as expressly provided herein, no presasel or other public disclosure, whet
written, electronic or oral, of the transactionstemplated hereby shall be made by either parangrof their respective affiliates or representgiwithout the express
prior written consent of the other party.

22. Binding Nature of Agreemerithis Agreement shall be binding upon Seller, Buyred their respective successors and assigns.

22. Notices All notices, requests, demands, consents and comeations necessary or required under this Agreestell be delivered by hand or sent by
registered or certified mail, return receipt reqadsor by overnight courier, or by facsimile (rgteonfirmed) to:

if to Buyer: EMC Corporatior
176 South Street
Hopkinton, MA 01748
Attention:  Office of the General Couns
Telecopier: (508) 497-6915

if to Seller: Acxiom Corporatior
1 Information Way
P.O. Box 818(
Little Rock, AR 7220:
Attention: Company Legal Lead
Telecopier: (501) 345610

All such notices, requests, demands, consentstaed communications shall be deemed to have belgrgdien or sent five (5) days following the date o
which mailed, or two (2) days following the dateiled if sent by overnight courier, or on the datevehich delivered by hand or by facsimile transimisgreceipt
confirmed), as the case may be, and addressedrasaifi.

23. Successors and Assigidl covenants and agreements set forth in thiss@gent and made by or on behalf of any of thagzahereto shall bind and
inure to the benefit of the successors, heirs asijjas of such party, whether or not so expresseither party may assign or transfer any of itetsgor obligations
under this Agreement without the prior written cemisof the other party.

24, Severability In the event that any one or more of the prowisiof this Agreement is held invalid, illegal oremfiorceable in any respect for any reason
in any jurisdiction, the validity, legality and em€eability of any such provision in every othespect and of the remaining provisions hereof siatlbe in any way
impaired or affected, it being intended that eaichbesties’ rights and privileges shall be enfordeab the fullest extent permitted by law, and angh invalidity,
illegality and unenforceability in any jurisdictichall not invalidate or render unenforceable suravision in any other jurisdiction.

25. Governing LawThis Agreement shall be governed by and constameldenforced exclusively in accordance with theslaf The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, without giving effect to the pritespof conflicts of laws thereof.

26. Entire AgreemeniThis Agreement, including the Exhibits, is contpleand all promises, representations, understgadwarranties and agreements
with reference to the subject matter hereof, ahthdlicements to the making of this Agreement celipon by all the parties hereto, have
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been expressed herein or in such Exhibits. Thieément may not be amended except by an instrumeniting signed by Seller and Buy:

27. Confidentiality The terms of the Confidentiality Agreement, dafetbruary 3, 2003, shall remain in full force afféa and such terms not otherwise
in conflict with the provisions of this Agreememeaereby incorporated herein by this reference.

28. Headings; Counterparffhe headings of the sections and subsectiortssoAgreement are for convenience of reference anty/shall not be deemed
to be a part of this Agreement. This Agreement bagxecuted in two or more counterparts which, wihkan together, shall constitute one Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executebdelivered this Asset Purchase and License Ageaens of the Effective Dat
SELLER:
ACXIOM CORPORATION
By: /s/ Richard Howe
Name: Richard Howe
Title: Officer
BUYER:
EMC CORPORATION
By: /s/ Michael J. Cody
Name: Michael J. Cody
Title: V.P., Corporate Development
EMC (BENELUX) B.V., S.a.r.l.
By: /s/ William J. Teuber

Name: William J. Teube
Title: EVP and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 1

Acquired Assets
Exhibit 1(a) — Base Technology

The following list of technology components is irdd and corresponds with the attached Customemiafiion Infrastructure Grid Component Descriptidosument
dated December 20, 2005 (the “Technology Detaili)ol includes the detailed information on each congmt, including (i) a general description of tleenponent; (i)
Features/Functions; (iii) Benefits; (iv) Competitiqv) Advantages; (vi) Future Plans; (vii) Langeag@nd Dependencies; and (viii) Glossary terms.

The Technology Detail includes a Technology ListDment which sets for those components which ase Bachnology and those which are Other Technasgsucl

terms are defined in the Agreement and cross-mefesewith the contents section of the TechnologiaiDé\ssets identified as Other Technology in Tieehnology List
Document are Excluded Assets.

1 Infrastructure Components

1.1 | Apiary REX (Grid OS - Base Technolog
1.2 | Apiary REX- Monitoring - Base Technolog
1.3 | Apiary Rex- Hive-Node - Base Technolog
1.4 | Parallel Virtual File System (PVF! - Base Technolog
1.5 | DataGrid FTP Daema - Base Technolog
1.6 | EDGE-External Data Gatewe - Base Technolog
1.7 [ Interactive Hive - Base Technolog
1.8 | Hydra - Base Technolog
1.9 [ Anubis - Base Technolog
1.1 | Hivebuilder - Base Technolog
1.11 | J2EE Hive - Base Technolog
1.12 [ CORBA Naming Servici - Base Technolog
1.13 | Cascadt - Base Technolog
1.14 | Advanced Package Tool (AP - Base Technolog
1.15 [ Software Serve - Base Technolog
1.16 | Systemlimage - Base Technolog
1.17 [ LDAP- Lightweight Directory Access Protoc - Base Technolog
1.18 | HiveForHire - Base Technolog
1.19 | Workflow Grid Environmen - Base Technolog
1.20 [ Workflow Grid Environment Tool - Base Technolog
1.21 | Acxiom Grid Schedule - Base Technolog
1.23 | WorkFlow Grid Job Submission and Execution Infrasture - Base Technolog
1.24 | Acxiom Metadata Repository Subsyst - Base Technolog
1.25 | Workflow Grid (WFG) Batch Componen - Base Technolog
1.26 | Interactive Delivery : - Base Technolog
1.27 | DataBase Girit - Base Technolog

19




1.28 | Generic Servic

- Base Technolog

1.29 [ CIGAR

- Base Technolog

Acxelerate— Convert Manage

1.30 | Cll Securit - Base Technolog
3 Enterprlse Interface

- Base Technolog

3.2 Acxelerate— File Managel

- Base Technolog

3.3 | Acxelerate— Job Activity

- Base Technolog

3.4 | Acxelerate-— Layout Manage

- Base Technolog

3.5 | Acxelerate— Project Manage

- Base Technolog

36 Acxelerate- Navigator

- Base Technolog

Acxelerate— Policy Manage

- Base Technolog

SAS Interactive Modeling Servic

3 14 Orbiter - Base Technolog
4 B |. Management

- Base Technolog

SAS WFG Scorin¢

FOCAL — Function Oriented Custom Application Langui

- Base Technolog

5 Data Hygiene and Transformation

- Base Technolog

Perl Operato

- Base Technolog

InfoBase Data Grid Service (aka Hercul

5 7 Hydra/Tesla Operator Wrapp - Base Technolog
6 Data Enhancemen

- Base Technolog

6.6 Helios/Horizon

- Base Technolog

Exhibit 1(c) — License Agreements

All of the Licenses identified in the Third Partpf8vare Spread Sheet below (and the code thatdtwegr ) except the licenses identified as Excludednses (and the

code they cover):

THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE SPREADSHEET

Product Module / Product 3rd party software
Product Component List module nam Version vendor nam
DROLAND
Activate Navigator 1
RedHat

Sun Microsystem

JBOSE

Sun Microsystem

MySQL

3rd party software vendor
product name

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL

20

3rd party software product
version

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEL
4.0

3247

4.?




Policy Manage

File Manage!

Project Manage

Convert Manage

Job Activity

GNU/Redhat -
Apache
RedHat
Apache

RedHat

Sun Microsystem
JBOSS

Sun Microsystem
MySQL
GNU/Redhat
Apache

RedHat

Apache

RedHat

Sun Microsystem
JBOSS

Sun Microsystem
GNU/Redhat
Apache

RedHat

Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

C compiler
ANT
RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
PERL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF

C compiler
ANT

RPM

AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSE
JSF
MySQL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

21

NN ) )

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEI
4.0

3247

?

4.?

?

?

?

"

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEL

4.0

3247

NN ) )

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEI
4.0

3247
?

4.?

?

?

?

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEI
4.0

3247
?

4.?

?

?

?




Orbiter

Layout Manage

Activate framework

2.6

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

Sun Microsystem
Apache
GNU/Redhat *
MySQL
Apache
Apache
Apache
CodeZoo*"
Oracle

?

?

?

castor

Apache

Apache
?

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

JAVA
Tomcat
PERL
MySQL
Log4j
Commons *
Struts
Tyrex
Oracle JDBC
wsdl4j

saaj

jaxrpc
castor
AXIS

xalan

jaxen

22

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEL
4.0

3.247
?

4.?

?

?

?

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEL
4.0

3.247
?

4.?

?

?

?

7.3, RHEL 3.0, RHEL
4.0

3.247
?

4.?

?

?

?




MBOTNE

InfoBase Dat:
Grid

Helios

RFARME

SAS

BiglP
RTHORN

EDGE/GIS
LDAP

Authenticatior

Nexus

AGS

Base

Stat

OR

Conneci

Secure

Access for ODBC
Access for Oracl
sasautt

2?7

ClII Identity
Authenticatior

Nexus Schedule

Processe
Nexus Huk

Logging Service

8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x

???

1.1/2.0

11

24
2.4

1.0

dom4j

OClI

GNU/Redhat *

OClI

SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS

2?7

Sterling Commerc

kernel.org

Arcana Developmer
OpenSSH Projec

Apache Software
Foundatior

dom4j
Xerces

TAO

Xerces XML C++
Boost

Perl

TAO

Xerces XML C++
Boost

GNU automake
GNU autoconi
GNU libtool

SAS/Base
SAS/Stai
SAS/OR
SAS/Connec
SAS/Securt
?2?7?

?2??

sasautt

??7?

Gentran Integration Sui

Linux-PAM

Arcana
OpenSSt

Log4J

23

13,14
2.2,2.6
1.29,1.3C
5.61,5.8

13
2.2
1.29
154
2.13
1.4.2

8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x
8.x/9.x

2?7

4.0.2-5/4.0.:-6




AGS Service
AGS Service/Job Monitc

AGS Service/Job Monitc
MySQL

Soap::Lite

Acxiom Job XML
Submission System

(AJXSS)
AJXSS
AJXSS
Validation
Service

WorkFlow Infrastructure Services (WFI

Engine Adapte

Transfer
Service

Acxiom
Metadata
Repository

Systemr Acxiom Metadata Clier

1.0

1.0

1.0
1.0
1.0

1.0
1.0
1.0

1.0
1.0
1.0

2.0

Repository Database (require
Repository Database (option.

Apache Softwar
Foundatior
Apache Softwar:
Foundatior
Apache Softwar
Foundatior

MySQL Databas:
PERL Module

SourceForge.n¢

xmlsoft.org

Microsoft
Corporatior

SourceForge.ne¢
SourceForge.ne

Microsoft
Corporatior

Oracle Corporatio

Log4Cxx
Xerces
Xalan

MySQL
?

LibXML++
Log4cxx
libxml2
Perl

Microsoft XML parsel
Perl

JBOSS

SOAP

Perl

Expat XML Parse
LibXML++

Perl

Microsoft SQL Serve
Oracle

24

4.1

1.0.0
<described above
2.4.1¢-4

<described elsewhere

4.0

<described elsewhere
<described elsewhere
<described elsewhere

<described elsewhere

5.4.1/1.95.2
1.0.0

<described elsewhere

SQL 2000 SP-
9i




RPATEL
Anubis

Apiary

apiary_ldaf

apiary_rex

OClI

Apache
RedHat
RedHat
Acxiom
RedHat
MySQL

HP
Dell

TAO

ANT

mod_perl

mod_gzip

mod_ss
mod_auth_par
MySQL
perl_date_busine:
perl_gd

perl_gd_grapl
perl_gd_textuti
perl_net_snm|
perl_libwww_perl
perl_libnet
perl_mailtools
perl_dbd_mysq
perl_dbi

perl_soap_lite
perl_extutils_autoinsta
perl_apache_authexpi
perl_authen_par
perl_mime_tool:
perl_io_stringy
perl_algorithm_numerical_shuff
net_snmg

dmidecode

arrayinfo

afacli

perl_io_socket_s:t
perl_net_sslea
perl_net_lday
perl_mailtools

apache

mod_perl
mod_gzip
mod_ss
mod_auth_par
mysql
perl_date_busine:
perl_gd
perl_gd_grapl
perl_gd_textuti
perl_net_snm|
perl_libwww_perl
perl_libnet

25

11&1.3a

1.3.27
1.26
1.3.26
2.8.12
111
4.0.12
12
1.19
1.39
0.82
3.6
5.76
1.0901
1.47
2.1026
1.35
0.56
0.59
0.39.1
0.14
5.411
2.108
14
5.0.3
2.3
0.12
2.7

0.96
1.25
0.28
147

1.3.27
1.26
1.3.26
2.8.12
111
4.0.12
12
1.19
1.39
0.82
3.6
5.76
1.0901




apt_serve

Corba Tools OClI

DB Wrappet MySQL

Grid FTP
Server

Hive for Hire

Hydra Top

LDAP Admin

LDAP Cert

LDAP Master

LDAP Migrate

perl_mailtools
perl_dbd_mysq
perl_dbi

perl_soap_lite
perl_extutils_autoinsta
perl_apache_authexpi
perl_authen_par
perl_mime_tool:
perl_io_stringy
perl_algorithm_numerical_shuff
net_snmg

apt_rpm
wget

TAO

MySQL

perl_net_ftpserve

perl_expec
perl_io_tty
perl_io_socket_s:
perl_net_sslea
perl_net_lday
perl_mailtools
perl_mime_base6
opensst

perl_libwww_perl

perl_io_socket_s:t
perl_net_sslea

perl_net_lday

perl_mailtools

perl_cqgi

perl_expec

perl_net_snm|
perl_algorithm_numerical_shuff
perl_convert_asn

opensst
perl_cqi
perl_net_lda;

perl_mailtools

perl_io_socket_s:t

26

1.47
2.1026
1.35
0.56
0.59
0.39.1
0.14
5.411
2.108
14
5.0.3

0.5.15cncé
1.8.2

11&1.3a

4.0.12

1.116

1.15
1.02
0.96
1.25
0.28
1.47
2.12
3.8p1

5.76

0.96
1.25
0.28
147
2.752
1.15
3.6
14
0.17

3.8p1
2.752
0.28
1.47

0.96




LDAP Slave

LDAP Utils

LDAP Wrappet

Naming Service Uti

Naming Service Wrappt

Perl SNMP
Graph

Pod LDAP

Propolis
Service Finder Polic

Software
Server

TAO
Developmen

TAO Runtime

XML2HCL

PVES

GAVSMI
FOCAL

PERL

OClI

OClI

OClI

OCl

OClI

Clemson Universit

RedHat
IBM
Apache
HP

RedHat
IBM
Apache

perl_net_sslea
perl_net_|ldaj
perl_term_readke
openldag

perl_cgi
perl_io_socket_s:
perl_net_sslea
perl_net_|ldaj
openldag

TAO

TAO

perl_gd_grapl

openldag
perl_xml_parse

perl_crypt_sslea
TAO

apt_rpm

rpm

TAO

TAO
perl_xml_parse
PVFES Library

PVFS Server and Kern

RedHat Linux
WebSphere (DataStag
ANT

Tru64

RedHat Linux

WebSphere (DataStag
ANT
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1.25

0.28

2.17
2.0.27
2.752
0.96

1.25

0.28
2.0.27
11&1.3a

11&1.3a

1.39

2.0.27
2.30

0511

11&1.3a

0.5.15cncé
4.0.4

11&1.3a

11&1.3a

2.30

1.6.3.3
1.6.3.3

RHEL3/7.3
75.1A
2.0.46

5.1

RHEL3/7.3
75.1A
2.0.46




HP Trué4 5.1
Generic
Service 3 RedHat RedHat Linux RHEL3/7.3
IBM WebSphere (DataStag 7.5.1A
OcClI TAO 11&1.3a
GNU Perl 5.8.0
Apache Xalar 1.9.0
Apache Xerce 2.6.0
GNU SOAP 2.7

And, all of the Licenses identified in the Develaggm Tool Spread Sheet below (and the code thatdbesr Jexcept the licenses identified as Excludednses (and tt

code they cover):

DEVELOPMENT TOOL SPREAD SHEET

| Development tool nhame Vendor

Purpose the tool is used fo

GNU Compiler (gcc, g++ RedHat- GNU Open Sourc

gdb/DDD RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Editors- vi and emac RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
TotalView Etnus Corp

ValGrind Freeware

Jboss Jboss

JDK Sun and IBV- Freeware
Eclipse IBM - Freeware

CARS Compuware

HiveBuilder Acxiom

SourceForge Enterpric VA Software

SubVersior Greeware

GNU Make RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RPM RedHat- Open Sourc
Insure++ ParaSof

RedHat Linux command line toc  RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Vantage Compuware

Tempes Acxiom

DAART Acxiom

Perl Debugge

LDAP Browser\Editor 2.8.:
Ethereal- Network Protocol Analyzer ver 0.10.
tcpdumy-3.7.2-7.E3.2

phpLDAPadmin is version 0.9.¢

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc

Code compilatior

debugginc

editing

debugginc

debugginc- memory leaks, array bounds €
development/debuggir
development/debuggir
development/debuggir

Regression testin

Build grid applications grid application code general
Developer porta

Source code reposito

Make binaries

Package manageme

debugginc- memory leaks, array bounds €
Various debugging purpos

Performance testing (not widely used y
Orbiter testinc

InfoBase build testin

Perl debugginy
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VMWare

Id

UltraEdit

Visual Studic
Query Browse
Putty

WinSCP3
CookTop (xml editor
Secure shell clier
Tortoise SVM
SOAP:.Lite
Access

Active Perl 5.8.%
autoconti
automake

bison

DataStag¢
Dundas Ultimate Grid 9
flex
GraphicsServer 5.
JBuilder
OmniORB v4.0.:
Oracle

Oracle ProC
Oracle SQL Plu

Stingray Objective Studio 6.0

TOAD

Visual Studio .NET 200.
Visual Source Saf
GNU automake

GNU autocon

GNU libtool

And, all of the Licenses identified in the SeconevBlopment Tool Spread Sheet below (and the cadetby cover) except the licenses identified adutled Licenses

(and the code they cover):

Microsoft

MySQL

Freware (MIT License
GNU license

freeware

Freeware

Subversion clien

Microsoft

ActiveState

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
IBM

Dundas Softwar

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
GraphicsServe

Borland

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Oracle

Oracle

Oracle

RogueWave

Quest Softwar

Microsoft

Microsoft

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc

SECOND DEVELOPMENT TOOL SPREAD SHEET

Visual IDE

Editing xml and xslt codin

Testing ODBC/Data Preview in Rapidus/Building fra&@®BC source in Rapidt

Rapidus Scheduler Scriptii

Grid control in Rapidus and in the SBF Queue Man

Rapidus

GBF, Planne
GBF
GBF, Planne

Window Controls for Rapidus Gl

GBF, Planne
Source Contro
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| Development tool name

Vendor

Purpose the tool is used fo

Access

Active Perl 5.8.%
autoconi

automake

bison

CookTop (xml editor
DataStage

Dundas Ultimate Grid 9
Eclipse

flex

gcce

GraphicsServer 5.
JBuilder

make

OmniORB v4.0.2
Oracle

Oracle ProC

Oracle SQL Plu

Putty

Stingray Objective Studio 6.0
TOAD

UltraEdit

vi

Visual C++ v6.C

Visual Source Saf
Visual Studio .NET 200.
MySQL

Oracle Universal Installe
rpm

Excluded License Agreements

Microsoft

ActiveState

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
freeware

IBM

Dundas Softwar

Open Source, IBN
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Linux

GraphicsServe

Borland

Linux

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Oracle

Oracle

Oracle

Open Source (MIT Licenst
RogueWave

Quest Softwar

UltraEdit

n/a

Microsoft

Microsoft

Microsoft

Open Source, ABDatl
Oracle

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc

e Ascential/IBM Websphere (Datastage XE Parallel Boez)
e Sterling Software (Connect & GIS Software)
e Red Hat (Linux) support services agreement

Exhibit 1(d) — Development Agreements

None

Testing ODBC/Data Preview in Rapidus/Building fra@®BC source in Rapidt
Rapidus Scheduler Scriptit

Editing xml and xslt codin

Grid control in Rapidus and in the SBF Queue Man
ASIPosting, ASI Business Log

Rapidus

GBF, Planne
GBF
GBF, Planne

Window Controls for Rapidus GL
Shell and SQL script

GBF, Planne

Source Contrc

GBF, Planne

Datagrid, MySQL Hive

Installation of Oracle produc

Installation package creation and manager
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Exhibit 2
Excluded Assets

1. Other Technology as described in the TechnologgiDas$ follows:
The Technology Detail includes a Technology List mment which sets for those components which are Ba Technology and those which are Other
Technology as such terms are defined in the Agreemieand cross-references with the contents sectior the Technology Detail. Assets identified as Other
Technology in the Technology List Document are Exaled Assets.

1 Infrastructure Components

Nexus Schedule - Other Technolog

2 |dentity Management

2.1 | DataMatck - Other Technolog
2.2 | FlashLink - Other Technolog
2.3 | AbiliTec —Link Append - Other Technolog'
2.4 | Grouping Module - Other Technolog'
2.5 | Recognition - Other Technolog
3.8 | ASI —Change Manage - Other Technolog
3.9 | ASI - Contact Manage - Other Technolog
3.1 | ASI-Document Manage - Other Technolog'
3.11 | ASI —Inbound File Manage - Other Technolog
3.12 | ASI - Layout Manage - Other Technolog'
3.13 | ASI —Outbound File Manage - Other Technolog
4.1 | ASI - Campaign Manage - Other Technolog'
4.2 | Grid-Based Fulfillmen - Other Technolog
4.3 | Rapidu® - Other Technolog
4.4 | Acxiom Plannel - Other Technolog
5 Data Hygiene and Transformation

5.3 | Address Hygien - Other Technolog
5.4 | Country Identificatior - Other Technolog
5.5 | Line Identification - Other Technolog
5.6 | Name Parsin - Other Technolog
6.1 | E-Mail Append - Other Technolog
6.2 | Fraud Management Platform (Sentri - Other Technolog'
6.3 | InfoBase Enhanceme - Other Technolog
6.4 InfoBase— Telesource - Other Technolog'

2. All other Acxiom technology and software that ig ifcluded in the Acquired Assets, including but lmited to, Seller's data products, AbiliT&g Seller-
proprietary data model(s), Seller-proprietary basgrules and related adapters, as well as all eimprograms, code elements, routines, librarieds,
methodologies, processes, or technologies creatiaghted, or used by Seller in its business gegeeail (ii) any software programs (including, bot fimited
to,
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matching logic, grouping logic, or householdingi@gdata processing systems, mechanisms, hardwaf@urations, or other tools or processes crebye

Seller and utilized by Seller to create a datatss®(perform integration of customer data, inahgdall associated intellectual property rights.
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Exhibit 3
Assumed Liabilities
None
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Exhibit 4

Excluded Liabilities

None
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Exhibit 9(f)

Intellectual Property

Any and all copyrights associated with the Basehfietogy
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The Plan

Items with which a third party consultant shallyide review and assistanc

1. Code quality

2. Structure of produc

3. Development proces

4. Such other items as the Advisory Board shall datesr

CONPARISON OF § YEAR CUMULATIE TOTAL RETURN*

Anong Acxdom Corporation, The MASD 42 Com posite Index
And The MASDAD Com puter & Data Processing Index

180
160
$140
120
$100

a0

$E0
$40 1

$20

el s 2 305 2406 37 a3

—B— Acxiom Comporation — =% — HASDAG Comyposite - - -0-- - HASDAG Conmygunter & Data Processing

FHAO0 nwested on 331003 in stock or indes incuding renvestment of dividends .
Fiz cal year ending harch 31,
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Exhibit 11(b) — Employees

Name:

Title:

Division Employees

% Dedicated to Division

e e b

[ —

e

=Sy —

S ——

[Erap———
[ ——

[T —
T —

[T —
T —

Exhibit 11(b)




Exhibit 11(d)(iii)
Business Sponsors
EMC: Jeff Nick

Acxiom: Richard Howe
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Exhibit 11(d)(iv)

Executive Sponsors:

EMC: Howard Elias

Acxiom: Charles Morgal

39




Exhibit 13(a)

Purchase Agreement Provisions

The agreement under which EMC would acquire thesiti in accordance with the provisions of this égment would include effective provisions
substantially identical to the following:

1. Acquired AssetsSeller, by this Agreement, does hereby convdy,teensfer, assign, grant, release, set overficorand deliver to Buyer all of Selley’
right, title and interest in and to the followingsats, properties, privileges, business and rightsvery nature and description, tangible or igtate, real, personal or
mixed and wherever situated, located or existing)léctively, the “ Acquired Asset3:

€) All right, title and interest in andttte assets that comprise the Division and the tipesaof Seller that constitute the business of@hésion,
including without limitation [ ], in each oasin order to permit Buyer, to the maximum exgwdsible, to develop, manufacture, maintain, diste, or
engage in similar activities with respect to thesiBass in the future, or any derivative works tbére

(b) (i) All patents and patent applicatioissued or pending, worldwide assigned to Sellgindhg subject matter related to the Business;(and
all copyrighted materials and works-for-hire owrdSeller related to the Business. Seller shalteteeand deliver such instruments and take sudr aittion
as may be requested by Buyer to perfect or pr&eger's intellectual property rights in the Acquirdssets and to carry out the assignments contéedpia
this Section 1, and shall reasonably assist BuyBuger's expense and their respective nominesedore, and maintain, for Buyer's own benefitaths
intellectual property rights in the Acquired Assietsiny and all countries. Seller shall reasonablyperate with Buyer at Buyer's expense in thediind
prosecution of any patent or copyright applicatitveg Buyer may elect to file on the Acquired Asset

(c) To the extent permitted under sucteagrents, the software license and maintenanceragnee (and all rights and obligations of Seller
thereunder) of Seller for third party software amdéchnology included in or related to the Businesthe Division (collectively, the " Included keiose
Agreements); provided that all software license and maintereaagreements for third party software and/orrteldgy included in or related to the Business
which are not assignable or transferable hereundsufficient in scope to cover the Business (atilely, the " Excluded License Agreemehtnd, together
with the Included License Agreements, the “ LiceAgeeements) shall be listed in Exhibit 1(c) hereto along wihe Included License Agreements and, with
respect to each such Excluded License Agreemeley &grees that (i) within two (2) years of theelaf this Agreement, Seller shall, at its own exgee either
negotiate an Included License Agreement with resjeethie content of such Excluded License Agreemenievelop internally or obtain from an alternate
source and under an Included License Agreementantizly equivalent technology for inclusion iretcquired Assets and assign such Included Licemse
Buyer as an Acquired Asset at no additional chaegel (ii) in the interim, Seller shall provide,itstown expense, such licenses to the conteraadf Excluded
License Agreement as Buyer, the Division and it@mers may require to conduct the Business;

(d) All of Seller’'s development and partriepsagreements (and all rights and obligationsedfes thereunder) related to the Business or the
Division, each of which is listed on Exhibit 1(d@reto, if any (collectively, the “ Development Agreents’ and,
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together with the License Agreements,“ Acquired Contract”);

(e) With respect to the any technology tituteng part of the Business or the Division, é¢tenic versions (paper version if electronic vensimt
available) of Selles (i) source code, whether in print, magneticatityed, or in some other form, and related mateinathe possession of or available to Se
including, but not limited to, comments, flow clartlocumentation, and manuals, and implementagiecifics (collectively, “ Source Codg it being
understood that Seller’s obligation to deliver atelectronic versions of such Source Code shadidtisfied upon the delivery to Buyer of all versmf such
Source Code currently used or relied upon in cotioreevith the development, manufacture, maintenamadistribution of any product or any successor
product; provided that Buyer shall have the rightetquire that Seller deliver, promptly upon Bugeequest, any prior version or versions of suar&Code
in the possession of or available to Seller; ¢igtem software which is a part of Business;ept that with respect to system software/bwftixgare covered by
an Excluded License Agreement, Seller's obligatioBuyer shall be as set forth in 1(d)ii) build software (package and build tremcept that with respect
to build software covered by an Excluded Licenseefment, Seller's obligation to Buyer shall beedidarth in 1(c); (iv) release scripts, procedures and
documentation; (v) test suites, scripts, procedanesprocess documentation; (vi) performance doatatien, programs and results sets; (vii) product
specifications; (viii) functional specificationsx) design specifications; and (x) customer sergiod support documentation and call history (deatebid
applicable);

® Copies of all competitive analysis arsiness development information for the Busineskaany correspondence of Seller related thereto; and
(9) Copies of all marketing and sales materials ofeBédtir the Busines:

For purpose of this Section 1, EMC Corporation ldhaldeemed to be the acquiror of all such rigtké, &nd interest in the Division in North Ameriaad EMC
(Benelux) B.V., S a.r.l. shall be deemed to beatbguiror of all such right, title and interest e tDivision everywhere else in the world.

2. Excluded AssetdNotwithstanding the provisions of Section 1, #uguired Assets shall not include, without limitatj any assets, properties or

privileges of Seller not included in the Acquiredsits including without limitation and for purposé<larification only, the assets listed on Exhibhereto and any
other part of Seller’s business (the “ ExcludedeAsy. Without in any way limiting the foregoing andrfclarification purposes only, the Acquired Ass#tall not
include know how, trade secrets, proprietary infation, product documentation, software, methodesgprocesses, tools, diagnostic, test and maimtereids that are
or have been used in connection with the developriieansing, maintenance or distribution of thén@tTechnology.

3. Assumed LiabilitiesSubject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet, at the Closing, Buyer shall assume and agrpay, perform, fulfill and

discharge the liabilities and obligations assodatéh the Acquired Assets, if any, which are listen Exhibit 3hereto (such liabilities and obligations are heafter
referred to as the * Assumed Liabiliti8s

4, Excluded Liabilities.

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3yBuis not assuming or in any way becoming lialsleesponsible for any liability of Seller not
included in the Assumed Liabilities (collectivethe “ Excluded Liabilities).
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(b) Seller shall retain and be responsible fordormance and discharge of all liabilities anéigattions (i) relating to the Excluded Assets oy
arising from the ownership of the Acquired Assatemo the Closing (as defined below).

(c) Seller agrees that Buyer is purchasing thetsistgbt-free and will reimburse the Buyer for aeptwith respect to the Acquired Assets that is not
an Assumed Liability.

5. Purchase Pricén consideration of the sale, transfer and dejilxy Seller to Buyer of the Acquired Assets andhef other agreements of the parties set
forth in this Agreement, and subject to the assiongiy Buyer of the Assumed Liabilities, if any, y&ar agrees to pay to Seller an aggregate amount of
[ ], with EMC Corporation contributirgj ] and EMC (Benelux) B.V., S.a.cantributing $[ ] of such aggregate amounttEpayment shall

be made by wire transfer of immediately availableds to the account designated by Seller.

6. Closing The closing (“ Closing) of the transactions contemplated by this Agreeraball be held at 10:00 A.M. local time at the a#Baof Buyer, 17
South Street, Hopkinton, Massachusetts as of tfeztife Date (the " Closing Dat.

(a) Deliveries at Closint.

0] At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer tlodidwing:
(A) a duly executed counterpart of this Agreem

(B) all of the Acquired Contracts, with suesignments thereof and consents to assignmenasidaf permitted by such
agreements) as are necessary or appropriate e dsyer of the full benefit of the same; and

© such other instruments of sale, transfenveyance and assignment as Buyer shall reayaragjuest including, without
limitation, assignment agreements with respectltpadent, trademark and copyright rights of Selieany.

(ii) At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller tlidwing:
(A) a duly executed counterpart of this Agreem
(B) such other instruments of assumptioBelter may reasonably request; and

© the portion of the Purchase Price duélasing by wire transfer of immediately availableds to the account designated by
Seller.

7. Rights of BuyerSeller hereby constitutes and appoints Buyetrtieeand lawful attorney of Seller, with full powefr substitution, in the name of Sel
or Buyer, by, on behalf of and for the benefit afyBr: (a) to demand and receive from time to titheraany portion of the Acquired Assets and to makdorsements
and give receipts and releases for and in resp¢lsesame and any part thereof, (b) to institptesecute, compromise and settle any and all agtliigations (other
than litigation against Seller and its affiliatefficers, directors, employees and authorized ajemtgovernmental or administrative proceedings Buyer may deem
proper in order to collect, assert or enforce daing right or title of any kind in or to any Acqed Assets, (c) to defend or compromise any aaaibns, litigations or
governmental or administrative proceedings in respeany Acquired
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Assets, provided, however, that with respect todain for which Buyer intends to seek indemnifioatfrom Seller under this Agreement, Buyer shall compromise
or settle any such action or litigation withoutI8e$ prior written consent, which consent shall be unreasonably withheld, and (d) to do all sacts and things in
relation to the matters set forth in the precediiagises (a) through (c) as Buyer shall reasonadgyndappropriate.

8. Further AssuranceEach of Seller and Buyer shall, from time to tiafier the Closing and at the reasonable requekeafther party and without
further consideration, execute and deliver sucth@rinstrumentation of transfer and assignmemake such other actions as may be reasonably ra@gassorder to
more effectively consummate the transactions coplated hereby in an effort to vest in Buyer good aalid title to the Acquired Assets and to givél farce and effec
to the intent of the parties reflected hereby.

9. Representations and Warranties byeGeBeller represents and warrants to Buyer thatepeesentations and warranties contained in trede9 are
true, correct and complete as of the Effective Date

(@) Organization and Standin§eller is a corporation duly organized, validkyséing and in good standing under the laws ofStae of
Delaware and has full corporate power and authtwigonduct its business as presently conductedamioposed to be conducted by it. Seller hal @tnas
complied with all provisions of its Certificate fcorporation and By-laws, each as currently ie&ffand is not in default under, or in violatidnany such
provision.

(b) Authority for AgreementSeller has full corporate power and authoritgxecute and deliver this Agreement and to carnyitsutbligations
thereunder. The execution, delivery and performdnyc8eller of this Agreement has been duly autledrizy all necessary corporate action of Sellerrand
other action on the part of Seller is requiredonrection herewith. This Agreement has been dubgeted and delivered by Seller and constitutesalid and
legally binding obligation of Seller. The executiand delivery of this Agreement, the compliancéwlite provisions hereof by Seller, and the consutiomaf
the transactions contemplated hereby, will notgiflict with, result in a breach of, constituteitfwor without due notice or lapse of time or badhjefault
under, result in the acceleration of, create inpagy the right to accelerate, terminate, modifgancel, or require any notice, consent or waineter the
Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of Selrunder any contract, lease, sublease, sublicéasehise, permit, indenture, agreement or moedag
borrowed money, Security Interest or other intet@sthich Seller is a party or by which Seller @ibd or to which its assets are subject, (ii) tasuhe
imposition of any Security Interest upon any aseételler or (iii) violate any order, writ, injution, decree, rule or regulation applicable to &elbr any of its
properties or assets, except in each case, whehnecsnflict, breach, default or other violation iduot have a material adverse effect on the glwfitBuyer to
consummate the transactions contemplated herebthareby. For purposes of this Agreement, * Segumiterest’ means any mortgage, security interest,
encumbrance, claim, charge, or other lien (whedhieing by contract or by operation of law), ottien liens for taxes not yet due.

(c) Title to Acquired Asset. Seller owns the Acquired Assets and Seller hdss
conveying to Buyer hereunder, upon delivery to Buofehe instruments of transfer referred to intiec6, good and valid title to the Acquired Assé&scept
as set forth on Exhibit 9(c), none of the Acquifessets includes any software distributed undecenbe that requires as a condition of use, motlficar
distribution of the software that such softwarethrer software distributed with or combined witle 8oftware be (i) disclosed or distributed in sewode
form; (ii) licensed for the purpose of making thexidative works or (iii) redistributable at no cher
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(* Open Source Softwa”).

(d) ContractsSeller has furnished to Buyer a correct and ceteptopy of each Acquired Contract listed on Exkib{d) and 1(e), if any, and
identified thereon what if any consents of any perare required to assign the Acquired ContracButger. Seller has performed all obligations urttier
Acquired Contracts required to be performed byidrzo the Closing. Seller is not in breach of angterial term or provision of any Acquired Contrdm the
knowledge of Seller, there does not exist underfgguired Contract any event of default, exceptaioy event which has not had and is not reasonially lto
have a material adverse effect on the Acquired tA&ss@d no claim has been made against Selleiiradlegy event of default. All Acquired Contracte & full
force and effect and enforceable against each faeteto.

(e) ConsentsNo consent of any third party is required to beamed by Seller and no consent, approval, ordéiroaization of, or registration,
qualification, designation, declaration or filingttvany governmental authority is required in castizen with the execution and delivery of this Agment or
the consummation of the transactions contemplateebly.

(U] Intellectual PropertyAll patents, patent applications, copyrightsgdéaames, trademarks and trademark applicationshvetne owned by or
licensed to Seller or in which Seller has an irgetieat is directly related to the Business (ctilety and, together with the know how, trade secend
proprietary information included in the Busine$® t Intellectual PropertY) are listed on Exhibit 9(f). All of Seller’s patts and registered trademarks that are
directly related to the Business have been dulistexgd in, filed in or issued by the applicabléepa office of each country identified in Exhibif® and have
been properly maintained and renewed in accordaitbeall applicable laws and regulations of eacbhscountry. The use of the Intellectual Property
contemplated by this Agreement does not requiredinsent of any other Person except to the extantiny such consent has already been providedriiyac
or license or except as noted in Exhibit 1(c). @ noted in Exhibit 1(c), all of Seller’s righitsand interest in the Intellectual Property aeely transferable
(except as otherwise provided by law) and are ovexetlsively by Seller free and clear of any Seguriterests. Except for those items identifiedEkhibit 1
(c), no other Person has an interest in or riglitense to use, or right to acquire or the righlicense any other Person to use (whether contingreotherwise
any Intellectual Property; no claims or demandarof other Person pertaining thereto have beentadssgainst Seller in writing, and no proceedin@sehbeen
instituted or are pending or, to the knowledge @fe8, threatened, which challenge Seller’s righteespect thereof; to the knowledge of Seller,enohthe
Intellectual Property of Seller is being infringlegl another Person, nor are any of them subjeatymatstanding order, decree, ruling, charge, ictjon,
judgment or stipulation; and no claim has been mad® the knowledge of Seller, is threatenedrging Seller with infringement of any adverselycphtent,
trademark, trade secret or copyright or other iet&lial property. Seller has and is transferrinBuger valid licenses for all third party softwamed technology
included in the Acquired Assets. All personnelJulding employees, agents, consultants and contsaatdo have contributed to or participated in the
conception and development of any part of Selletsllectual Property rights on behalf of Sellevda@xecuted confidentiality, non-disclosure anéliattual
property ownership agreements, representative sabiehich have, or will be, furnished to Buyer. blarrent or former partner, director, officer, eoyse,
consultant, independent contractor or affiliat&Sefler (or any predecessor in interest) will, affiging effect to the transactions contemplatectimerown or
retain any rights in or to any Intellectual ProgeNo security measures have been implementeckisdftware of Seller included in the Acquired Assehich
would impair operation thereof, except such measasehave been disclosed to Buyer. Any technolegyded within the Division does not contain anyide
or feature designed to
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disrupt, disable, or otherwise impair the functianbf any such softwar

(9) Trade Secrets and Customer LiSsller has the right to use, free and clear gfcd@ms or rights of any other Person, all traelersts,
customer lists and secret processes and know-hdudied in the Acquired Assets required for or useithie marketing of the Business. With regard tchsu
technology and to the knowledge of Seller, Se#lerdt in any way making an unlawful or wrongful useny confidential information, know-how, or tead
secrets of any other Person.

(h) Litigation. There is no litigation or governmental or adntirgsve action, suit, proceeding or investigatidorfiestic or foreign) pending or,
the knowledge of Seller, threatened against Safidrdirectly related to the Division or the Acquirssets. No claims or demands of any other Person
pertaining thereto have been asserted against 8ellaiting, and no proceedings have been ingtduir are pending or, to the knowledge of Sellegatened,
which challenge Seller’s rights in respect thereof.

0] Sufficiency. Seller hereby represents and warrants that thieément is sufficient to transfer and convey titithe Acquired Assets to Buyer
under applicable law.

0] Export LicensesSeller acknowledges that the Acquired Assets adigestto the export jurisdiction of the United $stspecifically the Expc
Administration Regulations and Export Control Cifisation Number (ECCN) 5D002. Seller represents tto Seller’'s knowledge, it has complied with all
applicable international laws and regulations,udatg, without limitation, the US Export Administian regulations in the development, use and manetf
the Acquired Assets and in its business relatioitis tird parties concerning the Acquired Assets

(k) EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SET FORTH IN THISGHON 9, THE ACQUIRED ASSETS AND THE OTHER TECHNOIGY LICENSE
PROVIDED BY THIS AGREEMENT ARE PROVIDED “AS IS”, WIHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, BYSELLER OR ITS
AFFILIATES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PRTICULAR
PURPOSE, COMPLETENESS, ACCURACY, AVAILABILITY, TITE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, TRADE USAGE, COURSE OF DEALIN®R COURSE
OF PERFORMANCE. THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO PERFORMANCE QHE ACQUIRED ASSETS AND THE OTHER TECHNOLOGY LICEE ARE
WITH BUYER AND THERE IS NO GUARANTEE THAT THE ACQURED ASSETS AND THE OTHER TECHNOLOGY LICENSE PROVIDBEJNDER
THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT WILL MEET THE REQUIREMITS OF BUYER, BE ERROR FREE, OR OPERATE WITHOUT IERRUPTION.

18. Indemnification.

(@). Indemnity by SellerSeller hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hatmless Buyer and its directors, officers arfidiaes against and in
respect of any damage (@) that results from thecimacy of any representation or warranty madedeSherein, (b) resulting from any misrepreseatat
breach of warranty or non-fulfillment of any agresrhor covenant of Seller contained herein, andaglall actions, suits and proceedings resultiog fany
of the foregoing, (c) relating to Excluded Assetgd) arising from ownership of the Acquired Assgt®r to the Closing, other than Assumed Lialshti
(hereinafter called a “ Buyer
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Claim” or collectively" Buyer Claims”).

(b) Certification of Claimslf Buyer is of the opinion that any Buyer Clairashoccurred or will or may occur, Buyer shall stifgcseller, and
each such notice shall be in writing and shall dbsavith reasonable specificity the nature of saskerted Buyer Claim.

(c) Termination of Rights Hereundeéotwithstanding any other provision hereof, noy&uClaim may be made or lawsuit instituted undier t
provisions of this Section 15 or in any way arisingonnection with this Agreement or any represtomn or warranty hereunder (except for Reservedh@
(as defined below)) after the fifth anniversanttaé Agreement. * Reserved Claithshall mean any Buyer Claims which have been asken@ccordance wi
this Section 18, within the applicable periodsfeeth above.

(d) Third Party Actionsin the event any claim is made, suit is brougjatiast Buyer, Seller, or any of their respectivectors, officers or
affiliates which involves or appears reasonablgliiko involve a Buyer Claim for which indemnifigatt may be sought against Seller hereunder, sudi ywal
promptly (and in any event within three (3) busidays) after receipt of notice of any such clauit or proceeding, notify Buyer or Seller, as thse may be,
of the commencement thereof. Any failure by Buyesd notify Seller of the commencement of any stiaim, suit or proceeding will relieve Seller from
liability only to the extent that such failure maadly and adversely affects the ability of Sellerdefend Seller’s interests in such claim, actoproceeding.
Seller (at Seller's expense) shall have the right€hall be given the opportunity to assume andrabime defense of such claim, suit or proceeaiity
counsel of their choice reasonably satisfactor$uger so long as (i) Seller notifies Buyer in wrgiwithin ten (10) days after Buyer has given ret€ the
claim that Seller will indemnify Buyer from and agst the entirety of any damages Buyer may suffeulting from, arising out of, relating to, in thature of,
or caused by such claim, (ii) such claim involvefyanoney damages and does not seek an injunctiother equitable relief, (iii) Seller conducts thefense
of such claim actively and diligently, (iv) Selleas the financial resources to conduct an actideddigent defense and to pay, if necessary, theimmam
amount of the damages sought and furnishes suehrdats and other information with respect to siréuricial resources as may be reasonably requegted b
Buyer, and (v) Seller promptly provides Buyer atsdciounsel with all documents and other informatiating to the claim and defense thereof as neay b
reasonably requested by Buyer or its counsel; geal/that Buyer and its counsel (at Buyer’'s expemss) participate in (but not control the condugtadf
matters pertaining to the defense or settlemesudh claim, suit or proceeding. Whether or note3alects to assume such defense, Buyer shakkxaept at
its own cost, make any settlement with respechyosaich claim, suit or proceeding without the prisitten consent of Seller. Buyer’s consent tosaglement
of any such claim, suit or proceeding by Sellelldfarequired and shall not be unreasonably withbedelayed, but such consent shall not be reduifr(or to
the extent that) such settlement only requirepthanent of a monetary amount by Seller and incladiedl release of claims by the claimant and Selfainst
Buyer and does not include a statement as to oisatm of fault, culpability or failure to act by on behalf of Buyer.

In the event any of the conditions set forth irusks (i) to (iv) above is or becomes unsatisfied, ®eller elects not to conduct the defense efdlaim,
then (A) the Buyer may defend against, and cortsetite entry of any judgment or enter into anyleetént with respect to, such claim in any manneray
deem appropriate (and the Buyer need not constlif @i obtain any consent from, Seller or any giffiliates in connection therewith), (B) Selleitlw
reimburse the Buyer promptly and periodically foe tosts of defending such claim (including reabattorneys’ fees and expenses), and (C) Seller w
remain responsible for any damages the Buyer mifgrgesulting from, arising out of, relating to, the nature of, or caused by such
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claim to the fullest extent provided in this SentitS.

(e) Definition of Damaged-or purposes of this Section 18, the term “ dasaghall mean the amount of any loss, claim, demdadiage,
deficiency, assessment, judgment, remediation,arosxpense (including reasonable attorneys’, dten#is’ and experts’ fees and expenses) actualyried,
lessthe sum of any amount recovered under any insunaolégy carried by the party or parties seekingeimaification. In the event that Buyer pays a claim
covered by Buyer’s insurance for which it is eetitito indemnification by Seller hereunder, Buyelispay such claim and Seller shall reimburse Bulyerfull
amount of such claim (less the amount of any immegroceeds previously recovered by the Buyer rgpect to such claim). In the event the Sellgs jza
claim and Buyer subsequently receives insuranceesgds with respect to such claim, Buyer shall pelieSsuch insurance proceeds up to the amounalhctu

paid by Seller.

® The foregoing provisions of this Seatib8 notwithstanding, in no event shall the lidpibf Seller exceed an aggregate amount equal@o $5
million.
19. No Third Party Beneficiarie®othing in this Agreement, express or impliedntended or shall be construed to confer upoig giive to, any person,

firm, limited liability company or corporation oththan Buyer and its successors and assigns, amdseor claim under or by reason of this Agreemahterms,
covenants, promises and agreements containecsidgmeement shall be for the sole and exclusivefitesf Buyer and its successors and assigns.

20. ExpensesEach of Seller and Buyer shall assume and beexgénses, costs and fees incurred or assumeachypsirty in the preparation and
execution of this Agreement and the performandd@transactions contemplated hereby, whether tthedransactions shall be consummated; and BanyeiSeller
shall indemnify and hold each other harmless froch @gainst any and all liabilities and claims ispect of any such expenses, costs or fees nogéspensibility of or
assumed by the other party.

21. Publicity; Disclosures; Confidentiafdrmation; Use of NameExcept as expressly provided herein, no presaselor other public disclosure, whet
written, electronic or oral, of the transactionstemplated hereby shall be made by either parangrof their respective affiliates or representgiwithout the express
prior written consent of the other party.

22. Binding Nature of Agreemernithis Agreement shall be binding upon Seller, Buye their respective successors and assigns.

22. Notices All notices, requests, demands, consents and comeations necessary or required under this Agreestell be delivered by hand or sent by
registered or certified mail, return receipt reqadsor by overnight courier, or by facsimile (rgteonfirmed) to:

if to Buyer: EMC Corporatior
176 South Street
Hopkinton, MA 01748
Attention:  Office of the General Couns
Telecopier: (508) 497-6915

if to Seller: Acxiom Corporatior
1 Information Way
P.O. Box 818(
Little Rock, AR 7220:
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Attention: Company Legal Lead
Telecopier: (501) 345610

All such notices, requests, demands, consentstared communications shall be deemed to have belgrgdien or sent five (5) days following the date o
which mailed, or two (2) days following the dateilee if sent by overnight courier, or on the datevehich delivered by hand or by facsimile transimisgreceipt
confirmed), as the case may be, and addressedrasaifi.

23. Successors and Assigidl covenants and agreements set forth in thiss@gent and made by or on behalf of any of thagzaereto shall bind and
inure to the benefit of the successors, heirs asjas of such party, whether or not so expredéeither party may assign or transfer any of ithtsgor obligations
under this Agreement without the prior written cemisof the other party.

24, Severability In the event that any one or more of the prowisiof this Agreement is held invalid, illegal oremfiorceable in any respect for any reason
in any jurisdiction, the validity, legality and em€eability of any such provision in every othespect and of the remaining provisions hereof siatlbe in any way
impaired or affected, it being intended that eaichbesties’ rights and privileges shall be enfordeab the fullest extent permitted by law, and angh invalidity,
illegality and unenforceability in any jurisdicticmall not invalidate or render unenforceable suravision in any other jurisdiction.

25. Governing LawThis Agreement shall be governed by and constameldenforced exclusively in accordance with theslaf The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, without giving effect to the pritespof conflicts of laws thereof.

26. Entire AgreemeniThis Agreement, including the Exhibits, is contpleand all promises, representations, understgadwarranties and agreements
with reference to the subject matter hereof, ahthdlicements to the making of this Agreement celipon by all the parties hereto, have been expddssrein or in
such Exhibits. This Agreement may not be amendedpbby an instrument in writing signed by Selled 8uyer.

27. Confidentiality The terms of the Confidentiality Agreement, dafetbruary 3, 2003, shall remain in full force afféa and such terms not otherwise
in conflict with the provisions of this Agreememeaereby incorporated herein by this reference.
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Exhibit 13(d)(iv)

List of Individuals
Chuck Howlanc

Terry Talley
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FINAL
Exhibit 10(t)

TRANSITION AMENDMENT
BETWEEN
EMC CORPORATION AND ACXIOM CORPORATION

This Transition Amendment (this “Amendment”) is readnd entered into as of March 31, 2008 (the “Ammewnt Effective Date”), by and betwegkcxiom
Corporation , a Delaware corporation, with a principal addres§01 East 39 Street, Little Rock, AR 72201 (“Acxiom”), anBMC Corporation , a Massachuse
corporation with an office at 176 South Street, Kofpn, Massachusetts 01748 a@BMC (Benelux) B.V., S.a.r.l., a Luxembourg limited liability company (toget
“EMC").

WHEREAS , EMC and Acxiom have entered into an Asset Puehasl License Agreement (the "Agreement") with Hadive Date of December 29, 2005;

WHEREAS , it is the intent of EMC and Acxiom with this Amdment to modify or delete certain terms of the Agnent, add new terms to the Agreement, while
terms of the Agreement shall remain the same;

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined hereinldteale the meanings assigned to them in the AgreerfRer any sections modified below, it is undeostahat th
modification is only applicable to the specificailientified section, and not any header sectiorsibrsections thereof, unless expressly set forth.

NOW THEREFORE , in consideration of the mutual covenants andeagents contained herein the parties agree as fallow
ARTICLE ONE: LICENSES

1.1 EMC License to Acxiom. Subject to the limitations set forth herein, EM&eby grants to Acxiom a perpetual, non-transferaion-assignable, suizensable
and reproducible license to use code and technalogtained in versions 1.0 and 2.0 of the Base A@olgy as identified irExhibit 1 (the "Current Grid IP"Yo use
make, modify, distribute, create derivative workksand otherwise develop and commercialize the @ar@id IP but solely for use within or in additie@ a whole ¢
partial distribution of Acxiom Products. For purpssof this Amendment, “Acxiom Productshall mean those products developed by Acxiom atighe's facilities
which shall also include any products subsequeteheloped or obtained by Acxiom through acquisitigror merger of Acxiom with a third party and, faurposes ¢
clarification, an Acxiom Product may include opeusce or other third party components, provided fhat also contains products developed by Acxiai\cxiom's
facilities or subsequently developed or obtained\byiom through acquisition or by merger or Acxiewth a third party; 2) the combination is packaged distribute
as a single Acxiom Product; and 3) the combinatitth such components does not create any additlaraising obligations with respect to the Curr@nid IP under
license that requires, for example, that the Cuar€md IP be disclosed or distributed in sourceecéarm or that EMC grant any rights or immunitiesdar EMC%
intellectual property or proprietary rights withspect to the Current Grid IP (“copyleft licensé¢ipwever, Acxiom may include or distribute any safte in the Acxior
Products with any software that is not subject tomyleft license as described above, or that @msitgpen source but does not subject the CurredtIBito the terms «
such an open source license.




Except in connection with a distribution of the Amx Products directly and indirectly (except asfeeth below) and related maintenance and supmtitites for the
Acxiom Products €.g., a commercial distribution behind an Acxiom ersen’s firewall), Acxiom's use of the Current Grid IPaifbe limited to Acxiom employees €
contractors.

1.1(a) Acxiom's distribution right in Section labove ( EMC License to Acxiomshall be deemed to provide Acxiom only with tlight to distribute th
Current Grid IP as part of or in addition to Acxidtmoducts, where the Acxiom Products are embeddedegrated with, or in addition to, all or a gort of the
Excluded Assets or other Acxiom assets subsequeatigloped or obtained by Acxiom through acquisitiy or merger of Acxiom with a third party.

1.1(b) Except as expressly stated in Section( EMC License to Acxiom) Acxiom shall not be permitted to distribute ther@nt Grid IP: (i) embedd:
within other nonAcxiom product(s) or technology, (ii) with any bding other than that of Acxiom, or (iii) indirectthrough or to those EMC competit
identified inExhibit 2 ("EMC Competitors").

1.1(c) Acxiom hereby acknowledges that EMC ha®sli@ation to provide any (i) Base Technology teeaafter December 20, 2007, or (ii) any technar
other support for the Current Grid IP to Acxiom.dddition, EMC hereby acknowledges and agreesAbgiom has no obligation to provide any deriva
works of the Base Technology created after Dece@®g2007 or pursuant to the provisions of Secti@), Section 12(e) or Section 12(f) of the Agrertne

1.1(d) Notwithstanding this Section 1.1 (EMC Lise to Acxiom), Acxiom may deposit the source cfadeCurrent Grid IP as part of a comprehensive dd
of the source code for Acxiom Products with a thpedty escrow agent pursuant to a written escraweagent (Escrow Agreement"). The Escrow Agreen
shall have only the following as release conditigfsAcxiom files or has filed against it a procésgl under applicable bankruptcy laws for the puepo!
liquidating the business and such proceedings atrdismissed within sixty (60) days of the commaneat thereof, becomes insolvent, or discontinusines
in the regular course; or (ii) Acxiom makes an gissient on behalf of creditors.

In the event the source code for the Current QRicsIreleased along with source code for the AcRyoducts, in accordance with the release conditadove
to an existing Acxiom end user of the Acxiom Praduécxiom will grant such end-user a written nowlasive, non-transferable, non-slibensable license
internally use the Current Grid IP source codelgatesupport the end-users use of the Acxiom Petsdu

1.1(e) Acxiom hereby acknowledges and agreesttiwaforegoing license is provided "AS* WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS Ol
IMPLIED BY EMC OR ITS AFFILIATES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED PURPOSE, COMPLETENESS, ACQRACY,
AVAILABILITY, TITLE, NON- INFRINGEMENT, TRADE USEAGE, COURSE OF DEALING, OROURSE OF PERFORMANCE, THE ENTIRE RI:
AS TO THE PEFORMANCE OF THE GRID IP AND ACXIOM PRQECTS ARE WITH ACXIOM AND THERE IS NOT GUARANTEE THA THE
LICENSE PROVIDED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS AMENDMENWILL MEET THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENT OF ACXIOM, BE ERFOR FREE
OR OPERATE WITHOUT INTERRUPTUION.




1.1(f) Except as otherwise expressly providethia Amendment with respect to Acxiosndistribution rights, Section 12(c) of the Agre@temains in fu
force and effect as it relates to the Current @id

ARTICLE TWO- NONSOLICTATION AND NON-COMPETE
2.1 Nonsolicitation . Section 14 ( Nonsolicitationof the Agreement is hereby waived for up to &ftg15) current employees of Acxiom.

2.2 Waiver of Non-Compete. (a) In the event that Acxiom has any remmpete, confidentiality or similar agreements wikbxiom employees who &
subsequently hired directly or indirectlg(g., as a contractor) by EMC (the “Former Associgteatxiom hereby expressly releases, waives and digesahe Form:
Associates who, Acxiom acknowledges and agreed, beilexpressly allowed by this Section 2.2 to disel to EMC the technical, proprietary and confiidd
information of Acxiom that is known by such emplegewith regard to how such information relatesteracts with the Current Grid IP. Further, andegtavith regar
to a breach of this Section 2.2, Acxiom hereby eggly releases, waives and discharges EMC, its paestent and future directors, officers, stockbddagents ai
employees, both individually and in their officiehpacities (hereafter individually or collectivellye "releasees") from any and all claims, causeactibn, arisin
directly and indirectly from Acxions agreements with the Former Associates. Notwitiaitg anything in this Article 2 to the contrarm, mo event shall the Forn
Associates disclose, nor shall EMC request of sucployees, the following Acxiom confidential infoation:

e Security details, schematics, methods, vulneréslitand system layout of the Acxiom environrr

¢ Confidential business plans of current and plark@dom products and services of which such Formgsokiates may have knowledge other than confide
business plans of Acxiom with regard to the useiatedjration of the Current Grid |
o Details about specific client situations of Acxic

e Any Acxiom developed intellectual properte.g., code, documentation, processes) developed 3ameary 1 200
e Technical interface details to any Acxiom custouhata integration“ CDI") service

(b) In addition, in no event shall the Formessociates or EMC be allowed to utilize or disclesy of Acxioms tangible intellectual property including, but
limited to, Acxiom-proprietary documentation, soétve code, marketing plans, manuals and equipm8nkidm Materials”).

(c) Further, the parties agree that the eimhssset forth in Section 2 of that certain Confidgity Agreement between the parties dated Felpr8a2003, whic
agreement was incorporated into the Agreement lyid®e27 of the Agreement (the “Confidentiality Agment”) shall apply to Acxiora’confidential informatic
disclosed pursuant to this Article 2. The partils® agree that the Confidentiality Agreement shdaddgoverned by and construed in accordance wéthativs of th
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Except as exprasstified in this Article 2, the parties affirm thiéte provisions of the Confidentiality Agreemenalmemain ir
full force and effect.




(d) By enumerating categories of Acxiom cdafitial information in Section 2.2 of this AmendheBMC does not acknowledge that such Acxiom canftih
information exists in all cases, but only that iéxists, corresponding confidentiality obligatiaiso exist in accordance with the Agreement.

(e) Nothing contained in this Amendment Erestrict the Former Associates from the use gf general ideas, concepts, kntvw, or techniques retained in tt
unaided mental impressions which either party, viddially or jointly, has developed or disclosed endhis Amendment, provided that in doing so suchnfel
Associate does not breach its obligations underCibefidentiality Agreement or infringe the intelteal property rights of the other party or thirdris who hav
licensed or provided materials to the other party.

ARTICLE THREE- MARKETING AND SERVICES

3.1 Acxiom Marketing Services. EMC will procure five hundred thousand dollar§@),000) of marketing services from Acxiom over trext two (2) calend
years, beginning as of January 1, 2008, pursuamutoally agreed upon terms.

3.2 Future Procurement of Acxiom Marketing Services.In addition to the amount set forth in Section 8ibve, EMC intends to use commercially reasot
efforts procure an additional one million dolla$d (000,000) of marketing services from Acxiom other next three (3) years, beginning as of Janua2p@8.

ARTICLE FOUR- EMC CREDITS

4.1 EMC Credits. In anticipation of Acxiom procuring and remittingyment for twentyfour million dollars ($24,000,000) of EMC hardwamed software produc
only (the "Products") (collectively the "Product i@mitment") directly from EMC, pursuant to the terarsd conditions of this Amendment and the Prefekfeddo
Agreement between EMC and Acxiom with an effectiage of April 1, 2006 (the "Preferred Vendor Agremiti), between the Amendment Effective Date anddh
31, 2012, EMC will provide Acxiom up to eightillion dollars ($8,000,000) of credit (the "EMC &tiit") per this Amendment and in accordance withtias 4.1(c
through (e) below.

4.1(a) Notwithstanding the foregoing Section 4 EMC Credits), monies spent on the purchases of the followiragpcts shall not be applicable to
twentyfour million dollar Product Commitment or be corevied as part of the calculation of the EMC Creditd therefore, Acxiom is not required to purchims
following products directly from EMC): (i) VMwarerpducts, (i) EMC products sold under the Connedirand, (iii) products sold through the EMC Seleigram, ¢
(iv) any products sold in the future by EMC that abtained by EMC through acquisition of or merfeEMC with a third party.

4.1(b) Acxiom shall be eligible for the EMC Citeals set forth herein on or before the expiratibthe Preferred Vendor Agreement.
4.1(c) Acxiom will earn the EMC Credit on a pata basis based on the amount of Acxiom purchafSEMC Products pursuant to this Amendment up &

maximum of eight million dollars ($8,000,000) aatetl above. Acxiom will earn a credit of thittyree cents ($0.33) for every dollar Acxiom spendh EMC in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this




Amendment. EMC shall apply the EMC Credit agaihstamounts of monies owed to EMC by Acxiom for pases of the EMC Products, and Acxiom shall pay |
the net amount.

4.1(c)(1) The following example, while not exhaustof the application of the EMC Credit, is illiaive and is included for illustration only:

Quarter 1 Quarter z Quarter & Quarter 4 Yearly total
Acxiom
purchase: $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $500,000 $3,500,000 $6,000,000
EMC Credit $300,00C $300,00C $150,00C $1,050,00( $1,800,00(
Net Amount Due|
to EMC for | $700,000 $700,000 $350,000 $2,450,000 $4,200,000
EMC Product(s),
purchase:

4.1(d) EMC shall have no obligation to make BMC Credit available, in whole or in part, if: (e Preferred Vendor Agreement is terminated A@kiom
fails to make a payment pursuant to the Preferredddr Agreement when due, or (iii) Acxiom breacttés Amendment. Acxiom acknowledges and agreesit
Acxiom fails to pay EMC for any EMC Products whgaechase amounts are used in the calculation dEih€ Credit, and EMC provides such EMC Credit tocide,
Acxiom shall pay back such EMC Credit(s) to EMC.

4.1(e) Pricing for the EMC Products shall beetsforth in the Preferred Vendor Agreement.
ARTICLE FIVE — PREFERRED VENDOR AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
5.1(a) EMC and Acxiom agree that the Preferred \derjreement is hereby extended until March 31,22Qkovided, however, that in the event BUY
satisfies the Product Commitment (as defined inTinsition Amendment dated March 31, 2008 (theafiBition Amendment”prior to March 31, 2012, BUYER sh
have the option of immediately terminating the Prefd Vendor Agreement upon notice to SELLER. Iditmh, EMC and Acxiom shall amend the Preferrechtta
Agreement contemporaneously with the Amendmentciffe Date as follows:
5(@) (1) Section 1(a) of the Prefervieshdor Agreement shall be deleted and replaced thittiollowing:
"Exclusive Rights to Supply" shall mean that SELLE#ll be BUYER's exclusive vendor to provide EMGducts and services in support of bot
BUYER's internal requirements and (ii) service8tgyer’s customers, including Outsourcing Services Agreesn@s defined herein) BUYER has v
its customers ("End-Users)."

5(a) (2) Section 2(a) of the Preferred Agreemehtigby amended to read as follows:

"BUYER grants SELLER the Exclusive Rights to SuppWC products and services on EMC's current angréuprice list to BUYER for a term
expire on March 31, 2012. Provided however, thdtl$R is not BUYER'S exclusive
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vendor and BUYER shall have no obligation to pusehttom SELLER products and services wh

« Requirements for applications having specific téchlimrequirements or limitation that cannot be awowdated by SELLEF

¢ BUYER's Enw-User's existing IT architecture would have to bedamentally and radically altered such that it wioubt be economically n
practically feasible to use SELLER's technologydoch En-User;

e SELLER's pr-credit, discounted price for SELLER's products whiare applicable to BUYER's technology needs is materially
competitive with other similarly situated produats

e BUYER’S EndUser specifically requests in writing (as part ofeguest for proposal or similar document that megustorage) technolo
other than SELLER's.

5(a) (3) Section 2. e) of the Preferred Vendor &grent is hereby stricken in its entirety and regdawith “[Intentionally Omitted].”

5(a) (4) Section 3 (Hardware Pricing and Warraofythe Preferred Vendor Agreement shall be delatetireplaced with the following:

" a) Hardware products will be offered to BUYER & then current list price less the discounts reglean the chart below. List price and discount
be provided on all quotations. New hardware praglotay be added by EMC to the Purchase DiscountdB@hevery calendar quarter. New hardv

products that are similar to the products listedhi@a Purchase Discount Schedule will have disctewdls as favorable to Acxiom as those for
similar products.

Type Examples Discount
Enterprise Sym DMX3, DMX4, Celerre 68%
Mid-Tier Clariion, Centera, NA! 68%
Connectrix Connectrix 56%
Drives | - 60%

b) All hardware pricing, including futurei@ng, applicable under the Agreement will appdythe then current generation of SELLER hard
products. Current generation will be defined as ISHR's newest technology within 90 days of genevallability.

c) Hardware warranty on storage purchasetbuthis Agreement will be for thirtyix (36) months. Post warranty Hardware Maintenamidiebe
discounted at a rate of forty-percent (40%) fromlikt price in effect at the time this Agreemenékecuted."

5(b) (1) Section 4 (Software Pricing aldrranty) of the Preferred Vendor Agreement shaltieleted and replaced with the following:

a) SELLER third party software products viié offered to BUYER at the then current list piiess thirty-eight percent (38%) discount.
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The current SELLER storage software offerings Wwél offered to BUYER at the then current list priess the discount reflected in the chart be
List price and discount will be provided on all ¢ations. New software products may be added by EM@e Purchase Discount Schedule e
calendar quarter. New software products that anéasi to the products listed in the Purchase Dist@chedule will have discount levels as favor
to Acxiom as those for the similar products.

Type Discount
Storage softwa-Enterprise Platforr 45%
Storage softwa-Mid-Tier Platform 45%
Software-Multi-Platforn-Open 45%
b) Software Warranty on software purchaseder this Agreement will be for three (3) montRsst warranty maintenance will be at fofitye

percent (45%) discount off of the then currentpiste.

c) This section 4 applies to all SELLERte@ifre offerings with the exception of software salier the following categories or brand nai

Content Management and Archiving, SMARTS, Legatilwéare, and/or any software offerings that EMC meguare through acquisition or merger.

5(b)(2) Section 8. a) of the Prefervhdor Agreement shall be deleted and replaced tvétiollowing:

"a) Order of precedence. In the event of a coniticerms between this Agreement, and the Basie@rd Agreement and the Transition Amendrr
the order of precedence shall be the Transitiondmeent, this Agreement and the Basic Ordering Agerd."

ARTICLE SIX- PAYMENT
EMC Payment. EMC shall pay Acxiom the sum of two million dollgi$2,000,000) within thirty (30) days of the Ameneimh Effective Date.
ARTICLE SEVEN- MARKETING

EMC and Acxiom agree to use commercigdlysonable efforts to gain market share for thedpective products and services by proposing custsmiution
that may be deployed as part of a customer solatioan opportunistic basis.

7.1(a) When EMC recognizes a customer oppostunitvhich Acxiom products and services may be pér service engagement by EMC's Business
practice unit (the "Opportunity"), EMC will engagexiom to determine the feasibility of pursuing t®@portunity with Acxiom, where Acxiom may be a sabtracto

7.1(b) Acxiom will work with EMC to prepare progals for such Opportunities, including providing EMiith preferred pricing and business terms.
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7.1(c) In the event EMC has brought Acxiom intoGportunity, Acxiom will not propose or provide Aor products and services, directly or indirecttythe
customer identified in the Opportunity.

7.1(d) EMC and Acxiom will agree on a processhimi ninety (90) days of the Amendment Effectivet®ao document the procedure for handling
Opportunities.

ARTICLE EIGHT — PENTAHO
8.1 Acxiom hereby grants to EMC the licenrigbts set forth irExhibit 3 (the "Pentaho Services").

8.2 EMC hereby acknowledges and agreesthigalicense granted to EMC in Exhibit 3 is provid&®-1S" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND,
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY ACXIOM OR ITS AFFILIATES, INCUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED PURPOSE, COMBETENESS, ACCURACY
AVAILABILITY, TITLE, NON- INFRINGEMENT, TRADE USEAGE, COURSE OF DEALING, ORAURSE OF PERFORMANCE, THE ENTIRE RISK AS
THE PEFORMANCE OF THE PENTAHO SERVICES ARE WITH EMEND THERE IS NOT A GUARANTEE THAT THE LICENSE PROBED UNDER THE
TERMS OF THIS AMENDMENT WILL MEET THE MINIMUM REQUREMENT OF EMC, BE ERROR FREE OR OPERATE WITHOUT IBRRUPTUION.

ARTICLE NINE- RELEASES

9.1. Except for the rights and obligations resgly created or reserved by this Amendment amreépxor a breach of the confidentiality or intetiga
property terms of the Agreement (including this Awdeent), EMC and Acxiom hereby release, acquitfanever discharge Acxiom and EMC respectively frany
and all Claims solely arising from, based on oated to the Agreement, from the beginning of timéhie Amendment Effective Date. As used hereinall@” mean
any and all actions, causes of action, claims,s¢aktmages, debts, demands, expenses, liabilieses, obligations, proceedings and suits of ekiny and natur
liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingentldmv, equity or otherwise, and whether presentlgvikim or unknown, accrued or not accrued.
ARTICLE TEN- GENERAL
10.1  All other terms and provisions of the Agrent shall remain in full force and effect, if baoged by this Amendment.

10.2 This Amendment may be executed in couategppies, each of which, when executed and delijeshall be an original, but such counterpartdl $hgethe
constitute one and the same instrument.

10.3 This Amendment may be amended only bysiniment in writing signed by all parties hereto.

10.4 No press release or other public disclswhether written, electronic or oral, of the teremd existence of this Amendment and the tramsectontemplate
hereby shall be made by either party or any of ttesipective affiliates or representatives withibetexpress written consent of the other party.
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10.5 Acxiom may assign or transfer its right®bligations under this Amendment, unless suclyasgnt or transfer is due to a change of contrélaxiom to a thirc
party that is listed as an EMC Competitor on ExtithiFor purposes of this Amendment, a “changeoafrol” shall mean (i) a transaction or series of relatadsaction
in which a person or entity acquires, directly mdirectly, or acquires the right to acquire, dikectr indirectly, (a) a majority of the voting sedies of Acxiom, (b) th
right to control the appointment or voting intoioé of a majority of the members of Acxiosboard of directors, or (c) all or substantiallyoh the assets of Acxiom,
(i) a transaction or series of related transactisich result in Acxions stockholders immediately subsequent to suchdcdios or series of transactions owning
than a majority of the voting securities of Acxianany successor thereto. With regard to the effé&xhibit 2 upon this Section 10.5, the partiekreowledge ar
agree that only the listing of up to ten (10) eesitis applicable to this Section 10.5, and thatrétmainder of Exhibit 2 has no effect upon thisti®a 10.5. With regai
to any changes in the listing as it pertains te 8gction 10.5 and absent mutual agreement ofatties, EMC shall have the right to unilaterallyise the list in Janua
of each year that this Section 10.5 is in effecglwng written notice to Acxiom of any modificatie to the listing by January 31 of such year; mgtedj however, that
the event of a public announcement that Acxiomdmasbined, or will be combining, with a third paw#o is not then currently on the listing of EMC Quetitors, suc
third party shall not be a candidate to be addeatedisting by EMC. In addition, the parties ackedge and agree that this specific Section 10a8 sixpire and hax
no further force or effect upon the parties as aféh 31, 2010.

10.6 The provisions of Section 7 of the Agneat (Rights of Buyer) are deleted in their enyir@td replaced with “[Intentionally Omitted].”
10.7  This Amendment shall be deemed to be @enfial Information of both EMC and Acxiom.
10.8  This Amendment shall be governed by the laws ofdbmmonwealth of Massachuse

10.9 All notices, requests, demands, consem@ammunications necessary or required undettmendment or the Agreement shall be delivered mdha sent b
registered or certified mail, return receipt reqadsor by overnight courier, or by facsimile (rgteonfirmed) to Acxiom at the following address:

Acxiom Corporatior EMC Corporatior

601 East 39 Street 176 South Stree

Little Rock, AR 72201 Hopkinton, MA

Attention: General Couns Attention: Office of the Generi
Counsel

Telecopier: (501) 25-2230 Telecopier: (508) 4¢-6915

[Signature Page to Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettiiss Amendment as of the Amendment Effective Diasé written above

EMC CORPORATION ACXIOM CORPORATION
_ Is/ William J. Teube _Is/ L.L. Hodges
Authorized Signatur Authorized Signatur

_ William J. Teube __L.L.Hodges

Printed Name Printed Name

_ Vice Chairmar _ Services Division Leade
Title Title

EMC (BENELUX) B.V., S.ar.l.

_Is/ William J. Teube
Authorized Signatur

_ William J. Teube
Printed Name

_ Managing Directo
Title
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EXHIBIT 1

VERSIONS 1.0 AND 2.0 OF THE BASE TECHNOLOGY- AS OFDECEMBER 28, 2007
Version 1.(-
Base Technology
The following list of technology components is irdd and corresponds with the attached Customemiditon Infrastructure Grid Component Descriptidnsument
dated December 20, 2005 (the “Technology Detaili)oh includes the detailed information on each congmt, including (i) a general description of tieenponent; (ii)
Features/Functions; (iii) Benefits; (iv) Competitiqv) Advantages; (vi) Future Plans; (vii) Langeagnd Dependencies; and (viii) Glossary terms.
The Technology Detail includes a Technology ListDment which sets for those components which ase Bachnology and those which are Other Technasgsucl

terms are defined in the Agreement and cross-mefesewith the contents section of the TechnologiaiDéssets identified as Other Technology in Tieehnology List
Document are Excluded Assets.

1 Infrastructure Components

1.1 | Apiary REX (Grid OS - Base Technolog
1.2 | Apiary REX- Monitoring - Base Technolog
1.3 | Apiary Rex— Hive-Node - Base Technolog
1.4 | Parallel Virtual File System (PVF! - Base Technolog
1.5 | DataGrid FTP Daema - Base Technolog
1.6 | EDGE-External Data Gatewe - Base Technolog
1.7 | Interactive Hive - Base Technolog
1.8 | Hydra - Base Technolog
1.9 | Anubis - Base Technolog
1.1 | Hivebuilder - Base Technolog
1.11 | J2EE Hive - Base Technolog
1.12 | CORBA Naming Servic - Base Technolog
1.13 | Cascadt - Base Technolog
1.14 | Advanced Package Tool (AP - Base Technolog
1.15 | Software Serve - Base Technolog
1.16 | Systemlmage - Base Technolog
1.17 | LDAP- Lightweight Directory Access Protoc - Base Technolog
1.18 | HiveForHire - Base Technolog
1.19 | Workflow Grid Environmen - Base Technolog
1.20 | Workflow Grid Environment Tool - Base Technolog
1.21 | Acxiom Grid Schedule - Base Technolog
1.23 | WorkFlow Grid Job Submission and Execution Infrasture - Base Technolog
1.24 | Acxiom Metadata Repository Subsyst - Base Technolog
1.25 | Workflow Grid (WFG) Batch Componen - Base Technolog
1.26 | Interactive Delivery : - Base Technolog
1.27 | DataBase Grit - Base Technolog
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1.28 | Generic Servici

- Base Technolog

1.29 | CIGAR

- Base Technolog

Acxelerate- Convert Manage

1.30 | Cll Securit - Base Technolog
3 Enterprlse Interface

- Base Technolog

3.2 Acxelerate- File Managel - Base Technolog
3.3 | Acxelerate- Job Activity - Base Technolog
3.4 | Acxelerate- Layout Manage - Base Technolog
3.5 | Acxelerate- Project Manage - Base Technolog
3 6 Acxelerate-— Navigator - Base Technolog

Acxelerate- Policy Manage

- Base Technolog

SAS Interactive Modeling Servic

3 14 Orbiter - Base Technolog
4 B I. Management

- Base Technolog

FOCAL - Function Oriented Custom Application Langui

4 6 SAS WFG Scorin¢ - Base Technolog
5 Data Hygiene and Transformation

- Base Technolog

Perl Operato

- Base Technolog

InfoBase Data Grid Service (aka Hercul

5 7 Hydra/Tesla Operator Wrapp - Base Technolog
6 Data Enhancemen

- Base Technolog

6.6 Helios/Horizon

- Base Technolog

License Agreements

All of the Licenses identified in the Third PartpfGvare Spread Sheet below (and the code thatdbresr ) except the licenses identified as Excludednses (and the

code they cover):

THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE SPREADSHEET

Product Module /
Component List
module name

Product 3" party software

Product Version vendor name¢

DROLAND

Activate Navigator

RedHat

Sun Microsystem
JBOSS

Sun Microsystem
MySQL
GNU/Redhat *
Apache

3 party software vendor 3 party software

product name¢ product versior
7.3, RHEL 3.0

Linux RHEL 4.0

JAVA

JBOSS 3.247%

JSF ?

MySQL 4.2

C compiler ?

ANT ?

12




Policy Manage

File Manage!

Project
Managet

Convert
Managet

RedHat
Apache

RedHat

Sun Microsystem
JBOSS

Sun Microsystem
MySQL
GNU/Redhat
Apache

RedHat

Apache

RedHat

Sun Microsystem
JBOSS

Sun Microsystem
GNU/Redhat
Apache

RedHat

Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat

RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
PERL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF

C compiler
ANT

RPM

AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
ANT
RPM
AXIS

Linux
JAVA
JBOSS
JSF
MySQL
ANT
RPM

13

7.3, RHEL 3.0,
RHEL 4.0

3247
?

42
?

2
?
2
7.3, RHEL 3.0

RHEL 4.0

3.247
?

WD) Y N -

7.3, RHEL 3.0
RHEL 4.0

3.247
?

4.?

?

?

?

7.3, RHEL 3.0
RHEL 4.0

3.247
?

4.?

?

?




Orbiter

Job Activity

Layout
Managet

Activate
framework

2.6

Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

RedHat
Sun Microsystem
JBOSS
Sun Microsystem
MySQL
Apache
RedHat
Apache

Sun Microsystem
Apache
GNU/Redhat
MySQL

Apache

Apache

Apache
CodeZoo*

Oracle
?

AXIS ?
7.3, RHEL 3.0,
Linux RHEL 4.0
JAVA
JBOSS 3247
JSF ?
MySQL 4.?
ANT ?
RPM ?
AXIS ?
7.3, RHEL 3.0,
Linux RHEL 4.0
JAVA
JBOSS 3247
JSF ?
MySQL 4.?
ANT ?
RPM ?
AXIS ?
7.3, RHEL 3.0,
Linux RHEL 4.0
JAVA
JBOSS 3247
JSF ?
MySQL 4.?
ANT ?
RPM ?
AXIS ?
JAVA
Tomcat
PERL
MySQL
Log4j
Commons *
Struts
Tyrex
Oracle JDBC
wsdl4j
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MBOTNE

InfoBase

Data Grid

Helios

RFARME

SAS Base
Stat
OR
Conneci
Secure
Access fol
ODBC
Access fol
Oracle
sasautt

BigIP ???

RTHORN

EDGE/GIS

2?7

1.1/2.0 Sterling Commerc

?

?
castor
Apache
Apache
?

dom4j
?

OClI

GNU/Redhat *

OClI

SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS
SAS

SAS

2?7

saaj

jaxrpc

castor

AXIS

xalan

jaxen

dom4j

Xerces

TAO 13,14
Xerces XML C++ 2.2,2.6
Boost 1.29,1.3C
Perl 5.61,5.8
TAO 1.3
Xerces XML C++ 2.2
Boost 1.29
GNU automakse 1.54
GNU autocon 2.13
GNU libtool 1.4.2
SAS/Base 8.x/9.x
SAS/Stai 8.x/9.x
SAS/OR 8.x/9.x
SAS/Connec 8.x/9.x
SAS/Securt 8.x/9.x
2?7 8.x/9.x
?2?? 8.x/9.x
sasautt 8.x/9.x
?2?? ?2??

Gentran Integratio
Suite 4.0.2-5/4.0.:-6
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LDAP
Authenticatior

Nexus

AGS

Validation
Service

ClI Identity
Authenticatior

Nexus Schedule
Processe

Nexus Huk

Logging Service

AGS Service
AGS Service/Job
Monitor

AGS Service/Job
Monitor

MySQL
Soap::Lite
Acxiom Job XML
Submission
System (AJXSS

AJXSS
AJXSS

WorkFlow Infrastructure Services (WFI

Engine Adapte

Transfer
Service

11

24
24

10
1.0
10

1.0
1.0
10

10

1.0
10

10
1.0

10

kernel.org

Arcana Developmer
OpenSSH Projec

Apache Software
Foundatior
Apache Software
Foundatior
Apache Software
Foundatior
Apache Software
Foundatior
MySQL Databas:
PERL Module

SourceForge.ne

xmlsoft.org

Microsoft Corporatior

SourceForge.n¢
SourceForge.ne

Linux-PAM

Arcana
OpenSSF

Log4J
Log4Cxx
Xerces
Xalan

MySQL
?

LibXML++

Log4cxx
libxmlI2

Perl

Microsoft XML parsel

Perl
JBOSS

SOAP

Perl
Expat XML Parse
LibXML++

Perl

16

0.77

2.3
3.61

4.1

1.0.0
<describec
above>

2.4.1¢4

<described
elsewhere:
4.0

<describec
elsewhere:
<describec
elsewhere:
<describec
elsewhere:

<describec
elsewhere:
5.4.1/1.95.2
1.0.0

<describec
elsewhere:




Acxiom
Metadata
Repository
System

RPATEL

Anubis

Apiary

apiary_ldar

apiary_rex

Acxiom Metadat:
Client 2.0

Repository Database (require Microsoft Corporatior
Repository Database (option. Oracle Corporatio

? OClI

Apache
RedHat
RedHat
Acxiom
RedHat
MySQL

HP
Dell

Microsoft SQL Serve
Oracle

TAO

ANT

mod_perl
mod_gzip
mod_ss|
mod_auth_par
MySQL
perl_date_busines
perl_gd
perl_gd_grapl
perl_gd_textutil
perl_net_snm|
perl_libwww_perl
perl_libnet
perl_mailtools
perl_dbd_mysq
perl_dbi
perl_soap_lite
perl_extutils_autoinsta
perl_apache_authexpi
perl_authen_par
perl_mime_tool:
perl_io_stringy

perl_algorithm_numerical_shuff

net_snmg
dmidecode
arrayinfo
afacli

perl_io_socket_s:
perl_net_sslea
perl_net_Idag
perl_mailtools

apache
mod_perl

17

SQL 2000 SP-
9i

11&1.3a

1.3.27
1.26
1.3.26
2.8.12
111
4.0.12
12
1.19
1.39
0.82
3.6
5.76
1.0901
1.47
2.1026
1.35
0.56
0.59
0.39.1
0.14
5.411
2.108
14
5.0.3
2.3
0.12
2.7

0.96
1.25
0.28
1.47

1.3.27
1.26




apt_serve

Corba Tools OClI

DB Wrapper MySQL

Grid FTP
Server

Hive for Hire

Hydra Top

mod_gzip

mod_ss|
mod_auth_par

mysq|
perl_date_busines
perl_gd

perl_gd_grapl
perl_gd_textuti
perl_net_snm|
perl_libwww_perl
perl_libnet
perl_mailtools
perl_dbd_mysq
perl_dbi

perl_soap_lite
perl_extutils_autoinsta
perl_apache_authexpi
perl_authen_par
perl_mime_tool:
perl_io_stringy

perl_algorithm_numerical_shuff

net_snmg

apt_rpm
wget

TAO

MySQL

perl_net_ftpserve

perl_expec
perl_io_tty
perl_io_socket_s:
perl_net_sslea
perl_net_Idaf
perl_mailtools
perl_mime_base6
opensst

perl_libwww_perl
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1.3.26
2.8.12
111
4.0.12
12
1.19
1.39
0.82
3.6
5.76
1.0901
1.47
2.1026
1.35
0.56
0.59
0.39.1
0.14
5.411
2.108
14
5.0.3

0.5.15cnc¢
1.8.2

11&1.3a

4.0.12

1.116

1.15
1.02
0.96
1.25
0.28
1.47
2.12
3.8p1

5.76




LDAP
Admin

LDAP Cert

LDAP
Master

LDAP
Migrate

LDAP Slave

LDAP Utils

LDAP
Wrapper

Naming Service Uti OCl

Naming Service Wrappt OCl

Perl SNMP
Graph

Pod LDAP

Propolis

perl_io_socket_s:
perl_net_sslea

perl_net_Iday

perl_mailtools

perl_cgi

perl_expec

perl_net_snm|
perl_algorithm_numerical_shuff
perl_convert_asn

opensst
perl_cgi

perl_net_Idag
perl_mailtools

perl_io_socket_s:
perl_net_sslea
perl_net_Idag
perl_term_readke
openldag

perl_cgi
perl_io_socket_s:

perl_net_sslea
perl_net_Idaf

openldag
TAO

TAO

perl_gd_grapl

openldag
perl_xml_parse

perl_crypt_sslea

19

0.96
1.25
0.28
1.47
2.752
1.15
3.6
14
0.17

3.8p1

2.752
0.28
1.47

0.96
1.25
0.28
2.17
2.0.27
2.752
0.96

1.25
0.28

2.0.27
11&1.3a

11&1.3a

1.39

2.0.27
2.30

0.51.1




Service Finder Polic OClI TAO 1.1&1.3a

Software
Server apt_rpm 0.5.15cnc¢
pm 4.0.4

TAO

Developmen OCl TAO 1.1&1.3a

TAO

Runtime OcClI TAO 11&1.3a

XML2HCL perl_xml_parse 2.30

PVFS Clemson Universit PVFS Library 1.6.3.3

PVFS Server and Kern 1.6.3.3

GAVSMI

FOCAL 3 RedHat RedHat Linux RHEL3/7.3
IBM WebSphere (DataStag 7.5.1A
Apache ANT 2.0.46
HP Tru64 5.1

PERL 3 RedHat RedHat Linux RHEL3/7.3
IBM WebSphere (DataStag 7.5.1A
Apache ANT 2.0.46
HP Tru64 5.1

Generic

Service 3 RedHat RedHat Linux RHEL3/7.3
IBM WebSphere (DataStag 7.5.1A
OcClI TAO 11&1.3a
GNU Perl 5.8.0
Apache Xalar 1.9.0
Apache Xerce 2.6.0
GNU SOAP 2.7

And, all of the Licenses identified in the Develagmh Tool Spread Sheet below (and the code thatdtregr) except the licenses identified as Excludednses (and tt
code they cover):

DEVELOPMENT TOOL SPREAD SHEET

| Development tool name Vendor Purpose the tool is used fo
GNU Compiler (gcc, g++ RedHat- GNU Open Sourc Code compilatior
gdb/DDD RedHat- GNU Open Sourc debugginc
Editors— vi and emac RedHat- GNU Open Sourc editing
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TotalView

ValGrind
Jboss
JDK
Eclipse
CARS

HiveBuilder
SourceForge Enterpric
SubVersior

GNU Make

RPM

Insure++

RedHat Linux command line toc

Vantage

Tempes

DAART

Perl Debugge

LDAP Browser\Editor 2.8.:

Etnus Corp

Freeware

Jboss

Sun and IBV- Freeware
IBM — Freeware
Compuware

Acxiom

VA Software

Greeware

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- Open Sourct

ParaSof

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Compuware

Acxiom

Acxiom

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc

Etherea~ Network Protocol Analyzer ver 0.10..

tcpdumy-3.7.2-7.E3.2

phpLDAPadmin is version 0.9.¢

VMWare

Id

UltraEdit

Visual Studic
Query Browse
Putty

WinSCP3
CookTop (xml editor
Secure shell clier
Tortoise SVM
SOAP:.Lite

Access

Active Perl 5.8.%
autoconti
automake

bison

DataStage

Dundas Ultimate Grid 9
flex
GraphicsServer 5.

Microsoft

MySQL

Freware (MIT License
GNU license

freeware

Freeware

Subversion clien

Microsoft

ActiveState

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
IBM

Dundas Softwar
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
GraphicsServe

debugginc
debugginc— memory leaks, array boun
etc.

development/debuggir
development/debuggir
development/debuggir

Regression testin

Build grid application+ grid applicatior
code generatc

Developer porta

Source code reposito

Make binaries

Package manageme

debugginc— memory leaks, array boun
etc.

Various debugging purpos
Performance testing (not widely used y
Orbiter testing

InfoBase build testin

Perl debuggin(

Visual IDE

Editing xml and xslt codin

Testing ODBC/Data Preview
Rapidus/Building from ODBC source in
Rapidus

Rapidus Scheduler Scriptit

Grid control in Rapidus and in the SBF
Queue Manage

Rapidus
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Jbuilder

OmniORB v4.0.2
Oracle

Oracle ProC

Oracle SQL Plu
Stingray Objective Studio 6.0
TOAD

Visual Studio .NET 200
Visual Source Saf
GNU automakse

GNU autocon

GNU libtool

And, all of the Licenses identified in the SeconevBlopment Tool Spread Sheet below (and the cadetby cover) except the licenses identified adugled Licenses

(and the code they cover):

Borland

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Oracle

Oracle

Oracle

RogueWave

Quest Softwar

Microsoft

Microsoft

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc

GBF, Planne

GBF

GBF, Planne

Window Controls for Rapidus GL

GBF, Planne
Source Contre

SECOND DEVELOPMENT TOOL SPREAD SHEET

| Development tool name

Vendor

Purpose the tool is used fo

Access

Active Perl 5.8.%
autoconti

automake

bison

CookTop (xml editor
DataStag¢

Dundas Ultimate Grid 9
Eclipse

flex

gcce

GraphicsServer 5.
Jbuilder

make

OmniORB v4.0.:
Oracle

Oracle ProC

Oracle SQL Plu

Putty

Stingray Objective Studio 6.0
TOAD

UltraEdit

vi

Visual C++ v6.C

Visual Source Saf

Microsoft

ActiveState

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
freeware

IBM

Dundas Softwar

Open Source, IBN
RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Linux

GraphicsServe

Borland

Linux

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc
Oracle

Oracle

Oracle

Open Source (MIT Licenst
RogueWave

Quest Softwar

UltraEdit

n/a

Microsoft

Microsoft

Testing ODBC/Data Preview

Rapidus/Building from ODBC source in

Rapidus
Rapidus Scheduler Scriptii

Editing xml and xslt codin
Grid control in Rapidus and in the SI

Queue Manage
ASIPosting, ASI Business Log

Rapidus

GBF, Planne

GBF

GBF, Planne

Window Controls for Rapidus Gl
Shell and SQL script

GBF, Planne
Source Contro
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Visual Studio .NET 200
MySQL
Oracle Universal Installe

rpm

Excluded License Agreements

Microsoft
Open Source, ABDal
Oracle

RedHat- GNU Open Sourc

o Ascential/IBM Websphere (Datastage XE Parallel Boez)
e Sterling Software (Connect & GIS Software)
e Red Hat (Linux) support services agreement

Development Agreements

None

Version 2.(-

Name

Policy Manage
Scheduling Adapte
Scheduling Adapter AXIS Rout
LDC

RSA Workarrounc

NA

Focal Manage

Workflow manager Acxion
Focal Validation Servic
Schedule

Apiary

Data Stage

DataStage Grid Produ
Apiary Report

CORBA Standar

TAO CORBA

FDW

Fellowship

FOCAL

FOCAL Perl Build Scriptt
GRID CORBA

HIVE

HIVE for Hire

Hydra

Hydra Transform:

ia HIVE

IDAUTH

GBF, Planne

Datagrid, MySQL Hive
Installation of Oracle produc
Installation package creation and
managemer

Location

<subversion repository>/act_polm
<subversion repository>/act_
<subversion repository>/act_
<subversion repository>/actfw
<subversion repository>/actfw
<subversion repository>/actl
<subversion repository>/acts
<subversion repository>/actw-acx
<subversion repository>/acxpt
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/apia
<subversion repository>/ascent
<subversion repository>/datastage_grid_prou
<subversion repository>/emc_apiary_ref
<subversion repository>/emc_corba_
<subversion repository>/emc_taoco
<subversion repository>/fd

<subversion repository>/fellowsh
<subversion repository>/foc
<subversion repository>/focalperlbuildscri|
<subversion repository>/grid_cor
<subversion repository>/hi\

<subversion repository>/hive_for_hi
<subversion repository>/hyd
<subversion repository>/hydratransfor
<subversion repository>/iahi\
<subversion repository>/idau
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Date
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007
12/28/2007




Java CORB/
Apiary MySQL
Apiary ORA Plugin
Orbiter Ul

PVFS

Valmods GV

POD Data Manageme

POD LDAP
Project Manage
Properties

Audit Managel

Job Monitor Manage
Job Activity Manage

Job Detail Manage
Data Grid Manage
GUI Install

User Manage
Work flow manage
Parse Config Fili
AGS Build

AGS GUI

AGS Helpet

Job Monitor
Request Manage
Data Schem
TestApps
Advance Job XML
Cigar

Delegate Sul

DFI

Dist Arch

EA

Edge

EMC GOE Centra
EMC GOE RM
IOF

IOF Secure

Gen Sen
Forwarding

FP Function:

FP Service:
Global CS¢<

Grid Sac Util
Hacns

Heartbea
heliosmair
hercules

horizon

<subversion repository>/java_cor
<subversion repository>/mysql_apie
<subversion repository>/ora_apiary_plu
<subversion repository>/orbiter_
<subversion repository>/pv
<subversion repository>/valmods_¢
<subversion repository>/pod_data_r
<subversion repository>/pod_|Id.
<subversion repository>/projectm
<subversion repository>/properti
<subversion repository>/act_au
<subversion repository>/act_jm
<subversion repository>/act_job:
<subversion repository>/act_jobdete
<subversion repository>/actfn
<subversion repository>/actfw
<subversion repository>/actfn
<subversion repository>/actwf
<subversion repository>/acxpt
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/ajx
<subversion repository>/cig
<subversion repository>/delegats
<subversion repository>/d
<subversion repository>/distar
<subversion repository>/¢
<subversion repository>/ed
<subversion repository>/emc_goe_central_arc
<subversion repository>/emc_goe_
<subversion repository>/emc_i
<subversion repository>/emc_iof _sec
<subversion repository>/emcgens
<subversion repository>/forwardir
<subversion repository>/fpfunctiol
<subversion repository>/fpservic
<subversion repository>/globalc
<subversion repository>/gridsact
<subversion repository>/hac
<subversion repository>/heartbs
<subversion repository>/heliosmz
<subversion repository>/hercul
<subversion repository>/horiz(
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12/28/2007
12/28/2007
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12/28/2007
12/28/2007
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ID2

Identity

Infra comp

Input Validation
Interactive Delivery
Interactive Servici
IS Res

JDPS

jzero Cont

Meta data for linu
MDPost Transfe
MPICH2
Navigator

OsDB

PAM

Phenotype

RSA

SAS Hive Protc
SAS IA

SAS Workflow
SEM Engineering
Ser Wirt

SPSS IA

SPSS Workflow
State Tracke
Tesla

Tesla Protc
Workflow Informatica
Wit Legacy

Wit PVCS

Wit Sharec

WSA Dev

WS Routel
Environment Information Servic
Cll Won

EMC Grid Installel
EMC ISG

Grid AuthN

Grid AuthZ
GridLog

NFS

Tempes

Trans Diff
Workflow GC
Workflow IS
Workflow Managel
Worflow Manager Symbol XML

<subversion repository>/id_
<subversion repository>/identi
<subversion repository>/infracon
<subversion repository>/inputvalidati
<subversion repository>/interactive_delivt
<subversion repository>/interactive_servi
<subversion repository>/isr
<subversion repository>/jdy
<subversion repository>/jzerocc
<subversion repository>/md_for_lin
<subversion repository>/mdpost_x
<subversion repository>/mpict
<subversion repository>/navigat
<subversion repository>/0st
<subversion repository>/pam_requ
<subversion repository>/phenoty
<subversion repository>/r-axm
<subversion repository>/sas_hive_pr
<subversion repository>/sas
<subversion repository>/sasw
<subversion repository>/sem_e
<subversion repository>/servv
<subversion repository>/sps:
<subversion repository>/spssw
<subversion repository>/statetracl
<subversion repository>/tes
<subversion repository>/tesla_prototy)
<subversion repository>/wfg_informati
<subversion repository>/wit_lega
<subversion repository>/wit_pvi
<subversion repository>/wit_shar
<subversion repository>/wsa_d
<subversion repository>/wsrout
<subversion repository>/analyti
<subversion repository>/ciiwc
<subversion repository>/emc_grid_insta
<subversion repository>/emc_i
<subversion repository>/gridaut|
<subversion repository>/gridaut
<subversion repository>/gridic
<subversion repository>/n
<subversion repository>/tempe
<subversion repository>/transd
<subversion repository>/wfc
<subversion repository>/wf
<subversion repository>/wfi
<subversion repository>/wfm_symbolxi
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Job Log Manage
Activate SDK
Seminole Submit Test
Submit Manage
Activate Desktog

File Managel

Activate Frameworl
Ajax List View
Support Script:

Job Report Manag¢
Job Data Servic
Pentaho BI Integratio
Report Manage

Script Manage

Script Manager Unit Tes
WEF GUI Prototype

WF GUI Prototype for Acxion
Acxiom Perl Script for WF
Perl Script Validation Servic

Perl Service

Perl Service Tes
Perl Validation Servic
Logging Serve
Map Reduce Ste
SAS OSH

SAS Grid Servict
Workflow SAS
ATF Bridge

ATF Counts
ATF XML

Audit Operatol
Autobuild
Bonjour
BonjourWrappe
Cascadt
Cascade De
CDI Arch Ops
ClIDevelopment Toolki
CM Scripts
Compute Farn
Conf

Connect EMC
Cruise Contro
CX700

Data Dock FTF
Dav

Databast

ELM

<subversion repository>/act_jl
<subversion repository>/act_s
<subversion repository>/act_shi
<subversion repository>/act_subr
<subversion repository>/actdeski
<subversion repository>/actf
<subversion repository>/actfn
<subversion repository>/actfw
<subversion repository>/actfw
<subversion repository>/actjobrep
<subversion repository>/actjobrep
<subversion repository>/actjobrep
<subversion repository>/actr
<subversion repository>/acts
<subversion repository>/acts
<subversion repository>/actwf
<subversion repository>/actw-acx
<subversion repository>/acxpt
<subversion repository>/acxpt
<subversion repository>/acxpt
<subversion repository>/acxpt
<subversion repository>/acxpt
<subversion repository>/g-acxiom
<subversion repository>/analyti
<subversion repository>/analyti
<subversion repository>/analyti
<subversion repository>/analyti
<subversion repository>/atfbridg
<subversion repository>/atfbridg
<subversion repository>/atfxr
<subversion repository>/audit
<subversion repository>/autobu
<subversion repository>/bonjo
<subversion repository>/bonjourwrapy
<subversion repository>/casce
<subversion repository>/cascade(
<subversion repository>/cdiarcha
<subversion repository>/ciidevelopmenttoo
<subversion repository>/cm_scri
<subversion repository>/compfai
<subversion repository>/co
<subversion repository>/connecte
<subversion repository>/cruise
<subversion repository>/cx7(
<subversion repository>/datadock
<subversion repository>/d:
<subversion repository>/c
<subversion repository>/el
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EMC Acxiom Commor
EMC Perl

Emc Product Suppo
EMC Shared C Cod
EMC Grid

ETL Grid

ext

extxml

filesystems

fuji

generic_servic
goe_documentatio
grid_debugging
grid-ftp-proftpd
grid_enabled_mysc
grid_enabled_mysgl.backt
grid_enabled_oracl
grid_jdk

griddev

gridftp
gridscm_cruise
gridsftp
gridsftg-custom
gridssh

gs-emc

gtest

gvs

hooks

j2eegrid

jas

javagrid
jboss_suppot
jbossas

jmeter

iquery

jreave_tes

libnet

libxslt

locks

log4

lookuptable

mfg

opensst
openss-gridsftp
passcryp

pvfs2
scm_meta_rpr

<subversion repository>/emc_acxcomn
<subversion repository>/emc_p
<subversion repository>/emc_prodsupptc
<subversion repository>/emc_shared_c_c
<subversion repository>/emcgi
<subversion repository>/etl_gr
<subversion repository>/e

<subversion repository>/extxr
<subversion repository>/filesyster
<subversion repository>/fu

<subversion repository>/generic_serv
<subversion repository>/goe_documenta
<subversion repository>/gi-debugginc
<subversion repository>/gi-ftp-proftpd
<subversion repository>/grid_enabled_my

<subversion repository>/grid_enabled_mysql.bac

<subversion repository>/grid_enabled_orz
<subversion repository>/grid_jc
<subversion repository>/gridd¢
<subversion repository>/gridfi
<subversion repository>/gridscm_cru
<subversion repository>/gridsf
<subversion repository>/grids-custom
<subversion repository>/grids
<subversion repository>/-emc
<subversion repository>/gte
<subversion repository>/g
<subversion repository>/hoo
<subversion repository>/j2eeqgi
<subversion repository>/ji
<subversion repository>/javagr
<subversion repository>/jboss_supf
<subversion repository>/jboss
<subversion repository>/jmet
<subversion repository>/jque
<subversion repository>/jreave_ti
<subversion repository>/libn
<subversion repository>/libxs
<subversion repository>/locl
<subversion repository>/loc
<subversion repository>/lookuptalk
<subversion repository>/mi
<subversion repository>/opens
<subversion repository>/open-gridsftp
<subversion repository>/passcn
<subversion repository>/pvfs
<subversion repository>/scm_meta_r
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scm_per!
scm_rm_archivi
scm_software_build
seminole_step
servicecallservic
sfnavigatot
smarts_builc
solutionrepc
spoonws
SPOONWS:
storagautomatior
syslo¢-ng
systemarchitec
systemimage
tablemanage

test

tigerteam
totalview
tracker_reporting

<subversion repository>/scm_p
<subversion repository>/scm_rm_arch
<subversion repository>/scm_software_bu
<subversion repository>/seminole_st
<subversion repository>/servicecallserv
<subversion repository>/sfnavigai
<subversion repository>/smarts_br
<subversion repository>/solutionre
<subversion repository>/spoon
<subversion repository>/spoonw
<subversion repository>/store-automatior
<subversion repository>/sysl-ng
<subversion repository>/systemarchit
<subversion repository>/systemimay
<subversion repository>/tablemana
<subversion repository>/te

<subversion repository>/tigertez
<subversion repository>/totalvie
<subversion repository>/tracker_report
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d EXHIBIT 2
EMC Competitors

IBM
Hewlet-Packarc
Oracle

SAP

Microsoft
Google

Net Apps
Accenture

Dell

0. Sun

BooNooA~ONE

EMC reserves the right to modify the companiesliktaipon ten (10) days written notice to Acxigmnovided that there will not be more then (10) camips
identified on this list at any one time.
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EXHIBIT 3
Pentaho Services

Acxiom hereby grants to EMC a perpetual, unlimiteoh-exclusive, world-wide fully paid up licensedatight to use exclusively within the Current GHithe Pentaho
Management Services (Group C) below.

Acxiom hereby grants to EMC a fully paid, irrevotstunrestricted, perpetual, non-exclusive, as$itdransferable, sub-licensable and reprodudit®ese to use the
Acxiom Proprietary Components (Group B below) flbicarporate purposes, including but not limitedight to use, make, modify, distribute, create\dgive works of
and otherwise develop and commercialize the Acvoprietary Components. EMC shall own all rigtttetand interest in any derivative works createdbygn EMC's
behalf.

The Pentaho Open Source Components (Group A bel@jcensed in accordance with their respectivenagmurce licenses.

Group A

Pentaho Open Source License Type Comments and Description of
Components Functionality
Pentaho Data Integration/ETL LGPL ETL Core Engine, Workflow Engine,
Design Ul
Product Code: KTL!
Pentaho BI Platform Pro MPL App Server-based; pulls all or part of the
modules together — combined with single
Product Code: PP1 product subscriptions for Pentaho Datg
Integration, Pentaho Analysis, and
Pentaho Reporting. Also provides
Admin, security, scheduling and other
repository functionality
Pentaho Reporting Reporting Engine: LGPL Core Reporting Engine Library
Product Code: JFR 1 Report Designer: MPL Graphical Desktop-base report designéer
Graphical step-based reporting wizard
Report Wizard: MPL Browser-based self-service reporting app

Wetk-based A-hoc: MPL
Pentaho Analysi ROLAP Engine: CPlL Core ROLAP engine, MD-parser.
XMLA-compliant API

Product Code: MON1

Web-based pivot Ul: CPL Web-based slicer/dicer
Schema Designer: MPL Desktop-based graphical schema
designer too
Pentaho Dashboa MPL Wet-service calls, APIs to enak
Dashboard creation, portlet enabled
Product Code: DSH reports, charts, and gauges/di
Group B o
Acxiom Proprietary Components Description Intellectual Property owned by
Acxiom Corporation
SE Services Acxiom bundle and Resource ) .
Web Services Licensed to EMC pursuant to Article 8
Grid Schedule Publisher of the Transition Amendment
Validation
Node Calculation
Resource Calculatio
Group C o
Pentaho Proprietary Description Intellectual Property owned by
Appliance/Management Pentaho Corporation
Components

Services which help i
monitoring a set of API
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Exhibit 10(w)

SEPARATION AGREEMENT
AND GENERAL RELEASE

This Separation Agreement and General Release €&kgent”)is entered into as of the 6th day of March, 20@8wieen Acxiom Corporation, its successors and nt
and former subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, dimgs, employees, representatives, insurers, agedtassigns (“Acxiom”), and Rodger S. Kline (“Asste”).

1. Associat’'s employment with Acxiom shall be severed effecMey 31, 2008 Separation Da”), under the following terms and conditiol

a. Associate acknowledges that he is an “at will” emgpke and does not have any right to severance iteeneider Acxioms$ policies or any oth
understanding or agreement with Acxiom that wouldtie him to severance benefits. In considerafmmAssociates execution of this Agreeme
Acxiom agrees to provide the additional benefitsadibed in Exhibit A attached to and made parbaf Agreement

b. In exchange for the consideration set forth in BithA, Associate agrees to unconditionally releasd discharge Acxiom from all claims, obligati
and liabilities Associate has or may have had, hdreknown or unknown, suspected or unsuspected apd as of the date of the execution of
Agreement, arising out of or related to Assocgthployment, separation from Acxiom and any otioeitact or association with Acxiom. Such cle
include, without limitation, those for: personajurnes; compensatory, punitive, and liquidated dgesa wages, salaries, commissions, and bor
deductions; back pay; front pay; reinstatementrtcoosts; attorneydees; intentional infliction of emotional distressrt; express or implied contra
wrongful discharge; and/or for any other known oknown causes, claims or demands which Associaeohanay have had against Acxiom. ~
Agreement specifically releases and dischargesohex{rom, without limitation, any and all claims Assate has or may have had against Ac

under:

i Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Sectioh981 of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, Section 198dAthe Civil Rights Act of 1991, a
Executive Order 11246, which prohibit discriminativpased on race, color, national origin, religionsex;

ii. the Age Discrimination in Employment Act and ExeéeetOrder 11141, which prohibit age discriminatinremployment

iii. the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and &ats 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 19W#ich prohibit discrimination ¢
account of disability

iv. the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, which re@datage and hour matte

O:\Corporate Lega\SECC\-K\10K 2008\Edgar\ex10(w)klinesepagmt.h



Vi.

Vil

viii.

ix.
X.
Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

the Equal Pay Act of 1963, which prohibits payingmand women unequal pay for equal wi

the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation @ct985, which requires employers under certaiouritstances to offer continued he
coverage after an employ's separation of employmel

the Employee Retirement Income Security Act whaahpng other things, protects employee bene

the Older Worker Benefit Protection A

the Arkansas Civil Rights Act of 199

the Family and Medical Leave Act, which requirepéyers to provide leaves of absence under cectesnmstances
the Occupational Safety and Health A

state or federal common law; and

any local, state, or federal law whatsoe'

each as amended. Associate acknowledges thas thisriowing and voluntary waiver. Associate wasiéseniority rights he may have with Acxiom,
and Associate expressly waives any claim for ratestent by Acxiom.

This waiver and release does not apply to or wdiyéssociate’s rights to enforce this Agreemeht2y rights Associate may have under applicable
workers’compensation or unemployment compensation statoited);any right to continuation of health care emge under the Consolidated Omn
Reconciliation Act

In exchange for the consideration set forth in BittA, Associate agrees to the following terms aodditions:

For a period of one year following the Separatia@id) Associate will not compete with Acxiom by siting business from any Acxio
customer. Associate acknowledges that the purpiobésgoaragraph is to protect Acxiom's legitimhbtesiness interests and market advant
from unfair competition by Associate and not teenfiere with ordinary competition or to deprive Asste of a livelihood. Associate agrees
that the restrictions in this subparagraph, in vigsthe nature of the business in which Acxiomrigaged and in light of the special training,
disclosure of trade secrets, confidential busim&ssmation, and customer data Acxiom has provittedssociate, are reasonable and
necessary in order to protect Acxiom's legitimaisibess interests. Associate acknowledges thabxiseence of any other claims by Assoc
against Acxiom, whether based on this Agreementloerwise, will not constitute a defense to Acxi®
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enforcement of this subparagra

ii. For a period of three years following the Separabate, Associate will not directly or indirectlglgit, on his own behalf or on behalf of a
other person or entity, the services of any perglon is an employee of Acxiom or solicit any of Aowi’'s employees to terminate their
employment with the Company, except with the Comgfsaprior written consent. This subparagraph wit preclude Associate from
soliciting the employment of Leslie Rasmussen (Wwaebr not Ms. Rasmussen is then in the employwietiie Company) and will not
preclude Associate from soliciting the employmefrdirmy person whose employment with Acxiom previgusided for any reason other than
a solicitation from Associate; at

iii. Associate acknowledges that Acxiom has developedvat continue to develop and use valuable tecainand no-technical business a
trade secrets and other confidential informatian|uding, without limitation, information pertairgnto Acxiom'’s finances, products, servic
present and future development, processes or twobsii marketing strategies and related data, cestdists, vendor selection &
information, sales and profits, costs and supplinsl personnel (the “Confidential InformationAcxiom has protected the disclosure/rel:
of Confidential Information to third persons andeimds that such information will continue to be tkepnfidential. Associate acknowled:
that, during his employment with Acxiom, he hadesxto such Confidential Information. Associateebgragrees to and acknowledgt
continuing obligation to preserve the confidentjalbf any Confidential Information. For a period wfo years after the Separation D
Associate will inform prospective employers of Asiste of this provision of this Agreeme

Associate acknowledges that he has the right tsidenthis Agreement for a period of 21 days. Aggteds advised to consult with an attorney regaydhis
Agreement and has done so to the extent deemedpajge. The parties hereby agree that changes toatis Agreement, whether material or immateda
not restart the running of the 21-day review peridd\ssociate elects to sign this Agreement beftbeeend of the 2#lay period, he agrees that such e
execution of this Agreement is his voluntary choisssociate may revoke this Agreement at any tintefar any reason for a period of seven days falg
the execution of the Agreement. The Agreement tseffective or enforceable until the expirationtbé severday period. Further, if Associate elects to
this Agreement, Associate agrees to deliver thewre original version of this Agreement to AcxianCEO & President. If the executed Agreement i
received on or before the expiration of theday period, the offer of additional benefits ddsed in Exhibit A will expire

Associate agrees and acknowledges that he hasedtor will return all Acxiom property to Acxiom l@ss destruction of such property is otherwise fiézd
by Acxiom. The return of Acxiom property shall fuion as a condition precedent to any obligatiorttenpart of Acxiom to provide the benefits spedifia
Exhibit A, and accordingly, Acxiom is not obligatealprovide any benefits to Associate until suchetias it has received all Acxiom property from Asate.
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For a period of five years, Associate agrees nihtiwingly make any statement or engage in any wonghich may reasonably be expected to have feel
of disparaging Acxiom to: (i) any news media repreatives (broadcast, print, online or otherwise)ii) current or former customers, vendors or Eyge:
of Acxiom; and Associate generally agrees not tdkenany statements with regard to Acxiom or thisegnent intended for public dissemination witl
Acxiom’s prior written consen

This Agreement shall be construed and enforcedrubwdensas law, without regard to conflicts of lavinciples.

Associate acknowledges that he is not signingAlgieement in reliance upon any promises, repregensaor inducements other than those containetis
Agreement, and is signing this Agreement free of duress or coercion. Associate further acknowlsdfat he has not assigned or transferred any o
claim he may have against Acxiom. This Agreemerteismed to have been drafted jointly by the parf@y uncertainty or ambiguity shall not be const
for or against either party based on attributiodmaffting.

In the event any portion of this Agreement is degrtee be invalid or unenforceable, that portion viié deemed to be omitted and the remainder o
Agreement will remain in full force and effe:

Associate agrees that, should he bring any aati@ny forum challenging the enforceability of tligreement, he will immediately repay to Acxiom tio¢al
amount paid to him under Exhibit A, unless sucloaatlirectly pertains to the Age DiscriminationEmployment Act. In any action to enforce this Agneat
except a claim pertaining directly to the Age Disgnation in Employment Act, the prevailing partyéstorneys’ fees and costs shall be paid by the non
prevailing party

This Agreement is binding on the parties and theirs, successors, administrators, agents, exacatssigns, and representatiy

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have executed the Agreemenitthe date set forth above.

ACXIOM CORPORATION

By: /s/ John A. Meye
John A. Meyel

CEO & Presiden

ASSOCIATE

/s/ Rodger S. Klint
Rodger S. Kline



Exhibit A

In consideration of Associate’s execution of theggnent, Acxiom hereby agrees:
1. to pay Associate on the Separation Baeverance payment equal to one year's base $3489,000);

2. to pay Associate on the Separation DateO®4rEpresenting Associate’s costs of maintainisgchirent health insurance coverage for 18 mowmtisafing the
Separation Date; and

3. to treat Associate’s separation as a retirefineoest standing pursuant to which Associate’stantting stock options will remain exercisable uthté expiration of
their original terms, except in the case of a cleasfgcontrol of Acxiom, in which event the continuexercisability of Associate’s stock options woh&ldetermined by
the Acxiom Board of Directors prior to the effeeidate of such change of control.



Exhibit 10(x)
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreemeistgntered into as of the 6th day of March, 20@8aihd between Acxiom Corporation and its subsie

and affiliates (“Acxiom”),a Delaware corporation with its principal placenfsiness at 601 East Third Street, Little Rock,aldas 72201 and Rodger S. K
(“Consultant”) whose address is 4301 Larchmonte$tigallas, TX 75205.

1. Term The term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall commermn June 1, 2008 (the “Effective Date”) and skall on May 31, 2010.
2. Scope of ServicesConsultant shall provide consulting services $eist Acxiom as needed during the Term of the Ageze. All requests for Consultaat’

services shall be made in writing and delivere€omsultant by Acxions Organizational Development Leader. In the evemtsQltant receives a request from any ¢
person within Acxiom, Consultant shall promptly ifothe Organizational Development Leader in watiaf such request, and shall not proceed with aagkwvith
regard to such request until it has been appravediting by the Organizational Development Leader.

3. PaymentAcxiom shall pay Consultant at the rate of $18@@r hour for any authorized work performed by €ldtant under this Agreement. Consultant ¢
invoice Acxiom on a monthly basis. Applicable taxésany, shall be included by Consultant to tharges payable by Acxiom. Each invoice shall be atug payabl
within thirty (30) days of Acxiom’s receipt of iniae.

4. Equipment Consultant will provide his/her own work spacel @aguipment. However, in the event any equipmeBt{ipment”)is provided to Consultant
Acxiom in connection with the performance of anyrkvbereunder, such Equipment shall at all timesaiarthe property of Acxiom and shall be immediateljurne:
by Consultant to Acxiom upon request, or upon ttggration or termination of the Agreement.

5. Inventions /Property Rights(a) Any inventions, improvements, concepts, arail made or conceived by Consultant in connectith and during th
performance of any services hereunder and relatdtetbusiness of Acxiom, including but not limitedany writings, reports, compilations, softwaregrams or cod
shall be considered the sole and exclusive propdrcxiom. Acxiom shall require and Consultant Isleasure that written notebook records of Consitlsawork ar
kept and properly witnessed for use as inventi@onds, and Consultant shall submit such recordactdom when requested or at the termination of Qitast’s
services, or this Agreement. Consultant shall eptaduce any portion of such notebook records witltwe prior written consent of Acxiom. Consultahtll promptl
and fully report all such inventions to Acxiom.

(b) Any work performed by Consultant under this égment shall be considered a “Work Made for Hasthat phrase is defined by the U.S. copyright
and shall be owned by and for the express bernfefitriom. In the event it should be established thach work does not qualify as a Work Made forelH€onsultar
hereby assigns to Acxiom all of Consultantights, title, and interest in such work prodimciuding, but not limited to, all copyrights, pats, trademarks, and otl
proprietary rights.

(c) Both during the Term of this Agreement and d¢ladter, Consultant shall fully cooperate with Agxridn the protection and enforcement of any intéllal
property rights that may derive as a result ofdéevices performed by Consultant under the ternthisfAgreement. This shall include executing, asidedging, an
delivering to Acxiom all documents or papers thalyrbe necessary to enable Acxiom to publish omptataid inventions, improvements and ideas.

6. Confidentiality. With respect to any work to be performed by Cdtasti under this Agreemer

(a) Consultant shall treat as confidential any rimfation disclosed by Acxiom, including but not lted to all Acxioms financial information, employ
information, mailing lists, proprietary data, pretidesigns, capabilities, specifications, programie; software systems and processes, informatgardig existing ar
future technical, business and marketing plans prodiuct strategies, and the identity of actual @otential customers and suppliers (hereinafterrmedeto a
“Confidential Information”). Confidential Informain may be written, oral, recorded, or containedape or on other electronic or mechanical media.

(b) “Confidential Information”shall not include information which (i) is in or h@&ntered the public domain through no breach isf Aigreement or oth
wrongful act of Consultant; (i) has been rightjulleceived from a third party without breach ofsttAgreement; (iii) has been approved for releasewhsten
authorization of Acxiom; or (iv) is required to Hesclosed pursuant to the final binding order gfozernmental agency or court of competent jurisaiictprovided the
Acxiom has been given reasonable notice of the garydof such an order and the opportunity to carites

(c) Consultant will be deemed to be in a fiduciaglationship of confidence with respect to the @teritial Information disclosed to it by Acxiom, &
Consultant shall hold the Confidential Informationstrict confidence and not to disclose such Gierftial Information to any third party or to usdat any purpos
other than as specifically authorized by Acxiom.

(d) No copies of the Confidential Information shb® made by Consultant except as may be necessgugriorm services relating to the Confider
Information as requested by Acxiom.

(e) Acxiom shall be deemed to be the owner of alhf@lential Information disclosed by it hereundecluding all patent, copyright, mask work, tradek)
service mark, trade secret and any and all othagrjgtary rights and interests therein, and botiigmagree that nothing contained in this Agreenséall be construe
as granting any rights, by license or otherwisegrinto any Confidential Information disclosed pustito this Agreement or to any such intellectualpprty right:
therein.

(f) Consultant acknowledges that the unauthorizedlasure, use or disposition of such Confideritiérmation could cause irreparable harm and sicguif
injury which may be difficult to ascertain. Accondly, Acxiom shall have the right to an immediat@gihction in the event of any breach of this Agreaminvolving
confidentiality, in addition to any other remedthat may be available to Acxiom at law or in equity

(g) Consultant shall indemnify and hold Acxiom héss against any and all liability, actions, claimemands, liens, losses, damages, judgments et e
including reasonable attorneys’ fees that may driga the unauthorized disclosure or use of Comiiidd Information.

(h) Upon the written request of Acxiom, Consultahall, at Acxioms option, either destroy or return to Acxiom ajpes, diskettes or other media upon w
the Acxiom Confidential Information is stored, aaiti copies thereof, if any. If requested by Acxidondestroy any Acxiom Confidential Information, Guiftant sha
certify in a writing to be delivered to Acxiom withfive (5) business days following such destruetibat such destruction had been completed.



7. Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, the provisiaf this Agreement which by their nature have icmig effect shall survive in effect a
continue in effect and shall inure to the bendf#md be binding upon the parties, their legal @spntatives, successors, heirs and assigns.

8. Indemnification Consultant hereby releases and agrees to indgmmnif hold harmless Acxiom, its officers, agentd amployees from any and all liabiliti
damages, losses, expenses, demands, claims, ispittgments, including reasonable attorndgg's, costs and expenses relating to third paaiynsl resulting from ar
claim that Consultant is not an independent cotdracConsultans performance of any services hereunder or anycbréeereof, or for the loss of, damage tc
destruction of, any property in any manner arising of the negligent or intentional acts or omissi@f Consultant. If any claim by a third party édsipon allege
infringement of a patent, copyright or trade sedseasserted against Acxiom by virtue of the usehef software or other programming documentatioveligpec
hereunder, Consultant will indemnify and hold Agxridharmless against damages, reasonable attorfeg’and costs associated with the investigaticepgpatior
defense and/or settlement of such claim.

9. Independent ContractoConsultant shall at all times during the Termtlué Agreement be an independent contractor. Thjseedment does not create
employer-employee relationship, partnership, joeriture, agency or other such relationship betwemmom and Consultant.

10. Authority. Consultant shall not have any right, power, dharity to create any obligation, express or imglier make any representations on behalf of Ac:
except as Consultant may be expressly authorizektkipm in advance in a writing signed by Acxiomdathen only to the extent of such authorization.

11. Equal Opportunity Employmen#fcxiom is an equal opportunity employer and doeesdiscriminate in employment of persons or tharmng of subcontrac
because of a persanrace, sex, age, religion, national origin, veterdisability or any other protected status. Catasulis aware of and fully informed of
responsibilities and agrees to comply to the exapplicable with Executive Order 11246, as amen8edtion 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, TWietnam Er:
Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 heid implementing regulations including but notitied to the equal opportunity clauses containedilitC.F.R. § 60-
1.4(a), 41 C.F.R. § 60-741.5(a) and 41 C.F.R. 80A. All such provisions are incorporated heregjrttis reference.

12. AssignmentThis Agreement may not be assigned by Consultahbut the prior written consent of Acxiom.

13. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed by the lawshefS$tate of Arkansas, without regard to conflidtéaw principles and the parties agre:
submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of thet8taf Arkansas.

14. No Waiver A waiver by either party of any breach of thisrégment by the other party shall not be constrgeal waiver of any such subsequent breach by
party of the same or any other provisions of thige®ement.

15. Partial Invalidity If any portion of this Agreement shall be heldahd or void, the remainder of this Agreement Ehat be affected but such portion shal
deemed modified to the extent necessary to renar grovision enforceable under the law, and tigse&ment shall remain valid and enforceable asatified. In the
event that the provision may not be modified intsaavay as to make it enforceable, the Agreemaait bh construed as if the portion so invalidates wot part of th
Agreement.



16. HeadingsThe headings used in this Agreement are foreafr purposes only and shall not be deemed a stibbstpart of this Agreement.

17. Good FaithiThe parties agree that in regards to all of trespective dealings under this Agreement, they sleaflairly and in good faith.

18. Entire AgreementThis Agreement expresses the complete and fimd¢nstanding of the parties related to the serwdgsh may be rendered by Consultar
Acxiom, and the Agreement may not be changed irveayexcept in a writing signed by both partiese Bgreement may be executed in one or more couartsrall o
which shall collectively comprise the final exealitnd binding Agreement.

19. Notices Notice required or permitted to be given pursuanthe terms of this Agreement shall be deemedived five (5) days after deposit into the Un
States mail, postage prepaid, certified returniptcequested and addressed as provided belowpar teceipt if delivered by any other method:

To Acxiom: Acxiom Corporatior
601 E. Third Stree
Little Rock, AR 72201
Attn: Organizational Development Leac

With a copy to  Acxiom Corporatior
601 East Third Stre«
Little Rock, AR 72201
Attn: Corporate Secreta

To Consultant Rodger S. Kline

4301 Larchmont Street
Dallas, TX 75205

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have executed the Agreemenitthe date set forth above.

ACXIOM CORPORATION

By: [s/ John A. Meye
John A. Meyel

CEO & Presiden

CONSULTANT

/s/ Rodger S. Klint
Rodger S. Kline



Exhibit 10(y)

AMENDED SEPARATION AGREEMENT
AND GENERAL RELEASE

This Amendment to the Separation Agreement and @kRelease of the Z7day of March 2008 (“Agreement”) is entered intaéshe 17th day of April, 2008,
between Acxiom Corporation, its successors anceatiand former subsidiaries, affiliates, officefisectors, employees, representatives, insureesjtagnd assigns
(“Acxiom”), and L. Lee Hodges (“Associate”).

1. Associat’'s employment with Acxiom shall be severed effeciuae 30, 2008, or such earlier date as Associayed®termine” Separation Da”), under the
following terms and condition:

a. Associate acknowledges that he is an “at will” emgpke and does not have any right to severanceitsenafier Acxiom’s policies or any other
understanding or agreement with Acxiom that woultitie him to severance benefits. In consideratibAssociate’s execution of this Agreement,
Acxiom agrees to provide the additional benefitscdibed in Exhibit A attached to and made parbaf Agreement

b. In exchange for the consideration set forth in BithA, Associate agrees to assist Acxiom with tlaasition of his current duties and responsibaitie
and to unconditionally release and discharge Acxiamm all claims, obligations and liabilities Assaie has or may have had, whether known or
unknown, suspected or unsuspected up to and &e dite of the execution of this Agreement, arisiagof or related to Associate’s employment,
separation from Acxiom and any other contact oo@ission with Acxiom. Such claims include, withdimitation, those for: personal injuries;
compensatory, punitive, and liquidated damagesge®agplaries, commissions, and bonuses; deduchiank;pay; front pay; reinstatement; court cc
attorneys'fees; intentional infliction of emotional distressrt; express or implied contract; wrongful disdeg and/or for any other known or unknc
causes, claims or demands which Associate has yheea had against Acxiom. This Agreement spedificaleases and discharges Acxiom from,
without limitation, any and all claims Associatesla may have had against Acxiom unc

i Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Sectiol981 of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, Section 198&fthe Civil Rights Act of 1991, ar
Executive Order 11246, which prohibit discriminatiopased on race, color, national origin, religionsex;

ii. the Age Discrimination in Employment Act and ExeéeetOrder 11141, which prohibit age discriminatinremployment

iii. the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and &ers 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 19%8ich prohibit discrimination o
account of disability

iv. the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, which regdatage and hour matte

<

the Equal Pay Act of 1963, which prohibits payingmand women unequal pay for equal wi
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Vi.

Vii.
Viii.
iX.
X.
Xi.
Xii.

Xiii.

the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation &ct985, which requires employers under certaiourirstances to offer continued hes
coverage after an employ's separation of employmel

the Employee Retirement Income Security Act whaahpng other things, protects employee bene

the Older Worker Benefit Protection A

the Arkansas Civil Rights Act of 199

the Family and Medical Leave Act, which requiregpayers to provide leaves of absence under cectednmstances
the Occupational Safety and Health £

state or federal common law; and

any local, state, or federal law whatsoe'

each as amended. Associate acknowledges thas thisriowing and voluntary waiver. Associate wasiéseniority rights he may have with Acxiom,
and Associate expressly waives any claim for ratestent by Acxiom.

This waiver and release does not apply to or wdiyéssociat's rights to enforce this Agreement; 2) any rightsdciate may have under applice

workers’compensation or unemployment compensation statoitedy; any right to continuation of health care @@ge under the Consolidated Omn
Reconciliation Act

In exchange for the consideration set forth in BittA, Associate agrees to the following terms aodditions:

For a period of three years following the Separabate, Associate will not compete with Acxiom lpfisiting business from any Acxiol
customer. Associate acknowledges that the purpioeésgoaragraph is to protect Acxiom's legitimbtesiness interests and market advant
from unfair competition by Associate and not teenfiere with ordinary competition or to deprive Asse of a livelihood. Associate agrees
that the restrictions in this subparagraph, in vigthe nature of the business in which Acxiomrigaged and in light of the special training,
disclosure of trade secrets, confidential busim&ssmation, and customer data Acxiom has provittedssociate, are reasonable and
necessary in order to protect Acxiom's legitimaisibess interests. Associate acknowledges thabxiseence of any other claims by Assoc
against Acxiom, whether based on this Agreementlogrwise, will not constitute a defense to Acxieenforcement of this subparagra

For a period of three years following the Separabate, Associate will not directly or indirectlgliit, on his own behalf or on behalf of any
other person or entity, the services of any perglon is an employee of Acxiom or solicit a

2



of Acxiom's employees to terminate their employment withGbenpany, except with the Compi’s prior written consent. This subparagr.
will not preclude Associate from soliciting the dayment of any person whose employment with Acxjomeviously ended for any reason
other than a solicitation from Associate; and

Associate acknowledges that Acxiom has developedval continue to develop and use valuable tecainand no-technical business a
trade secrets and other confidential informatian|uding, without limitation, information pertairgnto Acxiom'’s finances, products, servic
present and future development, processes or tpebsi marketing strategies and related data, cestdists, vendor selection &
information, sales and profits, costs and supplinsl personnel (the “Confidential InformationAcxiom has protected the disclosure/rel:
of Confidential Information to third persons andeimds that such information will continue to be tkepnfidential. Associate acknowled:
that, during his employment with Acxiom, he hadesxto such Confidential Information. Associateebgragrees to and acknowledgt
continuing obligation to preserve the confidentjabf, and not to use, any Confidential Informatiexcept as may be required in connec
with the provision of consulting services by Assdeito Acxiom in connection with that certain Pssfienal Services Agreement betw
Acxiom and Associate dated as of the date heremf.aFperiod of three years after the Separatiore,Dassociate will inform prospecti
employers of Associate of this provision of thisr@&gment. Associate agrees not to disclose and sagpeeeturn, or certifies that he |
destroyed, including any copies, Confidential Infation: (1) acquired by or made known to Associdtging or after his Acxiol
employment; or (2) to which Associate has had pEsen, access, or control, or right of possessioogss, or control at any tin

Associate acknowledges that he has the right tsidenthis Agreement for a period of 21 days. Agteds advised to consult with an attorney regaydhis
Agreement and has done so to the extent deemedmjate. The parties hereby agree that changes toabis Agreement, whether material or immateda
not restart the running of the 21-day review peridbd\ssociate elects to sign this Agreement beftbeeend of the 2#lay period, he agrees that such e
execution of this Agreement is his voluntary choiesociate may revoke this Agreement at any tintefar any reason for a period of seven days falg
the execution of the Agreement. The Agreement tseffective or enforceable until the expirationtbé severday period. Further, if Associate elects to
this Agreement, Associate agrees to deliver thewre original version of this Agreement to AcxienCEO & President. If the executed Agreement i
received on or before the expiration of theday period, the offer of additional benefits ddsed in Exhibit A will expire

3



10.

11.

Associate agrees and acknowledges that he hasedtor will return all Acxiom property to Acxiom l@ss destruction of such property is otherwise fiéd
by Acxiom. The return of Acxiom property shall fuiom as a condition precedent to any obligatiortt@npart of Acxiom to provide the benefits spedifia
Exhibit A, and accordingly, Acxiom is not obligatealprovide any benefits to Associate until suchetias it has received all Acxiom property from Asate.

Associate agrees not to knowingly make any statéoreengage in any conduct which may reasonabkxpected to have the effect of disparaging Acxiot
(i) any news media representatives (broadcast, miline or otherwise); or (ii) current or formeustomers, vendors or employees of Acxiom; and éias
generally agrees not to make any statements wgidrdeto Acxiom or this Agreement intended for paldissemination without Acxio’s prior written conser

This Agreement shall be construed and enforcedruiwd@nsas law, without regard to conflicts of lavinciples.

This Agreement was reached after good faith negmtis. Associate acknowledges that he is not sggninis Agreement in reliance upon any prom
representations or inducements other than thoswiced in this Agreement, and is signing this Agneat free of any duress or coercion. Associatehé
acknowledges that he has not assigned or trandfamgright or claim he may have against AcxiomisThgreement is deemed to have been drafted jolny
the parties. Any uncertainty or ambiguity shall hetconstrued for or against either party baseatiibution of drafting

In the event any portion of this Agreement is degrtee be invalid or unenforceable, that portion viié deemed to be omitted and the remainder o
Agreement will remain in full force and effe:

Associate agrees that, should he bring any acti@ny forum challenging the enforceability of tligreement, he will immediately repay to Acxiom tio¢al
amount paid to him under Exhibit A, unless sucloaatlirectly pertains to the Age DiscriminationEmployment Act. In any action to enforce this Agnest
except a claim pertaining directly to the Age Disgnation in Employment Act, the prevailing partyéstorneys’ fees and costs shall be paid by the
prevailing party

This Agreement is binding on the parties and theirs, successors, administrators, agents, exacatssigns, and representatiy

In consideration of the undertakings stated hdvgiAssociate and upon specific reliance of thees@ntation of Associate that h
unaware of any matters that might give Acxiom dnelagainst him, Acxiom releases and discharges datofrom all claim:
obligations and liabilities Acxiom has or may hawed, whether known or unknown, suspected or unstespelp to and as of t
date of the execution of this Agreement, arising @fuor related to Associate's employment at Acxiand any other contact
association with Acxiorr

It is further agreed that in the event of the dezthee Hodges during the term of the SeparationeAment that any benefit t|

would be due to him if he were then alive shalpbé&l to his estate
[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have executed the Agreemenitthe date set forth above.

ACXIOM CORPORATION

By: /sl Jerry C. Jone
Jerry C. Jone

Business Development / Legal Lea

ASSOCIATE

s/ L. Lee Hodge
L. Lee Hodge:



Exhibit A
In consideration of Associate’s execution of theggnent, Acxiom hereby agrees:

1. to pay Associate on the Separation Date a sevepmarent equal to one y’'s base salar
($490,000):

2. to pay Associate on the Separation Date $11,85@septing Associate’s costs of maintaining hisentrhealth insurance coverage for 18 months foligvthe
Separation Date;

3. to treat Associate’s separation as a retiremebéegt standing whereby all of his unvested resttisteck units and stock options would become vessenf the
Separation Date, and his stock options would rereggmcisable throughout their original exercisaqabs. Associate acknowledges that in the casecbage of control
of Acxiom, the continued exercisability of Assoefatstock options would be determined by the AcxBoard of Directors prior to the effective datesath change of
control; and

4. in the event of a “change of control” (as definedhe Executive Security Agreement dated Marci2808 between Associate and Acxiom) that occurs detw
July 1, 2008 and March 31, 2009, to pay Associatthe effective date of the change of control aditamhal payment equal to one year’s base salat9E®00), or in
the event of a change of control that occurs betwg®il 1, 2009 and March 31, 2010, to pay Assaciat the effective date of the change of contradditional
payment equal to half of one year’s base salargFE®D0);provided, howeverthat if between the dates of April 1, 2009 and®ha31, 2010 the Company has
commenced discussions with any third person(s)utiaately results in a Change of Control whicltwrs after March 31, 2010, Acxiom agrees to payodisge on the
effective date of the change of control a paymemgéto half of one year’s base salary ($245,000).



Exhibit 10(z)
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreemeistgntered into as of the 27th day of March, 2@38and between Acxiom Corporation and its subsigel

and affiliates (“Acxiom”),a Delaware corporation with its principal place mfsiness at 601 East Third Street, Little Rock,afhdas 72201, and L. Lee Hod
(“Consultant”).

1. Term The term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall commermm July 1, 2008 (the “Effective Date”) and steadtl on June 30, 2010.
2. Scope of ServicesConsultant shall provide consulting services $eist Acxiom as needed during the Term of the Ageze. All requests for Consultaat’

services shall be made in writing and delivere€omsultant by Acxions Organizational Development Leader. In the evemtsQltant receives a request from any ¢
person within Acxiom, Consultant shall promptly ifothe Organizational Development Leader in watiaf such request, and shall not proceed with aagkwvith
regard to such request until it has been approwenriting by the Organizational Development Leadere parties agree to use their best efforts toraotodate eac
other’s schedules, but in the event Acxiom requéstssultant’s services during a time period thatfloacts with Consultant existing schedule, Consultant shall nc
required to perform services during such time mkrio

3. PaymentAcxiom shall pay Consultant at the rate of $18@@r hour for any authorized work performed by €lgant under this Agreement. Consultant ¢
invoice Acxiom on a monthly basis. Applicable tax#sany, shall be included by Consultant to tharges payable by Acxiom. Eaatwvoice shall be due and pays
within thirty (30) days of Acxiom’s receipt of inice.

4. Equipment Consultant will provide his/her own work spacel @aguipment. However, in the event any equipmeagipment”)is provided to Consultant
Acxiom in connection with the performance of anyrkvbereunder, such Equipment shall at all timesaiarthe property of Acxiom and shall be immediateljurne:
by Consultant to Acxiom upon request, or upon ttggration or termination of the Agreement.

5. Inventions / Property Rights(a) Any inventions, improvements, concepts, @ail made or conceived by Consultant in connectiitih and during th
performance of any services hereunder and relatdtetbusiness of Acxiom, including but not limitedany writings, reports, compilations, softwaregrams or cod
shall be considered the sole and exclusive promdrcxiom. Acxiom shall require and Consultant Isleasure that written notebook records of Consitlsawork ar
kept and properly witnessed for use as inventimonds, and Consultant shall submit such record&ctiom when requested or at the termination of @dast's
services, or this Agreement. Consultant shall eptaduce any portion of such notebook records witttwe prior written consent of Acxiom. Consultahgll prompth
and fully report all such inventions to Acxiom.

(b) Any work performed by Consultant under this égment shall be considered a “Work Made for Hasthat phrase is defined by the U.S. copyright
and shall be owned by and for the express beneicriom. In the event it should be established thach work does not qualify as a Work Made foreH{€Consultar
hereby assigns to Acxiom all of Consultantights, title, and interest in such work prodinciuding, but not limited to, all copyrights, pats, trademarks, and otl
proprietary rights.

(c) Both during the Term of this Agreement and ¢ladter, Consultant shall fully cooperate with Agxidn the protection and enforcement of any intéllel
property rights that may derive as a result ofdéevices performed by Consultant under the ternthisfAgreement. This shall include executing, astidedging, an
delivering to Acxiom all documents or papers thalyrbe necessary to enable Acxiom to publish orgtataid inventions, improvements and ideas.

6. Confidentiality (a) Consultant shall treat as confidential arfprimation disclosed by Acxiom, including but natlted to all Acxioms financial informatior
employee information, mailing lists, proprietarytalgproduct designs, capabilities, specificatiggregram code, software systems and processesmafiom regardin
existing and future technical, business and marggtians and product strategies, and the identigactual and potential customers and supplierse(hafter referred
as “Confidential Information”). Confidential Informtion may be written, oral, recorded, or contaioedape or on other electronic or mechanical media.

(b) “Confidential Information”shall not include information which (i) is in or ha&ntered the public domain through no breach isf Algreement or oth
wrongful act of Consultant; (i) has been rightjulleceived from a third party without breach ofsttAgreement; (iii) has been approved for releasewhsten
authorization of Acxiom; or (iv) is required to Hesclosed pursuant to the final binding order gfozernmental agency or court of competent jurigaiictprovided the
Acxiom has been given reasonable notice of the garydof such an order and the opportunity to carites

(c) Consultant will be deemed to be in a fiduciaglationship of confidence with respect to the @teritial Information disclosed to it by Acxiom, &
Consultant shall hold the Confidential Informationstrict confidence and not to disclose such Glarftial Information to any third party or to usddt any purpos
other than as specifically authorized by Acxiom.

(d) No copies of the Confidential Information shb® made by Consultant except as may be necessgugriorm services relating to the Confider
Information as requested by Acxiom.

(e) Acxiom shall be deemed to be the owner of alhf@lential Information disclosed by it hereundecluding all patent, copyright, mask work, tradek)
service mark, trade secret and any and all otrepri@tary rights and interests therein, and bottigsmagree that nothing contained in this Agreerseall be construe
as granting any rights, by license or otherwisegrirto any Confidential Information disclosed pustto this Agreement or to any such intellectualpprty right:
therein.

(f) Consultant acknowledges that the unauthorizedl@sure, use or disposition of such Confiderltiérmation could cause irreparable harm and sicguif
injury which may be difficult to ascertain. Accondly, Acxiom shall have the right to an immediat@ihction in the event of any breach of this Agreaminvolving
confidentiality, in addition to any other remedihat may be available to Acxiom at law or in equity

(g) Consultant shall indemnify and hold Acxiom h#gss against any and all liability, actions, claimemands, liens, losses, damages, judgments s
including reasonable attorneys’ fees that may drgga the unauthorized disclosure or use of Comiiidd Information.

(h) Upon the written request of Acxiom, Consultahall, at Acxioms option, either destroy or return to Acxiom ajpes, diskettes or other media upon w
the Acxiom Confidential Information is stored, aalticopies thereof, if any. If requested by Acxidondestroy any Acxiom Confidential Information, Goiftant sha
certify in a writing to be delivered to Acxiom withfive (5) business days following such destruetibat such destruction had been completed.



7. Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, the provisiaf this Agreement which by their nature have icmig effect shall survive in effect a
continue in effect and shall inure to the bendf#md be binding upon the parties, their legal @spntatives, successors, heirs and assigns.

8. Indemnification Consultant hereby releases and agrees to indgmmnif hold harmless Acxiom, its officers, agentd amployees from any and all liabiliti
damages, losses, expenses, demands, claims, ispittgments, including reasonable attorndgg's, costs and expenses relating to third paaiynsl resulting from ar
claim that Consultant is not an independent cotdracConsultans performance of any services hereunder or anycbréeereof, or for the loss of, damage tc
destruction of, any property in any manner arising of the negligent or intentional acts or omissi@f Consultant. If any claim by a third party édsipon allege
infringement of a patent, copyright or trade sedseasserted against Acxiom by virtue of the usehef software or other programming documentatioveligpec
hereunder, Consultant will indemnify and hold Agxridharmless against damages, reasonable attorfeg’and costs associated with the investigaticepgpatior
defense and/or settlement of such claim.

9. Independent ContractoConsultant shall at all times during the Termtlué Agreement be an independent contractor. Thjseedment does not create
employer-employee relationship, partnership, joeriture, agency or other such relationship betwemmom and Consultant.

10. Authority. Consultant shall not have any right, power, dharity to create any obligation, express or imglier make any representations on behalf of Ac:
except as Consultant may be expressly authorizektkipm in advance in a writing signed by Acxiomdathen only to the extent of such authorization.

11. Equal Opportunity Employmen#fcxiom is an equal opportunity employer and doeesdiscriminate in employment of persons or tharmng of subcontrac
because of a persanrace, sex, age, religion, national origin, veterdisability or any other protected status. Catasulis aware of and fully informed of
responsibilities and agrees to comply to the exapplicable with Executive Order 11246, as amen8edtion 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, TWietnam Er:
Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 heid implementing regulations including but notitied to the equal opportunity clauses containedilitC.F.R. § 60-
1.4(a), 41 C.F.R. § 60-741.5(a) and 41 C.F.R. 80A. All such provisions are incorporated heregjrttis reference.

12. AssignmentThis Agreement may not be assigned by Consultahbut the prior written consent of Acxiom.

13. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed by the lawshefS$tate of Arkansas, without regard to conflidtéaw principles and the parties agre:
submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of thet8taf Arkansas.

14. No Waiver A waiver by either party of any breach of thisrégment by the other party shall not be constrgeal waiver of any such subsequent breach by
party of the same or any other provisions of thige®ement.

15. Partial Invalidity If any portion of this Agreement shall be heldahd or void, the remainder of this Agreement Ehat be affected but such portion shal
deemed modified to the extent necessary to renar grovision enforceable under the law, and tigse&ment shall remain valid and enforceable asatified. In the
event that the provision may not be modified intsaavay as to make it enforceable, the Agreemaait bh construed as if the portion so invalidates wot part of th
Agreement.



16. HeadingsThe headings used in this Agreement are foreafr purposes only and shall not be deemed a stibbstpart of this Agreement.

17. Good FaithiThe parties agree that in regards to all of trespective dealings under this Agreement, they sleaflairly and in good faith.

18. Entire AgreementThis Agreement expresses the complete and fimd¢nstanding of the parties related to the serwdgsh may be rendered by Consultar
Acxiom, and the Agreement may not be changed irveayexcept in a writing signed by both partiese Bgreement may be executed in one or more couartsrall o
which shall collectively comprise the final exealitnd binding Agreement.

19. Notices Notice required or permitted to be given pursuanthe terms of this Agreement shall be deemedived five (5) days after deposit into the Un
States mail, postage prepaid, certified returniptcequested and addressed as provided belowpar teceipt if delivered by any other method:

To Acxiom: Acxiom Corporatior
601 E. Third Stree
Little Rock, AR 72201
Attn: Organizational Development Leac

With a copy to  Acxiom Corporatior
601 East Third Stre«
Little Rock, AR 72201
Attn: Corporate Secreta

To Consultant L. Lee Hodge:

46 Chenal Circle
Little Rock, AR 7222:

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have executed the Agreemenitthe date set forth above.

ACXIOM CORPORATION

By: /sl Cindy K. Childers
Cindy K. Childers

Organizational Development Leac

CONSULTANT

s/ L. Lee Hodge
L. Lee Hodge:



Name

1. Acxiom CDC, Inc

2. Acxiom CH, Inc.

3. Acxiom Canada, In¢

4. Acxiom Digital, Inc.

5. Acxiom / Direct Media, Inc

6. Acxiom eProducts, Inc

7. Acxiom Equitec Holdings, Int

8. Acxiom Information Securit
Services, Inc

9. Acxiom Interim Holdings, Inc

10. Acxiom / May & Speh, Inc

11. Acxiom Mexico Holdings, LLC

12. Acxiom RN-Tools, Inc.
13. Acxiom Risk Mitigation, Inc
14. Acxiom UWS, Ltd

15. Smartreminders.com, Ir

Name

16. Acxiom Australia Pty Lt

17. Acxiom European Holdings Lt

Incorporated Ir

Arkansas
Delaware
Arkansas
Delaware
Arkansas
Arkansas
Delaware

Arkansas

Arkansas
Delaware
Delaware
Arkansas
Colorado
Arkansas

Tennesse

Incorporated Ir

Australia

United Kingdom

SUBSIDIARIES OF ACXIOM

U.S. SUBSIDIARIES

Doing Business A

Acxiom CDC, Inc.

Acxiom CH, Inc.

Acxiom Canada, Inc
Acxiom Digital, Inc.
Acxiom / Direct Media, Inc
Acxiom e-Products, Inc

Acxiom Equitec Holdings, Inc

Acxiom Information Security Service

Inc.

Acxiom Interim Holdings, Inc

Acxiom / May & Speh, Inc

Acxiom Mexico Holdings, LLC

Acxiom RM-Tools, Inc.
Acxiom Risk Mitigation, Inc
Acxiom UWS, Ltd.

Smartreminders.com, In

INTERNATIONAL SUBSIDIARIES

Doing Business A

Acxiom Australia Pty Ltc

Acxiom European Holdings Lt

EXHIBIT 21



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Acxiom Corporation:

We consent to incorporation by reference in theifeggion Statements previously filed on Form Sa8 &orm S-8 (Nos. 33-17115, 33-37610, 33-3760% 3351, 33-
72310, 333-63633, 333-91395, 333-40114, 333-5748B3-68620, 333-98613, 333-108900, 333-124901, 23343, 333-148946 and 3338708), of Acxior
Corporation of our reports dated May 30, 2008, wéspect to the consolidated balance sheets ofoAtorporation and subsidiaries as of March 318208d 200
and the related consolidated statements of opeststockholders’ equity and comprehensive incand,cash flows for each of the years in the tlyese-period ende
March 31, 2008, and the effectiveness of intermatrol over financial reporting as of March 31, 8)@hich reports appear in the March 31, 2008 ahreport or
Form 10-K of Acxiom Corporation.

Our report dated May 30, 2008 contains an explapg@ragraph that refers to a restatement of thealwated financial statements as of March 317208 2006.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&tements, during 2007, the Company adopte@@tait of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123kgre-Based
Paymen.

Our report dated May 30, 2008, on the effectiveréssternal control over financial reporting asMérch 31, 2008, expresses our opinion that Acx@orporation did
not maintain effective internal control over fina@aeporting as of March 31, 2008, because offifiect of two material weaknesses on the achieveofehe objective
of the control criteria and contains an explanatmgagraph that states that the Company did na &Hgctive policies and procedures to apply the@mriate revenue
recognition criteria under U.S. generally acceptecbunting principles relating to certain typeswastomer contracts and did not maintain effectiwetiols over the
preparation and review of the consolidated stat¢mwiecash flows related to deferred costs.

/s KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 30, 2008



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the undersigna director or officer, or both, of Acxiom Corption (“the Company"), acting pursuant to
authorization of the Company’s Board of Directdrsteby appoints Catherine L. Hughes and Jerry i@s]r any one of them, attorneys-in-fact and &gen me and
in my name and on my behalf, individually and asractor or officer, or both, of the Company, tgrsthe Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K foryhar ended
March 31, 2008, together with any amendments tbeeetd to file the same, together with any exhiitd all other documents related thereto, withSbeurities and
Exchange Commission, granting to said attorneyfsén-and agents full power and authority to do padorm each and any act necessary to be donenimection
therewith, as fully to all intents and purposesh&sundersigned might or could do in person, datifying and confirming all that said attorneysfaet and agents may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue of thevpoherein granted.

Executed as of the 28th day of May, 20

Signed: /s/ WILLIAM T. DILLARD I
Name: WILLIAM T. DILLARD II, Director

Signed: /s/ MICHAEL J. DURHAM
Name: MICHAEL J. DURHAM, Director
(Non-Executive Chairman of the Boar

Signed: /s/ MARY L. GOOD
Name: MARY L. GOOD, Director

Signed: /s/ ANN DIE HASSELMO
Name: ANN DIE HASSELMO, Directot

Signed: /s/ WILLIAM J. HENDERSON
Name: WILLIAM J. HENDERSON, Directol

Signed: /s/ THOMAS F. McLARTY
Name: THOMAS F. McLARTY, lll, Director

Signed: /s/ JOHN A. MEYER

Name: JOHN A. MEYER,
Chief Executive Officer & Preside
(principal executive officer

Signed: /s/ STEPHEN M. PATTERSOI
Name: STEPHEN M. PATTERSON, Directc

Signed: /s/ KEVIN M. TWOMEY
Name: KEVIN M. TWOMEY, Director




Signed: /sl JEFFREY W. UBBEN
Name: JEFFREY W. UBBEN, Directc

Signed: /sl R. HALSEY WISE
Name: R. HALSEY WISE, Directol

Signed: /s/ CHRISTOPHER W. WOLF
Name: CHRISTOPHER W. WOLF

Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial & accounting officer)




EXHIBIT 31(a)
ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CERTIFICATION

I, John A. Meyer, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Acxiom Corporation

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitée a material fact necessary to make the stattsrmade, in
light of the circumstances under which such statesweere made, not misleading with respect to #red covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition
results of operations and cash flows of the regigtas of, and for, the periods presented in #psnt;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined in ExgghaAct Rules
13&-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and internal control over financial repagtias defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervision, to ensureniagtrial
information relating to the registrant, includirig consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiers within those entities, particularly durihg period in
which this report is being prepare

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under our supervisiorprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaintial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeierall
accepted accounting principle

evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presenthi report our conclusions about the effectessnof the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étiteeriod covered by this report based on swaktuation; anc

disclosed in this report any change in the regit's internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the registre’s most recent fiscal quarter (t
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case oéport) that has materially affected, or is reakiylikely to materially affect, the registranitgernal control
over financial reporting; an

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedséxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financial reporting, to the registr's
auditors and the audit committee of the regis’s board of directors

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknsessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which are reasonably likelyadversely
affect the registra’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmanhcial information; an

any fraud, whether or not material, that involvemnagement or other employees who have a significéein the registra’s internal control over financi.
reporting.

Dated: May 30, 2008

By: /s/ John A. Meye
(Signature)

John A. Meyer
CEO & President



EXHIBIT 31(b)
ACXIOM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CERTIFICATION

I, Christopher W. Wolf, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Acxiom Corporation

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or oméitée a material fact necessary to make the stattsrmade, in
light of the circumstances under which such statesweere made, not misleading with respect to #red covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition
results of operations and cash flows of the regigtas of, and for, the periods presented in #psnt;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined in ExgghaAct Rules
13&-15(e) and 15-15(e)) and internal control over financial repagtias defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervision, to ensureniagtrial
information relating to the registrant, includirig consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiers within those entities, particularly durihg period in
which this report is being prepare

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under our supervisiorprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaintial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeierall
accepted accounting principle

evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presenthi report our conclusions about the effectessnof the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étiteeriod covered by this report based on swaktuation; anc

disclosed in this report any change in the regit's internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the registre’s most recent fiscal quarter (t
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case oéport) that has materially affected, or is reakiylikely to materially affect, the registranitgernal control
over financial reporting; an

The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedséxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financial reporting, to the registr's
auditors and the audit committee of the regis’s board of directors

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknsessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which are reasonably likelyadversely
affect the registra’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmanhcial information; an

any fraud, whether or not material, that involvemnagement or other employees who have a significéein the registra’s internal control over financi.
reporting.

Dated: May 30, 2008

By: /sl Christopher W. Wol
(Signature)
Christopher W. Wolf
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32(a)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbaxiom Corporation (the Company) on Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 as filed with
Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehg@he Report), I, John A. Meyer, CEO & Presidehthe Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §@.&s
adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxlep®2002, to my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@abition and result of operations of the Company.

/s/ John A. Meye
John A. Meyer
CEO & President
May 30, 2008



EXHIBIT 32(b)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbaxiom Corporation (the Company) on Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 as filed with
Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehghe Report), |, Christopher W. Wolf, Chief Fira@al Officer of the Company, certify, pursuantli®U.S.C. §
1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarl@rkes- Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@abition and result of operations of the Company.
[s/ Christopher W. Wol
Christopher W. Wolf

Chief Financial Officer
May 30, 2008




